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Financial Performance

Revenue

£1,683.9m

2016:£1,401.4m

+20.2% on areported basis
+12.5% on an underlying
basis’

Trading profit?

£165.5m

20176: £133.3m

+24.2% on a reported basis
+16.1% on an underlying
basis’

Return on sales?

9.8%

2016:9.5%

+30 basis points
+30 basis pointson an
underlying basis'

Profitbefare tax

£971m

2016:£794m
22 3% increase

Headline earnings
pershare?

40.7 pence
2016:30.4 pence
33.9%increase

Recommended
final dividend

12.50 pence pershare
18.00 pence Group

full year dividend
2016:16.55 pence
Group full year dividend

Year-end net debt?

£274.3m

1.3x net debtto

EBITDA ratio

2016:£320.3m
1.8x

1. Underlying oasis s at constant currercy and excludes separately reported iterns and the ‘mpact of acquisihons

and disposals.

=]

Far definitions of alrernative performance measures, refer to Nate 4 of the Group Financial Skatements

3. Headline results refer to cont nuing operations and exclude separately reported items.

Forward-looking statements This Annual Report contains certain forward-looking statements with respect
to the apercations, strategy, performance, financial condition, and growth opportunities of the Vesuvius

Group. By their nature, these statermentsinvolve uncertainty and are based on ossumptions ond invalve risks,
uncertainties and other factors that could cause actual results and developments to differ materially from
those onticipated. The forward-looking statements reflect knowledge ond information available ot the date
of preparation of this Annual Report and, other than in accordance with its legal and regulatory obligations,
the Company undertakes no obligation to update these forward-looking statements. Nothing in this Annual
Report should be construed as a profit forecast.



Vesuviusis a globalleader in molten metal flow engineering

Vesuvius develops innovative, customised high-quality products,
services and solutions, to be used in extremely demanding,
high-temperature industrial environments. Our goal is fo create
value for our customers, using our expertise to improve the
safety and efficiency of their manufacturing processes,
enhance their end product quality and reduce their costs.

In doing this, we aim to deliver sustainable, profitable growth and
provide our shareholders with a superior return on their investment,
whilst providing each of our employees with a safe workplace
where he or she is recognised, developed and properly rewarded.

At aGlance Our Strategy
What we do & where Cur aims
O Seepaged O Seepage 10

Innovation
Qur R&D Focus
©Seepage 32

Melvin Bond, Plastic
Operator & Union Steward,
Chicago Heights, USA
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Our
Busin

In this section

4 Vesuviusata Glance

8 OurMarkets

10  Our Strategy

12  Business Model

The Strategic Report setouton pages 11073
contains a farr review of our businesses, strategy,
and business model and the associated principal
risks and uncertainties. We also deliver creview of
our 2017 performance and set cut an overview of
our markets. Details of our principles, our people
and community engogement, Together with

our focus onsafety, are also contained inthe
Strategic Report.

Approved by the Boordon 28 February 2018
ondsigned onits behalf by

Patrick André Guy Young
Chief Executive Chief Finonciol Officer



‘| joined Vesuvius in
Brazil as part of
Project Columbus”

Aline Barros, Quality Coordinater and Production
Manager Assistant, Vesuvius Fluxes, Germany

Building on my degree in Chemical
Engineering and severalindustry
internships, | joined Vesuvius in Brazil
in2013, as part of Project Columbus,
the Group'sinternational graduate
programme. |l always wanted to work
overseas since first starting college,
and wos excited to start my nine-
month international assignment.

Afterinitial rraining ot home in Brazil,
I moved to India where over the
course of my nine month secondment,
ldeveloped three projects, focusing
on resin production and machine
maintenance at Fasecoin Pune,

and on VISO production in Vesuvius
Calcutta . This enabled me to opply
my interest and expertise in process
management and optimisation.

It also gave me the opportunity fo
immerse myselfin a culturally very
different operation.

Having enjoyed the challenge of
working abroad, 1 then moved to
Germany as ¢ Produciion Mancger
Assistant at the newly acquired

rmould powder plant in Mulheim.
Whilst there, | worked on the
optimisation of spraying processes,
improved packaging standards and
implemented other safety standards
—all whilst learning to speak German.
Mere recently, | wos pleased to
accept the additional responsibility
of working as the Quality Coordinator
at Milheim, which allows me to

work with Vesuvius' many different
departmentsand learnhow the
company werks as a whole.

I hove achieved g lotin my first five
years at Vesuvius, developing technical
skills, growing in experience and
expanding my language capabilities
and geographical horizons

© See rmore about Vesuvius careers Peaple and community on p 67-73
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Vesuvius
at a Glance

We are a global group with a business model
based on offering customised products,
solutions and services from production facilities
in close proximity to our customers.

Q@ Seeour Business Model on p12-13

Q See rmore about our Steel and Foundry divisions on p6-7

Our global presence

57

11,010

Countries Employees
Continents Sales offices

66

Praduction sites

17

R&D centres

Michelle Chapman,
HR Associote,
Pittsburgh West, USA



Americas

17

Producticnsites

£4870m

Revenue
(2016: £415.3m)

®77.2%Steel
®22.8% Foundry

5

R&D centres

EMEA

30

Production sites

£735.2m

Revenue

(2016: £585.6m)

@ 67.5% Steel
®32.5% Foundry

10

R&D centres

Asia-Pacific

19

Production sites

£461.7m

Revenue

(2016: £400.5m)

®59.9% Steel
@ 40.1% Foundry

2

R&D centres

3183

Employeas

The mapshows our
production, R&D
and commerciol
sites worldwide

Steel Flow Control Operating

Review @Seep3t

21

Soles offices

4,472

Employees

Advanced Refractories
Cperating Review @ See pdl

34

Sales offices

Digital Services Operating
Review Q@5eep4sd

3,355

Employees

33

Sales offices

Foundry Operafing Review
O Seepdbd
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Steel Division

Overview

Our customers are steel producers,
manufacturers of steel preduction
equipment and other high-temperature
industries. Vesuvius is a world leader in the
supply of refractory products, systems and
solutions. These help our customers increase
their efficiency end productivity, enhance
qudlity, improve safety and reduce their
costs and their environmental impact.

O See Steel Flow Control, Advanced Refractories and
Digital Services Operating Reviews onp36-45

The Steel
Manufacturing
Process

Steel manufacturingisa
highly demanding process B3
for which consistent quality
and efficient productionis
essential. Qur products,
systems and solutions
enable this through every
part of the process,

Revenue

£11487m | £100.4m

20M6:£79.2m

2016: £942.0m

Business Units

l Steel Flow Control

Speciclised parts used fo protect and

confrol the flow of molten metal

I Advonced Refractaries

Specialised materials fer lining
vessels for steel making (furnaces,
ladles and tundishes) and other
high temperatureindustries

B Digital Services

Digital products focus on the
capture, nterpretation and use
of key manufacturing data for
process managerment

Trading profit

Returnon sales

8.7%

2016:8.4%

Key Strengths

Scale: One of the world's largest
mcnufccrurers in our market

Technology: Leading products and
services

Integration: Deep knowledge of
customers' processes allows us to of fer
bespoke systems

Innovation: Capability to develop new
value-adding solutions

Proximity: Effective and efficient supply
fo customers

Technical services

Our Technical Services
offering spans

‘ all of our businesses.

Formeore on Technical
services, @ Seep4d4-45




Foundry Division

Overview

Our primary customers are ferrous and
non-ferrous foundries serving various end
markets, from large bespoke castings to
high-velume automotive pieces. Trading as
Foseco, we are a world leader in products
and services that serve the global foundry
industry, improving casting quality and
foundry efficiency.

@ See Foundry Division Operating Review on pd6-49

Digitat Services—Cur
business unit dedicated to
data capture technologies

Flow Control, Advanced
Refractories and Foundry
- Providing services and
solutions complementary to
orindependent of the sale
of consumables

Revenue Trading profit Returnonsales

£535.2m | £651m 12.2%

2016: £459.4m 2016 £54Tm 2016:11.8%

Key Strengths

Product offering: Full renge of high
quality products ond services

Innovation: Industry-leading
technologies with a facus on
confinuous innovation

Integration: Detailed knowledge of
customers’ processes allows us 1o provide
customised solutions

Technical support: Access to Foseco's
extensive application engineering
resources

Proximity: Global presence

The Foundry Process

The foundry process is highly
sequential and consistency
of quality and productivity is
<] essential. The conditioning of
malten metal, the nature of
the mould, and the way metal
flows in the mould affects both
the quality of the finished
casting and the effort, energy
and metal usage.

ssauIsNg 4nQ I
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Our Markets

Steel

Steel Division
end markets

Customers of the Steel Division
are principally steel producers
and manufacturers of steel
production equipment.

Steel production volumes

are the crifical driver of
demaond as the Steel

Division primarily sells products
that are consumed during

the steel making process.
Thisis particulorly true inthe
production of higher-quality
steels where our highly
technical products deliver

the most value.

The Advanced Refractories
business also supplias

other high-temperature
industries such as primary
aluminium, copper, cement,
petrochemical and energy
from waste. Around 7% of
revenues in the Steel Division
arise from non-steel related
process industries.

Steel quality as a driver for demand

Steel manufacturersare
increasingly searching for
productsthat cansupgortthe
production of higher grades of
steel The flat’steel used in
‘later cycle’ consurmer goods,
e.g. cars and fridges, requires
significantly higher uniformity
than the long’steel usedin
‘early cycle’ construction

and infrastructura. Inthe
developed market of NAFTA,
the production ratiois
currently 65:35% (flatlong).
As developing countries move
from infrastructure-based
econormiesto consumer-based
aconomies, theratio of flat
tolong steel consumption

also transitions. According fo
the Chinese Iron and Steel

Association, thistrend has
beenseeninChinaoverthe
past few years and is expected
tocontinue. The quality
demandsareeven higher

for production of speciality
and high-strength steels.

Qurhighly technical, innovative
refractory products are
designed to preserve the
quality of moltensteel during
the steel making process.
Vesuvius' engineered
refractories prevent the build-
upofimpuritiesin the steel,
protect the molten metalfrom
oxidisation, moderate its flow,
and mancge its fluid dynamics
to harmonise consistency and

reduce the pick-up of inclusions.

To dothis our products needto
be highly resistant to erosion,
corrosionand thermal shock
to ensure that they do not
themselves contaminate
the steelduring casting.

The capabilities of Vesuvius'
products—particularly when
used as atotal solution - cre
much more indemand for
higher quality steel grades
where the consistency of the
finished steel is paramount.

Steel production

According to the World Steel
Association {WSA), the
worldwide steel industry saw
growth of 5.3% in 2017 with
1,691.2 milliontonnes 'mt’)
produced globally.

Formany years, China has
beenthewarld's largest
producer of steel. In 2017,

the WSA reported that
China's crude steel production
increased by 5.7% to B32mt
and accounted for 49% of
theworld's steel production.

Productionin Japanwas
mostly flatat 105mtin 2017,
whilst India's steel production
increased by 6.2% 10 101mt,
andSouth Korea'sincreased
by 3.7%t0 71mt

Growthincrude steel production (2017 vs. 2016) vs. 2017 steel production volume

{Top-15 producers and ELI2B)

Chinese reported steel production growth was 5.7% however,
due tothe closure of induction furnaces previously nat reported
instatistics, Vesuvius estimates China's actual steel production
growthin 2017 was between 0% and 2%



Foundry

Foundry Division end markets

The vehicle sector, comprising
light vehicles (passenger cors
and light trucks) and heavy
trucks, isthe largest end
market for worldwide castings.
Other end markets for foundiy
castings include machinery for
the agricultural, construction

and mining industries,
petrochemicals, power
generation equipment, railroad
and general engineering
sectors. Our customers include
the world's major automotive
OEMs, truck producers and
eguipment manufacturers.

Casting quality as a driver for demand

Whilst Foseco products
typically represent less than 5%
of afoundry's production cost,
they contribute significantly
to improving product

quality and manufacturing
efficiency, whilst reducing

the environmental impact

of the casting process
andimproving the ratic of
finished castings to the
amount of metal poured—

o key parameter for foundry

efficiency. As castings become
increasingly complicated
(drivenin the case of
autometive casting by the need
for lightness}, they demand
clegner metol better flow into
the mould, and more consistent
solidification. This supports
the computer modelling,

flow simulation ond costing
methading capabilities that
are centraltothe services
provided by Foseco

Demand drivers for castings

Lightvehicle demandislargely
driven by consumer confidence
and, in commercial purchesing,
the age of the overall fleet,
Demand inthe majority of

the remaining casting
end-markets is driven by the
cost of capitetand the level

of current profitability in the
given sector. Certainsectars

are consumption-driven, such
as construction, mining,
agriculture and heavy truck,
where usage drives demond
for replacement parts

(e.g. bulidozer blades, digger
teeth, track pads and bowls,
efc.) based onactual wear.

Technology changes and
environmental drivers

New technolegies, such as

3D printing, are expected

to continue to influence

the metal casting industry,
allowing for faster prototyping
and production of smaller
volume parts. Environmental
regulations, driven by the
desire to reduce volatile
organic compound emissions

and the use of silica withinthe
industry, are also expected to
contfinue ta tighten. This will
drivethe trend o find
processes and consumable
products which support
production efficiency and
reduce a foundry's impact
onthe environment.

Iron casting

Iron casting is split between
grey and ductile iron with

grey iron representing the
majority of metal being cast.
Thisis a cost-efficient and
robust process to produce
componentsthat do not need
fotolerate extreme mechanical
stress. Alliron casting requires
filters and coatings but grey
ironis not s reliant on feeding

system utilisationdue to

its lower shrinkage on
solidification. Conversely,
ductileiron production requires
more sophisticated productsto
cope with the high shrinkages
of metal whilst solidifying.

Steel casting

Steel is used in casting for
manufacturing components
with very high mechanical
performance. Steel casting is
the most demanding casting
process due to higher melting
temperatures and greater
tendency for shrinkage,

thus the greater demand

for products and technical
expertisein this segment.

Aluminium/
Non-ferrous casting

Aluminium casting isthe
segment of the foundry
market growing the fastest.
It has captured asignificant
share of the light vehicle
market. Being molten below
700°C aluminium canbe
castiniron moulds which
canthen be reused. Foseco
concentrates on supplying
fluxes, filters and machines
that refine the compositicn
and cleanliness of the metal.

ssaulsnging I
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Our Strategy

Strategic
Obijectives

Vesuvius focuses on the following strategic
objectives, which we measure and monitor

through our Key Performance Indicators (KPI's)

Deliver growth

Generate sustainable profitability
and create shareholder value

Maintain strong cash generation
and an efficient capital structure

Provide a safe working environment
for our people

Be at the forefront of innovation

Run top-quality, cost-efficient
and sustainable operations

Foster talent, skill and motivation
in our people

O Seeour Key performance indicators on p20-21

Execution
Priorities

Reinforce our
technology leadership

©5eep32-35

Increase penetration of
value-creating solutions

O Seep3s-48

Capture growthin
developing markets

Improve cost leadership
and margins

Develop our Technical
Services offering

QSeapd4-45



Vesuvius has articulated five key execution priorities. These will enable
usto achieve our core strategic objectives of delivering long-ferm

sustainable and profitable growth.

Description

Progressin 2017

Vesyvius was built and grew on technology breakthroughs.
These enabled the steel centinuous casting and foundry
industries toimprove their efficiency and quality substantially.
Focusing on technology leadership continues to drive cur unigue
velue proposition and underpins our ability to deliver ongoing
volue enhancement to our customers.

The percentage of revenue accounted for by ‘New Products’, thatis
products launched within the fast five years, grew from 8% in 2014
to nearly 15% in 2017, Our objective s for thisto reach 20%. The new
R&D centre for Advanced Refractories at Visakhapatnam, India,
was inaugurated in November 2017. Our spend on R&D increased
vear-on-year to £33.2m, being 2.0% of cur total revenue, and we
increased the efficiency of our R&D by focusing our effortsona
reduced number of potentiolly high-impact R&D projects. We also
moved the R&D function closer to our customers, embedding R&D
within the business units which will ensure a closer link between RAD
activities and the return we receive on our investment.

Qurtechnology has been widely adopted by the most sophisticated
producersinthe most developed markets. However, marked
differences remain in the penetration of our sclutions within the
industry. Consequently, there is o wider audience of customerswhem
we believe can benefitfrom them. As steelandfoundry marketsin
developing markets become more quality focused, we have the
opportunity to significantly increase our penefration of these
markets through offering value creating solutions.

Our outperformance inthe majority of end markets across both

our Steel and Feundry Divisions is evidence of the penetration
gainswe are achieving dueto increased customer interest in our
value-creating solutions. For our Steel Division, this outperformance
is reflected in our underlying 2017 revenue growth of 14.1% versus
5.3% growth in global steel production volumes. For our Foundry
Division, underlying 2017 revenue growth of 9.3% s further
evidence of this cutperfermance.

Building on our long-standing presence in all markets, we can
leverage the high growth enjoyed by cur customers’ industries
in emerging markets which are large consumers of steel goods
and foundry castings.

Our growth in developing markers is especially encouraging

and we delivered outperformance relative to end markets, due to
greaterinterestin our high value-added solutiens. Our 2017
revenue growth rates for our key developing markets were os
follows: China +9.2%; India +6.2%; South America +17.5%; Mexico
+71%; EMEA excl. EU28 +37.0%. The acceleration of our revenue
growth in China is also especially notable and we are benefiting
from several favourable market trends which cre driving a shift
towards our higher guality consumables and services.

In 2015, weinitiated a restructuring programme throughout the
Groupto adapt our business and our cost base to the changing

trading environment. Thisis coreto our efforts to imprave profitabifity.
Furthermore, we have embedded the principles of Lean manufacturing
across all our sites, continuously focusing an quality and productivity
taenable us to maintain our margins. Our global presence allows us
fa benefit from ecanomies of scale and deliver excellent service from
local sites.

We continued to make good progress with our previously announced
restructuring programme, mainly focused on the Flow Control
business, delivering savings of £16.2min 2017, which was chead of
expectations. As a result, the fotal savings delivered since launching
the programme in 2015 are now £43.2m. This programme is now
expected to deliver £60m of savings at atotal cost of £75m. We also
commenced a completely new restructuring programme targeting
the Faundry Division in Europe and NAFTA, the Advanced
Refractories business unit in Europe, and Group corporate functions,
fram which we expect £15m of recurring savings by 2020.

Qur customners processes require increasing levels of engineering
servicestoreach the demanding levels of safety, accuracyand
consistency required by their end-customers' quality specifications
Thekey elements of Vesuvius' Technical Services strategy are, firstly,
the Digital Services business unit, which is focused on incubating our
data capturatechnologies, and secondly, the business units which
play a ertical role inintegrating these products into our broader
consumnables offering aswell as ensuring customer access. Inthis
way, our Technical Services strategy is progressively penetrating all
activities of both our Steel and Foundry Divisions.

We saw good progress of our global Technical Services offering,
which is now embedded in the operations of all our business units.
Global Technical Services turnover across all business units

reached £88m in 2017, growing by 14% year-on-year. Inlate 2017,
we made a strategic investment in Sapotech Oy, o Finnish technology
company offering optical measurement services for the continuous
casting process. The Sapotech business will be managed by our

Flow Control business urit.

11
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Business Model

A profitable, flexible, cash-generative
model focused on growth
We develop and manufacture high-technology

products and solutions for supply to the steel and
casting industries, operating a profitable, flexible,

cash-generative and growth-building business madel.

Cver many years we have built the brand equity of
our Vesuvius and Foseco products through reliahility,
technology and service.

The foundation of our business madelis the supply of
specialised and consumable products from a global
presence. Our industry experts are embedded at
many customer locations and are therefare ideally
placed to collaborate with customers to identify

their needs, and potential service and process
improvernents. This also enables us to grow our
solutions and service portfolio.

Qur model is resilient to end-market volatility due
to the flexibility of our diversified manufacturing
footprint and adjustable variable cost base.

Our model is profitable by allowing value pricing
for bespoke preducts and services, It generates
growth as we enlarge our market with additional
innovative preducts and solutions.

Global Presence

Using our global spread of expertise to identify
and create market oppertunities

Vesuvius is present on six continents, supporting the
develapment of global steel and foundry manufacturing
processes with new technologies. We have manufacturing
capability in all the main steel and foundry markets and hire
andtrain local engineers. They are progressively integrated
withinthe Vesuvius network of experts, and offered
international careers. Our local manufacturing, local
expertise and global knowledge of our customers’ processes
give us a special relationship with our customers, helping
them to optimise their process and product performance.
Allover the world, new plants use Vesuvius and Foseco
products o create the best possible conditions for success.

Key Resources

Financial capital We use the cash generated
by our business to invest in innovation, people,
operating assefs, technalogy and salesto
generate further growth.

Manufacturing capital We have a glabal fostprint,
with 66 production sites based on six continents,
giving us close proximity to our customers.

Intellectual capital We have 17 R&D centres and
over 300 R&D staff werldwide, generating
innovative products and solutions for our customers

Human capital We invest in developing our skilled
and metivated workforce of approx. 11,000 people
and provide them with a safe environment in which
towork.

Secial capital We champion our Values and our
ethical conduct. We maintain strong relationships
with customers and our wider stakeholder group,

Natural capital We utilise high-quality raw
materials, secured through reliable and
well-developed supply chains.

Optimised Manufacturing

Low-cost Lean manufacturing, close to customers,
provides reliable, ‘just-in-time’ products

Our successfully tested products can be manufactured at
a short distance from our customers' plants, guaranteeing
cost-competitive and time-efficient delivery. We optimise
our cost competitiveness by investing inthe lowest cost
production site in the arec and have established
manufacturing facilities in emerging markets from the
beginning of their industrialisation. This, together with the
highvolume of pieces we are able to produce, provides
our customers with the best balance between value,

cost and service for our high-technology solutions.

© See more about aur global presence on pd-5

O Seemore about sustainability on pé4-66



200+

technical experts
across six continents

17

R&D centres

Advanced Technology
Knowledge

Ourtechnolegy centres develop value-adding solutions
invelving engineered systems and high-value consumables

Our continuing investment inthe Compary's R&D centres

is reflected in all areas of our offering. We have knowledge
af the most advanced ceramic and metallurgical techniques
using state-of-the-artequipment and the most advanced
technologies of flow simulation and finite element analysis.
We are therefore able to provide aur customers with
sophisticated, innovative, custom-designed solutions, with
the highest level of confidence in their suitability, creating
value and helping them differentiate from their corpetition.
We enhance this expartise with our growing capabilities in
data capture and interpretation ta deliver expert process
management improvernents ta our customers.

66

manufacturing sites
in 26 countries

100+

R&D PhDs
and engineers

Key Outputs

Vaolue to shareholders Qur efficient use of capital
generates annual profits, giving returns to our
shareholders and underpinning sustainable growth.

High-quality preducts We deliver bespoke,
high-quality refractory and consumable praducts
and systems to industry-leading customers around
the world,

Customer value Ourinvestment in innovation
creates cutting-edge products and solutions,
delivering enhanced value for our customers and
differentiating us from our competitors.

Expert delivery \We embed technical experts with our
customers, giving us a fundamentol understanding
of their needs and delivering them occesstaour
global network of highly skilled individuals.

Sustainable business Our commitment 1o ethicol
business delivers strong, long-term, sustainoble
commercial relationships.

Enviranmental benefits We develop products
that deliver efficiency and energy savings to our
customers. We focus on sustainability in our own
business through the efficient use of energy and
natural resources.

Service and Consistency

Serving our customers reliably, competitively and consistently
with consumables critical for their manufacturing processes

Alongside developing our global presence, we ensure a
local service to our customers, from inventory manogement
to high-quality technical support at their sites and the ability
to swiftly modify production and supply to reflect changes
in customer requirements. Our knowledge of end-market
processes, specifications and techniques around the world
gives our experts anunparalleled ability to support our
customers. This unique level of service relies on cur technicians'
permanent presence at our customers' sites, and their ability
to leverage the worldwide expertise accumulated across the
Vesuvius network.

O Read more about innovation on p32-35

© Read more about quality and reliability onp34-48

13

sssuIsnganQ I



Our

Performance

In this section

16 Chairman's Statement
18 Chief Executive's Strategic Review
20 Key Performance Indicators
22 Risk
26 Financial Review
32 |nnovation
36 Operating Review
36 Steel Flow Control
40 Advanced Refractories
44 Digital Services
46 Foundry
50 Boardof Directors
52 Group Executive Committee

Enno Hilgenhoener
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Chairman’s Statement

John McDonough CBE Chairman

© See the Chief Executive's Strategic
Review on p18-19

© See mora about our Markets on p8-9

© See cur Financial Review on p26-31

O Searmore about our Governance inthe
Governance Section on p74-121

“We have outperformed
the market and delivered
a strong set of results”

Overview

2017 was ayear of good progress for
the Group as we saw improvemenis

in our trading environment fellowing
the challenging market conditions
experienced in 2015 and 2016. We also
completed o successful transition of
Chief Executive, with the appointment
of Patrick André o the role as partof
aplanned succession process. Global
steel production growth exceeded our
expectations and pleasingly our overall
sales growth outperformed the global
steel market. We also experienced
positive momentum in the majority of
foundry end markets. Overall, despite
experiencing headwinds relating to
significant raw material price increases
and some tfemporary increased
inter-company sourcing costs, the Group
saw a 24.2% increase in reported trading
profit (16.1% on anunderlying basis),
and a 20.2% increase in reported
revenue {12.5% on an underlying basis),
with cash generation strengthening
further. The Group continued to make
good progress with the restructuring
programme and we remained focused
onthe delivery of our strategy and its
execution priorities. Finally, in December,
we strengthened our balance sheet,
repaying existing borrowing with the
issuance of debtin the US Private
Placement market.

New Chief Executive

The appointment of our new Chief
Executive, Patrick André, was a key event
for Vesuvius this year. It was the result of
a rigorous pracess, during which both
internal and external candidates were
considered. We are delighted that the
best fit for the role came from within

our own ranks. | would like to take this
opportunity tothank Patrick's predecessor,
Frangois Wanecq, for his many years of
dedicated service o the business and his
diligencein ensuring a smooth transition.
We look forward to the years ahead
under Patrick's executive leadership.

Market Dynamics and Strategy

During the year, we saw global steel
production increase by 5.3% with
production in the majority of major stee!
countries up year-on-year. In our Foundry
Division the overall trading environment
and demand for our products was
positive across the majority of our key
end markets.

Throughout the year we faced notable
inflationary pressures from significant
price increases in several key raw
materials. These initially impacted our
Advanced Refractories business, but
subsequently price rises were also
experienced in the Steel Flow Control
and Foundry businesses. We responded
proactively tothe pressure placed on
our business making good progressin
recovering cost inflation through higher
selling prices by year-end.



Against this backdrop, we continued to
focus onthe execution of our strategy
and made good progress on our five

key execution priorities (see page 10).

We remain confident that these will
enable usto create value and deliver
sustainable profitability for cur
shareholders. We continue to recognise
the fundamentalimpertance to the
Group of the capabilities of cur people.
Cur highly talented leadership teams and
operational staff ensure that we are able
to drive our strategy forward, with quality
underpinning not only the premium
promise of our products, services and
solutions, but also our overall approach
to business excellence.

Performance and Dividend

In 2017, reported sales were £1,683.9m,
anincrease from 2016 of 20.2%.
Ourmarginsimproved to 9.8%, delivering
reported trading profitof £165.5m.
Whilst we experienced some headwinds
throughout the second half, over the year
we outperformed our marketsinterms of
growth. These results serve to emphasise
the strength of our managementtecm
and their ability to operate effectively
against the backdrop of a volatile
market. Vesuvius remains an intrinsically
cash-generative businass and we saw
strong cash generation throughout 2077,
endingthe year with a stronger balance
sheet than in previous years.

The Group continued to make good
progress in delivering the previously
announced restructuring programme
which focused mainly on our Flow
Control business. We also commenced
a completely new programme focusing
on the Foundry Division in Europe and
NAFTA, the Advanced Refractories
business unitin Eurcpe, and Group
carporate functions.

Cur Headline PBT was £152.9m, 27.6%
higher than last year on a reported basis.
Including amertisation of £19.5mand
restructuring costs of £36.3m, our PBT
of £97.1m was 22.3% higher than 20746.
Statutery EPS is 14.1p.

Our dividend policy aims to deliver
long-term dividend growth, provided
this is supported by cash flow and
underlying earnings, and is justified in
the context of our capital expenditure
requirements and the prevailing market
outlock. With this in mind, the Board
has recommended a final dividend of
12.5 pence per share for the year ended

31 December 2017 (2016: 11.4 pence),
which would result in a total dividend

for the year of 18.0 pence per share
(2016: 16.55 pence), anincrease of
8.8%.If approved at the Annual General
Meeting, this final dividend will be paid
on 25 May 2018 1o shareholders onthe
register at 13 April 2018,

Board and Governance

In April 2017, we appointed Holly
Keoeppel as a Non-executive Director,
replacing Nelda Connors, who resigned
fromthe Board inlate 2076. Holly has
more than 35 years' industry and
financial experience, and has worked
with businessesin Australia, Ching, the
UK and the US. We are delighted to
have her significant experience around
the Board table.

The Board continues to place great
importance on furthering our
understanding of the Vesuvius business
by visiting key operations and engaging
with as many of our people as possible.
Thisyear, the full Board visited our
Foundry operations and custornersin
Brazil, meeting management from all
business lines and gaining a broader
understanding of the overall South
American business. As Chairman,

| personally visited our operationsin
China in May and, during the year,
other Non-executive Directors visited
operations in Skawinain Poland,
Cleveland and Pittsburghinthe US,
and Borken in Germany. The Board will
continue to visit sites across the Group,
increasing individual knowledge and
ensuring that we remain connected
with our operations, management
teams and people around the world.

The 2017 externally facilitated Board
evaluation confirmed that the Board
contfinues to function effectively.

We believe it remains well balanced,
sefting the right tone frem the top, with
a strong mix of relevant experience
and skills, ensuring that a collaboerative
yetchallenging culture is embedded
throughoutthe Group.

Our People

In 2016, | noted that to secure the
current and future performance of

the Group, the Board had widened its
focus on succession planning issues,
additionally reviewing the management
level immediately below the Board.

This continues to be a critical area
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for Board attention, with the Board
fully recognising the importance of
developing talent and maintaining
acadre of diverse and highly capable
people throughout the business.

The need for greater diversity
throughout the business is a goal upon
which the Board remains focused.

Asever, | continue fo be impressed by
the way in which our leadership tearms
and our people gothe ‘extra mile’ to
exceed our own, and our customers’
expectations, as evidenced by our 2017
results. On behalf of the Beard, | thank
them all.

Annual General Meeting

The Annucl Genercl Meeting will be
held on 10 May 2018, The Notice

of Meeting and explanatory notes
containing details of the resolutions to
be put to the meeting accomgpany this
Annual Report and Accounts and are
available on our website fwww.vesuvius.
com}. land all my Board colleagues plan
to attend the Annual General Meeting
and we took forward to the cpportunity
to meet with as many shareholders as
possible on the day.

John McDonough CBE Chairman
28 February 2018
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Chief Executive’s Strategic Review

Patrick André Chief Executive

Introduction

Itis an honour to have been selected 1o
lead Vesuvius and | am grateful to our

Chairman, John McDonough, and the
Board of Directors for their frust.

lwould also like to thank Frangois
Wanecq for his exceptional commitment
inleading Vesuvius over the past 12 years.
Thanks to his achievements and the
efforts of all our teams, the foundations
of the Group are strong and sound.

Our main cbjective is now to buildon
these foundations and to generate

and accelerate the Group's profitable
growth over the coming years.

The strong performance of the Group
in 2017 is an important first step in the
implementation of this growth strategy.

Strong Performance

In a globally favourable economic
environment, both our Steel and Foundry
Divisions succeeded in outperforming
the general market growth, This was
particularly the case in China.

Thanks to this performance, Vesuvius'
globalsales in 2017 reached £1,683.9m,
anincrease of 20.2% over 2016 ona
reported basis. At constont currency,

and adjusted for the effect of acquisitions,
underlying revenue was up 12.5% as
compared with 2076.

Our trading profitin 2017 reached
£165.5m, an increase of 24.2% over 2016
onareported basisand 16.1% onan
underlying basis. Qurreturn on sales
improved from 9.5% to 9.8%. After the
inclusion of amortisation of acquired

"Our main objectiveisto
accelerate the implementation
of our profitable growth
strategy over the coming years”

intangibles and restructuring costs,
operating profit was £10%9.7m, 18.1%
ahead of prior year on a reperted basis.

Qur financial performance would,
however, have been even stronger in
2017 if we had not been impacted by
two temporary headwinds.

Scme of the key raw materials used

by our Steel and Foundry Divisions
experienced significant price increases in
2017, particularly during the second half
of the year. The speed of these increases
was such that it was not possible to fully
recover the increased costs through the
sales price of our finished products, as we
were bound by contractual obligations
with some custormers. This situation
improved tfowards the end of 2017 due
to prices stabilising for several key raw
materials and major progress being
made in recovering cost inflation through
higher selling prices. Whilst the price of
magnesite, the largest contributor to
row material price inflationin 2017,

has now stabilised, the price of other

raw marterials such as bauxite, silicon
carbide and zirconia are stillonan
upward trend. As a result, the process

of price adjustrent will continue into
2018, until reglised costincreases have
been fully recovered.

Additionally, the very strong growth

of our Flow Control sales in EMEA
temporarily exceeded the capacity of
our manufacturing ptants in the region,
requiring the import of preducts from our
facilities in Asia and NAFTA, incurring
additional freight, export duty and
overtime costs. Measures were
immediately taken to increase the

capacity of the Flow Control EMEA
plants and this ramp-up is now
complete, substituting imports from
non-EMEA plants.

Improved Financial Position

DespiTe the strong growih inour turnover
and increased capital investment of
£44.3min 2077 versus £35.2m in 2016,
our cash conversion ratio increased to
104% in 2017 due to our focus on efficient
working capital management. Qur trade
waorking capitalto sales ratio decreased
to 24.9% from 26.6% in 2016.

This strong cash flow generation
reduced our netdebtto £274.3m at

31 December 2017 versus £320.3m

at 31 December 2016. We also partly
refinanced our debtin December 2017
with the issuance of a €100m US Private
Placement, resulting in a significant
decrease of our financing costs

going forward.

Strategic Progress

Our strategy remains centred around
five key execution priorities, designed

to ensure the achievement of cur core
strategic objectives of delivering long-term,
sustainable and profitable growth.

Each of these execution pricrities saw
significant progress in 2017

> Reinforce our technology leadership:
With a global R&D spend of £33.2min
2017 {2016:£28.6m), representing
2.0% of revenue, Vesuvius continues to
lead the industry with a significantly
larger R&D spendto sales ratio than
most of our competitors. [n 2017,
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we continued to focus our R&D efforts
on a reduced number of potentially
high-impact R&D programmes.

The new Advanced Refractory R&D
centre in Visakhapatnam, India, was
inaugurated in November, reinforcing
our presence inthis key market for our
future growth, strengthening links with
customers and enabling us to better
tapintothe growing talent pool of
engineers and scientists in the country.
The decision was also made to
reorganise the Flow Control R&D
network around three main R&D
centres; inthe U5 (Pittsburgh), Furope
(Ghlin/Feignies) and China {Suzhou),
opergting under a comman leadership.
This structure will be fully operational
in 2020 and will enable ustoincrease
the efficiency of our research further,
by reinforcing our proximity with
custormers and accessing a wider

pool of worldwide scientific talents.

Increase penetration of our value-
creating sofutions: The growth of sales
in our Steel and Foundry Divisions
outperformed underlying market
growth in most areas, confirming the
mounting inferest of cusfomersin our
advanced solutions, enabling them to
improve theirmanufacturing efficiency
whilst at the same time raising the
quality of their finished products.

We were particularly pleased with

our progress in China, where Steel
Division sales increased by 7% and
Foundry Divisian sales increased by
13% on an underlying basis.

Capture growth in developing
markets: Steel Division sales grew
faster thanthe marketin the key
developing regions of Ching, India
and the Middle East. However, sales
growthinLatin America, while positive,
was slightly below general steel
market growth. Foundry sales also
outperformed markets in most
developing countries, with the
exception of India where pricrity was
given fo the management of working
capital and customer credit risk.

Improve cost leadership and margins:
Our previously announced Lean and
self-help programme to improve the
cost competitiveness and efficiency of
our manufacturing network continued
to developin 2017 extending from
How Control Europe to Flow Control
NAFTA operations. £16.2m of savings
were deliveredin 20177, bringing the
total savings delivered since launching
the programme to £43.2m. This
programme is éxpected to deliver

£60m of savings at a total cost of
£75m. A completely new restructuring
programme focused on the Foundry
Division in Europe and NAFTA, the
Advanced Refractories business unitin
Europe and global corporate functions
was launched at the end of 2017, with
expected recurring savings of £15m by
2020. In parallel 1o these restructuring
programmes, Vesuvius is reinfarcing
its focus on operational excellence
and continuous improvement in its
manufacturing operations.

> Develop our Technical Services
offering: Our Technical Services
offering has continued to develop
in 2017, not only within our Digital
Services business unit but also within
Flow Control, Foundry and Advanced
Refractories. Late in 2017, we made a
strategicinvestment in Sapotech Oy,
a Finnish technology company
developing optical defect detection
services in the steel continuous casting
process. This investment will reinforce
the Flow Control business unit.

Attracting, Developing and
Retaining Talent

Thesuccess of our strategy ultimately
relies on the quality and motivation of
our people. In 2017, we continued our
efforts to attract, develop and retain the
best talents worldwide. This will intensify
in2018.

We believe in diversity of talents and
crigins and in the importance of an
entrepreneurial and decentralised
culture, with empowered, accountable,
innovative and results-oriented
managers, operating close o our
markets ond our customers.

| will strongly support the reinforcement
of this culture within the Group going
forward.

Stable Safety Performance
in 2017

With alost time injury frequency rate of
1.63 per million hoursin 2017, cur safety
performance improved slightly over
2016 (1.72).

The Group's injury severity rate improved
more markedly in 2017 with a severity
rate of 62.8 days lost per million hours
worked versus 74.6 days lost per milfion
hours worked in 2016, highlighting the
success of the Group's efforts to address
the most dangerous situations in our
manufacturing plants.

Our objective is to improve this
performance further year-on-year.

A new safety management organisation,
updating responsibility and accountability
forthe management of safety across

the Group, was established at the end

of 2017 and will be fully operational in

the first half of 2018.

Sustainability

Vesuvius R&D reinforced its effortsin
2017 to develop products and services
helping our Steel and Foundry customers
1o reduce their energy consumption and
carbon footprint through the improved
service life of our products and reduction
of waste intheir manufacturing processes.
Atthe same time, we continued cur
effortsto reduce waste and energy
consumption in our own manufacturing
processes.

Outlook

Our main Steel and Foundry markets
remain positively oriented at the
beginning of 2018. However, we expect
a lower growth rate of steel production
outside Chinain 2018 compared 1o 2017,
asthe significant decrease in Chinese
steel exports which occurred in 2017 may
natrepeatin 2018. Our self-help and
manufacturing optimisation programme
will continue to develop and expand in
2018. The temporary raw material and
product supply headwinds that impacted
our 2017 results have now been mostly
mitigated and will substantially unwind
during the year, subject to any further
raw material cost increases. We remain
confident in our ability to further improve
working capital management and
genercte strong operating cash flow.
Forthese reasons, the Board is confident
thatin comparison to 2017, further sfrong
pragress will be made in 2018.

Patrick André Chief Executive
28February 2018
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Key Performance
Indicators

The Board and management
regularly monitor both financial
and non-financial performance
indicators to measure
performance against objectives.
The Board reviews these KPls as
part of its governance and risk
management processes.

Strategic Alignment

Deliver growth

Generate
sustainable
profitability
andcreate
shareholder
value

Maintain strong
cash generation
and an efficient
capital structure

KPI

Underlying
revenue growth

Trading profit and
return onsales

Purpose

Provides animportant indicator of organic
(like-for-like) growth of Group businesses
between reporting periods. This measure
eliminates the impact of exchange rates,
ocquisitions, disposals ond significant
business closures

Used to assess the trading performance
of Group businesses

Headline profit
before tax

Used 1o assess the financial performance
of the Group as o whole

Headiine earnings
pershare

Used fo assess the underlying earnings
performance of the Group as awhale

Return on net
assets

Free cash flow

Average working
capitalto sales
ratio

Used to assess the fimancial performance
and asset management of the Group

Used to assess the underlying cash generation
of the Group. One of the factors driving the
generation of free cash flow isthe average
working capitalto sales raho, which indicates
the level of working copital used inthe business

Interest cover
ratio

Ratio of net debt
+o EBITDA

Non-financial KPls

Strategic Alignment

Provide a safe
working
environment
for our people

Be atthe
forefront of
innovation

KPI

Lost time injury
frequency rate

R&D spend

Bothratios are used to assess the financial
position of the Group and its ability to fund
future growth

Performance



Performance

Link to remuneration

Delivery of valueto shareholdersislinked to
remuneration thraugh the Vesuvius Share Plon
{'VSP1J, which measures the vesting of awards
agoinst total shareholder return

OVSP—Read more about thison p111-113

EPSislinkedto remuneration as ameasure
usedinthe Annucl Incentive plan CAIP) and
the VSP

OAIP and VSP - Read more about theminthe
Directors’ Remuneration Repert on p36-116

In 2017, working capital performance was
linked to remuneration through the use of
the Group's ‘cosh corversion ratio’ as one of
the measures used inthe AlP

© AIP - Read more abaut this on p106-111

*Work-relatedillness or mjuries which resulted
inan employee being absent for at least one
day—measured per million hours worked

@ Read more about Safety on p60-43

~*Constant 2017 currency

Strategic Alignment

Run top quality,
cost efficient
and sustainable
operations

consumption

Performance

© Read more about Sustainability on ph4-66

Nate: The performance measure for this KPl has been amended this year. The Company
believes that the new performance measure using ‘normalised’ consumption gives a more
helpfulindicotion of the Group's perfermance inthis area.
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Risk

The Board continually monitors the internal and

external risks which could significantly impact

the long-term performance of the Group

Risk Managementin 2017

The Board is responsible for setting the
Group's risk appetite and ensuring that
appropriate risk management systems
areinplace. The Group undertakes a
continuous process of risk identification
and review, which includes both a
top-down and bettam-up process,
independently gathering views an risk
from each business unit, and from
operational, functional and senior
executive management, and the Board
of Directors. Building onthe process
conductedin 2016, where o clean sheet
review of the Group's principal risks was
undertaken, the Group's assessment of
principal risks has been reviewed and
considered against a further group

of emergingrisks and uncertainties
identified through cur 2017 Board
process.

Changes to Risk in 2017

The Board believes that there has been
nc material change to the Group's
principal risks and uncertainties during
the yecr. However, the Board reflected
on theimplications of certain emerging
‘macro’trends during the year, These
included the increase in automation

in manufacturing as a competitive
disruption and the potential for negative
implications for the business from the
Brexit process, the outcorme of which
remains unclear, but which is not
expectedto be material in the context of
the Group. The Board also discussed the
risks that could arise from a failure by
the Group to foster the correct culture
for success. In addition to these wider
trends, the Board focused onidentified
risks where issues had arisen during the
year -theinterruption of supply of quality
raw materials, the related challenges of
instigafing price increases as input costs
go up, the more protectionist approach
being implemented in some maior
markets, and the potenticl for finoncial
instability and worldwide recession.

Todd Steele,
Technicol Specialist,
MET - Ferrous,
Foundry USA

Finally, the Beard continued its oversight
of cyber issues as an emerging risk. The
Board's view on each of these issues was
integrated into management discussions
onrisk and factored into the approach
the Group takes to successful mitigation.

Risk Mitigation

The risks identified are acrively managed
in order to mitigate exposure, Senior
management ‘owners' are identified
foreach principal risk to manage the
mitigations of that specific risk and
contribute to the analysis of its likelihood
and materiality. Thisis reportedtothe
Board. Therisks are analysed inthe
context of sur business structure which
gives protection against a number of
principal risks we face with diversified
currencies, o widespread customer base,
local preduction matching the diversity of



our markets and intensive training of
our employees. Additionally, we seek
to mitigate risk through contractual
measures. Where cost-effective, the risk
istransferredtoinsurers.

Board Monitoring

The Board defines the Group's risk
appetite, considering the nature and
extent of the principal risks that the
Group should rake. The Board's
oversight of principal risks also involves
a Board review of the processes by
which the Group manages those risks,
establishing o clear understanding at
Board level of the individuals and groups
in the business formally responsible for
the management of specific risks.

© See mare in Governance on pages74-1271

Principal Risks

The risks identified on pages 24 ond 25
are those the Board considers to be the
mostrelevant to the Group in relation to
their potentialimpact on the achievement
of its strategic objectives. All of the risks
set outon pages 24 and 25 could materially
affectthe Group, its businesses, future
operations and financial condition and
could cause actual results to differ
materially from expected or historical
results. These risks are not the only ones
that the Group will face. Somerisks are
not yet known and some currently not
deemed to be material could become so.

Viability Process

Viability Statement

In accordance with the UK Corporate
Governance Cede, the Directors have
assessed the viobility of the Group overa
three year period to 31 December 2020,
taking into account the Group's current
position and the potential impact of the
principal risks and uncertainties.

The Directors have determined that a
three year period is an appropriate
period over which to provide the Viability
Statement because thisis the period that
the strategic business plan focuses on
andis sufficiently funded by financing
facilities with average maoturity terms of
approximately six years.

In making this statement, the Directors
have carried out arobust assassment of
the principal risks that may threaten the
business model, future performance,
solvency and liquidity of the Group.
Thisis embodied inthe annual review
of athree year bottom-up business

plan process which includes a review

of sensitivity to 'business as usual' risks,
such as profit growth and working copital
variances, severe but plausible events
and the impact on the central debt and
headroom profile analysis. The results
take account of the availability and likely
effectiveness of the mitigating actions
that could be taken to aveid or reduce
the impact or occurrence of the
underlying risks.

Whilst the review has considered all the
principal risks identified by the Group,
the following were selected for enhanced
stresstesting: an unplanned dropin
customer demand, debt recovery risk
due to customer default, row maoterial
price inflation, reduction in earnings
fromincreased interest charges and the
impact of volatifity in foreign currency
earnings. The Group's prudent balance
sheet management, flexible cost base to
react quickly to end market conditions,
access to long-term capital ot acceptable
financing costs and well diversified
international businesses in different
currency earning profiles leaves it well
placed ta manage these principal risks.

In performing the stress testing, certain
assumptians were made including that:
customer failures result in write-offs of
the full value of the receivables with no
lost revenue replacement; and particl
cash flow mitigation is possible from
working capital releases, restricted
capital expenditure and operating cost
reductions. Under the enhanced stress
testing described above, a potential
breach of a covenant would only occur
inthe event of an unforeseen reduction
inrevenue greater than 35%.

Accordingly, the Directors confirm that
they have areasonable expectation
that the Group will be able to continue
in operation and meet its liabilities as
they fall due over the three year period
to 31 December 2020.

Assess

Identify

Model

Report

Viability time horizan and risk
anclysis framework

Principal risks
and siress scenarios

Viability against risk
scenarios, examining

© See Viability Statement
above

probabilities and impacts
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Risk continued

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Risk and Context

Demand volatility

Vesuvius expectations of
future tradingarebased upon
an assessment of end-market
conditions, which are subject
to same uncertainty. Vesuvius'
end-markets are historically
somewhat cyclicalin nature.

Strategic
alignment

Protectionism
and globalisation

Local, national or regional political
requirements conflict with the
quality and efficiency delivered

by scale and stendardisation.

Strareqic
algnment

Financial uncertainty

Fluctuotions inthe value of
currencies, interest rates or rates
ofinflation may adverselyimpact
the Group's financial position or
results of operations. Availability
of sufficient capitelis critical

e allow Vesuvius to deliver its
business plan.

Strateqic
alignment

Complex and changing
regulatory environment

Vesuviusis subject to worldwide
legal and regulatory regimes,
some of which impose extra-
jurisdictional ebligations on
companies and are cantinually
updated.

Srrategic
alignmeant

Potentialimpact

Unplanned dropin demand and/or
revenve due to reduced production

Marginreduction

Mitigation

Geographic diversification of revenues

Product innovatian and service offerings securing long-rerm
revenue streams ond maintaining performance differential

Customer failure leading toincreased
bad debts

Increase in service and product lines by the development of the
Technical Services offering

Loss of market share to competition

R&D includes ossessment of emerging technologies

Cost pressures ot custemers leading
to use of cheaper soltions

Restricted access to marketdueto
enforced preference of local suppliers

Manufacturing capacity raticnalisation and flexible cost base

Diversified customer base: nocustomer is greater than 10%
of revenue

Robust credit and working capitat control to mingate the risk
of defoult by counterparties

Highly diversified manufacturing feotprint with manufacturing
sites located in 26 countries

Increased barriersto entry for new
businesses or expansion

Strang local management with delegated acthority to run their
business and manage customer relaticnships

Increased costs from import duties
or taxation

Loss of marketshare

Customerand other counterparty
default

Restricted access to capital hampering
ability to fund growth

Reductioninearningsfrom increased
interest charges

Reduced market liquidity and
increosed cost of capital

Revenue reductionfrom reduced end-
market access

Cost flexibility

Tax niskmanagement ond control framework together witn
astrang control af inter-company trading

Caoprtal allocation discipline

Capital structuring, including fixed rate borrowing and matching
of debt to cash flow earmings currency

Alignment of cost structure with revenue where possible

Effective planning of the debt refinancing profile to avoid exposure

to short-term market disruptions

Globally disseminated Code of Conduct highlighting ethical
approach to business

Disruption of supply chain and route
to market

Increased internal control processes

Increased frequency of regulatory
investigations

Reputational damage

Worldwide confidential Speck-up procedure

Compliance progrommes and training ccross the Group

Independent Internal Audit function

Experienced Internal Legal function



Strategic

. Delivergrowth
Alignment rergrow

O See more about Qur Strategy onpl10-11

Risk and Context

Business interruption

The Group is subject to operational
risks including natural catastrophe,
terrorist action, fire/explosion,
environmental regulation,
industriat action, supply chain
issues and cyber risk.

Strategic
aignment

Failure to secure innovation

Not maintaining and/or
developing the necessary
sustainable differentiotionin
products, systems and services
by driving innovative solutions.
Competitive advantage derived
from proprietaryintellectual
propertyis lost through
inadequate protection.

Strategic
alignment

Attracting talent and
performance management

Failure to attract sufficient
newtalert tathe Group based
on industry perception and
competition. Failure to maintain
and develop a talent pipeline
and internal succession

options for middle and senior
mancgement positions,

Srrategic
alignrment

Quality, health and safety

Vesuvius works in highly
challenging manufacturing
envircnments, providing products,
systems and services that are
mission critical and for which
reliability is paramount.

Strateqic
¢ lignment

Genergte systainoble  Maintain strong
prefitability and
create sharehelder
value

cash generation
and an efficient
capital structure

Potential Impact

Loss of a major planttempaorarily
or permanently impairing our ability
to serve our customers

Provide o safe
working envircnment  of innovation
forour people

Damage to or restriction in ability
to use assets

Deniol of access to critical systems
or control processes

Be ot the forefront Run top-quality, Foster talent,
cost-efficient
and sustainable

operations

inour people

Mitigation

Dwversified manufacturing foatprint

skill and metivation

Disaster recoveryplanning

Business cantinuity planning with strategic maintenance of
excess capacity

Physical and [T cantrol systems security, access and training

Cyber risks integroted inte wider risk-management structure

Disruption of manufacturing
processes

Inability to source criticat
row materials

Product substitution by customers

Increased competitive pressure
through lock of differentiation of
Vesuvius offering

Well-astablished global insurance programme

Group-wide safety monagement prograrnmes

Duolsourcing strategy and development of substitutes

Enduring and significont investment in R&D, with market-
leading research

A shared strategy for innovation thraughout the Group,
deployedvia our R&D centres

Commoditisation of product portfolio
through lack of develepment

Stage gate process from innovation to commercichsation to
foster innovation and increase alignment with strategy

Lack of response 1o changing
custamer needs

Loss of intellectual property
protection

Crganisational culture of high
performance is notachieved

Staff turnover in growing economies
and regions

Programme of Manufacturning and Process Excellence

Qudlity programme, focused on quality and consistency

Stringent intellectual property registration and defence

Internalfocus ontalent development and traming, with
tallored career-stage programmes and clear performance
management strategies

Contacts with universities to identify and develop talent

Stagnatiton of ideas and development
appaortunities

Career path planning and global sppartunities for high-
potential staff

Loss of expertise and critical
business knowledge

Internal pragrammes far the structured transfer of technical
and other knowledge

Reduced management pipeline
for succession to senior positions

Injury to staff and cantracters

Product or application failures lead
to adverse financial impact or lass of
reputation astechnology leader

Clearly elucidated values to underpin business culture

Active safety programmes, with ongoing wide-ranging meritoring

ond safety training

Quality management programmes including stringent qualiry
cortral standards, manitoring and reporting

Health and safety breach,
manufacturing downtime or
damage toinfrastructurefrom
incident at customer plant

Customer claims from product
qualityissues

Experienced technical staff knowledgeable inthe application of

our praducts and technology

Targeted global insurance programme

Experienced internal Legal function controlling third-party
cantracting
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Financial Review

“Significant progress has been made
inimproving the strength of our
balance sheet through afocus on
working capital and cash generation
during a period of revenue growth”

Guy Young Chief Financial Officer

Basis of Preparation

All references in this financial review
are to headline performance unless

£1,683.9m

Revenue -

- — o stated otherwise. See Note 4tothe
eporte nderlying' Group Financial Statements on

+20.2% +12.5% page 138.

Introduction

We have made good progress towards
our previously stated gim to enable the
business fo improve shareholder returns

£165.5m

Trading profit?

Reported Underlying and sustain growth, whilst optimising

+24.2% +16.1% operating costs and maintaining an
appropriate level of control and
compliance. The key components of our
strategy to achieve this were successfully

1 4 .1 p launched in 2017, including structural and
people changes tothe Financeteam, the

Statutory EPS building of a Furopean shared service

Reported centre and improved perfermance

-33.2% reporting and measurement, Whilst there
remains ¢ lot still to de before all of our
improvement plans are implemented,

O the pleasing progressto dateis thanks

9. 8 /O tothe dedication and professionalism of
our finance personnel acress the Group.

Return on sales?

Reported Underlying'

+30bps

1. Underlying besis is ar constan currency and
excludes separately reported irems and the
impact of acquisitions and disposals.

2. Fordefinitions of alternative perfarmance
measures, refer to Note 4 of the Group
Finarciol Statements,

+30bps

2017 Performance Qverview

In contrast to 20716, end-markets were
stronger during 2017 and cur revenue
benefited from the improved demand for
our productsin both Steel and Foundry
as aresult, as well as business gains in
many of our key markets, principally
EMEA and NAFTA. Reported revenue
increased by £282.5m over the prior year
and by £186.4m on anunderlying basis.
The restructuring pragramme continued
to deliver chead of plan during 2017 with
atotal of £16.2m of incremental benefits
repoarted. The increased revenue and
restructuring benetits drove the higher
reported trading profit of £165.5m, which
was 24.2% higher than prior year. Return
on sales for 2017 on a reported basis at
9.8% was higher than the prior year by
30bps despite o number of higher costs
inthe period. The higher costs related

to price increases on several key raw
materials, aswell as temporary costs
associated with importing productinto
Eurape from other facilities inthe Group
to satisfy the higher demand. Ina

year of strong sales growth, our cash
management performance was strong,
achieving a 104% cash conversion,
duelargely to better working capital
management. As aresult, we have
decreased our net debt positicn and
improved our leverage ratio of net
debtto EBITDA to 1.3x from 1.8x ot
Dacember 2016.



Underlying revenue growth %

12.5%

Return onsales* %

98% +3.2%

R&Dspend* £m

£33.2m*161%

Dividend

The Board has recommended a final
dividend of 12.50 pence per shareto be
paid on 25 May 2018 to sharehaolders
ontheregister at 13 April 2018. When
added tothe 2017 interim dividend

of 5.50 pence per share paid on

22 September 2017, this represents

a full-year dividend of 18.0 pence
pershare.

It remains the Board's intention to deliver
long-term dividend growth, provided this
is supported by underlying earnings, cash
flows, capital expenditure requirements
and the prevailing market outlook.

Key Performance Indicators

We have identified a number of KPls
against which we haove consistently
reported since demerger. Details of the
KPls are provided on pages 20and 21. As
with prior years, we measure aur results
on an undertying basis, where we adjust
toensure appropriate comparability
between periods, irrespective of

currency fluctuations and any

business acquisitions and disposals.

Thisis dene by:

> Restating the previous period's results
at the same foreign exchange (FX)
rates used in the current period

> Removing the results of disposed
businesses in both the current ond
prior years

* At constant 201 7 currency

> Removing the results of businesses
acquired in both the current year
and prior years

Therefore, for 2017, we have:

> Retranslated 2016 results atthe
FX rates used in calculating the
2017 resulis

> Remaoved the results of our mould
andtundish flux business in Brazil,
Mastercodi, which was acquired
in2016

Objective: Deliver growth over
the long term

KPI:Underlying revenuve growth

Reported revenue for 2016 was £1,401.4m,
which after FX translation effects and
removing the impact of acquired
businesses, equates to £1,492.0m on an
underlying basis. The reported revenue
in 2017 of £1,683.9m, when adjusted for
acquisitions made, is £1,678.4m on an
underlying basis, which is anincrease

of 12.5% year-on-year. The growth has
been as aresult of stronger end-market
demand and business gains during the

period, particularly in EMEA and NAFTA.

KPI:R&D spend

We believe that our market-leading
product technology and services deliver
fundamental volue to cur customers and
that the primary mechanism to deliver
that value is to invest significantly in

* At constant 2017 currency

research and development. In 2017,
we spent £33.2m (2076: £28.6m) on
R&D activities, which represents 2.0%
of our revenue {2016: 2.0%).

Objective: Deliver attractive
profitability

KPIl: Trading profit and return on sales
We continue o measure underlying
trading profit of the Group aswell as
trading profit as a percentage of sales,
which we referto as our return on sales

or RoS.

Trading profit of £165,5m increased by
16.1% on anunderlying basis versus last
year whilst RoS an a constant currency
basis was 9.8%, a 30bpsimprovement
over 2016. The improved trading profitis
duein part fo the higher revenue, along
with the ongoing delivery of benefits
fromthe restructuring programme,

The Steel Division recorded RoS of
8.7% this year, anincrease from 8.4%

in 2016, despite the additional costs
incurred inimporting non-Eurcpean
based product into EMEA as well as the
substantial increases in raw material
costs experienced in Advanced
Refractories. Foundry reported a 12.2%
RoS, another improverment aver the
prior year {2016: 11.8%) with production
efficiency gains and operating expense
reductions offsetting raw material cost
increases that started to impact results
in the secend half.

Revenue
2017 Revenue 2076 Revenue % change
Acquisitions/ Acquisthons/
£m Asreported Disposals  Underlying Asreported Currancy Disposals  Underlyng Repaorted  Underlying
Steel 1,148.7 (5.5) 1,143.2 942.0 60.2 - 1,002.2 219% 141%
Foundry 535.2 - 535.2 459.4 30.4 — 489.8 _-\6.5% 9.3%
Total Group 1,683.9 (5.5) 1,6784 1,401.4 30.6 - 1,492.0 20.2% 12.5%
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Financial Review continued

Operating profit £m

£109.7 81%

Headline earnings per share pence

407p +339%

Statutory earnings per share pence

141p352%

KPI: Headiine PBT and headline EPS
Headline profit befare tax (PRT) and
headline earnings per share (EPS})
are used to measure the underlying
financial performonce of the Group.
The main difference between trading
profitand PBT is net finance costs.

Net finance costsin 2017 of £13.9m
were £0.6m below 2016. The reduction
in finance costs was largely due to
lower net debtlevels that triggered o
more favourable interest cost on the
Company's revalving credit facility.
During the year this facility was
successfully extended for afurther

two years to 2022 and $110m of the US
Private Placement programme (‘USPPY)
was redeemed and replaced by o
Euro-denominated USPP of the same
value but on more favourable terms.

Qur headline PBT was £152.9m, 27.6%

higher than last year on areported basis.

Including ameortisation (£19.5m) and the
restructuring charges (£34.3m), our PBT
of £87.1m was 22.3% higher than 2016.
Headline EPS at 40.7 pis 339% higher
than 2016,

Trading profit

Objective: Ensure capital is
deployed efficiently

KPI: Free cash flow and working capital
Fundamental to ensuring that we

have adeguate capital to execute our
corporate strategy is converting cur
profits into cash, partly through strict
management of our working copital.
Free cash flow from continuing
operations was £93.1m for the year,
whichis alithe more pleasing against

a backdrop of revenue growth that
inevitably requires some cash investment
in working capitol. Free cash flow from
continuing operations in 2017 was
£31.7mhigher than lastyear on a
reported basis because of the better
working capital performance partially
offset by higher cash restructuring costs.
Qur cash conversion in 2017 improved
to 104% (2016: $4%).

Wa measure working capital both in
terms of actual cash flow movements,
end as o percentage of sales revenue.
Trade working capital as a percentage of
salesin 2017 was 24.9% (2016: 26.6%),
measured on a 12-maonth moving
average basis. In absclute termson a
constant currency basis, trade working
capital increased by £12.2m, well

below the increasein sales andwith
animproved inventory and creditor
position leading to animprovement
as a percentage of sales.

KPI: Return on netassets (RONA)

RONA is our principal measure of capital
efficiency. We do not exclude the results
of businesses acquired and disposed
from this calculation, as capital officiency
is an important consideration in our
portfalio decisions. Itis caleulated by
dividing trading profit plus cur share of
profits from joint ventures by our average
operafing assets (property, plant and
equipment, and trade working capital).

As with most of our KPls, we measure
this on a 12-month moving average
basis at constant currency to ensure
that we focus on sustainable underlying
improvements. Our RONA for 2017
was 24.2% (2016: 21.1%).

2017 Trading profit 2016 Trading profit % change
Acquisitions/ Acquisitions/
Im Asreported Disposels  Underlying Asreported Currency Disposals  Underlying Reported Linderlying
Steel 100.4 (0.2) 100.2 79.2 5.1 - 843 26.8% 18.9%
Foundry 65.1 - 65.1 541 4.0 - 581 20.3% 12.0%
Total Group 165.5 (0.2) 165.3 133.3 3.1 - 142.4 24.2% 16.1%




RONA moving average* %

24.2%

Net debt* £m

£274.3m

Unutilised committed debt facilities £m

£153./m

* For definitions of alternative performance measures, refer to Note 4 of the Group Financial Statements

Operating cash flow and cash conversion

2017 2014

£m 3m

Cash generated from continuing operations 176.6 130.2
Add: Qutflows relating to restructuring charges 27.3 16.8
Add: Net retirement benefit obligations 4.8 77
Less: Capital expenditure {39.0) (31.3)
Add: Proceeds from the sale of property, plant ond equipment 1.8 1.6
Operating cash flow 171.5 125.0
Trading prefit 165.5 1333
Cash conversion 104% 94%

Objective: Maintain a strong
financial position

KPI: Interest cover and net debt

Asat 31 December 2017, the Group

had committed barrowing facilities of
£563.4m (2076: £576.9m), of which
£153.7m wos undrawn (2016: £158.3m).
The revolving credit facllity term was
extended to 2022 and $110m of the
USPPwas redeemed and replaced with @
Euro-denaminated USFP gt better rates.

Net debt at 31 December 2017 was
£274.3m, a £46.0m decrease from 2016,
asaresult of our good cash generatien.
The main drivers of the decrease were
the impact of strong cash conversion
partially offset by higher restructuring
costs and fax payments,

The Group's debt facilities have two
financial covenants: the ratios of net debt
to EBITDA {maximum three times limit)
and EBITDA o interest (minimurm four
times limit). These ratios nre monitored
regularly ta ensure that the Group has
sufficient financing available to run

the business and fund future growth.

Atthe end of 2017, the net debtto
EBITDA ratio was 1.3x, animprovement
over lastyear (20146: 1.8x) and EBITDA
tointerest was 15.8x (2016: 13.4x).

Further infarmation on our finance
costs can be foundin Note G to the Group
Financial Statements on page 143.

Financial Risk Factors

The Group undertakes regular risk
reviews and, as o minimum, o full risk
assessment process twice a year. Asin
previous years this included input from
the Boord inboth the assessment of risk
and the proposed mitigation. As referred
toin the Principal Risks and Uncertainties
and Viability Statement on pages 23,24
and 25, we censider the main financial
risks faced by the Group as being
demand volatility and the impact of
financialuncerfainty, feading to reduced
revenue and profit as well as potential
custamer default, and a lack of liquidity,
brought on by market volatility.
Important but lesser risk exists in interest
rate movements and costinflation but

neither is expected to have a material
impact on the business after considering
the controls we have in place.

Our key mitigation of dermand volatilivy
isto manage the Group's exposure
through balancing aur portfolio of
business geographically and by end-
market and to invest in product
innovation. We do so through targeted
capitalinvestment in new and growing
businesses and a combination of capital
and human resource in emerging
markets. The second main financial
risk of alack of liquidity is mitigated by
tinancing using both the bank and
private placement markets. The Group
also seeks to avoid a concentration of
debt maturities in any one period to
spread its refinancing risk. The Group's
undrawn committed bank facilities ot
31 December 2017 were £153.7m.
Counterparty risk and customer
default are mitigated by our relatively
widespread customer base—with no
customer being greater than 10% of
revenue —and credit control procedures,
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Financial Review continued

Other Relevant Financial
Infermation

Restructuring

We continued to make good progress in
implementing our previously announced
restructuring programme, mainly in Flow
Control, with £16.2m savings delivered in
2017, which was ahead of expectations.
The total savings delivered since
launching the programme are now
£43.2m. In 2017, we reparted £36.3m

of restructuring costs (2016; £28.5m)
that were predominantly made up of
redundancy and plant clasure costs,
along with related consulting fees. These
costsincluded the final costs related to
the previously announced restructuring
plan as well as £4.8m of costs related ta
a completely new resfructuring plan
launched at the end of 2017, targeting
the Foundry Division in Europe and
NAFTA, the Advanced Refractories
Business Unitin Europe, and Group
corporate functions. The cash costs

in 2017 were £27.3m {2016: £16.8m).

We are carrying arestructuring
provision forward into 2018 of £22 9m,

Taxation

Akey measure of tax perfarmance is

the effective tax rate, which the Group
calculotes onthe income tax associated
with headline performance, divided by
the headline profit before tax and before
the Group's share of past-tox profit of
joint ventures (2017: £157.ém, 2016:
£118.8m). The Group's effective tax rate,

based on the income tax costs assaciated
with headline performance of £36 4m
(2016: £31.4m), was 24.0%in 2017

(2016: 26.4%). This was lower than
expected due largely to better profit
performance in countries where we had
tax losses, the impact of the weakening
of the peso on our Mexican tax position
and the release of provisions due to
favourable tax litigation outcomes.

The Group's effective tax rate is sensitive
to changes in the geographic mix of
profits and level of profits, and reflects
acombination of higher rates in certain
jurisdictions such as India, Mexico,
Germany and Belgium, nil effective rates
inthe UK and US due fo the availability
of unutilised taxlosses, and rates that lie
somewhere in between.

Qther key factors impacting the
sustainability of the Group's effective
tax rate aresetoutin Note 10.6 to the
Group Financial Statements.

The income tax charge an separately
reported items of £18.0m {2016: £5.0m
credit) comprises £6.0m non-cash
deferred tax movements relating to the
amartisation of a deferred taxliability
arising from the 2008 acquisition of
Fesecople (2016: £3.7m), £4.3m tax
credits relating to restructuring charges
(20716: £32.8m), and a net reduction in the
deferred tax asset previously recognised
inrespect of US tax losses and certain
other temporary differences of £28.3m
(2016: £2.1m) largely caused by US tax

reform enacted in late December 2017 in
the form of the US Tax Cuts and lobs Act
(TCJAY. Acombination af the reduction
inthe US Federal taxrate from 35%to
21%, the repatriation tolling charge

and other provisions of TCJA caused o
£25.7m reduction in our US deferred tax
asset which, together with other normal
movements and foreign exchange
revaluation, reduced from £65.9m at the
end of 2016 to £32.6m at the end of 2017.
Howaever, this write-down did notimpact
our Headline earnings aftertax, asthe
change in the osset was reflected through
separately reported items.

Based an our initial interpretation, the
Base Erosion and Anti-Abuse Tax
provisiansintroduced by the Act may
increase the Group's effective tax rate

by approximately 0.7%in 2018 and 1.2%
in 2019,

We expect the Group's effective tax rate
from 2018 onwards to be between 27%
and 28%, including the expected adverse
impact of US rax reform, reflecting the
tax benefit of initiatives being taken.

The netincome tax charge recognised
directly in the Group Statement of
Comprehensive Income of £3.1m

(2016: £0.7m) comprises a £2.4mcharge
(2076: £0.7m charge) inrespect of
deferredtax on pension obligations and
£0.7m {2016: £nil) UK taxin respect of
foreign exchange differences arising on
hedged positions.



Net defined benefit pension deficit £m

£16.5m 4:9%

Capital Expenditure

Capital expenditure in 2017 of £44.3m
(2016: £35.2m) carnprised £34.0m in

the Steel Division (2016: £23.7m) and
£10.3minthe Foundry Division

(2016: £11.5m}. Capital expenditure

on revenue-generating customer
installation assets, primarily in Steel, has
beenincreasedtc £10.7m (2016: £6.5m).

Pensions

The Group has alimited number of
historical defined benafit plans mainly
inthe UK, US, Germany and Belgium.
The main plansinthe UK and US are
largely closed to further benefit accrucls
and 56.5% of the ligbilities in the UK have
already been insured. Thetotal net deficit
attributed to these defined benefit
obligations atthe end of December 2017
was £16.5m (2016: £29.4rm), representing
animprovement of £12.9m. The key
movements giving rise tathis were
increcses of £1.8m to the deficit arising
outof changes to actuarial assumptions
{attributable to increasing discount
rates; updated mortality assumptions
and pension membership data) and
additienal accrual and cdministrative
expenditure paid for the year (£6.8m);
offset by reductionsto the deficit of
£10.2m from asset returns and cash
contributions of £11.6m.

The majority of the ongoing pension
plans are defined contribution olans,
where our only obligationisto make
contributions, with no further
commitments onthe level of post-
retirement benefits. During 2017, cash
contributions of £12.6m {2016: £10.8m)
were made into the defined contribution
plons and charged to trading prafit.

Corporate Activity

Late in 2017, we made a strategic
investment in Sapotech Oy, a Finnish
technology company with which we will
be jointly developing predictive analytical
service offerings to Steel customers.
Acquisition opportunities remain part of
our growth strategy and are evaluated
onan ongoing basis.

Guy Young Chief Financial Officer
28 Februory 2018
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Innovation

“We engage the creativity of
our people across the entire

organisation to drive innovation”

Alan Charnock Vice President and Chief Technology Officer

£33.2m

Spend on R&D
2016: £28.6m

2.0%

% of Revenue
2016:2.0%

14.5%

% of new product salas!
2016:14.2%

1 Soles of products lounched within the last 5 years
asa % of total revenue

Vesuvius' R&D organisation has been
amajor factor in maintaining our
technology leadership position. We are
now three years into our initiative to
engage the creativity of people across
the whole organisction, and to drive
innovation across the entire Group.
Like all our other major Group initiatives
- safety, quality and excellence —
embedding a culture of innovation
requires focus on leadership, structure,

process, tools, training and incentivisation.

Thestructures arein place with the
necessary process and tools, which
are constantly being streamtined
ondimproved.

Digital Transformation

Digital Transformation is a key thermne
for companies targeting significant
growth, strategic regeneration or
market disruption with breakthrough
technologies. For Vesuvius, this has
been manifested by our Digital Services
business unit. This also engages each

of the Group's other business unifs

in adopting o business model
complementary to and independeni of
their existing consumables business.
Vesuvius is extremely well positioned to
harness the digital transformation trernd
by creating this new market offering built
onthe reputation of over 100 years as
aleader of innovation giving technical

supporttothe Steel and Foundry
industries. Qur customers already
recognise our expertise in developing
engineering solutions using our
understanding of cur own technology
platforms and our customers' processes.
This is borne out of our long-term daily
presence at customer plants, working
in partnership with them to improve
the performance of our products,

and providing the continuous

process improvement that our
customers demand to maintain

their cwn competitiveness.

Ideation

Understanding our customers’ processes
and the application of our preducts,
knowing whatto lock for and then
understanding what we see, are the

first essentialingredients of the creative
process of ideation. |deation links
experience and knowledge with the
situationin front of you, generating

new ways tfo make improvements.
Occasionally this canlead to
breakthroughideas giving a step change
in performonce or a disruptive new
technology platform. It is this presence
at, and inferaction with, the customer
that is at the heart of the Vesuvius
business model. Itis alsoillustrated in our
Technical Services strategy: developing
sensors, software tools and techniquesto



Katarzyna Szafraniec, Quality Engineer, Poland

"As a Quality Engineer | continue to draw
onmy R&D experience.”

Having studied Chemical
Technology at university,
ljoined Vesuviusin 2011,
beginning as a R&D Assistant
atthe Vesuvius site in Skawing,
Poland working on refractory
material. Inthis role,

| collaborated with engineers
GCross NUMercus projects,
conducting physical and
chemical analysis. Using X-ray
diffraction, Thermogravimetric
Analysers and Scanning
Electron Microscopy, | was
able to gain athorough
understanding of Vesuvius'
products and their structure.

Two years later, | was promoted
to the position of R&D Engineer
at Skawina where part of my
role was to conduct on-site
product analysis for customers,
solving production issues for
them. | was also responsible

for the development of

new products such as the
industriclisation of our
spinel-forming self-flow
castable. During this time,

| also participatedin

Vesuvius' in-house technical
'HeaTt" training.

In 2016, | was selected to join
Skawina’s new Casting &
Precast Department as o
Quality Engineer, where |
continue to draw on my R&D
experience ta monitor and
further improve production
processes. My career at
Vesuvius has enabled me to
develop my technical expertise,
as well as understand
production processes,
develop training programmes
and manage a feam of
motivated colleagues.
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Innovation continued

constantly monitar customer processes
and our products in use, interpreting the
data obtained, reacting with process
adjustments in real time and allowing for
new process and product developments.
This model can create new services,

add value to our existing product
offering and accelerate our traditional
ideation process.

Innovation is the creative process of
converting ideas info value-creating
technologies or creating value by doing
things differently. But to be effective we
need toidentify and prioritise the right
ideas, ond have the courage to put the
other ones aside.

Cur new product introduction (NPI')
process has been in place for three years,
enabling us to identify and focus on

the ideas and projects which are most
aligned with our strategic plans, injecting
greater rigour into decision-making
with astage gate opproach. Today, we
have no shortage of ideas, but actively
work on a much smailer number of
prioritised projects than we worked on
four years ago. We operate a continuous
portfolio review process to ensure
thatthe R&D technology roadmaps
emphasise both current needs and the
essenticl longer-term programmes.

In 2017, we launched an Ideation
Platform where new ideas are reviewed
and refined, with viable and valuable
ideas funnelled into the NPl pipeline.
The Ideation Platformis presently
targeted only at new products and
manufacturing processes, but our
intention is to broadenits scope to
include ideas on all topics for all
functions, aach with their own

review process.

R&D Performance

During 2017, cur new product sales
growth rate (for products launched within
the last 5 years) slowed slightly after an
initial two years of very healthy growth.
By the end of 2017, we reochedc. 15%
from our starting position of 8% in 2014,
We launched atetal of 26 new products
in 2017, with more than 30 new products
planned for 2018 launch.

The R&D resource allocation to
technology projects has steadily
increased in all business units. The
maturity of our NPl process means we
can now monitor additional KPls to
provide a deeper level of analysis on

our innovation performance so we can
continue toimprove and ensure that

we achieve the targets we set ourselves.
In 2018, we will introduce new input and
outputindicators for innovation to
monitor our pipeline of breakthrough
projects, how efficiently we move
projects through the NPl process, and
how effective we are ar achieving

our forecasted project targets. We spend
2.0% of revenue on R&D), asignificantly
larger proportion of sales than most of
our competition and expect to deliver
significant benefits from this invastment.

New Product Development

Enabling Technologies, our fundamental
research group, continues to pursue @
range of new technology platforms,

The team menitors technology trends
across a broad ronge of industries,

koth inside and outside our own
markets. Theteam looks for previously
unimagined or unconventional ways to
use materials and processes, filtering
these concepts through our front-end
innovation process and incubating them
until they become new technology
platforms. These can then be used by
R&D departments across our business
to foster new product or process
development projects. Our NP projects
usuolly start from anidentified customer
need but this front-end innovation
process starts with no specific product
or market in mind, meaning that the

new technology platforms may have
applications across multiple business
unifs, and be integrated info many
different products, multiplying the value
of the technology. Technology platforms
that come from these unorthodox
beginnings are more likely to lead to
breakthrough and disruptive innovations.
We have several such newtechnology
platforms that are ready to move info
the NP process and therefore look
forward to exciting prospects for these
in the years ahead.

Another important group in Vesuvius'
drive for innovation is the Sclutions
Group. This group's activities have
become o differentiator for Vesuvius in
our Steel market and an essential driver
for the development of cur Technical
Services strategy. The teom translates
what we see in customer processes, either
directty or through data analysis, into
new solutions ranging from new designs
for existing products, to new products
and process control functionalities.

More fundamentally, it looks af the entire
customer process and all the products

in use rather than just a single element,
enabling the root cause of o preblem

to be identitied, rather than tackling
individual symptoms.

The Solutions Group, cormbining its
process application, modelling and
metaliurgical expertise, is in high
demand from both the Vesuvius
regional organisations and our
customers because of the positive
resultsit has demonstrated in solving
complex problems.

IP portfolio

The protection of our [P is as important as
its generation. In 2017, we tested, and are
now ready to roli out, an enhanced audit
process to measure the security of our IP
across the Group starting with R&D and
manufacturing locations in 2078. Our IP
portfolio was reviewed in 2015 and 2014,
and we continued with a stable level of
filings in 2017 to maintain our portfolio

at 156 families, 1,569 granted patents
and 518 applications pending.



Training

During 2017, we extended our

training efforts to the broader Vesuvius
community. To date, our project
management training programme has
included over 300 people, giving each
anunderstanding of the fullinnovation
process —covering not only their role in
the process, but also providing them
with the skills to function more effectively
inthe cross-functional teams reguired
o defiver new product introduction.
The training provided interactions with
their future collaborators, identifying
the good practices and operating

skills necessary to drive our NPI projects
to greater successes.

Training will continue with o new
programme called ‘Quality inthe NPI
process, specifically focusing on:

> Project definition: to ensure that
projects going into the NPl process oll
have clear success criteria, converting
the custormer need/voice of the
customerinta SMART objectives

> Design Failure Mode and Effect
Analysis (FMEA}) and design of
experiments: to accelerate the R&D
stage of the NPI process, reducing
the risk that the solutions developed
and tested in the laboratory do not
perform asexpected in the field,
cousing recycled developments and
project delays

Process FMEA: to ensure that our
industrialisation process is effective
and the product we ultimately
manufacture consistently achisves
the desired performance objectives
as detailed in the project definition

v

Joining Up Innovation

Vesuvius consists of two divisiens and
four business units. Whilst this creates an
opportunity to cross-fertilise products,
services, processes and technologies,
the divisional structure does not naturally
facilitate the sharing of knowledge.

In 2017, we launched a Technology
Bridge Initiative, taking experts from the
R&D department of each division, cur
fundamental research group and our
central process development group.

The'bridges’ are structured around
various technology themes related to
materials, processes and the new
technology platforms with the goal of:

> Promoting... newideas and
applications for technolagy

> Measuring... the evolution of
technologies that are key to our
industries

v

Building... Technology Maps that
willinclude interncl and external
information

> Constructing... a knowledge netwark

We launched the initiative with ten areas
of focus and will graduclly add new
themes over time. All generated data

is collated and stored in ur R&D
collaboration platform - TechConnect -
maoking the sharing of infermation

as simple as possible and avoiding
duplication. The learning generated by
these community practice groups will be
converted into tutorial presentations to
allow for dissemination throughout

the technical community of Vesuvius.
The 'community of practice groups’
became the goto experts for these

Ideation

Understanding our customers’ processes
and the application of our products, knowing
what to lock for and then understanding
what we see are the first essenticiingredients
of the creative process of ideation. -]

Global Research & Development cantres

Barlborough UK
Bettsville USA
Enschede Netherlands
Feignies France

Ghilin Belgium
Pittsburgh USA
Suzhou China
Visakhapatnam India

specific topics ensuring that the resources
with the most knowledge and experience
in any field are referenced, making for
more efficient progress of our projects.

Excellence

Our innovation activities are supported
by the Group Excellence programme,
which allows for self-assessment against
designated benchmarks. Within the
R&D community, progress has clready
been made on the various Excellence
roadmaps, not only in Innovation, but
also with respect 1o otherinitiatives such
as standardising the career ladder for
R&D staff, developing standard job
descriptions across all divisions,
enhancing performance assessment,
and supporting the career and personal
development of our staff. Making steady
progress along all the roads of the
Excellence rood map will ensure that the
Inmovation pillar of the Vesuvius strategy
will continue to strengthen, maintaining a
solid foundation on which we continue to
build for the future.

Alan Charnock Vice President
and Chief Technology Officer
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Operating Review
Steel Flow Control

Steel Flow Control revenue £m

£6059m

Steel Flow Control supplies the
stoppers and tubes used to channel
and control the flow of molten

steel from ladle to tundish and
from tundish to mould; slide gate
refractories for ladles and fundishes;
slide gate systems; tundish and
mould fluxes; and control devices
to monitor and requlate steel flow
intothe mould. These products
have been designed to resist
extreme thermomechanical stress
and corrosive environments.

The maijority of these products

are consumed during the process
of maoking steel and, consequently,
demand is primarily linked to steel
production velumes. Continuing
innovation allows us to offer enriched
solutions that create additional
value in our cusfomers’ procasses,

“In 2017, Steel Flow Control
sales growth continuedto
outperform growth inthe
global steel market”

Roelvan der Sluis President, Stee| Flow Control

Vesuvius' Flow Control business unit,
supplies the global steel industry with
consumable ceramic products used to
contain and controt the flow of molten
steel in the continuous casting process.
This process enables steel manufactured
ina blast furnace or electric arc furnace
o be cast without interruption, whilst
protecting it from the atmaosphere.
Avoiding atmospheric contact is erucial
asit significantly reduces contamination
and oxidation levels in the steel.

The products Vesuvius supplies into the
continuous casting process have a short
service life {often a matter of afew hours)
duetothe significant wear caused by the
extremely demanding environmentin
which they are used. These products
mustwithstand extreme temperature
changes, whilst resisting liquid stee

and slag corrosion. In addition, the
ceramic parts in contact with the liquid
steel must not in any way contaminate it.
The quality, relicbility and consistency

of the products and process control
equipment are therefore critical

to the quality of the finished metal

being produced and the productivity,
profitability and safety of our customers'
processes.

Steel Flow Control products supplied by
Vesuvius include:

> Viso™isostatically pressed alumina
graphite and VAPEX® extruded clay
graphite products These include ladle
shrouds, stopperrods, submerged
entry nozzles and shrouds, which
channel and controlthe flow of molten
steel from ladle to tundish and from
tundishto mould

> Slide-gate refractories These include
nozzles, plates and speciality shapes
used in furnace, ladle and tundish slide
gate systems

> Temperature measurement and
RADAR™ These provide optical
temperoture measurement and slag
detection

v

Gaskets These create an airtight seal
between refractory componentsto
minimise the risk of airingress and
steel oxidisation

v

Fluxes These are powders, spread
on the surface of the malten steel
which provide thermal and chemical
insulction and remove inclusions



> Purging systems These are used to stir
steel inthe ladle

> Control devices These are used tc
monitor and regulate steel flowinto
the mould

2017 Performance

Steel Flow Control sales growth has
continued to outperform growth in the
global steel market. In 2017, we reparted
revenues of £605.9m, anincrease of
11.8% on an underlying basis compared
with 2016. All regions outperformed
underlying steel volume growth and
EMEA was our fastest growing region.

Steel productionin EMEA increased 4.9%
in 2017, ond Vesuvius outperformed the
market with underlying revenue up
17.5%to £240.1m, reflecting market
share gains.

During 2017, we experienced very strong
growth of cur Flow Control salesin
EMEA, whichtemporarily exceeded the
capacity of our manufacturing plants
inthe region, requiring the import of
products from our facilities in Asia

and NAFTA, incurring additional

freight, export duty and overtime costs.
Measures were immediately taken to
increase the capacity of the Flow Control
EMEA plants and this ramp-up is now
complete, substituting imports from
non-EMEA plants.

Inthe Americas, Steel Flow Control's
underlying revenues increased 8.8%
t0 £201.7min 2017, against a 5.9%
increase in steel production volumes.
Qur outperformance relative to steel
production was due tomarket share
gainsin North America. Inthe USin
particular, our market share is
continuing to recover from the low
point of the second half of 2015
when we were impacted by customer
closures and volume losses due to
market pricing pressure.

"Our teams worked together
to provide a solution for the
customer utilising the first
worldwide application of new
patented sealing technology”

Andrew Morrison and Linna Sun, heads of NAFTA

and Asia VISO Development teams

The Challenge

Alarge integrated steel producerin
NAFTA resolved to convert most of
their production to Vesuvius' Flex
Cold Start™ Tundish Shroud , which
channelsthe flow of steelinto the
final mould for selidification.

The cold-start technology eliminates
the need for preheat, increasingthe
safety of the tube changing process,
and reducing energy consumption
However, as cold start tubes require
additional time to expand after
production startstafarm an airtight
seal atthe joint of the tundish and the
tube to prevent air contamination, a
preheat would still have been required
for some specific gutomotive steel
grades foimprove sealing fimes.

QurSolutien
Dale Bower, leading the local NAFTA
sales team, challenged the VISO

Global Development team to provide
asolution. Andrew Morrison and
Linna Sun, the heads of the NAFTA
and Asia VISO Development teams
respectively, colloborated inthe
development of aninnovation born
inour R&D centre in Suzhou, China:
rhe combination of an intumescent
coating and anintegral groove sealant
which provides a quicker gas hight seal
by expanding many multiples of its
original thickness on commencement,
and for the duration, of service,

The Benefits

This combination of the coating and
groove sealant allows the custorner

to reliably use the cold start piece for
higher steel grades. The new patented
technology creates a tight seal within
cne minute of service commencement,
resulting in immediate reduction in
steel re-oxidation, reduced steel
finishing, and overallimproved

stael quality.
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Operating Review continued

Steel Flow Control

Underlying revenue increased by 7.8%
in Asia-Pacificin 2017 t0 £164.1m,
comparedtoa 5.7%increase in steel
production volume in the region.
Revenues increased faster than the
steel market in the key regional markets
of Ching, Indiac and Scuth Korea.

The benefits of the restructuring
programme implemented during 2016
and 2017 started to deliver a positive
impact on the financial performance
of the business unit.

Strategic Highlights from
the Year

Following the success of the
manufacturing rationalisation
programme in EMEA, a similar initiative
was launched for the NAFTA region,
where through a combination of
improving efficiency and adapting
production volumes between plants,
improvements in cost base have been
made. We will confinue to pursue this
effortin 2018 in order to deliver
further benefits.

We are now translating this methodology
to new territories, through which

we expectta drive further cost
improvements. The additional projects
identified include a focus onindustrial
efficienciesin Brazil and India.

In additionto these wider initiatives, we
targeted process improvements aimed
atincreasing the output in specific
areas, such asin our mix plantin China.
Optimisation work performed here has
allowed us ta simplify our supply chain,
make it more cost-efficient and create
capacity to absorb growth.

Overthe last few years, Vesuvius has
invested in developing robotics solutions
which improve the safety and consistency
of our customers’ operations while
supporting our sales. Qur unique value
proposifion is the result of the integration
of specificrefractory, system and robaotic
design - three core competendies inside
Vesuvius. Several steel makers have been
pioneers in adopting this technology,

An SEM 3085 tube changer,
for the robotic tube
changing process

The glowing VISO sub-entry
nozzle channels molten
steelinto the mould ()

delivering process efficiency and
removing personnel from the harsh
environment around the caster. In 2017,
we saw anincrease in demand for
robotics solutions and received orders
to convert steel plantsin South Koreq,
South America and Europe. This
positions Vesuvius well to support our
customersin facing the future challenges
of automation and a greater focus

on quality.

In 2017, we also further developed our
capabilities in data capture and
confinuous tempercture measurement.
Qur investmentin, and exclusive
distribution agreement with Sapotech
QCy, a Finnish technology company
offering optical defect detection services
and real-time data on steel surfoce
quality, now places us well to address the
requirements for data management at
cur customers. From the start of 2018,
this business is being managed within
the Steel Flow Control business unit.

Qur R&D efforts also delivered new
productstosupport the growthinthe
ladle slide-gate business with the
introduction of our next generation
slide-gate mechanism, which is robot-
ready and uses optimised refractory
plates creating value for our customers
in terms of ergonomics, safety and
reliability while reducing their operating
cost. In addition, we launched our new
Flex Cold Start™ Tundish Shroud, which
allows customers to aperate their casters
with mare flexibility in terms of sequence
fength and daily operation as well as

reducing their waste and cost. As shown
inthe case study on page 37, we have
also developed carmplementary
rechnology to allow for the use of this
product in higher grade stee! production.

We continued to develop our service
offering helping our customersto
understand better their mould flow
pattern. Thisis a key element in the
casting process, asitis the last step
between liquid and solid steel. This audit
service iscarried out by our process
axperts using specifically designed tools
and software to measure flow pattern
through monitering temperature, mould
level and meniscus velocity. We canthen
compare this with the data generated
from our Computational Fluid Dynarmic
sirnulation capabilities. Comparing the
data allews usto recommend improved
solutions to cur customers. More details
onthe wark of our Solutions Group are
contained in the Innovation Section on
pages 32 to 35.

Looking Ahead

It is our expectationthat, despite the
relatively high growth achieved in 2017
and a broadly positive outlook for 2018,
steel production in the mature economies
of Europe and North Armerica will not
exhibit material growthinthe medium/
long term, given that the nature of
economic growth requires less steel than
inthe past. Thisis a key driver behind the
efforts to adapt our manufacturing
footprint and overhead structureinthe
mature markets.



Chinais the world’s largest producer of
steel, accounting for approximately 50%
of global production. The adjustment of
the Chinese steel industry from producing
long steel for infrastructure to producing
flat’ steel, typically used for consumer
products and automatives, is highly
beneficial for Vesuvius. Flat steel typically
uses three times as much Vesyvius
products by value and as a result we
believe the occessible market for Vesuviug’
Flow Control business in China coutd grow
significantly in thelong term.

Furthermcere, China's Governmentis
focused on a comprehensive upgrade
of Chinese manufacturing, making it
innovation-driven, emphasising quality
over quantity and ochieving ‘green’
development though 'Madein China
2025 This trend towards higher quality
industriat manufacturing is beneficial to
Vesuvius' steel division. Our current strong
position in this market wilt help us to
benefit from these trends.

Indic is another key growth market and
one where we enjoy high penetration
rates. |t was one of the fastest growing
steel markets in 2017 and closely tied to
the Government’s economic development
plansis the target to increase steel
capacity to 300 million fonnes per annum
by 2030, versus a production level in

2017 of 101 million tonnes. As a result,
Vesuvius also considers that this market
presents an opportunity for Vesuvius to
grow sales by a factor of approximately
three times inthe longterm.

We also remain optimistic about the
outlook for future steel production growth
in countries such as Brazil, Mexico, Turkey,
the Middle Fast, Russia and Vietnam.

Roel van der Sluis
President, Steel Flow Cenirol

Efficient technology
transfer improves customer
production reliability and

reduces cost

Joe Gu, Production Manager of Slide Gate Refractories and Purge

Plugs, North Asia

TheChallenge

The Castrip® process is a recent
technology developed to directly cast
steelin athin strip. This enables the
production of steel coils with less
energy consumption and a reduced
production cost compared with the
conventional process which requires
hot rolling after casting to reduce
slab thickness.

Farthistechnology, Vesuvius has
developed specifictechnology for
corerefractory materials and designs,
as well s associated know-how on
operational best practices from our
experience at sites running this
technology in NAFTA. Recently,
Castrip® machines were installed

at a Chinese steel producer, who
required locol refractory sourcing.

Our Solution

A Transfer of Tachnology team was
formed inside Vesuvius before the
first Castrip® mochine commenced
productioninChina. Joe Gu was
appointed as the Chinese ream leader
for this project, which drew experts
from the praduct lines of Advanced
Refractories, VISO and Systemns, the

design and manufacturing teams, and

the local sales team. He and his team
identified a solid benchmark based
on Vesuvius' experience in NAFTA,

visiting Vesuvius R&D sites and
manufacturing plants, and alse steel
producers using the technology.

Once sufficient information had been
gathered, the Chinese teams were
trained on how to support the new
Chinese customers, covering refractory
design and manufacturing, and on-site
operationolsupport

The Benefits

With local production and support
capahilities, we secured animportant
cantract, offering the first Chinese user
of the Castrip® process the shortest
defivery time at the best price, while
maintaining the criginal product
quality developed in NAFTA. The
Chinese and NAFTA teams continue
to share the expertise gained on this
process to allow for o continucus
improvement of the refractory ports,
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Operating Review
Advanced Refractories

"Our outperformance of

steel production volume growth
was supported by increased
customer interestin our
value-creating solutions”

Tanmay Ganguly President, Advanced Refractories

Advanced Refractories revenue £m

£4991m

Advanced Refractories produces
specialised refractory materials
forlining steelmaking vessels such
as blast furnaces, ladles and
tundishes, which are subjectto
extreme temperatures, corrosion
and abrasion. These materials are
inthe form of powder mixes, which
are spray-applied or castonto the
vesselto be lined {'monolithics’) and
refractory shapes (e.g. bricks, pads
and dams). Vesuvius is one of the
world's largest manufacturers of
monolithic refractory linings.
Advanced Refractorias delivers
installation technologies, products
adaptedto fit customers' specific
processes and plants, and effective
and efficient logistics services,
These factors are combined with
significant R&D, a deep knowledge
of customers’ processes and project
management capability to deliver
market-leading solutions for

our customers.

Customers of Advanced Refractories
are principally steel producers and
manufacturers of steel production
equipment. Qur products accompany
the steel-making process fromthe

early steps of the process all the woy
downstream ta the finishing end inthe
rolling mill. This array of heat-intensive
production processes and physical
transformation of the iron ore into
semi-finished products, accounts

for two thirds of the revenue of the
business unit. In addition, Vesuvius'
Advanced Refractories business services
other high-temperature industries such
as primary aluminium, copper, cement,
petrochemicals and energy from waste.
These refractory lining materials are
supplied inthe form of powder mixes,
which cre spray-applied or cast onte the
vessels 1o be lined (‘monolithics’), orin
pre-cast shopes and bricks.

Anintegral part of cur success depends
upon the level of collaboration with our
customers. Qur experts presence at
our customers' facilities allows us o
fundamental understanding of their
needs. The level of frust our business
model creates makes it rore resilient to
market cycles enabling us to generate
growth by adding new products and
services throughout the business cycle.

The service life of the products Advanced
Refractories supplies into the steel
making process can vary {some o matter
of hours and others for a peried of years}
based uponthe type of refractory

and the level of wear caused by the
demanding environmentin which they
are used.

Advanced Refractories’ key products are:

> Blast furnace casthouse applications
These are spacial refractories used to
line the blast furnace and a network of
runners to transfer molteniron from
torpedo lodles to the melt shop for
further pracessing into steel

> Blast furnace tap hole clay Thisis
arefractory mass usedtc plug the
tapping hole in a blast furnace.
When moltenironis readytobe
extracted from the blast furnace,
adrilling machine perforates o hale
throughthe solidified clay to start
the tapping process

v

Steel ladle applications These are
refractories (Fypically bricks) used to
line a steel vessel which contains the
molten metal and transports it from
the furnace to a casting machine



“Vesuvius has supported and
rewarded my professional
development”

Andy Toner, Director of Marketing and Technology for Ironand Steel, NAFTA

My career at Vesuvius began
in 2008, when | joined as

a Service Technician,
responsible for the
preparation of tundishes at
Gerdau's steel manufacturing
plant ot Midlothian, Texas, in
the United States. As a result
of my work there, | was offered
the opportunity to become the
Application Specialist for
Brick Products, based at aur
site at Pittsburgh, United
States, butalso working in
steel manufacturing plonts
across America. | then moved
onto work as an Application
Specialist for Ladles, with
afocus onladle bottoms,
working with customersin
their steel mills to ensure

that they were deriving the
maximum benefit from

our products.

Two years after that, | was
promoted to Product
Manager for the Ladle
Program and in 2014, | moved
to become the Marketing
Manager for our Advonced
Refractory business not only
for ladles, but also for the
basic oxygen furnaces and
electric arc furnaces operoted
by our steel manufacturing
customers. in 2076, | became
Regional Manager for the
East Region USA in Steel
Applications and finally in
2017, lwas named Director of
Marketing and Technology for
Iron and Steel, NAFTA. In this
role, | am responsible for the
expansion of our product
portfolio and the technical
product development to
support this growth across
the entire NAFTA region.

At Vesuvius | have been
supported, challenged and
rewarded in the development
of my professional and
technical expertise. | have
been given the opportunity to
work in different areas of the
business thereby broadening
my experience and my career
opportunities.
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Operating Review conti
Advanced Refractories

Integrated m
supply, robot

nued

aterial
IC

installation equipment

and laser sca

nning for

Electric Arc Furnace
Mmaintenance

TheChallenge

Vesuvius has o historically well-
established business in Electric Arc
Furnace maintenance, using entirely
manual application technigues.
Anongoing diclogue with the customer
identified scme key improverment
opportunities. These improverments
were centred oround three rmain
drwvars: (1) the application of the
material; (2) the accurate assessment
of the condition of the active lining

in service; and (3) safety for the
operation and application teams.

QOur Solution

Working with established partner
companies and cross-functicnal
expertise, the Vesuvius team
developed an optimised design for
a Robotic Application unit for the
customer's furnaces. These ynits

were specifically constructed to suit
the individual plant configuration.
Using the latest laser scanner devices
fromour subsidiary Process Metrix
to ident fy the areas of the furnace
lining that required repair, we
achieved aceurate, fargeted and
safe material placement.

The Benefits

The ability to safely repoir refractory
lining in @ hot and difficult environment
was a key demand. Therobot arm and
laser scanner significantly improve the
safe working conditions for the plant
operarions. The integration of the
robot andlaser eguipment alsc
enables more accurate gunning of
refractory materiol in the areas where
itis most required. This delivers better
performance and improved material
consumption rates for the customer,

v

Steel tundish monolithics These are
powder-mix refractories used to line
the tundish, which receives molten steel
from the ladle then acts as a reservoir
to control the flow of the liquid metal
and feed the continuous casting
machine af the required rate

> Aluminium applications These
products are used for secondary
aluminium production, and are mostly
used in furnace lining

v

Cement applications Monalithic
technology used inthe pre-hearer
stage before materials are transferred
into the rotary kiln during the
continuous coleination process for
cement making

2017 Performance

Advanced Refractories reported
revenues of £4997m in 2077, anincrease
of 25.2% compared to 2016. Onan
underlying basis, the year-on-year
increase was 17.4%. This outperformance
relative to steel volume growth was
supparted by increased customer interest
in our value-creating solutions and the
successfullaunch of new products such
as our Supergard™ Tundish refractory
line, which is a patented tundish lining
product forimproving steel quality.

We also benefited from customers
seeking to diversify their supplier base
inresponse to recent consolidation.

We achieved attractive underlying
revenue growth in each of cur key regions
in 2017, with the Americas up 8.6%,
EMEA up 28.4% and Asia-Pacific up
5.4%. The particularly high growth level
in EMEA was due to significant progress
regaining market share in Furope despite
competitive market conditions.

Some of the key raw materials used by
Advanced Refractories experienced
significant price increases in 2017,
particularly during the second half of
the year. The speed of these increcses
was such that there was atime lagin
recovering the increased costs through
the sales price of our finished praducts,



Precast Monolithic Steel Ladle Bottom

Manufactured in Chicago Heights, USA -]

as we were bound by confractual
obligations with some customers.

We have made major progress in
recovering this cost inflation through
higher selling prices. This process of price
adjustment will continue into 2018, until
realised costincreases have been fully
recovered. This confirms our ability to
recover raw material cost inflation
through price rises over time.

Strategic Highlights from
the Year

The addition of new customers in Eurcpe
in the melting and refining segment was
a significant contributor to our growth

in 2017, Thiswas also boosted by a
positive volume growth in the steel
industryin Europe.

Anincreased focus on value-added
solutions in niche segments like steel
finishing also allowed us 1o achieve

good momentum during the period.

We continuously review and seek to
improve our manufacturing efficiency,
with targeted capital investment
delivering significont benefits in process
flow, inventory management and labour
and energy efficiency. In Brozil, we
rationalised cur manufacturing footprint
and maximised capacity utilisation by
relacating our Brazilian manufacturing
facilifies to Rio de Janeiro from Sao Paulo
n2017.

We also commenced a cost efficiency
study in Furopeto review our
manufacturing footprint as part of cur
wider focus on cost efficiency. We are
initicting a similar exercise in 2018 at
our facilities in the NAFTA region.

Qur business modal is underpinned by
our focus on value-creating solutions and
maintaining fechnological leadership
from investment in R&D. We improved
our R&D footprint in 2017 with the
inauguration of our newest R&D facility
in Visckhapatnam, India. The addition
of this state-of-the- art facility will allow
us to complement our existing technical
capabilities and tackle specific problems
inthe local market. Qur investmentin this
new facility is proof of our commitrment
to staying of the forefront of new
technology. Our existing R&D centres
are well positioned to support our
existing markets whilst this new facility

is the next building block fo support our
future growth in developing markets.

Looking Ahead

As 70% of Advanced Refractories’
ravenue comes from the steel making
industry, steel productionis a key driver
for the business. In mature eccnomies,
it Is our expectation that these regions
will not exhibit material growthin the
medivm/ long term, given that the nature
of economic growth requires less steel
than in the past. However, as growth

in emerging markets moves forward
and our business in mature markets
continues to evolve, we are constantly
developing our rescurce base to align
with activity levels.

In the developed markets of Europe and
North America, we are experiencing

a greater demand for higher quality
refractories. In response to recent
consolidation, we are also seeing
increased interest in certain segments,
such as bricks, as customers in these
regions seek to diversify their supplier
base as well as market evolution towards
other technologies like monolithic
refractories. We expect thisto continue
going forward.

Improving the profitability of Advanced
Refractoriesis a key area of focus.
Market share, whilst important, is not
the main driver of our strategy as there

is significant fragmentation both on a
global and regional basis in our area of
the refractory supply business. Achieving
consolidation at the expense of margins
will not meet our goals for value creation.
Inthe developing markets of India, China
and Brazil, our focus is to capture or
exceed the growth rate of the industry.

Our long-standing presence and local
manufacturing capabilities position us
wellto take advantage of future growth
cpportunities in India. Solidifying our
presence with the installation of cur
newest R&D facility in Indiais a strong
step forword. As the country continues
demanding more rechnology with the
evalution of the market, we are well
positioned to maintain our leadership
position in the segments we currently
operatein, whilst of the same time,
look at new avenues for growth.

Tanmay Ganguly
President, Advanced Refracteries
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Operating Review

Digital Services

Digital Services revenue £m

£45.7m

Digital Services offers digitalised
solutions ta our customers to make
their underlying processes more
efficient and reliable. Digital
Services complements existing
preduct lines by providing new
services to our existing customers.
Digital Services focuses onthe
capture and interpretation

of key manufacturing data,
complementing Vesuvius' strong
presence and expertfise in molten
metal engineering to create

new technologies and integrate
them into expert process
management systems.

“We are creating new
offerings to participate
in the digitalisation of our
customers' processes’

Alexander Laugier-Werth President, Digital Services

There are two key elements of Vesuvius’
Technical Services strategy: firstly, the
Digital Services business unit, which
focuses onincubating our data capture
technologies, and, secondly, the other
business units which play a critical role in
integrating these products intc our
broader consumables offering aswell as
ensuring customer access. In this way, our
Technical Services strategy is embedded
in the activities of both our Steel and
Foundry divisions which can work both
with and Independently of our Digital
Services business.

Qur digital services products assist our
customers to meet the increasing end
product consistency and quality
requirements - enabling them to capture
and analyse large guantities of
production data and harness them 1o
deliver reliable and auditable process
and product improvements.

Key Products

Our business focuses on providing
solutions that enhance the control and
monitoring of our custorners’ production
processes. During 2017, the businessunit
comprised four key product lines:

> Disposablesensors and probes These
measure avariety of liquid metal
characteristics, which are mostly
used in the primary and secondary
steel-making stages.Current selutions
include temperature, oxygen,
hydrogen, iren oxide and aluminium
measurements as well as metal
sampling at all production stages
of steelmaking and casting

> Laser technology Technology used for
measuring the wear of refractory
materialsin furnaces and ladles.
This is animportant area of focus as
the market moves towards the use of
ladle fleets

v

Continuous temperafure measurement
This provides real-time continuous
ternperature data in the tundish.

This allows customers to better
understand temperature correlations
with steel quality, reduce energy
costs and optimise caster speed.
Current solutions include Accuoptix ™,
Accucone ™, and the Accumetrix®
continuous femperature
measurement systems

Mould level sensors and control
systems These are critical to ensure
the stable, controlled flow of metal
during the casting process and have
asignificant impact on slab quality.
In addition, mould audit services,
using our unique XMAT ™ device, in
combination with computerised
fiow modelling, provide our Steel
customers with an‘expert eye'inside
the mould, cllowing them to gain an
intimate understanding of liquid
behaviour as steel is cast

v

By using each of these technologies,
customers can focus on critical
parameters within their processes,
enabling them to refine their production
methods to improve quality, lower
production costs and maximise
efficiency. The information derived from
these measurements can be included as
a consulting service and used as support
forimprovementsin refractory solutions.
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2017 Performance

Digital Services generated revenues

of £43.7min 2017, anincrease of

18.4% year-on-year an areported basis.
Onanunderlying basis, revenues
increased 8.9%. Thisreflected market
share gainsin North America and

India, and the significant succass we
experienced in South America as a
result of increased penetration of our
sensors and probes business.

In our Process Metrixlasers business, we
had arecord year of sales with shipments
up ever 50% versus 2016, Avemis, cur
mouldlevel sensors and continuous
ternperature measurement products,
alsohad a strong yeor with revenues
upc.30%.

Strategic Highlights from
the Year

in December 2017, we finalised a
strategic investment in Sapotech Gy, a
Finnish technology company developing
opfical defect detection servicesinthe
steel continuous casting process. This
investment will be managed by the Flow
Control business unit.

We continued fo integrate the Digital
Services companies, ECIL Met Tec and
Sidermes into the existing Group scles
networks. This enabled the businesses to
access the wider footprint of the Vesuvius
customer base. As a result, we made
significant product performance
improvements in key lines such as probes
for measuring hydrogen and oxygen.

We clsoinitiated restructuring actions
to optimise our cost base and
manufacturing footprint, and to
reduce operating costs.

We introduced a number of new features
in laser technologyin 2017 through
completely revamped software and the
Two Colour Pyrometer, which combines
dimensional measurements with our
most accurate surface tfemperature
measurements to date.

Ourfocus onincreasing sales in the
continuous temperature measurement
space began to drive sales volumes and
profits inthis area and we expect this to
continue inthe years ahead.

Looking ahead

The development of a digital offering

for our customers, complementary to

our consurnables offering, remains o
fundamental priority of our Group
strategy. To ensure that we continue to
maximise the epportunities to leverage
our existing customer relationships 1o
expand this area of business, the
ongoing support of our Flow Control

and Advanced Refractories business
units is eritical. Flow Control's involvement
is focused on developing value-added
services around the tundish and the
mould in the continuous casting port of
the steel process. SERT, Avemnis and the
new investment in Sapotech Qy are key to
these efforts. For Advanced Refractories,
laser technology business Process Metrix
has a key role to play inthe development
of its technical services offering.

Going forward we are optimising our
manufacturing footprint for sensors and
probes with the closure of asitein France
and in Germany. To reduce operating
costs further, we have initiated an
investment programme to automate

the manufacturing process.

We will continue to review acquisition
opportunities for additional rechnological
solutions to complement our existing
customer offerings, focused on data
gathering and information analysis to
provide customers with the information

they need to deliver processimprovements.

The amount of dota generated by
sensors is growing exponentially, so allied
with this approach, we intend to focus on
solutions for converting this datainto
valuable decision supportinformation,
maximising the value our various sensor
technologies bring to customers.

Alexonder Laugier-Werth
President, Digital Services
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Operating Review
Foundry

“Our growthin 2017 was achieved

through developing our business
in Ching, gainsin our established

markets and new product

launches”

Glenn Cowie President, Foundry

Foundry revenue £m

£535.2m

Vesuvius' Foundry Division, trading
as Foseco, is aworld leaderinthe
supply of consumabie products,
solutions and associated services
related to the foundry industry. The
foundry process is highly sequential
and is ritically dependent on
consistency of product quality
and preductivity optimisation.
The Foundry Division’s products,
solutions and use of advanced
computer simulation techniques
allow foundries to reduce defects
and hence reduce labour intensive
fettling and machining, minimise
metal usage requirements,
influence the metal solidification
process and automate moulding
and casting, thus reducing cost,
energy usage and mould size.

The conditioning of melten metal,
the nature of the mould used and,
especially, the design of the way
metal flows into the mould are

key parameters in a foundry,
determining both the quality of
the finished castings and the
labour, energy and metal usage
efficiency of the foundry.
Vesuvius products and
associated services to foundries
improve these parameters.

The Foundry Division supplies ceramic
consumables, such asfilters and feeding
systerns, and chemical coatings and
binders to foundries which use these
products in the production of metal
castings. Working alongside customers
at their sites, our engineers provide
on-site technical expertise in addition to
simulation software to develop the best
individualised solutions. Each of our
products typically represents a small
element of the overal cost of the foundry
processes but contributes significantly to
product quality and yield.

We support our customer offering with
the ‘Foseco University', an online library
of expertise in foundry practice which
demonstrates our expertise and provides
technical supportto our engineers and
customers across the globe.

Key Products
Foseco's key products are:

> Binders These are used to prepare the
sand moulds and cores, the quality of
which improves the precision and
surface finish of the final casting

= Coatings These are designed to
protect both sand and permanent
moulds from the effects of being filled
with liquid metal. This is especially
important on cores, where liguid metal
may cover up o three sides of the sand

> Filtration Qur filtration products
remave impurities from the liquid metal
beforeit enters the mould and reduce
turbulence during pouring

v

Feeding Systems Our specifically-
shaped insulating and exothermic
feeding systems allow for the efficient
supply of maolten metal to key areas
of complex or large castings, and
prevent liquid shrinkage defects inthe
finished casting, improving yields and
productivity by reducing the amount
of molten metal required per casting.
Cur exothermic feeding aids also
provide a secondary heat source
which can also control metal cooling,
minimising the adverse effects of
shrinkage during solidification

Crucibles These are used in awide
range of melting and holding
applications for non-ferrous alloys,
particulary aluminium, copperand
zinc. Each of these applications
requires a crucible with specific
properties to maximise productivity
and minimise energy costs

v

> Other products Theseinclude
innoculants used for ferrous and
non-ferrous castings; flux degassing
equipment for removing unwanted gas
in liquid aluminium; and refractory
materials used for the transportation
of liquid metal



Netherlands

production costs,

2017 Performance

There was positive momentum in the
majority of Foundry end markets
during 2017, with particular strength in
heavy trucks and a recovery in mining
equipment as well as construction and
agricultural equipment after several
vears of weokness.

Revenuein the Foundry Division
increased 16.5% 10 £535.2min 2017 ona
reported basis, whilst underlying revenue
increased by 9.3%. Trading profit
improved by 12.0% on an underlying
basis. Qur 2017 performance benefited
materially from our commitment to
technological leadership through
investment in R&D, which resulted in

13 new product launches during the year,
the highest on record. These new product
launches supported double-digit revenue
growth across Foundry's highest margin
product lines - feeding systems, filters
and coatings. Trading profit also
benefited from the ongoing organisational
restructuring in North America, which
commencedin 2076 and is focused on
developing aflatter, leaner structure.

Inthe Americas, underlying revenue
increased 11.2% despite weaknessin
the light vehicle ond rail sectors in North
America andthe closure of a number
of customer plants inthe steel foundry
sector. This wos offset by growth in
heavy trucks as well as increcses iniron
casting outpuf related to construction
and agricultural equipment. We were
successtul in gaining market share as a
result of new product introductions and
we experienced significant successin

Qur R&D facility in Enschede,

Foseco offers a wide range of foundry
products and services to meet the
requirements of iron, steel and non ferrous
foundries to help them to reduce defects,
improve casting quality and optimise

Brazil growing our feeding systems,
filters and non-ferrous metal freatment
revenues.

Underlying revenue in EMEA Increased
8.8% year-on-year as a result of growth
across the majority of foundry end
markets with particular strengthin
heavy trucks as well as high growth in
the non-ferrous market. We were also
successful in gaining market share as

a resuft of new product introducticns.

In Asia-Pacific, underlying revenue
increased by 8.8%, with sales increasing
in cll major markets. Qur revenuesin
China were up ¢.13%, due to booming
demand in heavy truck production
aswell as ourtangible progress in
developing a strong local sales force
and marketing organisation. In Indig,
our revenues were up €.5%, benefiting
from growth in light vehicle production
aswell as strength in construction and
agricultural equipment, and mining
equipment. Cur revenue growth in India
could potentially have been higher,

had it not been for high raw material
costs and supply issues as well as an
increased focus by Foseco on customer
payment terms.

Strategic Highlights from the Year

The organisational restructuring in North
America, which commencedin 2016,
continued through the year with a focus
on developing a flatter, leaner structure.
We also focused onimproved succession
planning with several key new employees
joining during the year. Each of these
initiatives saw a focus onimproving

organisational culture and accountability,
which has allowed us to move decision-
making closer to the customer and
improve our speed of deing business.
We continued our efforts to rationalise
our manvufacturing feotprint and
rmaximise capacity utilisation with the
closure of the Cleveland filter plant and
Conneaut shank production. We also
continued to focus ontheimplementation
of Lean principles and improvement

in our support and planning systems

for operations.

In addition, we have initiated a cost
efficiency study at aur facilities in Borken
and Grossalmerode in Germany as part
of our wider focus on cost efficiency.

The investment in our warld-class R&D
facility in Enschede, The Netherlands,
continues to generate new products. In
2017, New Product sales as a percentage
of Foundry sales reachad 10%.

To drive penetration into Japanese
foundriesin ASEAN, we appointed
aJapanese business development
manager in Thailand and also refocused
our efforts on our business in Vietnam.

A new filter production line was launched
in India andis expected to be completed
by Q3 2018. The availability of a local
filter source willimprove customer
service levels and support increased
market penetration.

In China, the focus remains on further
developingthe local sales and marketing
organisation and growing market share
inour major product segments, mainly
coatings, filters and feeding systems.
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Operating Review continued

Foundry

Looking Ahead

The potential revenue per customer
and per tonne of castings produced is
strongly influenced by the technical
sophistication of the customer, the
end-marketfor the casting, and the
processes used in its production. These
factors tend to correlate with the level of
industrial development within a given
market. Therefore, we see significant
growth potential in markets where
industrial develepment continues to
gather momentum, particularly certain
parts of Eastern Europe and Asia.

To position Foseco to benefit from this
trend we are expanding our network of
technical sales staff and application
engineers within developing markets,
ensuring that customers there have
local access to the same high levels

of expertise and technical supportin
all markets.

In Europe, we expect modest growth in
the Foundry market for the next few
years, with animproving outlook for
growth in the steel foundry segment
mainly due to growth in the comstruction
and mining industries. Consolidation of
the Foundry industry continues, reducing
the gap between capacity on offer and
realdemand. We anticipate that plant
closures and mergers and acquisitions
will continue inthe industry, os will the
frend to transfer production from
western countries 1o Eastern Europe
and Turkey. Cheaper labour and energy
costs, together with the availability of
technical skills, remain key for the future
development of the industrial footprint
inthese developing markets. Inthe
automotive industry, the trendto
develop lighter vehicles is pushing
further growth of aluminium castings,
increasing volumesin the non-ferrous
foundry segment.

The foundry market in Mexico continues
to see rapid growth, with foreign
investment from Asia, Europe, and the
US in new foundry facilities and the
ongoing expansion of existing facilities.
We are positioning ourselves to

benefit from this growth with a new
manufacturing site in Monterrey. The
market recovery in mining, agriculture
and construction that startedin 2017 i3
expected to acceleratein 2018 for both
NAFTA and South America.

Further growth s also anticipated in India
and South East Asig, with increasing
quality requirements expected to drive
increased penetration of Foseco's
feeding systems, filtration, coatings,

and non-ferrous product lines.

Glenn Cowie
President, Foundry

Consistent application of coatings
through automated density control

TheChallenge

When monufacturing a casting,
applying the correct thickness of
rmould coating s critical in providing a
protective barrier between the liquid
metal and the core or mould surface.
A chailengefor all foundries is1o ensure
that coatingis applied correctly. In o
recent review we identified one major
prebiem - the coating is often diluted
manuaclly and its density is checked
only periodically during a shift.
Inevitably, this cen lead fo variations
in performance, os coating thatis too
thick can compromise dimensional
accuracy and gas permeability and
coating thatis tao thin can failto
prevent steel penetration into the
mould sand and canresult nsurface
defects onthe casting.

Our Solution

The development team investigated
potential solutions, butrealised that
avalloble technology would either
odversely affect the mixing of the
coating or used delicate pipes and
pumps that were impractical requiring
extra cleaning and mainfenance

(and therefore potential production
downtime). Warking with a third-party
engineering unit we developed c new
design that did notimpact the mixing
process and provides very accurate
centinuous density and level
meagsuremer with no moving parts.

The Benefits

The Intelligent Coating Unit {tCU) helps
ourcustomers achieve better and more
consistent casting results, by ensuring
that ot all points in the production cycle,

coating products are diluted to their
optimum application density ona
continuous basis. Thissignificantly
reducestherisk of defectsin the
finished casting, reduces scrapped
casting and lewers cleaning costs.
The ICU also continuously records the
application density data providing
an audit trail for use in process
aptimisation and quolity reviews.



"Vesuvius has invested in my future”

Kerstin Berndt, Product Manager, Germany

Istarted working in the Foundry
Division of Vesuvius GmbH in
2006, following an apprenticeship
as achemical-technical assistant.
| spent my first twa and a helf
yearsworking in the SGI
QOrganisation, covering
international projects, including
the development of data for the
Coveral®MTS 1582, which is now
aleading productin the field of
Non-Ferrous Metal Treatment.

I was then moved to the R&D
department, during which time

| obtained two degrees:asa
state-certified technician and

as atraining supervisorthrough
the German Chamber of Industry
and Commerce.

Since 2015, | have worked as a
Local Product Manager for
non-ferrous metaltreatment
and am the customer contact for
our Foundry Divisior's chemical
production lings in Germany,
Austriq, Switzerland and the
Natherlands.

My time at Vesuvius has enabled
metogain important academic
and professional qualifications,
whilst ar rhe same time receiving
critical on-the-job technical
experience. Whilst doing this,

| have developed a considerable
international network, working
on adaily bosis with Vesuvius
colleagues in different countries.

© See more about Vesuvius careers
inPeople and Community on
pages6/-73
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Board of Directors

John McDonough CBE Chairman
Appointad: 31 October 2012

Career experience: John was appointed as a Director and Chairman
of the Company on 31 October 2012, John was group Chief Executive
Officer of Carillion plc, the support services and construction firm,
for 11 years untilhe retired in 2071, Prior to joining Carillion he spant
nine years in the automotive systemns division at Johnson Controls

Inc., initially in the UK, before moving to become Vice President of the
division's European operations and ultimately moving to Singapore

ta develop the business in Asia-Pacific. He returned to the UK as Vice
President of the integrated facilities management division for EMEA.
He served as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee of Tomkins
plc from 2007 0 2010, John has a strong engineering background and
considerable interngtional commercial and listed company experience,
which enable him ably to lead the Vesuvius Board. John wos owarded
o CBEin 2011 for services to industry and is a British citizen.

Other appointments: John is Chairman of The Vitec Group ple. Heis
also Chairman of Cornerstane Property Assets Limited and Sunbird
Business Services Limited, and a Trustee of Team Rubicorn UK.

Patrick André Chief Executive
Appeinted: 1 September 2077

Career experience: Patrick was appeinted as a Diractor and Chief
Executive of the Company on 1 September 2017 having joined the
Group as President aof the Steel Flow Control business unitin February
2016, Patrick has had alang global career in the steelindustry and, priar
to joining the Group, served with Lhoist company, the world leader in
lime production, where he held the positions of Executive Vice President
Strategic Growth, CEQ Europe and CEC for Asia, CIS and Africa. Priar
tothis he warked ot ERAMET group, a global manufacturer of nickel
and special alloys, where he was CEQ of the Nickel division then CEQ
of the Manganese division Patrick showed significant drive and energy
in strengthening the Flow Contral business and he brings to the Board
this commitment, together with his industry experience, strategic vision,
constant customer focus and proven record of delivery that will enable
him ta lead the Group in the next stages of its development. Patrick isa
French citizen.

200
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Hock Goh Independent Non-executive Director
Appointed. 2 April 2015

Career experience: Hock was appointed as a Director of the Company
on 2 April 2015. Hock has more than 30 years' experience in the oil and
gasindustry, having spent 25 years with Schlumberger, the leading
global oiifield services provider. His roles included President of Network
and Infrostructure Soluticns in Lendon, President of Asia Pacific, and
Vice President and General Manager of China, From 2005 to 2012,
Hock was a Partrer of Baird Capital Partners Asia, the private equity
orm ofthe US investment bank Robert W Baird & Co. Basedin China,
he focused on the industrial, business services andhealthcare sectors.
Hock strengthens the Board through his extensive experience of the
global services industry and his understanding of Asian markets.

Hock is o Singoperean citizen.

Other appointments: Hock is Chairman of MEC Resources Lid
and Advent Energy Ltd, and is & Non-executive Director of AB SKF,
Santos Ltd, Marbour Eneray Litd and Stara Enso Oy,

Changesto the Board during the year

Jane Hinkley Independent Non-executive Director
Appointed: 3 December 2012

Career experience: Jane was appointed as a Director of the Company
on 3 December 2012 and as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
in June 2013. Jane spent alarge part of her executive career working af
Gotaas-Larsen Shipping Corporation, the liquefied natural gas shipping
speciolist which wos listed an both the London Stock Exchange and
NASDAQ. She served as Chief Financial Officer from 1988 10 1992,
and as Managing Director until 1997, In 1998, Jane waos appointed
Managing Director of Navion Shipping AS, a company majority owned
by Statoll, the Norwegian multinational eiland gos compeny, a position
she held until 2007. She previously was a Non-executive Director

of Revus Energy ASA, o Norwegian oil expleration and production
company. Jane s a Chartered Accountant and has sirong experience
gained in the shipping industry of working with highly internahional
teams. Janeis a British citizen.

Ctherappointments: laneis Chairman of Teekay GPLLC and a
Non-executive Director and Chairmaon of the Remuneration Committee
of Premier Oilplc.

As disclosed above, Holly Koeppel and Patrick André were appointed to the Baard an 3 April 2017 and 1 September 2017, respectively.

Frangois Wanecgretired fram the Board on 31 August 2017,
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Guy Young Chief Finoncial Officer
Appointed: 1 November 2015

Career experience: Guy was appeinted as o Director and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company on 1 November 2015. Prior tojcining
the Group, from January 2017 to October 2015, he served as Chief
Financial Officer of Tarmac and latterly Lafarge Tarmac, the British
bullding materials company. Guy held a number of senior financial

and business development positions at Anglo American ple from 1997
to 2010, including the pesition of CFO of Scaw Metals Group, the South
African steel products manufacturer. Guy is qualified with the South
African Institute of Chartered Accountants and brings to the Board o
wealth of financial and operational insight gained through his extensive
international experience in the mining and industrialsectors, Guy iso
British and Scuth Africon citizen.

Christer Gardell Non-executive Director
Appointed: 31 October 2012

Career experience: Christer was appointed as a Director of the
Company an 31 October 2012, having previously joined the board of
Cookson Group plein June 2012, Christer ce-founded Cevian Capitalin
2002, and serves as Managing Partner. Cevian Capital is a shareholder
of the Company and, at 28 February 2018, held 21.11% of Vesuvius’
issued ordinary share capital. From 199610 2007, Christer wasthe
Chief Executive Officer of AB Custos, the Swedish investment company.
Prior to jcining AB Custos he had been a partner of Nordic Capital and
McKinsey & Company. He served as a Non-executive Director of AB
Lindex until December 2007 and of Tieto Corperation until March 2012,
Christer brings a wealth of commercial acumen to the Board through his
extensive business management experience and the chility te focus and
drive change. Christer is a Swedish citizen,

Other appointments: Christer is Managing Partner of Cevian Capital,
and Vice Chairman of the global Finnish technology and services
company Metso Corporation,

200

000

Douglas Hurt Senior Independent Director
Appomnted: 2 April 2015

Career experience: Douglas was appointed as a Director of the
Company on 2 April 2015, and as Senior Independent Director and
Chairman of the Audit Committee at the close of the 2015 Annucl
General Meeting. Douglas has significant financial experience,
having served as Finance Director of IMI ple, the global engineering
group, from 2006 10 2015, Prior to this, he held a number of senior
finonce and general management positions ot GlaxeSmithKline ple,
which he joined in 1983, previously having warked ot Price Waterhouse.
His career hasincluded several years working in the US and significant
experience in European busiresses as Chief Financial Officer and as
Operational Managing Director. Dauglas s a Chartered Accountant
and a highly knowledgeable corperate and operational finance
professional bringing significant US and European experience cs

well as general management and financial leadership experience.
Douglas is a British citizen.

Other appointments: Douglas is Senior Independent Director and
Chairman of the Audit Committee of Tate & Lyle ple, Serior Independent
Director and Charrman of the Audit Committee of Countryside Properties
PLC, and a Non-executive Diractor of the British Standards Institution.

Holly Koeppel Independent Non-executive Director
Appointed: 3 April 2017

Career experience: Holly was appointed as a Director of the Company
an 3 April 2017 Holiy has more than 35 years' global industry and
financial experience, having spent the early part of her career at
Columbia Gas Distribution Company and Consolidated Natural Gas
Corporation in a variety of management roles which included four years
based in Australio. She joined the American Electric Power Company,
Inc.in 2000 and in 2006 was cppointed Chief Financial Officer. In 2010,
Holly joined Citi Infrastructure Investors as Co-Head, o $3.4bn fund

set up to capilalise on the growing need for infrastructure around the
world. In 2015, the fund was renamed Gatewoy and tronsiticned to
Corsair Infrastructure Management, LP (CIM), part of Corsair Capital,
Holly retired as Head of CIM in January 2017 and continued as a
Senior Advisor and a Non-executive Directar an CIM's four partfolio
companies until June 2017, From 2012 to 2015, Holly was a Director of
Integrys Energy Group, Inc., and a Director of Reynolds American Inc.
from 200810 2017 Holly brings extensive globalindustry, financial and
management experience 1o the Board. Holly is an American citizen.

Otherappointments: Holly currently serves as a Non-executive Director
of The AES Carperation and British American Tobaceop |,
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1 Henry Knowles General Counsel

Group
. & Company Secretary
Exec UflVe AppoimedySepTember 2013

4years with Group

Com m Iffee Based in London, UK andis o British citizen

Glenn Cowie President, Foundry
Appeinted November 2014

36 yearswith Group

Based in Cleveland, US and isa South
African and British citizen

~

3 Tanmay Ganguly President,
Advanced Refractories

Appainted November 2074

10 years with Group

Based in Barlborough, UK andis an
Indian citizen

4 Guy Young Chief Financial Gfficer
Appointed November 2015
2 years with Group
Basedin London, UK and is o South African
and British citizen

w

Roel van der Sluis President, Flow Control
Appointed October 2017

27 years with Group

Based in Ghlin, Belgiumendisa

Duteh citizen



&

-

w

Patrick Bikard President, Operations

Appaointed February 2014

9 years with Group

Bosedin Ghlin, Belgivmandisa
French citizen

Alexander Laugier-Werth President,
Digital Services

Appointed July 2076

G years with Group

Based in Ghlin, Belgivm and is a French
and US citizen

Alan Charnock Vice President and Chief
Technology Officer

Appointed April 2015

33 years with Group

Based in Ghlin, Belgium and is a British citizen

9 Patrick André Chief Executive

Appointed Septernber 2077
2 years with Group
Based in London, UK and is a French citizen

10 Ryan van der Aa Chief Human
Resources Officer
Appointed May 2013
18 years with Group
Based in London, UK andis a Dutch citizen

The date oppeinted is the date the
individual wos oppointed to their
currentrole
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Our Principles

Working together as a community with
shared values makes Vesuvius stronger.

Vesuvius is a geographically and

. : CQur Values
culturally diverse group, employing
more than 11,000 pecple in 37 countries. Creativity Integrity
This geographical diversity places us Our commitment fotechnology and qualityisthe  Aithe heart of our promise lies the trustworthiness
close to our customers across the globe, basis for oyrcompentive advantage. Creativiry of all Vesuvius employees intheir acts and words.
but alse highlights the importance of allows us to developinnovative products and Integrity, honesty and transparency are essentiat
) o ghhg ) P sclutions and the continuous improvements inallour exchanges.
maintaining and applying strong and that generate value through perfermance
consistent ethicol values in our worldwide enhancement. Employees are actively Embracing Diversity

encouragedtobe innovative and to register their

ideas inour newly developed ldeation database. Vesuviuz s aglobal company builrupon

@ frue respect for local custorms and experience.
Wea recognise and embrace the potentialthat

approach to business. Cur employees'
engagement with our values and culture

'S\”_TOI fo our success ?ﬁdThE sustainable Cooperation cormes from the coexistence of so many different
delivery of the Group's strategy. Encouraging internal and external cooperation cultures and of diversity in its broadest sense.
enables us to create unique solutions with cur
. partners. Through cooperation, each Vesuvius Excellence
Vesuvius' Values employea s committed tothe success of their ) . .
community of colleagues and customers and This new VOLU?' mTroduc@d in 2017, represents
The behaviours we chcmpion inour that of the wider Group. our aimto deliver optimised performance toour
employees are represemed by the six customers and stakeholders, eliminating waste
. . . s and striving for continuous improvement.
Vesuvius Values, They are an expression Reliability Excellerice s our attitude as we engage with our
of the common culture of the Group, Our solutionsinvolve usincritical aspects of colleagues, ourcustomers and cur communities.
G . t + | our customers’ manufacturing processes.
premofing ourimage 1o e>_< er.’no Qur commitment to deliver consistent products
stakeholders, and underpinning the and services gives them the level of confidenca
cesg
commercial promise we provide fo our they require.

custorners. The Values are displayed in
all cur facilities and in Vesuvius offices

> Vesuvius’ Framework for Business Integrity
af customer sites.

Vesuvius has established o framework for explaining and delivering the culture

During 2017, we continued 1o engage and principles we consider to be fundamental o our sustained success:

our employees on the importance of the

Vesuvius Vialues through the addition of a 1 5 3. 4 5.
new value of ‘Excellence’. Our approach
to our customers and business operations Conduct Procedures ond Evaluation
has always been to strive for Excellence,
and the addition of this sixth Value
reinforces our objective to integrate
confinuous improvement inte cur
business approach.

Vesuvius Values ) Code of Policies and Training Monitoring

Qur Values are celebrated annually
through the Group's Living the Values
Awards [LTVAY. In 2017, we came
tagether to celebrate the outstanding
individual confributions to the
implementation of Vesuvius' Values
by 74 ermployees from 11 countries
who were nominated by their peers.

© See more about the Living the Values
Awardsin our People and Community
sectionon pb7-73



Evaristo Beltran Saenz
Process Engineer, Slide Gate, Monterrey @

Code of Conduct principles

Health, safety and the environment

Trading, customers, products
and services

Anti-bribery and corruption

Employees and human rights

Disclosure and investors

Government, society and local
communities

Conflicts of interest

Competitors

The Code of Conduct is available in
29 languages at www.vesuvius.com

Code of Conduct

Our Code of Conduct sets out the
standards of conduct expected, without
exception, of everyone who works

for Vesuvius in any of its worldwide
operations. The Code emphasises our
commitment to ethics and complicnce
with the law, and covers every aspect

of our approach to business, from the
way that we engage with customers,
employees, the markets, and each of
our other stokehclders, to the safety

of cur employees and workplaces.
Everyone within Vesuvius is individually
accountable for upholding its
requirements. We recognise that lasting
business success is measured not onlyin
ourfinancial performance, but inthe
way in which we deal with our customers,
business associates, employees, investors
and local communities. The Code of
Conduct s published in our 29 major
functional languages.

Policies and Procedures

We continue to enhance the policies that
underpin the principles set outinthe Code
of Conduct. These assist employeesto
comply with our ethical standards and the
legal requirements of the jurisdictionsin
which we conduct our business. They also
give practical guidance on how this can be
achieved. Amongst these policies are:
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Speak Up

The foundation of our compliance
programme is the ability 1o speak up
without fear of retaliation, either to
Vesuvius management or independent
ofthem. Athird party-operated
confidenticl Employee Concern Helpline
{Speak Up)is available for employees
wishing 1o raise concerns anonymously
orinsituations where they feel unable

to report internally. Thisindependent
helpline provides the ability to make
reports online through a web portal, by
phone or by voicemail. Ensuring globaol
accessibility, employees can now speak
with operatorsin any of our 29 functional
languages. Noindividualis ever
penclised or disadvantaged for reporting
alegitimate concernin good faith.

Ajjigisucdsay ing I

Reports received via Speak Up are
managed by the General Counse,
assisted by senior managers fromthe
Legal Department and HR. All reports
are investigated following a protocol for
review, action, closure and feedback
For complexissues, formal investigation
plans are drawn up, and support from
external experts is engaged where
necessary. Feedback isrecognised as
animportant element of the Speak Up
process and we gim to provide an update
on all reports within 28 days of receipt.
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Our Principles continued

Anti-Bribery and Corruptionand

Working With Third Parties

Vesuvius engageas with various third-
party representatives and intermediaries
which can present an increased anfi-
bribery and corruption risk. Our
procedure onworking with third parties
clearly cutlines our zero-tolerance
approach to bribery and provides
practical guidance for cur employeesin
identifying concerns and how to report
them. Vesuvius engages with third-party
sales agents, many of whom operate

in countries where we do nothave a
physical presence. Cur employees’
interaction with sales agentsis supported
by an ongoing training programme for
those who have specific responsibility

for these relationships.

Data Protection

Our data protection policy requires a
uniform approach in the handling of
personal data to manage the privacy
obligations of the Group. Everyone has
rights in respect of how their personal
datais handled. Our policy recognises
that the lawful and correct treatment of
personal datais vital to our continued
successin anincreasingly regulated
globat marketplace. Duringthe course of
our activities we may collect, store and
process personal data about our staff,
customers, suppliers and other third
parties. We are committed to freating
this data in an appropriate manner.

HumanRights

The Group human rights policy reflects
the principles contained within the
United Nations Universal Declaration
of Human Rights, the International
Labeur Crganisation’s Fundamental
Conventions on Labour Standards and
the United Nations Global Compact.
The policy appliesto all Group
employees. it sets out the principles for
our actions and behaviour in conducting
our business and provides guidance

to those working for us on how we
approach human rights issues. The
Group commits not to discriminate in
any of our employment practices and
tc offer equal opportunities to all.

The Group respects the principles of
freedom of association and the effective
recognition of the right to collective
bargaining and opposes the use of,
and will not use, forced, compulsory

or childlabour. These principles have
been integrated into the work of cur
procurement teams as we assess our
suppliers and their business practices.

Training

During the year we continued to operate
our troining programme on the principles
confained in the Vesuvius Code of
Conduct and associcted anti-bribery,
corruption and cther compliance policies
and procedures. Training gives our
employees a clearer understanding of
the scope of risks that exist as we conduct
our business, and gives context o how
the Group expects each one of us to
respond to those risks. in 2077, our
training processes have developed
toinclude anintegrated learning
management system which allows us

to deliver Vesuvius-specific e-learning
modules to employees ontopics
relevant to their role through an

online interactive platform.

Training provided during 2017 included:

= E-learning modules for modern
slavery, data protection and trode
sanctions

> Webex andvideo conference
workshops on data protection

> Face-to-face training by the Legal
and Compliance team to staff at
several sites covering anti-bribery
and corruption, gifts, hospitality and
entertainment and trade sanctions

Cur e-learning platform supplements
the face-to-face training provided to
employees by the Legal and Compliance
team, enabling us to reach more
employees, more quickly and inamore
targeted way. In 2018, we will continue

to develop our training processes and
modules available in the e-learning
platform to help our staff understand the
Vesuvius policies and procedures relating
to our Code of Conduct and regulatery
compliance requirements.

Monitoring and Evaluation

Alongside our training programme, we
assist employees with the implementation
and interpretation of the Group's policies,
and their application through ¢ process
of monitoring and evaluation. Part of this
process involves performing ongoing and
targeted due diligence to understand

the background to policy design and
application. This forms part of cur
compliance framework to ensure that our
ethical and fegal approach remains fit for
purpose and is understood throughout
the business.



Operations meating Skawing, Poland

Speak Up

The Group continues to monitor the
volume, geographic distribution and
range of reports made to its Speak Up
facility to ascertain not only whether
there are significant regional compliance
concerns, butalso whether there are
countries where access 1o this facility

is less well understood or publicised.

The Audit Committee continues to
monitor and oversee the Group's
procedures for reporting allegations of
improper behaviour, and throughout
2017 the Audit Committee received
updates onthevolume of reports
received from the confidential Speak

Up Helpline, key themes emerging from
these reports and the results of any
investigotions undertaken. in 2017,

we received 76 reports through the
Speak Up facility, a number af which
related to the same set of facts. Each one
of these was investigated. A substantial
majority of reports received in 2017 were
human resource issues which indicated
no compliance concerns, nor serious
breaches of the Code of Conduct. In
relation to the repetitive reports, even
though these did not identify compliance
concerns, steps were faken to ensure
that changes were implemented locally,
including in certain cases entity-wide
rmanagerment fraining, recommunication
of policies and reinforcement of our
business culture, supported by senior
management oversight. Of the small
number of reports received thar
contained allegations in breach of

our Code of Conduct, thorough
investigations were performed and,
where acppropriate, disciplinary action
taken, including one termination.

Prevention of Slavery and Human
Trofficking

During 2017 we published our second
transparency statement outlining the
Group's approach to the prevention of
slavery and hurman trafficking in our
business and supply chain. You can

find a copy of our latest statement on
our home page of www.vesuvius.com.
Since the publication of our first
statement we have conducted a
Group-wide risk assessment as well as
developing ourinternal policies and
enhancing our supplier assessment
programme. To ensure effective
communication of our Human Rights
Policy we have provided fraining to our
key purchasing staff and introduced an
online e-learning module to upgrade the
fraining givento all supplier-facing staff,
which provides key guidance on the red
flags associated with modern slavery to
assist them inidentifying these during
supplier visits and accreditation.

Working with Third Parties

During 2017 the Group continued the
review of our third-party representatives
and intermediaries. Thisincluded
detailed review of our due diligence
activities for active sales agents across
the Group. This process covers
reputation, public information searches,
regulatory searches and ultimate
beneficial ownership, and has been
applied to each one of our active sales
agents. The review of our due diligence
processes will continue to be extended
on arisk-based approach during 2018
and beyond.

Data Protection

In 2017, we spent considerable time
reviewing our opproach to data
protection, in anticipation of the
implementation of the EU General
Data Protection Regulationin May.
We formally identified a Data
Protection Officer (DPQOYin July 2017
whose role includes setting Group policy,
implementing procedures, monitoring
compliance with data protection
provisions and championing Vesuvius’
approachto the protection of personal
data. Our review involved Group-wide
due diligence to clorify the dara we
confrol and process, the methods by
which we dothis, the security of the
systemns that hold cur data and the
assignment of responsibilities for
responding to this.

The DPO is also responsible for raising
awareness of data protection issues
across the Group and fraining staff
who undertake reles thatinvolve the
processing of data.

Other Due Diligence

The Group continues to undertoke
focused, country- and function-specific
risk assessments, reviewing financial
records andthe quality ofimplementation
of our policies and procedures, often
engaging the assistance of external
advisers. The outputs of these
assessments are used fo identify activities
that require further improvement, ensure
that our Group policies and procedures
for the management of anti-bribery and
corruption risk continue to be appropriate
for the business, and ensure that within
our business thereis the necessary
awareness and understanding to be

able to monage risks appropriately.
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Health and Safety

Vesuvius remains fundamentally committed to
protecting the health and safety of employees,
contractors, visitors, customers and any other

persons affected by our activities.

Our approach to health and safety is based on the following beliefs

Good health and safety
is good business

Health and safety is one of Vesuvius' core
principles, and our commitment to health
and safety is embedded throughout the
organisation. The Vesuviusethosisto
identify, eliminate, reduce or controlall
workplace risks and an ongoing system
of training, assessment and improvement
is in place to focus an achieving this.

Safety Leadership

Sofety performonce remains the first
itern on the agenda atall our Group
Executive Committee and management
meetings, and safety performance s
reportedto the Board by the Chief
Exacutive as a matter of priority af each
Board meeting. Any site experiencing
aserious dangerous occurrence or
medicatly treated injury is required to
carry out a full 8D investigation and
incorporate the findings into their site
improvement plan. The Group Executive
Committee reviews the more serious
incidents and the responses from the
sites. The Group remains fully committed
to continuing safety improvernent with a
Group health and safety policy stating
aclear goal of:

Nolost time injuries
Norepeat injuries

No harmto our people or contractors

Safetyiseverybody's
responsibility

employment

This goalis pursued through arange of
policies, standards and procedures,
which are reviewed and updated on on
ongoing basis. In 2017, the accident and
incident reporting, personal protective
equipment, road vehicle and machine
safety standards were all reviewed and
updated to maintain their relevance to
the current Vesuvius risk profile.

Health and Safety

Health and safety is regarded as a core
management responsibility, with
executives and line managers directly
responsible for health and safety matters
inthe operations under their control.
Thistone from the top is demeonstrated
by the requirement for ali senior
managersto perform executive safety
taurs, report an their findings to local
operations management and follow

up cnimprovement requirements.
Management is accountable for health
and safety performance against
objectives and all employees understand
that they have a respensibility to take
care of themselves and others whilst at
work. We expect everyone to participate
positively in the task of preserving
workplace health and safety.

Working safely
is a condition of

All work-related
injuries and work-
related ill-health
are preventable

Every business facility has an appointed
health and safety manager, who works
with management and all employees
o review site health and safety, assess
training needs and develop and
implement site safety improvement
plans. These local health and safety
managers are assisted by a central
team of experts who not only identify
adverse trends and respond to them,
but also enable the sharing of best
practice across Vesuvius.

In 2017, a thorough review was
undertaken of the operation of the health
and safety function in Vesuvius. Following
this review, the function was restructured
with the creation of @ new position of
Group Vice President Quality, Health and
Safety and the restructuring of central
functions. The Vice President QHSE will
be responsible for setting the Group's
palicies for quality and safety and
controlling their application, with the
business units taking full responsibility for
their implementation and accountability
for performance againstthern. A new
safety auditing feam will be established,
to develop and maintain policies and
standards, improving them in the light

of external and internal changes on o



cansistent Group-wide basis. In addition,
this team will systematically audit Group
locations worldwide, including customer
locations, against these policies and
standards, providing recommendations
onimprovements and assisting the
locations with their implementation.

Health and Safety Policy

All employees are expected to adhere
o the Group's heclth and safety policy.
A copy of the policy signed by all
members of the Group Executive
Committee is franslated into local
languages and displayed prominently
in all locations.

Safety Breakthrough

Safety Breakthrough is Vesuvius' global
initiative to reduce the number of
accidents, fires and lost time injuries, and
ta increase safety awareness through
greater employee engagement. Our aim
isto raise health and safety performance
ta best-in-cfass levels throughout the
Vesuvius business. Safety Breakthrough
sets a goal of attaining the lowest level

of accidents within our industry sector
with the ultimate goal of reaching zere
accidents throughout Vesuvius, as
identified in our safety goals. The specific
focus on employees bosed at customer
locations continues to yield results not
only for the safety of cur employees but
also our customers’ employees — helping
to supportthe strong relationships built
between customers and Vesuvius.

Turbo S

The current phase of the Safety Breakthrough
initiative ~ Turbo S - builds on the foundation of
Safety Breakthrough and meludes a strong
focus onthe standardisation of all our repetitive
activities. Turbo S alse integrates good
monagement practices inthe workplace, witha
strang emphasis on the need toimplementan
organisation which enables everybodytowork 1o
the same high standards in safety performance.
Aspartof the continuing Turbo S initiative:

> Seniorexecutivesregularly lead safety tours
atalllocatons

> Severe gecidents are formally reviewed by the
Group Executive Committes

Training Employees to Work Safely

Turbo S training pulls together all
Vesuviug' good safety management
practices that are aimed at enabling all
Vesuvius employees to work in o safe
environment. Using a train-the-trainer
approach, Turbo S training sessions are
tailored to the audience and their activities.
For example, there is a special training
course developed for customer locations
that focuses specifically on the risks faced
by curemployees at our customers’
premises and how best to manage therm.
Vesuvius conducts Permittc Work
training in all Group facilities, including
customer locations and extends
recognised best practices throughout the
Group. This ensures that all non-standard
work conducted in our facilities, whather
by Vesuvius employees or contractors,

is the subject of a pre-commencement
risk assessment and a formal permission
to commence activity, sefting out the
safety requirements.

Aaron Gonzalee,
Quelity Engineer,
Flow Control,
Monterrey, Mexico

> Employees are routinely engaged in safery
audits

> We invest significantly in sofety trainingfor
all employees, irrespactive of their roles and
functions within our business

> Allemployees are expecred ta rouninely
raise and implement safety improvement
opportunines; we focus on the number of
implemented ideas

> Safety standards are continually updated,
translated and deployed throughout Vesuvius

> Allinjuries and dongerous occurrences are
analysed locally, with aformal presentation of
findings, root couses and imgravement actions
cascaded through managemeant.

Vesuvius has developed machinery
safety training with an outside industry
leader, Pilz GmbH & Co, a comparny
specialising in safe automation
technology. We are now extending
recognised best practices throughout
the Group through a series of machinery
assessments and training programmes.

Working Safely

The executive safety tours carried cut by
senior managers provide visible safety
teadership on the shop floor in Vesuviug'
sites and in customer locations. These,
along with our daily safety audits are

a pillar of our Sofety Breakthrough
initiative. In 2017, 111 Executive Safety
Tours, of which 12 were in customer
locations, were carried out by the
members of the Executive Committee
and their direct reports ceross all
territaries where Vesuvius operates.
Inour plants, more than 76% of our
working population performed routine
safety audits, generating an average
of nine improvement oppertunities per
person, resulting in animprovernent in
worker safety. The audit pregramme
involves employees at all levels—from
the Group Executive Committee and
safety specialists through to local site

management, employees and contractors,
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Health and Safety continued

Health and Safety highlights

Aspartofthe custamer's Steel Zone Safety
Month (December 2017} ot our JSW customer
locationin Indio, three of our employees received
awardsfrom the Customer:
> MrChandrakant for BesrEssay on Sreel

Plant Safety
> MrVenu Jayo Prakash for Best Drowing
competitionon Steel Plant Safety
Mr Srinath and Vishnu Arat for Hozard
Identification inthe working area

v

Vesuvius Chesterfield in the UK gained notional
recognition for its efforts to improve the working
envirenment by reducing the amount of arrborne
dust. The Pilot dust reduction and awareness
training course was awa rded a certificate

of ochievement by the Health and Safety
Executive-endorsed awarding body atthe
annual Ceramic Industry H&S Pledge Awards.
Furthermore, the training initiative has since
been developed into the Group Global Dust
and Vibration intiative whichwas deployed
throughout 2017

In ArcelorMittal Galat, Vesuvius took on

six fitters from therr previous company and
trained them in all Vesuvius policies witha 55
implemented workshop as part of the renewed
contract covering additional activities nthe
customer’s plant.

In 2017, Vesuviys Ibérica Refractarios was
owarded with an‘hanourable mention’in
the National and International Prevertion
Awards as arecoegnition of the work done in
the prevention of accidents.

Training activities undertakenin 2017 include:

In Polond o Road Safety Champion was
established and a Road Safety traning plan
developed. Inaddition, work was undertaken on
machinery safety. Four prasses were assessed by
Pilz. Theyidentified safety improvement actions
and a plonwas put in place to complete these,
One piece ofequipment which could not be made
compliant, a friction press, wos dismantled.

Inthe Netherlands, Turbo S training was
completed for 24 participants ond 10 employees
weretrained in machinery sofety by Pilz.

inGermany, dustcontrol, Turbo S, permit
1o work and 55 Lean training were allcompleted.

Inthe USA, 11 preductionemployees and
19 NAFTA HSE professionals were trained
onmachinery safety, by Pilz. In addimon a Read

Qur Take Z initiative ensures that
employees think again before
performing any unusucl or non-standard
activity. Simply stated, the employees
take 2 minutes to discuss the task, any
hazards and how to prevent accidents
before any work is started.

For new contractsin customer locations,
Vesuvius uses a formal risk assessment
which aims to identify significant risks

to our employees and contractors.

This enables appropriate control
measures to be agreed and implemented
withthe support of our customersin
advance of work commencing.

Safety Champion and o Road Safety Committee
were appointed. Theteam developeda

road safety action plan, safe driving policy,
training for specific cotegories of drivers and
updated car pool process, These progrommes/
policies were shared and adepted by Canada
and Mexico.

The safe driving policy was sent to all drivers, whe
signed and returned it to their manager. Monthly
general awareness topics were created and sent
out, and the basic level of training was completed
for all categaries of drivers. Skid contrel training
was completed for high-risk drivers in Canada
and Mexice. Inaddition, Turbo S, permit to work,
dusrand vibration and furfural framning were
undertoken.

Safety Performance in 2017

We continue to work hard to reduce
incident severity and develop robust
policies, standards and practices aimed
at improving the sofety and health of
our peoplein allthat they do andto
develop actionable insight from the
performance indicators. The lost time
injuries fregquency chart shows how
injuries have been reduced and how
that reduction has been maintained
through a combination of a behaviour-
based approach to scfety and the
implementation of physical safeguards.



In 2018, the business units will continue
10 build onthe embedded behaviour-
based safety approach taken to date
to drive continual improverment in
safety performance.

Workingin Tidy Plants

The continuing use of 55, the workplace
organisation method, throughout

the Group has driven significant
improvements in aur workplace
environment. Employees are encouraged
to develop ownership of their working
arecs, and take pride in their cleanliness
and organisaticn, The added support of
Vesuvius Lean specialists has been key
toimproving plant safety by removing
hazards for employees and offering

o clear, bright and safe working
environment. Daily 55 qudits led by tecm
leaders ensure cantinuous improvement
of warking conditions and promote a
safer workplace.

Accident and Incidernt Reporting
and Analysis

Asignificant investment in time and
resources has been made over recent
vearsto develop robust, comprehensive
andtimely reporting of incidents
(including all fires, explosions and any
major spill or other chemical releases).
Inits internal standards, Vesuvius
confinues to use more stringent
definitions for lost time injuries (LTIs)

and 'severe accidents’ than the definitions
used by local regulatory bodies.

This extends investigation to all medically
treated injuries ond serious dangerous
occurrences. Vesuvius has implemented
afull investigation based onthe 8D
Practical Problem Solving (8D) toolto
identify the true root causes fo prevent
repect incidents with a formal
presentation of findings, 8D-based

root causes and improvement actions

cascaded through management. As part
of management reporting, the Board
receives a monthly update on all lost
time injuries.

Involving Accountable Management for
Safety Performance

Site safety improvement plans are now
in placea for all production sites with
deployment being the direct responsibility
of local managers. Any site experiencing
adangerous accurrence or severe injury
is required fo investigate using 8D and 1o
share their incident investigation and
action plans across the Group. In 2017,
there were no severe injuries, but 407
dangerous occurrences. Vesuvius
encourages the reporting of all
dangerous occurrences and injuries

as only through a sound root couse
onalysis and preventative action plan
melemenmﬂon can future occurrences
be prevented.
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Sustainability

Our solutions improve the quality
of our customers’ products

and reduce the environmental
footprint of their processes.

Sustainability Highlights

Vesuvius France installed a water network
separationand rain water collection systemn
linked o anon-site firefighting water lagoon.

In Korea, 4,891 square metres of asbestos
containing roafing wos safely repluced with
steel cladding toimprove the health, sofety
and envirenmentcl risk profile of the site.

Process Metrix shipped ¢ record number
of laser systemsin 2017 with the new
Hyperion™ software.

Process Metrix alse released their pew
Two-Color Pyrometer for surface temperature
measurernent in conjunchion with lining thickness
measurernent. The systerns typically increase
lodie refractory lifetime by 10-30% with a
concomitant reduction in waste with less brick
consumed over the [ifetirmea of the lgdle.

Vesuvius and its Processes

The Board recognises that good
environmental managementis aligned
with our focus on cost optimisation and
operational excellence. Whilst Vesuvius’
products do vary significantly in the
energy intensity of their manufacture, the
maijority of our manufacturing processes
are not energy intensive, nor do they
produce large quantities of waste and
emissions. Vesuvius'total energy costs
are less than 3% of revenue, with only
1.8% of the total energy requirements
across the Group consumed inthe UK.

Total Energy Consumption

Overall gas use increased by 6.4%

in 2017 and electricity use by 11.9%,
primarily as a result of the increased
production of energy-intensive bricks
and of our South African production of
Slagdol, an energy-infensive product
used in converters. In this way, changes
in product mix can have a positive

or negative effect on our enargy
performance, such that they can
outweigh any underlying changes.

The underlying data for 2017 does
indicate improvements in energy
consumption in some areas. This detailed
analysis of normalised data is used by

Vesuvius' senior engineers ta drive
improverneants across the business.

Environmental Monitoring

All our factory emissions are proactively
managed in cccordance with local
regulations. Regular analysis enables us
to take acticn to reduce our emissions
where possible and to operate more
efficiently. The Group monitors its energy
consumption, worldwide CO,e emissions
and usage of water. Vesuvius proactively
seeks to reduce wastein production
andto reuse and to recycle materials
where practical.

In 2017, Vesuvius recorded nine minor
environmental incidents. These included
items such as encroachment of waste
water from a neighbouring property,
complaints about a factery odour and
contained spillages. All of the incidents
were contained via Vesuvius' site
environmental response plans and
reported through the Vesuviusincident
reporting system. Two of these incidents
in China were reported to the local
environmental regulatars. No action
was faken by the authorities after
Vesuvius made process changes.

In all cases we complied with our

local reporting requirements.



Greenhouse Gas Reporting

In line with our total energy consumprion,
both totalemissions and nermalised
emissionsincreasedin 2017, driven
predominantly by the issue mentioned
above —theincreased production of
Slagde! which generated high process
CO, emissions, and increasein
production of aur brick plants, although
we also undertook a switch from coal o
acleaner gas fuel during the year in our
Chinese brick plant. In 2017, Vesuvius also
included the emission from cur newly
acquired flux plant in Brazil. If these
products are excluded, then thereis an
underlying downward year-on-year
frend in nermalised emissions of CO,e

of 7.7% cnd of normalised energy
consumption of 7.3%.

Inreporfing greenhouse gas (GHG')
emissions, we have used the GHG
Protocol Corparate Accounting and
Reporting Standard (revised edition)
methadeclogy toidentify our GHG
inventory of Scope 1 (direct) end Scope 2
(indirect) CO,e. We reportinkg of CO,
equivalent (CO,e").

The Group also meets oll of its obligations
in relation fo the Carbon Reduction
Comrmitment ({CRC") Energy Efficiency
Scheme, the Producer Respansibility
Packaging Waste regulations and the
Energy Saving Opportunity Scheme

by which the UK hasimplemented the
EU Energy Efficiency Directive.

Energy Conservation Plan

The Vesuvius Energy Conservation Plan
was launched in 2017 with the objective
of reducing aur normalised energy
consumption by 10% over the following
three years. In June 2015, we reset our
focus and set the objective of ¢ 10%
improvement (using 20714 as our base
vear} by 2078, Against that 2014 base,
a4.2% improvement has been realised
towards this target (maoking a 7.1%
improvement since 2070). Managing
ourenergy intensity not only hasan
environmentgl benefitbutis alse part
of our long-term strategy to enhance
our cost competitiveness.

Global GHG emissions (kg of CO,e)

2017 2016

Emissions source
Combustion of fuel and operation of facilities 396m 340m
Flectricity, heat, steam and cooling purchased for own use 120m 98m
Total GHG emissions 516m 438m

+17.9%
Vesuvius' chosenintensity measurement
Emissions reported abave, normalised to per tonne 526.4 511.0
of product cutput +3.0%

Methodology We have reported 1o the extent reasonably practicable on oll the emission sources reguired
under Part 7 of the Accounting Regulations which foll within our consolidated finoncial stomerments,

Scope T covers ernissions from fuels used im our facteries e nd offices.

Scope 2 relates to the indirect emissions resulting from the generation of electacity, heat, steam and
hot water we purchase to supply our offices and foctories. We hove used data gathered to fulfil gur

requirernents under the CRC Energy Efficiency scheme and emissian factors from UK Government's
and the IEA GHG Conversion Factors for Company Reporting 2016 inthe calculation of our GHG

New Insural®furnace lining
system increases productivity
and casting quality

TheChallenge

The need toimprove productivity,
commerciol competitiveness and
environmental impact isincreasingly
drivingthe adoption of energy efficient
furnaces in aluminium foundries.
However, the efficiency of these furnaces
is often underrmined by the choice of the
refractory lining.

Our Solution

Foseco has developed anew, multi-part
and highly insulating lining made of Insural
material. The lining 1s delvered ready to
install, and combines energy saving
potentiat with long service life and
resistance 1o oxide buld-up.

The Benefits

Asrmost of the lining system is made of
pre-cast Insural shapes, the installation
con be completed in under three days
unlike traditional linings which require
several weeks to fully siabilise. In addition,
no sintering is necessary. The furnace just
needs to be pre-heated and maintained at
working temperature for 48 hours and is
then ready for service,

The Insural furnace lining system is
completely water free. Consequently,
hydrogen pick-up from the new lining
system is negligible and the aluminium
melt density index specification can

be achieved immediately following
installation. Furnoce downtime js
dramatically reduced and the risk of
increased rejects associated with re-fining
waork is ovoided.

With conventional linings, the external
furnace bady temperature often runs in
excess of 100° C, while with Insural
furnace lining systems installed an
external furnace body temperature of only
64°C can be achieved. This significantly
improves the foundry working
environment and reduces energy loss.

Qur tests show that Insurailining runs on
33%less energy thonatradicnal lining.

The Insural furnace lining system offers
the foundry a reductionin cost, increased
productivity and secunityincosting quality.
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Water Conservation

Whilst warter is not ascarce resourcein
the places where Vesuvius operates,
Vesuvius worksto reduce the consumption
of water inirs manufacturing processes
by recycling and improving processes

o reduce consumption. Normalised
consumption of water does vary with
product mix; however, there is an overall
dowrnwardtrend for both absolute water
consumption, and normalised water
consumption —that is water use per tonne
of product manufactured.

Our Customers and Their
Processes

Under the Vesuvius and Foseco brands,
we deliver o wide range of solutions
that help our customers improve the
productivity of their operations.

These solutions also improve the
quality of our customers’ products

and reduce the environmental footprint
of their processes.

Thermal optimisation and reject
reduction are key factorsin the processes
for which we supply solutions. We
confribute to the reduction of our
customers’ energy usage and subsequent
CO, emissions through insulating
matericals, metal flow management,
facilitating extended manufacturing
sequences (meaning less reheating)

and reduced downtime.

Theiron and steel industry accounts for
approximately 6.7% of total world CO,
emissions and 18% of industrial CO,
emissions, with, on average, 1.8 tonnes
of CO, being emitted for every tonne of
steel produced. With around 10 kg of
refractory material required per tonne
of steel produced, careful selection

of energy-saving refracfories can
beneficiallyimpact on the net emission

of CO,.

Inthe foundry process, the amouni of
metal melted versus the amount sold

is criticalto a foundry's profitability.
Foseco continuously works with its
custormers to increase the ratio of metal
sold to metal melted. Sometimes thisis
aslow as 40% and we work with them
toincreaseitto 70%.

How Does Vesuvius Contribute?

Since 2011 we have used a CO, impact
stamp to highlight the most energy-
efficient salutions in our portfolic of
products and services and to support
the deployment of energy-efficient and
sustainable solutions engineered by
our technology departments.

Vesuvius products and services facilitate
environmental benefits by:

> Enabling lighter, thinner and stronger
componenis, leading to lighter vehicles
and less energy consumption

v

Improving customer processes through
the supply of innovative consumables
to reduce energy infensity and the
CO,eintensity ratio

s

Reducing customers'refractory
usage per fonne of steel produced
through higher-guality, longer
service-life products

'

Increasing the level of sound castings
produced per tonne of metal melted
through improved mould design and
the application of molten metal
filtration and feeding systems



People and Community

Our people are unique and important to us.
We are unequivocally committed to helping
them to be the best they can at what they do.

Qur aim at Vesuvius is to foster a working
envircnment thatisinclusive and diverse,
where pecple can be themselves
without fear of harassment, bullying or
discrimination. We recognise that the
dedication and professionalism of our
people, their capacity for owning their
roles and their drive for results, arethe
most significant contributors o Vesuvius'
success. In order t get the best from

our people, we emphasise that one of
the most important tasks of being a
manager in Vesuwius is the development
of their direct reports. We recognise that
we attain cur goals through our people.

Line and functional managers are guided
in managing and developing their people
by a central HR function, head-quartered
in London delivering support threugh

its expertise in Reward, Talent
Management, and Global Mobility, and
backed up by modern HR infermation
systems. Management in the business
units and regional and local HR staff
draw upon this expertise and cascade

it 1o their respective business units and
local organisations. Much care istaken

to ensure that Corporate HR initiatives
are properly communicated and
implermmented at local level, with the
coaperation of identified employee
representatives.

The main area of attention for the central
HR functionisidentifying and fostering
talent across the organisation and
making sure that those indwiduals
identified as having high potential are
seen s A company-wide resource, with
oppropriate development plans putin
place. In recruiting talent, whether it

be recent graduates or seasoned
professionals, we are looking for
individuals who embedy anentrepreneurial
mindset and an international outlook.
Special attention is paid in addressing
matterssuch as gender balance and the
employment of a diverse workforce.

For 2018, a strengthening of both the
Talent Management and Reward
functions is planned, to equip them better
for the ever-increasing battle for talentin
the marketplace.

Talent Management

Strengthening the leadership pipeline
and focilitating people development
throughout the organisation remain

key areas of focus for Vesuvius. We work
hard 1o ensure thar across all operational
and functicnal areas of the business, ata

Qur Training Programmes
ADVANCE

Thisis a first generation monagement
development programme aimed at developing
individua! contributers wha are likely to occupy o
line managament role inthe shartto medivm term
and managers who hove no direct reports but
need to be familiar with o broad range of people
manogement skills ta use in one-of f projects,

Inits first year, the programme s designed to

take place over 12 months, and includes a blended
learning approach of anline learning, foce-to-face
workshops and individual projects. Participants
are supported by line management and

HR business partners throughout the duration of
the programme and thereafter where additional
support 1s needed. The programme includes a
360° assessment of each participant to enable
them to compile a personal development plan

for the next stage of their career.

WINGS

Thisis the Vesuvius middle monagement
development programme aimed at those

who monoge other managers. Wings, now
inits eighth year, isheldin Spring eachyear
atVierick University in Belgium. In 2017,

26 employees successfully completed the course.
The pregramme entails anintroductionto
general management theory and practicea nd,
like the ADVANCE pragramme, includes a 360°
assessment of eschparticipant.

ASCENT

Thisis the Vesuvius high potential and senior
leadership development programme, which
Vesuvius offersin partnership with Insead Itis
amed ataccelerating the development of top
talent withinthe organisation. The programme

senior manageriatlevel, there is the
appropriate level of clignmentin
strategic outlook and performance
goals. This increases accountability and
drives results. We encourage and reward
high performance, foster talent and aim
to create an environment where all can
realise their individual potential. To meet
the demands of the business and add
rigour to our employee value proposition,
we have launched a number of
programmes to assist our employeesin
growing their careers through utilising
world-class learning opportunities.

is highly structured ond takes place over o
nine-manth period, involving initial online
modules, face-to-face workshops and individual
and group projects, inwhich participants are
assessed individually and alse against each other.
Participants are supported by senior executives
and senior HR management far the duration of
the programme and thereafter. Participants on
this programme are those identified as beng
patentiol future sermor management of the Graup.

HeaTt

These courses form part of the Vesuvius Technical
University aimed at the continuous fechnical
development of Vesuvius personnel. Courses
range from entry to expert levels, and are
continuously updated to keep pace with
developing technolagy, thereby guaranteeing
that Vesuvius staff are at the forefront of
technical innovation.

HR4HR

During 2016/17, under the Vesuvius HR4HR
project, 30 HR professionals underwent
accredited professional traning in psychometric
ossessment and evaluation, and simulation of key
talent mancgement processes, each achieving
'Expert status. These HR4HR graduateswill act
now as catalysts for implementinginnovative
recruitment ond talent identfication tachniques
across the business. The project will be progressed
in2078.
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SuccessFactors

Vesuvius has invested heavily in a new
people platform and key digital
products. The SuccessFactors HRIS
project was launched globaliy in January
2077, It provides greater transparency
across the business, facilitating better
performance management and focused
talentidentification ond development,
and has been implemented across all our
businesses and geographies.

Reward

Vesuvius' reward systems are designed
to create a market competitive and fair
pay environment for all of our employees

andto reinforce the vision, strategy and
expectations set by the Beard.

We have adapted the Willis Towers
Watsan job grading model, which
enables us to compare roles and deploy
o structured assessment methodology
across countries and specialisms fo
ensure that roles are rewarded

consistently throughout the organisation.

Employees canalso visualise their
potential career paths within Vesuvius on
the grade map. Vesuvius is committed

to creating reward systems which are
transparent and cbjective, where
employees receive equal pay for work

of equalvalue, regardless of their age,

race, disability, sexual orientation,
gender, marital, civil parrnership or
parental status, religion or beliefs.

The Corporate Annual Incentive Plan for
managers ensures that our people are
motivated to achieve their objectives,
with awards linked to business
performance. The Mid-Term Incentive
Plan for managers and senior managers
acts as aretention tool forkey talent,
reducing employee turnover and
diversifying our pay methods. The
Vesuvius Share Plan for Executive
Directors and Group Executive
Committee members encourages
decisions based on long-term goals
rather than short-term gains and works
to align the interests of participants

and shareholders.

"My tirstinternational posting
was to Suzhou, Chind”

Bill Cousineaw, Vice President Advanced Refractories, NAFTA

Following an early careerin
construction and refractory
manufacturing, ljoined Vesuvius
Canadaas o Sales Account
Manager in 2000. I was grodually
promotedtothe roles of District
Managar and Steel Sales
Manager, before becoming
General Manager of the Canadian
business in 2005. My first
international posting was to
Suzhou, Ching where | became
Vice President Advanced
Refractories, Asia Pacific. There
loversow all of our Advanced
Refractories operations for the
Agia Pacific region, covering
Korea, Japan, Taiwan and Ching,
including our Chinese joint venture
with Angang Steel. My next mave
was te Australia, where | became
the Generat Manager, overseeing
the opening of the new Port
Kembla manutacturing site and
the sale of some of cur non-care
businesses.

In 2013, [moved back to

Canada o take over the General
Manager role once again and,

in November 2015, became the
Operations Director for Advanced
Refroctories NAFTA, responsible
for managing our production sites
inthe US, Canada and Mexico.
Finally, in May 2017, moved fo
Pittsburgh to take on the position
of Vice President of Advanced
Refractories NAFTA, leading the
business in this region. Vesuvius
has given me the chance towork
overseas gaining international and
intercultural experience encbling
me to fake on senicor management
roles around the world.



Global Mobility

Although Vesuvius is active worldwide,
we keep the number of infernationai
assignments as low as possible as we

Globol mobitity at Vesuvius

> Providing Vesuvius companieas with skilis that are
not locally availgble and that are required at
shart notice, This typically occursin coyntrias
where we are establishing a new presence.
The number of expatriates working on this basis
diminishes over time as the organisation
matures and we recruit and tram local talent
1o take over

Vesuvius expatriates do not come from
one or two countries alone, we have a
fruly infernational mix of nationalities in
our exparfriate population. individuals
move not only within a region, but

olso between regions, with existing
assignments including Malaysia to
Ching, China to Germany, Polond 1o the
USAand Brazil to China. Qur mokility

Employee Diversity

believe that local Vesuvius companies
should be managed and staffed by local
personnel. Infernaticnal assignments are

> Career development. We believe that
the personal development plan of any employee
being developed for asenior management, or
senior expert position should include a posting
outside their hame country. This encourages
them to develop the skills necessary to function
successfully in on international enviranment
These postings are taillored to the needs of the
arganisation and the needs of the individual

programme shows that our expatriate
populationis as diverse as our Group.

Vesuvius operates a number of
international assignment policies to
provide for the different circumstances
of these assignments —whether they

be short term, longer term, or require
extended commuting. These policies are
supplemented with clearly identified

therefore limited intime, usually to three
years. Currently 29 employees are on
long-term assignments.

> Enhancing diversity. Manogement teams
benefit from having a mix of gender and
cultures. In specific cases we use internatronal
assignments to ochieve this goal

benefits, delivering support appropriate
1o the nature of the assignment.

By accessing this broad range of policies,
we can manage our international
assignments with greater flexibility, thus
catering for changing expectations and
demands from employees, whilst at the
same time meeting the demands of

the business.

Vesuvius believes that the diversity of its employees is one of the core strengths of the Group. Having o balance of cultures,
ethnicities and genders helps fo promote theinnovation and creativity that is key to our success. We recognise that, in line with other
engineering companies of our size and nature, we have an unbalanced gender representation. We are seeking to address this as

part of our wider commitment to diversity.

Female Male Total Female Male
Group Executive Committee member 0 10 10 0% 100%
Senior management’ 9 94 103 9% 91%
Middle management 4 305 346 12% 88%
Directors of subsidiariesincluded in consolidation? 35 447 482 7% 93%
All other employees 1,368 9,183 10,551 13% B87%
Grandtotal 1,418 9,592 11,010 13% 87%

1. Of these 103 sen’or managers, 42 directly report to members of the Group Executive Committee, and of these, three are women,

2. 4B2 individuals ‘n the Group are Directors of Group subsidiories. Of these 7% are women. This disclosure is made to comply with reguiatory requirerrents.
Itincludes Directars of dormant compamies and these with multip'e directorships.
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Employee Consultation and
Industrial Relations

In most of the countries in which we
operate we discuss matters concerning
the Vesuvius business with local works
councils and trade unions. These
processes and procedures are regulated
by local law and we find that the
constructive dialogue that takes place
between employee representatives and
management provides benefitto our
husiness. In addition to local employee
representation we operate a European
Works Council {tEWC) that contains
representatives from each of the EU
countries where Vesuvius has employees.
European management and the EWC
meet formally once a year. At this
meeting management provides an
update on the performance of the
business, with a particular focus on
developments likely to impact European
employees. Additional ‘Special Event
Meetings are held when the Groupis
required to consult with the EWC cbout
particular matters, including proposed
restructurings in the European
crganisation, One such meeting was
heldin 2017. The EWC Select Committee
also meets twice a year fo receive
additional updates, and the Chief
Human Resources Officer of Vesuvius
joins part of these meetings. All EWC
representatives receive four dedicated
fraining days per year, to ensure they
are appropriately equipped to fulfil
their duties.

In addition to formal discussion and
consultation mechanisms, in many
countries our operations hald 'town hail’
meetings on a regular basis. These
provide an opportunity for local
managementto meet with staff and
provide anupdate on corporate
developments and matters material to
the business.

Valuing our Employees

Vesuvius operates a number of awards
and initigtives aimed at recognising the
contribution of particular individuals and
disseminating best practice throughout
the Group. Examples of these include the
Living the Values Awards and the EMEA
8D PPS Awards.

Our Living the Values Awards
programme is central to maintaining
our Group's collective focus on Vesuvius'
Values. ©n 14 December 2017,

we gathered for our fifth awards
ceremony to celebrate and acknowledge
the efforts of 74 employees. Awards
were presented to 14 individuals and

13 teams from 17 different countries,

all of whom, nominated by their peers,
were credited with embodying Vesuvius'
Values. They were rewarded with a
specially designed trophy, with Vesuvius
making a financial contribution to each
winner's chosen charity.

The EMEA 8D PPS Awards 2017 took
place in Pavia, Italy, in October. These
awards showcase the benefits of the

8 Disciplines appreach to practical
problem-solving. They were launched to
reinforce the messages of our intensive
training courses, 1o promote the use of
practical problem-solving in the business

and to recognise excellence in quality.
During a two-day programme, Vesuvius
employees were invited to present case
studies evidencing the application of the
8D methodology to offer to customers
sustainable business solutions. A panel,
chaired by Vesuvius' Chief Executive,
judged the presentations, selecting the
winning team from Olifanisfontein,
South Africa. This team demonstrated
outstanding capabilities in pushing the
boundaries in hightemperature
solutions. Their case study demonstrated
the use of 8D in ajcint effort between
the customer and our field service
engineers, to develop o unique solution
for the customer’s team to increase
operational efficiency, and to develop
new business for Vesuvius.

Vesuvius in the Local Community

Cur sacial responsibility activities
complement our values in driving our
culture. Our operating sites engage with
their local communities through varicus
social action projects.

In Germany, Vesuvius GrmbH opened

its doors to junior researchers from
Borken kindergartens. About 30 children
interested in research, accompanied by
their nursery school teachers, turned

the Vesuvius canteen into an exciting
research island. At ten research stations
the boys and girls experimented with
colours, sowed herbs, and built noise
protectors and boarts.



8D Awards 2017

The Awards champion unique solutions
designed to address customers’
requirements -]

Inthe Netherlands, Foseco Nedertand
BV operates an employee charity
donation competition. Employaes write
an essay explaining why the charity
organisation with which they hove a
cennection, should win the donation.

In June 2077, Marloes Goorhuis won

the award for her contributiontoan
organisation named MeeReizen.
MeeReizen organises holidays for
mentally disabled people, providing the
participants with an exciting adventure
and their carers with some respite at
home. Marloes hos been avolunteer on
these holidays for years. The trip is paid
for by the participants themselves, so
thereis a very limited budget. Additional
donations are used 1o provide additional
experiences such as ¢ visit to the zoo,
atheme park or a museum.

In France, collecgues from Vesuvius
France SAtrained a futsal (a special form
of football team), to participateinan
inter-cormnpany competition organised

by the local association. This annual
competition is organised to suppaort

the charity LEnfant Bleu which fights
against the maltreatment of children.

Our employees

Employees by employment type

A.Sa’aried 3,983
8. Hourly 5,897
. Temps 1,130

In addition, Vesuvius France SA again
worked with Feignies' local fire brigades,
this rime conducting four major exercises
to learn more cbout managing chemical
risk athigh temperatures. We helped
them explore how best to assess
situations without prior knowledge,

how to evaluate circurnstantial and
envirecnmental factors under pressure,

as well as how to communicate effectively
with teams when facing specific chemical
flow hazards.

in China, Vesuvius Suzhou sponsors
primary school pupils from lower income
families so that they can join in with
extracurricular activities. Now in its
seventh year, our Yesuvius Youth Team
project at the China-Singapore Suzhou
Industrial Park Youth and Children Centre
originally began with three teams:
unicycle, aerobics and chorus. Since then,
the project has grown to include jump
rope and music teams, with 30-40
childrenin eachteam.

Employees by region

A Chino 1,884 C North Asia 337

B. Eurone 4,472 F.South America 1,009
C.indiaB38 G.South Asic 296

D.NAFTA2174

Vesuvius International
Scholarship Programme

The Vesuvius International Scholarship
Programme s set up to assist qualified
dependent children of Vesuvius
employees in helping to finance under-
graduate and graduate education at
accredited institutions. Awards are
granted globally without regard to
race, colour, creed, religion, sexual
orientation, age, gender, disability or
natienal origin, Vesuvius hos been
involved inthis programme for 22 years,
during which period Vesuvius has
assisted 902 students to achieve their
higher education goals at a cost of
$1.08m. Individual scholarships have
been awarded to employees children
living in: Belgium, Brazil, Chinag, the
Czech Republic, France, Indig, Indonesia,
Malaysia, Netherlands, Poland,
Romania, South Africa, Spain, UAE
and the UK.

Employees by business unit

A, Flow Control 4,302
B. Foundry 2,836
. Advanced Ref 2,474

D D'g'tal Services 526
E Head Office 49
F.Gthers 823
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People and Community continued

Developing talent in our facilities in Brazil
and Chinais critical to the success of our
strategic priority to capture growth in
developing markets

"My work is exciting, we are building the future together”

Site: Piedade, Brazil Menuei Delfino, Sales & Marketing Director, Digital Services,
South America

Joining Vesuvius a year after 2002: Joined Vesuvius asVISO
graduating, Manuel learned quickly Specialist, Andean region
S'nd_ "f’C_’SITP_eP fodniwgl‘g(”;nges- 2008: Salesmanager, Steel

einitially joine T @ 1§um 2012: Generaland Country
as a product speciclist, purting Manager. Stesl. Andean
his technical skillsto good use ragen !

P . . Region
developing innovative solutions
2017: South America Director

for customers. Showing strong
leadership capobilities, Manuel
moved into a managerial role,
and now heads South America’s
growing Digital Services feam
fromthe Sao Paulo office.

Sales & Marketing, Digital
Services

“Vesuvius gave me the opportunity to manage
worldwide projects and work with global teams”

Site: Piedade, Brazil RafaellLorenzo Jacob, Global Product Manager Hydrogen Systems,

Hardware and Instruments, Digital Services

Following his graduction from 2013: Joined ECIL Met Tecas
university, Rafael has enjoyed a Technical Salesman
successful five year engi.ne'ering 2014: Avemis product specialist
careerat Vesuvius. Inthistime -

2016: Worldwide product
he hasbeen able to develop Hyd
his technical and commercial manager, Myarogen

Systems & Probes

knowledge across a number of
roles, and he is currently using 2017: Global Product Manager,

his experience as a worldwide
product manager.

Hydrogen Systems,
Hardware & Instruments

“Vesuvius has really welcomed me and my company into the

international group”

Site: Resende, Brazil Carolina Campello Bezerra Campos, Managing Director, Vesuvius Fluxes

Carolina’s career began at
Carboox 25 years ago, where she
delivered R&D success with new
casting flux products and
initiatives to assist customers. As
Vice President, she played a key
roleinestablishing the company
os aleader aeross Braziland
Mexico.

Fellowing its acquisition by
Vesuvius, Carolina became
Managing Director, and has
been instrumentalin enabling
asmooth transition, working
hard tointegrate the Vesuvius
culture and achieve strong
finoncial results.

1992: Joined Carboox Resende
Quimica, Brozil

2016: Carbooxacquired by

Vesuvius

2017: Promoted to Managing
Director, Vesuvius Fluxes,

Brazil




"My family and | had a great experience working in Germany”

Site: Suzhou, China Jerry Huang, IT Director-Asia Pacific

Jerry joined Vesuvius on an After growing his remit across
internship, learning about the value  Europeon operations, leading o

2002: Graduated andjoined
Vesuvius asintern

of IT toevery partof thecempany.  number of projectsin Eurcpe, Jerry

2004: IT Specialist

Always seeking to understand the became Director of IT Asia Pacific,

needs of other functions, he soon managing aloyalteamthat he

built astrong culture around him. ensures have access to many
averseqas opportunities.

Foundry

2006: 1T Manager

2013: IT Manoger, Borken,
Germany

2015; IT Director-Asia Pacific

“| am proud to be able to share
my technical expertise with my
colleagues around the world”

Site: Kobe, Japan Shigeru Takii, Marketing Manager,

"l can use the knowledge | acquired inthe Steel divi
Foundry business”

Site: ChangShu, China Benny Yang, BU Manager, Foundry China

Shigeru builtup astrong track
record after beginning his career
os part of Japan'ssalesteam.

He was promoted to Manager of
Filter Preducts following nine years
ot the company, where he was
successful despite inheriting a
challenging market. Last year he
became Marketing Manager of
Steel and Non-Ferrous Preducts,
where he has grown a global
network across the company and
continues to deliver strong results.

19%96; Salesteam, Foseco, Japan

2004: Application Engineer, Kobe,
Japan

2007: Manager, Filter Products

2010: Manager, Metal Treatment
Products

2017: Marketing Manager, Steel
and Non Ferrous Products

sionto benefitthe

Four years after university, fostered a successful

Benny joinad Vesuviusasa partrership, improved product
Sales Engineer, applying his qualityand grew market share.
technical expertise toenhance  Mostrecently, as Manager of
product excellence for the Foundry team, he cversaw
customers across China. A agoodset of financial results
series of prometions enabled last year.

Benny to grow his commercial
responsibility, where he

1999: Jeoined Vesuvius as Sales
Engineer

2001: Slide Gate Refractories
('SGR)/Purging Plugs (PP’)
Product Specialist

2006: SGR/PP Technical Director

2012: GeneralManager, WG
2016: Foundry Manager, China
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‘I moved from Mexico to Brussels to
jointhe Corporate HR team.”

Carlos Bersoza, Human Resources Director, Advanced Refractories, NAFTA

| joined Vesuvius in 20086, taking
the role of HR Coordinator at
Monterrey, Mexico whilst Vesuvius
was expanding the production
lings at its Mexico facility.
Following the inauguration of the
new Pre-Cast productionline, |
was offered the opportunity tojoin
the Corporate HR team, andin
2008 I moved to Brussels towork
asthe HR Project Coordinator for
the head of fice team. Whilst there,
I helped to organise the Group's
expatriation pracesses, develop
internal training medules and
worked on the HR SAP
implementation project.

Following the completion of this
5-year assignment in Brussels, |
returned to Mexicoin 2013 as
Operations HR Business Partner,
supporting the deployment

and fraining of standardised
working feams across the focility,
| continued to travel internationaily
to deliver workshops and train
company leadersin Ching, Brazi,
Poland and the US onthe basis of
my experiance in Mexico.

Two yearslater, | was promoted to
HR Director for Advanced
Refractories NAFTA, moving fo
Pittsburgh Inthisrole, as weltas

my responsibilities for HR across
the US, Canada and Mexico, | alsa
supportthe Digital Services
business unit, astheir HR contact.

Maving around the world has
given me aninternational mindset,
enabling me to support and guide
Vesuvius colleogues in HR matters,

O See more about Vesuvius careers People and community on p67-73
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Chairman’'s Governance
Letter

Dear shareholder,

On behalf ofthe Board t am delighted to present the 2017
Corporate Governance Report. As o Board, we remain
committed to applying the highest standards of corporate
governance, recognising that robust governance and culture
underpin business success. This year the Company is reporting
againstthe 2076 UK Corporate Governance Code (the Cade’).
This version of the Code includes minor changes following the
implementation of the European Union's Audit Regulation and
Directive.l am pleased to report thatthe Company is fully
compliant with the Code.

There was much debate in 2017 about the future direction

of corperate governance, with the publication in April of

the Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) Select
Committee’s report on carporate governance, and the
Government's publication of its response to the Green Paper
on Corpoerate Governance Reform in August, During the

year, institutions and voting agencies also issued guidance

on governance and voting issues, and the FRC produced
commentaries on key governance issues and responded o the
Government's announcements. Thisculminated in December
with the FRC's publication of its consultation on a new draft of
the UK Corporate Governance Code. The Board monitored
each of these developrnents, and remains focused on ensuring
that the Company continues to comply with all its governance
obligations, including full compliance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code.

Board Composition

2017 has been ayear of significant development for the Board,
with two new Board appointments.

In April, the Board was strengthened by the appointment of
Holly Koeppel as anindependent Non-executive Director,
replacing Nelda Connors, who resigned from the Boardin
2016. Having spent 35 yegrs working in global utility, power
and infrastructure businesses, Hally brings with her extensive
international experience.

In September, we welcomed Patrick André to the Board as
Chief Executive, replacing Frangois Wanecq who retired from
the Board on 31 August 2017. Patrick was appointed as part of
aplanned succession process, which involved a comprehensive
review of external and infernal candidates. Patrick joined the
Group in early 2016, and has disployed significant drive and
energy since then, strengthening the Flow Control business,
and exhibiting strong leadership skills and o constant customer
focus. The Board believes that Patrick is the ideal candidate to
lead the Group inthe next stages of its development,

Following a peried of transition, Frangois Wanecg retired from
the Group on 31 December 2017, Frangois led the business
through a period of significant challenges and change. He
worked tirelessly to strengthen Vesuvius business and to

champion safety and quality throughout the Group. We thank
him for his dedication, leadership and stewardship of the Group.

Prior to undertaking these new appointments, the Nomination
Committee spent time reflecting on the balance of skills and
experience of the existing Board members, and considering
these against the future needs of the business. Balancing
independence with the skills, knowledge ond experience
required on the Board, and on the Committees which support
it, is crucial to the Group's success. With the appointments of
Holly and Patrick we are confident that the Board hasthe
appropriate composition to ensure the continued long-term
success of the business. Consequently, t encourage all
shareholders to support the election and re-election of our
incumbent Directors ot the 2018 Annual General Meeting.

Further details abeout the recruitment processes for Patrick
and Holly can be found in the Nomination Committee Report.

Culture and Diversity

Corporate culture continues to be an impartant focus for

our organisation. Following the recruitment of o new Chief
Executive, the Board [ooks to himto continue the work of his
predecessor in ensuring that appropriate values and a robust
ethical stance are reflected consistently in our behaviour aswe
conduct our business. Cne of the key strengths of Vesuvius has
always beeninthe diversity of our employees. With o wide
geographic spread and local hiring of the clear majority of
staff, the Group encompasses individuals from a multitude

of different nationalities and ethnicities. At a Board level

we recognise the significant benefits of diversity in our
business, and understand its impartance in supporting

condid and constructive boardroom debate. During 2017,

the Board reflected further on this theme, monitoring the
recommendations of the Hampton-Alexander, Parker and
MeGregor-Smith Reviews on gender and ethnic diversity, and
approving a Board diversity policy. This policy sets out our
commitmentto diversity and explains the actions we will take
to affirm this going forward. Whilst recognising that the
Hampton-Alexander Review has set atarget of 33% female
representation on FTSE 350 Boards by 2020, the Board
considersits diversity, size and compaosition 1o be appropriate
forthe requirements of the business, and does not believe that
atthis time it needs to accelerate the usual rotation of Directors
to meet this farget. However, the Board will confinue to consider
the acknowledged benefits of greater diversity in all future
Director recruitment decisions. With respect tothe Group as

a whole, we recognise that our commitment ro diversity is not
currently reflected in the gender diversity of our emplayees.
Like many other industriat engineering companies, we know
that our organisation must work harder to attract, develop
and retain talented women.

A copy of the Board Diversity Policy can be found inthe
Governance Report.



Board Evaluation and Training

This year the Board's formal evaluation process was again
externally facilitated by the cerporate advisory firm, Lintstack.
It utifised a fresh approach, with the key elerment constituting
one-on-one interviews with each Director conducted by
Lintstock, aimed at gaining a deeper insight infe Directors’
responses. Overall, the evaluation concluded that the Board
remained of a high calibre and was functioning well, with

open and challenging debate and transparent information
flow. The Nominarion Committee was feltto have dealt
successfully with Board succession during the year, identifying
anaccomplished candidate to replace Francois Wanecq

os Chief Executive and securing an excellent new Non-executive
Director. Similarly, the Audit Committee continued 1o deliver
robust challenge to management on financial matters ond had
overseen @ smaeoth transition of external auditor Finally, the
Remuneration Committee had prepared and recommended
on updated Remuneration Policy for 2017,

The evaluction highlighted a number of Board priorities for
2018 including the need to integrate the new Chief Executive,
an ongoing emphasis on strategy and its delivery, and the

need for the Board to continue to set the right tane from the

top and monitor the culture of the Group. The development of
senior management level talent, and succession plans for them,
was again noted as being a key area for focus in 2018, with
new fraining programmes implemented, and continuing
inifiatives in place to ensure greater Board access to these
high-potentialindividuals.

As Chairman, | recognise that | am responsible for ensuring
that the Board continues to operate effectively, and that part
of this roleis to ensure that oll Directors attain an appropriate
understanding of the business, and continue to refresh their
skills and knowledge. During the year, both new Directors
undertook g tailored induction programme to ensure that they
quickly gained a good understanding of the Group and their
responsibilities and obligafions. As well as receiving briefings
ondupdates onkey financicl, legal and governance issues
impacting the arganisation, the Direciors furthered their
knowledge by undertaking visits to various aperations during
the year. The Board visited Group operations and a customer's
facilities in Brazil, | visited our operations in China and other
Non-executive Directors visited operations in Poland, the US
and Germany. During 2018, the Non-executive Directors will
continue to broaden their understanding of the Group through
individual site visits as well as scheduled Board visits.
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Financial Reporting and Risk

In 2016, the Audit Committee conducted a competitive
tender for the external audit which led to the cppointment

of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC’) as the Company's
new auditor in 2017. PwC formulated a detailed transition
plan, working with people across the business to build on their
understanding of the Group and refine the planned acpproach
to the audit. During the year PwC provided reqular updates
1o the Audit Committee on the status and progress of the
auditor transition plan, clong with valuable insights into the
Group's audit environment. Further details about the transition
process are confained inthe Audit Committee Report,

The Board continually assesses the Group's key risks, and the
methods by which we manage our risks. The impacts of the
risks are also reviewed and tested as part of our ongoing risk
management approach. This process continued in 2017

A number of emerging risks were raised and discussed,
reflecting developing ‘macro’ trends and identified risks
where issues had arisen during the year. Whilst none of these
was considered significant encugh to change the overall
characterisation of the Group's risks and uncertainties, the
Board's view on ecch of these issues was integrated info
management discussions on risk and factored inte the
approach the Group takes to mitigation. The Board continues
to monitor all perceived risks and the methods by which these
are managed.

Yourssincerely
John McDonough CBE Chairman
28 February 2018

Also see:
©Riskan p22

Inthis section:

O Board effectivenesscn p8d

©Board accountability on p83 QPrinciples on p56

O Audit Committee Report
on p85

G Nomination Committee Report
onp93

G Directors' Remuneration
Reportonp%6
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Governance Report

The Board of Vesuvius ple (the ‘Company’) is respensible for the
Group's system of corporate governance and is committed to
maintaining high standards of governance and to developing
themtoreflect progressian in best practice. Thisreport
describes the Company's corporate governance structure

and explains how, during the vear ended 31 Decermnber 2017,
Vesuvius applied the Main Principles of the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2076 issued by the Financial Reporting
Council (the ‘Code’). Throughout the year and up until the

date of this report, Vesuvius was in full compliance with

the requirements of the Code. The Board has noted the
consuitation that has commenced regarding a new revised UK
Corporate Gevernance Code, and has begun to consider the
changes that the Company would needto make toits existing
practices and procedures to ensure continuing full compliance
inthe future. A number of the propased new requirements are
already reflectedin the Company's approach to governance.

A copy of the current Code can be found on the FRC website at:
https://fre.org.uk/directers/corporate-governance-and-
stewardship/uk-corporate-governance-code

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

Ultimate responsibility for the management of the Group rests
with the Board of Directors.

The Board focuses primarily upon strategic and policy issues
and is respensible for the Group's long-term success. It sets the
Group's strategy, oversees the allocation of resources and

monitors the performance of the Group. It is responsible for
effective risk assessment and management.

The Board

The Board has a formal schedule of matters reserved to it and
delegates certain mattersto its Committees. It is anticipated
that the Board will convene on seven accasions during 2018,
holding ad hoc meetings to consider non-scheduled business
if required.

The Chairman and Chief Executive

The division of respansibilities between the Chairman and the
Chief Executive is set out in writing. This was reviewed during
the year on the appointment of our new Chief Executive,

as well as being part of the Company's annual corporate
governance review. No amendments were considered
necessary. The interactions in the governance process are
shown inthe schematic below.

Board Committees

The principal governance Committees of the Board are the Audit,
Remuneration and Namination Committees. Each Committee
has written terms of reference, which were reviewed during the
year. No amendments were considered to be required. These are
available to view on the Company's website wwwvesuvius com.

For biographical details see Board of Directors on pages 50
and 51.

Board

Governance Committees

Administrative Committees

Chairman:
Dauglas Hurt

Audit Committee
Tomoniterthe integrity of financial
reporting ondto assistthe Board in
its review of the effectiveness of the
Group'sinternal controls ond risk

Membership:
Allindependent

managementsystems Non-executive Directors
Remuneration Committee Chairman:
Todetermine the cppropricte Jane Hinkley
remuneration packages for the Group's

Chairman, Executive Directors Membership:

and Company Secretary, and o
recormmend and monitor the level and

Allindependent
MNon-executive Directors

Inaddition, the Boord delegates certainresponsibilities on an adhoc basis
toa Finance Committee and Shore Scheme Committee, whichoperatein
accordance with the delegated authority agreed by the Board

Finance Committee Chairman:

To approve specific fundingand John McDonough,
Treasury-related mattersin Chairman
accordance withthe Group’s

delegated quthorities or as Membership:

Chairman, Chief Executive,
Chief Financicl Officer and

delegated by the Board

structure of remunerationfor othar Group Head of Corporate
senior management Finance

Nomination Committee Chairman: Share Scheme Commitfee Chairman:

To advise the Board on appointments, JohnMcBonough, Te focilitate the administration of Any Boord member
retirements and resignations from Chairman the Company's share schemes

the Board and its Commuttees and
toreview succession planning and
talentdevelopmentfor the Board
and senior monagement

{exceptwhen considerirg
his own succession, Inwnich
cosethe Committeeis
charedbyanappropriate
MNon-executive Director)

Membership:

Chairmanand ary three
Non-executive Directors

Group Executive Committee

Membership:
Anytwo Directors or
c Directorand the
Company Secretary

The Group also operates a Group Executive Committee (GECY), which is convened and chaired by the Chief Executive and assists him in discharging his
responsibilites. The GEC comprisesthe Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer, the four Business Unit Presidents, the Chief Human Rescurces Cfficer,

the Chief Technology Officer, the President Giparotions, and the General Counsel and Company Secretary. The GEC met sixtimes during 2017 and is scheduled
to meet seven times during 2018, Its meet'ngs are generally held at major operational sitesor inthe London head off ce. Having reviewed the role of the GEC,

taenew Chief Executive has choser to maintain its operation in its current farm.



Governance Structure
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The Board
Responsible for Group strateqy, nisk management,

succession and policy issues. Sets the tone, values and

culture for the Group. Monitors the Group's progress ogainst

the targets set

Chairman Chief Executive

Provides leadership and guidance for rhe Board, Develops strategy for review and approval of the
promoting a high standard of corporate Board. Directs, monitors and maintains the
governance, Setsthe Board agenda and manages operatianal performance of the Company.
meetings. Independent onoppointment, he is Responsible for the application of Group policies,
thelink between the Executive and implementation of Group strategy and the resources
Non-executive Directors for their delivery. Accauntable to tha Board for

Group performance

Senior Independent Director Non-executive Directors

Acts as a sounding board for the Chairman, Exercise astrong, independent voice, challenging
analternative contact for shoreholders and and supporting Executive Directors. Scrutinise
anintermediary for other Non-executive performance against chjectives and monitor
Directors. Leads the gnnual evaluation of financial reporting. Monitor and oversee risks
the Chairman and recruitment processfor and controls, determine Executive Director
his/her replacement, when required remuneration and manage Board succession

through therr Committea responsibilities

Board and Committee Attendance

Company Secretary

Advises the Chairmon angovernance,
rogether with updates on regulatory and
compliance matters. Supports the Board
agendawith clear information flow. Actsaz a
linkbetween the Board andits Committees
and between Mon-executive Directorsand
semor management

The attendance of Directors at the Board meetings and af meetings of the principal Committees of which they are members held
during 2017 is shown in the table below. The maximum number of meetings in the period during which the individual was a Board

or Committee member is shown in brackets.

Audit Remuyneration Nomingtion

Board Committes Committee Committee
Chairman
John McDonough CBE 8(%) - - 6 (6)
Executive Directors
Patrick André (uppointed 1 September 2017} 33 - - -
Guy Young 9{(9) - - -
Frangois Wanecq {refired 31 August 2017} 6 (6) - - -
Non-Executive Directors
Christer Gardel| 9(9) - - 5(6)
Hock Goh 8(9) 4(5) 3(5) 5(6)
Jane Hinkley 3{9) 5 (5} 5(5} &(6)
Douglas Hurt g(9) 5(5) 4 (5} 5(6)
Holly Koeppel {appeinted 3 April 2017) 7(7) 2(3) 44} 4(4)

John McDonough was absent from o Board meeting due to afamily emergency. The meeting was chaired in his absence by the
Senior Independent Director ('S107, Douglas Hurt. Hock Goh and Douglas Hurt were unable to make additional Board and
Remuneration Committee meetings, scheduled at short notice, due to prior engagements.

To the extent that Directors are unable to attend scheduled meetings, or additional meetings called on short notice, they receive the
papers in advance and relay their comments to the Chairman for communication at the meeting. The Chairman follows up after
the meeting in relation to the decisions taken. In 2017, the Chairman scught Hock Goh and Douglas Hurt's views on the matters to
be discussed af the Beard meeting they were due tomiss, in each case prior to the meeting, and provided feedback to them on

the autcome of discussions. The Committee Chairmen likewise contacted thase Diractors who were unable to attend Cammittee
meetings in advance of those meetings, to canvass their views and understand any issues they wished to raise in respect of the
subject matters being discussed. The SID maintained contact with the Chairman regarding his priorities for the meeting he was
unable to attend, fogether with the discussions undertaken and the action paints that stemmed from that meeting.
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Governance Report continued

Board Effectiveness

Board Composition

The Board comprises eight Directors—the Non-executive
Chairman, John McDonough CBE; the Chief Executive,
Patrick André; the Chief Financial Officer, Guy Young; and
five Non-executive Directors. Patrick André joined the Board
as Chief Executive on 1 Seprember 2017, replacing Frangois
Woanecq who retired from the Board on 31 August 2017 as
part of a planned succession process. Holly Koeppeljoined
the Board as an independent Non-executive Director on

3 Aprit 2017. Douglas Hurt is the Senior Independent Director.
Henry Knowlesis the Company Secretary.

The Boord focuses on ensuring that both it, and its Committees,
have the appropriate range of diversity, skills, experience,
independence and knowledge of the Company, andthe
markets inwhich it operates, to enable it to discharge its duties
and responsibilities effectively The Board continues to look

of diversity in its broadest sense—reflected in the range of
backgrounds and experience of our Board members who are
drawn from different nationalities and have managed a voriety
of complex global businesses. During the year, the Board
reflected onthe recommendations of the Hampton-Alexander,
Parker and McGregar-Smith reviews on gender and ethnic
diversity and formalised its approach to diversity with the
approval of a Board Diversity Policy. The policy sets out the
Board's cbjectives with regard to diversity 1o ensure that the
Company maintains the optimum Board and Committee
composition, underpinning the fundamental requirement

to maintain the right balance of independence, skills and
knowledge in the boardroom. Details of the Nomingtion
Commiftee’s activities in compliance with the policy during

the year areincluded in the Nomination Committee Report,

Board Diversity Policy

Purpose

This policy setsout the opproach to diversity in respect of the Boardof
Directors of Vesuvius ple. The policy s intended to assist the Board, through
the work of the Neminarion Cemmittee, in ereating and maintaining
optimum Board and Committes composition.

Thebroad principles of diversity containedin this policy apply to all
employees of the Vesuvius Group. The Vesuvius Code of Conductreflects
WYesuvius commitmentto diversity and respect for itsemployees,

Policy Statement

Vesuvius plcrecognises thevalue of adiverse and skilled workforce and 15
committed to creating and maintaining an inclusive and collaberative
workploce culture that will provide sustainability for the arganisationinto
thefuture.

Policy Objectives

The Nomination Committee will focus on ensuring that it the Baard and the
Board'sother Committees have the appropriate range of diversity, skills,
experience, independence nndknowledge of the Company to enable them
to discharge theirduties and responsibillines effecrively.

The Nomination Committee will ensure that afl appeintments to the Board
are based on menit with each candidate assessed against objective criteria
focused ontheskills, experience and knowledge required of the position,
and with due regardtothe benefits of diversity onthe Board.

The Nomination Committes will engage with executive search firmsing
mannerwhich ensures that opportunities are taken for a diverse range of
candidates to be considered for appointment, This willinclude ensuring that
the Committee only uses search firms that ara signed up tothe Volurtary
Codeof Conduct for Executive Search Firms.

The Nomination Committes supports senior managerrent effortsto increase
diversityinthe serior management pipeline o farilitote succession planning
towards executive Board positions.

With respect to the representation of women on the Board, highlighted by
the Davies ond Hampton-Alexander Reviews, the Board issupportive of the
initiative to increcse the proportion of women onthe boords of FTSE 350
componies. Vesuvius, which ot the date of this policy hos a Boord comprising
25% female membership, will continue to ensure thatthe Boord of Vesuvius
ple reflects this level, or greater levals of gender diversity, s are appropricte
foritssize and dynomics, toenableitto continue to deliver onthe
requirements of the Vesuvius business.

Monitoring and Reporting

This poficy and progress against its objectives will be reviewed annually

The Nomination Committee is responsible for the implementation of this
policy and far monitoring progresstowards the achievernent of its ebjecrives

The Board's overall skills and experience, as well as Non-
executive Director independence, were reviewed during the
year as part of the process of recruiting the two new Directors.
The Bocrd's composition also formed part of the Board
evaluation process. Two of the eight Directors (25%) are women
and four (50%) are non-UK citizens. The Board alse contains
individuals from a range of ethnic backgrounds. The Board
consequently considers its diversity, size and composition to

be appropriate for the requirements of the business, and in

line with its adopted palicy. The Board recognises that the
Hampton-Alexander Review has set a target of 33% female
representation on FTSE 350 Boards by 2020. Whilst the Board
does not believe that it is appropricte to accelerate its planned
rotation of Directors purely o meet this target, it will continue to
consider the benefits of greater diversity in all future Direcror
recruitment decisions.



Committee composition is set out in the relevant Committee
reports. No one, other than the Committee Chairman and
members of the Committee, is entitled to participate in meetings
of the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees.
However, as detailed in the Committee reports, where the
agenda permits, other Directors and senior manogement
regularly attend by invitation, supporting the operation of
each of the Committeesin an open and consensual manner.

The Board considers that, for the purposes of the UK Carporate
Gavernance Code, faur Non-executive Directors {excluding the
Non-executive Chairman), namely Hock Goh, Jane Hinkley,
Douglas Hurt and Helly Koeppe, are independent of
management and free from any business or other relationship
which could affect the exercise of their independent judgement.
Christer Gardellis Managing Partner of Cevian Capital which
halds 21.11% of Vesuvius'issued ordinary share capital andis not
considered to be independent. He brings o wealth of commercic|
acumentothe Board. The Chairman satisfied the independence
criteria on his appointment to the Board. Biogrophical details of
the Directors are setout an pages 50 and 51.

Appointment to the Board

Recommendations for appointments to the Board are made
by the Normination Committee. Further information is set out
inthe Nomination Committee report on pages 93 ta 95.

Time Commitment of the Chairman and the
Non-executive Directors

The Chairman and Nen-executive Directars each have aletter
of appoiniment which sets out the terms and conditions of their
directorship. Anindicaticon of the anticipated time commitment
is provided in any recruitment role specification, and each
Non-executive Director's letter of appointment provides details
of the meetings that they are expected fo attend, along with the
need to accommodate travelling time. Non-executive Directors
are required fo set aside sufficient time to prepare for meetings,
and reqularly fo refresh and update their skills and knowledge.
All Non-executive Directors have agreed to commir sufficient
time for the proper performance of their responsibilities,
acknowledging that this will vary from year to year depending
onthe Group's activities, and will involve visiting manufacturing
and customer sites around the Group. The Chairmanin
particular dedicates a significant amount of time to Vesuvius

in discharging his duties. The Board notes that the Chairman
holds chairmanships other than Vesuvius, butthatenly ene of
these is for afisted company. The other two chairmanships

are for much smaller private companies where the time
commitment is limited.

All Directors are expected to attend all scheduled Board and
Committee meetings and any additional meetings as required.
Each Director's other significant commitments are disclosed to
the Board during the process for their appointment and they are
required to notify the Board of any subsequent changes. The
Company has reviewed the availability of the Chairman and the
Non-executive Directors and considers that each of them can,
and in practice does, devete the necessary amount of time to
the Company's business.

Atthe time of her appaintment, Holly Koeppel served ona
number of Boards and was in the process of adjusting her
portfolio and retiring from her executive positions. During 2017,
she stepped down from all but ene of her board appointments,
and now only serves as a Non-executive Director on two other
boards, having taken on a new Non-executive position at
British American Tobacco plein July 2017,

The Board notes that Hock Goh holds a number of other
directorships, but that these other commitments typically only
require a total of 25 days' work per year. MEC Resources Ltd

is the listed parent company of Advent Energy Ltd, an
investment campany that is not currently operational. As o
result, Hok Goh's commitments as Chairman of these
companies are currently minimal and he is only required to
attend two Board meetings a yeor. His other directorships
require attendance at a small number of Board meetings each
year. HMaving reviewed rhis, the Board believes that Hock’s
additional commitments do not prevent him from properly
fulfilling his duties as a Non-executive Director of Vesuvius ple.

Information and Support

The Board ensures that it receives, in a timely manner,
information of an appropriate guality fo enable it adequately
to discharge its responsibilities. Papers are providedto the
Directors in advance of the relevant Board or Committee
meeting to enable them fo make further enquiries about any
matters prior to the meeting should they so wish. This also
cllows Directors who are unable to attend to submit views in
advance of the meeting.

In addition to the formal Board processes, the Chief Executive
provides written updates on important Company business
issues between meetings, and the Board is provided with

a comprehensive monthly report of key financial ond
manogement information. Regular updates on shareholder
issues are provided to the Directors, who alsc receive copies of
analysts' notes issued on the Company. For the distribution of
allinformation, Directors have access to a secure online portal,
which contains a reference section containing background
information on the Company.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary. Thereis clso an agreed procedure in place
for Non-executive Directors, in the furtherance of their duties,
totake independent legal advice at the Company's expense.

Induction and Training

A comprehensive induction progromme is available to new
Directors. The core of the induction programme is designedin
compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code, and is
tailored to meet the requirements of the individual appointee
and the dynamics of the Group. This process was undertaken
rwice during the year, on the appaintment of Holly Koeppel as
a Non executive Director and the appointment of Patrick André
as Chief Executive.

The Choirman, through the Company Secretary, continues fo
ensure that there is an ongoing process to review training and
development needs. Directors are provided with details of
seminars and fraining courses relevant to their role, and are
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Governance Report continued

encouraged and supported by the Company in attending them.
In 2017, regulatory updates were provided as a standing item
ateach Board meeting in a Secretary's Report. External input
onlegal and regulatory developments impacting the business
was also given, with specialist advisers invited fo the Board

and its Committees to provide briefings on overall market

and economic developments including Brexit, forthcoming
accounting changes, legal developments in data protection and
tax motters, and other general corporate governance issues.

In oddition, in 2017 the full Board visited our operations and
customers in Brazil, gaining & broader understanding of the
South American business. The Chairman visited our operations
in China in May, and ather Non-executive Directors visited
operations in Poland, the US and Germany during the year.

In 2018, the Non-executive Directers will continue to broaden
their understanding of the Group through further site visits.

Governance in Action — Chief Executive Induction

1. Following his appointment as Chief Executive, the Board requested that
the Company Secretary arrange @ comprehensive induction programme
for Patrick André. This recognised his prior emplayment with the Group
as President, Flow Controlandwas therefore tailored to focus onthe
carporafe aspects of hisnew role and the work of the other business units

2. Reference materials were provided, including information about tne
Boord, its Committees, procedures for dealing in the Company’s shares
and other regulatery and governance matters. All aspects of risk ond
its managementthrough insurance, compliance and relevant corporate
policies and procedures were covered. Pafrick was odvised of his legal
ond other duties, and obligations as o Directer of o listed company.
These matters were discussed in detail in a series of meetings conducted
by internal management and external advisers.

[

. Patrick held one-to-one meetings with ail ather Board members, and
conducted meetingswithkey executives throughoutthe Group, including
ragular meetings and joint site and custarner visits with the outgaing
Chief Executive. He also held a week of off-site meetings with the Group
Executive Committee to strengthen the relationship with his new team and
focus onthe organisational structure of the key functions of the Group.

4. Since his appointment Patrick has been undertaking a comprehensive

programme of site visits, with a view to visiting allthe Group's key R&D

and manufacturing focllitias,

w

. Patrick has met withthe Groug's principal advisers, the Company's brokers
andinvestor cormmunity, using this os an opportunity to understand their
roles and the corporate governance environment.n greater detail.

o

The Board monitored the iInduction pracess, and asked the Campary
Secretaryto pravide updates onits progress.

Performance Evaluation

The Board carries out an evaluation of its performance and that
of its Committees every year. In 2017, this evaluation took place
inthe fourth quarter and was again externally facilirated by

the corporate advisory firm, Lintstock. The Group subscribes

to access Lintstock’s Insider databese, but has no other
connectionwith the organisation. This year's evaluation utilised
afresh approach. Rather than conducting the evaluation via
aseries of questionnaires, this year Lintstock issued a short
guestionnaire and then conducted a series of in-depth interviews
with each Director and the Company Secretary aimed at
analysing and gaining further insight into their responses.
Aswith previous years, the evaluation not only covered the
performance of the Board but also that of its Committaes,
along with indvidual reviews of each Director and analysis of
the performance of the Chairman. A narrative report, broken
down into thematic areas, was then presented to the Board.

The 2016 evaluation had highlighted several priorities for 2017,
including strategy and Board succession, and had also
identified areas for ongoing improverment, including greater
efforts to support the development of stoff members below
senior management level. As part of the 2017 evaluation, the
Board assessed that the Nomination Committee had dealt
successfully with Board succession during the year, securing
an excellent new Non-executive Cirector, and identifying an
accomplished candidate to replace Frangois Wanecq as Chief
Executive. Qverall, the Board felt that the transition of Chief
Executive had been effectively managed. The development
of staff members below senior management level confinued
during 2017 and remains a focusfor 2018, with new fraining
programmes implemented, and continuing initiatives in place
to ensure greater Board access to these individuals.

Regarding priorities for 2018, the evaluation highlighted the
need to continue fo support the integration of the new Chief
Executive, to ensure he establishes effective working relationships
with members of the Board and senier management, and is
supported in formulating andimplementing his objectives
forthe Group. The Board noted there would be an ongoing
emphasis on strategy, and recognising the increasing corporate
governance focus on stakeholder communication, the Board
would need to confinue to develop plans tointeract with
stakeholders and oversee the culture of the Group. The evaluation
also identified a consistent theme regording personal
development plans. It was agreed that the Board would focus
on this during its oversight of senior management, Inrespect of
its own activities, individual Non-executive Direcrors would be
encouraged to continue undertaking site visits fo operations
throughout the Group.

On more practical matters, there was a continuing need to
improve Board processes, with the refinement of Board packs,
andthe promation of consistency in Board presentations.
Asin previous years, a set of action points was compiled from
the output of the evaluation to ensure that its findings are
implerented into the Board's activities. Thisis supervised by
the Chairman and reviewed throughout the year.

The Chairman noted that, overall, the evaluation had concluded
that the Board remained of a high calibre and was functioning
well, with open debate and good information flow. The individual
assessment of Directors concluded that all continued to centribute
effectively, devoting adequate time to their duties and being
engaged and proactive in debate at all meetings. Each of the
Committees was considered to have operated effectively during
the year, with recognition that the Remuneration Committee
had overseen the successfulimplementation of the new
Remuneration Policy, the Audit Committee had overseenthe
smoaoth transition in external auditor, and the Nomination
Committee had undertaken two productive rounds of recruitment.

Appointment and Replacement of Directors

Board membership should not be fewer than five nor more
than 15 Directars, save that the Cempany may, by ordinary
resolution, from time to time, vary this minimum and/or
maximum number of Directors. Directors may be appointed
by ordinary resclution or by the Board. A Director appointed by
the Board must retire from office at the first Annual General



Meeting (AGM') after his/her appeintment. A Director who
retires inthis way is then eligible for reoppointment. The Board
may appoint one or more Directors to any executive office,

on such terms and for such period as it thinks fit, and it can also
terminate or vary such an appointment at any time. The Articles
specify that, at every AGM, any Director who has been appointed
by the Vesuvius Board since the last AGM and any Director who
held office af the time of the two preceding AGMs and who did
not retire ar either of them, shall retire from office. However, in
accordonce with the requirements of the Cede, all the Directors
will of fer themselves for election ar re-election at this year's
AGM. The biogrophical details of the Directors offering
themselves for election and re-glection, including details of
their other directorships and relevant skills and experience,

will be set out in the 2018 Notice of AGM, The biographical
details of the Directors are also set out on pages 50 and 57.

The Board believes that each of the current Directors is
effective and demonstrates commitment to his or her respective
role. Accardingly, the Board recommends that shareholders
approve the resclutions o be proposed at the 2018 AGM
relating ta the re-election of alithe Directors then standing.

Directors' Conflicts of Interest

The Board has established aformal system to autheorise
situations where a Director has an interest that conflicts, or may
possibly conflict, with the interests of the Company {situational
conflicts). Directors declare situational conflicts so that they can
be considered for quthorisation by the non-conflicted Directors.
In considering @ situational conflict, these Directors actinthe
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way they consider would be most tikely to promote the success
of the Company, and may impose limits or conditions when
giving authorisation or subsequently if they think thisis
appropriate, The Company Secretary records the consideration
of any conflict and records any authorisations granted.

The Board believes that the approachit has in place for
reporting situational conflicts continues to operate effectively.
No situational conflicts were brought to the Board for
autherisation during the year under review.

Board Accountability

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibility for establishing and
maintaining a system of risk managerment and internal control,
and for reviewing its effectiveness. This system is designed to
manage, rather than eliminate, the risks facing the Group and
safequard its assets. No system of internal control can provide
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group's system is designed 1o provide the Directors with
reasonable assurance that problems are identified on atimely
basis and are dealt with appropriately.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group's system of internal contrel,
including financial, operational end compliance contrals, and
risk management systems. The key features of the Group's
system of internal control are set cut in the table below.

Risk Management and Internal Control - Key Features

Strategyand > Comprehensive strategic planning and forecasting process

financial reparting > Annualbudget spproved by the Board

> Manthly operatingfinanciclinformation reported against budget

> Keytrends ond variances analysed and action taken as appropriate

Vesuvius GAAP > Accounting policies and procedures formuloted and disseminatedto alt Group operations

> Cowvers the application of accounting standards, the maintenance of accounting records and key finoncial control procedures

Operationalcontrols > Operating companies and corporote offices maintain internal controls and procedures appropriate ta their structure and

business environment

2oUDWIBACE) I

Risk assessment
andmanagement

Compliance with Group policies onitems such as authorisation of capital expenditure, treasury transactions, the managament of
intellectual property andlegal/regulatoryissues

|Jse of comman accounting policies and procedures and financial reporting software used in financial reporting and consalidation
Significant financing and investment decisions reserved fothe Board

Monitoring of policy and contral mechanisms for managing treasury risk by the Board

Cartinuous process foridentifying, evaluating and managing ony significant risks
Risk management process designed to 1dentify the key risks facing each business
Reportsmadetothe Board enhow those nisks are managed

Eacnmajor Group business unit produces a nsk rmap toidentify key risks, assess thelikelihood of risks accurring, themmpact and
mitigating actions

Top-downriskidentification undertaken ot Group Executive Committee and Board meetings

Board review of insurance and other measures used in managing nisks across the Group

The Boardis notfied of majorissues and makes an annualassessrrent of how risks have changed

Cngeing ossurence processes by the Legal function and Internal Auditincluding the annual certification process

Externally supperted "Speak Up” whistleblowing line
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Reviewing the Effectiveness of Risk Management
and Internal Control

The internal control system covers the Group os a whole, and
is monitored and supported by the Group's Internal Audit
function, which conducts reviews of Vesuvius’ businesses and
reports objectively both on the adeguacy ond effectiveness
of the system of internal control and on those businesses’
compliance with Group policies and procedures. The Audit
Committee receives reports from the Group Head of Internal
Audit and reportsto the Board on the results of its review.

As part of the Board's process for reviewing the effectiveness
of the systermn of internal control, it delegotes certain matters
to the Audit Cornmittee.

Following the Audit Committee’s review of internal financial
controls and of the processes covering other controls, the Board
annually evaluates the results of the internal control and risk
management procedures conducted by senior management.
Thisincludes a self-certification exercise by which senior
financial, operational and functional management certify

the compliance throughout the year of the areas under their
respensibility with the Group's policies and procedures and

highlight any marerial issues that have occurred during the yecr.

Since the date of this review, there have been no significont
changesininternal controls or other mattersidentified which
could significantly affect them.

In accordance with the provisions of the Code, the Directors
confirm that they have carried out a robust assessment of
the principal risks facing the Company, including those that
threaten its business model, future performance, solvency
or liquidity. They have also reviewed the effectiveness of
the Group's system of internal control and confirm that the
necessary actions have beentaken to remedy any control
weaknesses identified during the year,

The Group's principal risks and how they are being managed
or mitigated are detailed on pages 24 and 25, and the Viability
Statement which considers the Group's future prospectsis
detailed on page 23, Risk management and internal control

is discussed in greater detail in the Audit Committee report.,

The Audit Committee

The members of the Audit Commitiee are set out on page 85.
The Audit Committee report which describes the Audit
Committee’s work in discharging its responsibilities, is set
outon pages 85 1o 92.

Executive Compensation and Risk

All of the independent Non-executive Directors serve on
boththe Audit and Remuneration Committees. They therefore
bring their experience and knowledge of the activities of

each Committee to bear when considering critical areas of
judgement, This means that, for example, the Directors are
able to consider carefully the impact of incentive arrangements
onthe Group's risk profile and to ensure that the Group's
Remuneration Policy and programime are structured to align
with the long-term objectives and risk appetite of the Company.

Share Capital and Voting

Disclosure of the information regarding share capital, the
authorisation received by Directors at the AGM regarding the
issue of shares and the authority to purchase own shares, is
contained on page 118 within the Directors' Repart. There are
no restrictions on voting centained in the Company's Articles of
Assaciation. Further details are set cut in the Directors’ Report
onpage 119.

Relations with Shareholders

The Board is committed fo communicating with shareholders
and other stakeholders in a clear and open manner, and seeks
to ensure effective engagement through the Company's
regular communications, the AGM and other investor relations
activities. The Company undertakes an ongoing programme
of meetings with investors, whichis managed by the Chief
Executive and Chief Financial Officer. The maojority of
meetings with investors are led by them. Following the
announcement of his appointment os Chief Executive, Patrick
André accompanied Guy Young and Frangois Wanecg onthe
investor roadshows conducted to communicate the half-year
results. Since formaily faking up his Chief Executive position,
Patrick has been continuing to meet with investors, attending
investor conferences and meeting with market analysts.

In advance of the 2017 AGM, we wrote to our largest
shareholders inviting discussion on any questions they might
like to raise and making the Chairmen of the Board, the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee available to
meet shareholders should they so wish. In 2017, other than
oneinstitutional shareholder, no requests for discussions were
received from shareholders following this communication
The Chairman, Senior Independent Director and Committee
Chairmen remain available for discussion with shareholders
throughout the year on matters under their areas of
responsibility, either through contacting the Company
Secretary or directly at the AGM,

The Company reports its financial results to shareholders twice
a year, with the publication of its annual and half-year financial
reports. In addition, to maintain fransparency in performance,
it also issued two scheduled trading updates during 2017,

Cne was published immediately prior to the 2017 AGM on

10 May 2017, and the second was published on 14 November
2017. In conjunction with these announcements, presentations
or teleconference calls were held by the Chief Executive and
Chief Financial Officer with institutional investors and analysts.

All Directors are expected to attend the Company's AGM,
providing shareholders with the opportunity to question them
about issues relating fo the Group, either during the meeting or
informally afterwards.



Audit Committee

Dear shareholder,

On behalf of the Audit Committee, | am pleased to present the
Audit Committee Report for 2017. The Committee works largely
to a recurring and stryctured programme of activities which
are defined in an annual rolling Audit Committee timetabsle.
Additional items are then added and the Committee agendais
modified as the year progresses, to accommodate new topics
and priorities. Significant non-standard items that required
Committee focus during the year were the appointment of

the new external cuditor and updating of the interncl Audit
reporting process. The Committee also continued its review of
'deep dive'topics during the year, cavering defined benefit
pension schemes and cyber security.

Following the completion of the formal audit tender in 2016,
and the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (Pw(C)
inMay 2017, the Committee oversaw the seamiess transition of
the external audit fram KPMG LLP to PwC during the yeor. PwC
followed a detailed transition plan, focused on gaining a good
understanding of the Group and establishing contact with key
management and local personnel. The Committee received
regular updates on progress against this plan and benefited
from Pw('sinsights into the Group's risk control framework as
they conducted their initial meetings and reviews.

During the year, the approach to internal audit was updated to
aliow for clearer focus at the Audit Committee on key cantrol
issues, albeit that the overall scope and coverage of the annual
Internal Audit plan ramained as broad as in previous years.
Internal audits are now identified by separate designations ~
Cornpliance & Control ({C&C"), or Effectiveness & Efficiency
(‘E&E"). C&C audit activities focus entirely oninternal financial
control and key Board compliance issues, with the E&E audits
examining a broader constituency of business performance
issues. The Audit Committee receives detailed feedback on
any issues identified in C&C audit activity, and more general
oversight of the results of E&E cudit activity. The larter highlight
broader performance issues identified by the Internal Audit
team for management response and remediation.

The Audit Committee Report describes the work of the
Committee during the year including its rofe in monitaring

the integrity of the Company's financial statements and the
effectiveness of the infernal and external audit processes.

It provides an overview of the significant issues the Committee
has considered during the year and its material judgements.

It also describes how the Committee fulfilled its responsibilities
to assist the Board in reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's
system of internal control, including financial, operational and
compliance centrols, and risk management systems.

Yours sincerely

Douglas Hurt Chairman, Audif Committee

Committee Members

Douglas Hurt (Committee Chairman)
Hock Goh

Jane Hinkley

Holly Koeppel (appointed on 3 April 2017)

The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all the independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company, who bring a wide range
of financial and commercial expertise 1o the Committee's
decision-making and evaluation processes. Douglas Hurt is
the Senior Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit
Committee, having been appointed fo these roles by the Board
following the 2015 AGM. He was the Finance Director of IMl plc
for nine years prior to that and has worked in various financial
rales throughout his career. Douglas is also Chairman of the
Audit Committees of Countryside Properties PLC and Tate &
Lyle plc, and a Chartered Accountant. This background
provides him with the recent and relevant financial experience’
required under the Code. The Company Secretaryis Secretary
to the Committee.

The Code and Financial Conduct Authority Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules also contain requirements
for the Audit Committee as o whole to have competence
relevant to the sector in which the Company operates.
Vesuvius' Non-execufive Directors have significant breadth
of experience and depth of knowledge on matters related to
Vesuvius' operotions, both from their previous roles ond from
their induction and other activities since joining the Board of
Vesuvius. The Directors' biographies on pages 50 and 571 outline
their range of multinational business-to-business experience
and expertise in fields including engineering, manufacturing,
services and logistics as well as financial and cemmercial
acumen. The Board therefore considers that the Audit
Committee as a whole has competence relevant o Vesuvius'
business sector.

Meetings

The Committea met five times during 2017. The Committee has
also met twice since the end of the financicl year and prior ta
the signing of this Annual Report. The Board Chairman, the
non-independent Non-executive Directer, the Chief Executive,
the Chief Financial Officer, the Group Financial Controller, the
Head of Internal Audit and the external auditor were all invited
o each meeting. Other management staff were also invited to
attend as appropriate. In preparation for their tenure as the
new external auditor, PwC ottended Audit Committee meetings
prior to their formal appointment by shareholders at the

2017 AGM.

In February 2017, the Audit Committee held a preliminary
meeting on year-end issues in advance of the finalisation of
the financial statements in early March. This appreach was
judged o be effective and has beenintegrated into the Audit
Cammitree schedule going forward.
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Audit Cormmittee meetings are conducted to promote an open
debate, to challenge constructively significant accounting
judgements, to provide guidance and eversight to management
1o ensure that the business maintains an appropriately rebust
contrel environment and to provide informed advice to the
Boord onfinancial matters. The Chairman of the Audit
Committee encourages open dialogue between the external
auditors, the management team and the Head of Internal Audit
between Audit Committee meetings to ensure that emerging
issues are addressedin a timely manner.

During the year, as is the Audit Committee’s established
practice, the Committee members met and discussed business
and control matters with senior management during site visits,
informal meetings and Board presentations. The Committee
also met privarely with the Head of Internal Audit, and the
external auditor without any executives present.

The ocutcomes of Audit Committee meetings were reported to
the Board and cll members of the Board received the agenda,
papers and minutes of the Committee.

Role and Responsibilities

The main rofe end responsibilities of the Committee continue to
beto:

> Monitor the integrity of the financial statements of the
Company and the Group, and any formal announcements
relating fo the Group's financial performance, informing the
Board of the outcome of the audit

v

Monitor and review the effectiveness of the Group's internall
financial controls and the Group's internal control and risk
management systems

v

Establish and review procedures for detecting fraud, systems
and controls for the prevention of bribery and oversee the
Company's arrangements for employees to raise concerns
about possible wrongdoing in financial reporting or other
matters

v

Monitor and review the effectiveness of the Company's
Internal Audit function

> Make recommendations tothe Board onthe appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditer and
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor

> Monitor and review the external quditor's independence,
objectivity and effectiveness, taking into consideration any
non-audit services provided, and the relevant UK
professional and regulatory requirements

> Take account of the findings and conclusions of any FRC
auditinspection undertaken, when monitoring the
performance of the qudir

The Committee operates under formal terms of reference
approved by the Board, which were reviewed during the year.
They are available in the Investors/Corporate Governance
section of the Company's website, www.vesyvius.com.

Within these terms, the Cornmittee and its individual members
are empowered o obtain cutside legal or other independent
professional advice ot the cost of the Company. These powers
were not utilised during the year. The Committee may alse
secure the attendance at its meetings of any employee or other
parties with relevont experience and expertise should it be
considered necessary.

Activitiesin 2017

1. The Committee’s agenda covered the usual standing items—the review
of financigl results, the effectiveness of the Groug's internal finanaal
controls, and the review of the internal control and risk management
systems—as well as non-standard items, incluaing oversight of the
transition of the external audit from KPMG 1o Pw(.

. The Audit Committee confinued to devote ime 1o ensure that initiotives
to mitigate potentialrisks and finoncial exposure remained rabustand
oppropriote, The Committee challenged the adequacy of inventoryand
receivables provisions, the assumed growth rates and discount rates used
for asset impairment assessments, as well as the accounting for and
presentation of the Group-wide restructuring progromme undertaken
inrespansetothe chollenging conditions within ourend-markets.,

[

3. The Committee considered the Company’s going concern statementand
challenged the nature, quantum and ossessment of the signifcant risks
tothe business model, future performance, selvency ond liquidity of the
Groupthat were modelled as part of the scenarios and stress testing
undertaken to support the Viability Statement made by the Company in
the 2016 Accounts The 2017 Viability Statement, which was also critically
reviewed, is contained within the Strategic Report and can be found on
page3

4. The Committee monitored the resourang and delivery of the 2017 Internal
Audit planand opproved the 2018 Intarnal Audit plon. The Committee
menitored both the respanses from and follow-up by managementto
Internal Audit recommendations arising during theyear and, where
necessary, the Committee tosked management to verify their successful
closure within definedtimescales.

5. The Committee examined specific auditissuessuch as taxmatters,
including the judgementsinherentinthe partial recognition of deferred
tax assets for US taxlosses and undertook ‘deep dive' reviews of cyber
security and the Group's defined benefit pension arrangernents,

6. The Committee considered the impact of new accounting standards
including IFRS 9 Financial Instrumentsand IFRS 15 Revenue from
cantracts with customers— ond reviewed the implermertation plan for
theseinthe 2018financial year, Bosed on an assessment of these
standards, the Group does nat believe there will be a significant impact
on its Group Financial Statements

The Committee members believe that they received sufficient,
relevant and reliable information througheut the year from
management and the external auditor to enable the Committee
to fully discharge its responsibilities. The work of the Audit
Committee is further elaborated inthe paragraphs below.

Statement of complionce with the Competition and
Markets Authority (CMAY) Order

The Committee considers that the Company has complied with
The Statutory Audit Services for Large Companies Market
Investigation (Mandatory Use of Competitive Processes and
Audit Committee Responsibilities) Order 2074 {Article 7.1),
published by the CMA on 26 September 2014, including with
respect to the Audit Committee's responsibilities for agreeing
the audit scope and fees and autharising non-audit services.



Financial Reporting

The Committee fulfilled its primary responsibility to review

the integrity of the 2017 half-year and 2017 annual financial
statements and recommended their approval to the Board.

The Committee also reviewed the two trading updotes released
during the year.

In forming its views, the Committee assessed:

> The quality, acceptability and consistency of the accounting
policies and practices

v

The clarity and consistency of the disclosures, including
compliance with relevant financial reporting standards and
other reporting requirements

> Significont issues where management judgements and/or
estimates had been made that were material 1o the reporting
orwhere discussions had taken place with the external
auditor in arriving at the judgement or estimate

> Inrelationto the overall Annual Report, whether the Annual
Report and Accounts taken as a whole was fair, balanced and
understandable, taking into consideration all the information
available to the Committee

v

The application of the FRC's guidance on clear and concise
reporfing

¥

The disclesure and presentation of alternative performance
measures, in view of the new guidance from the European
Securities and Markets Association

The Committee actively deliberated and challenged reperts
from the Chief Financial Officer and Group Financial Contraller.
These were well prepared and, for areas of judgement and/or
estimation, set out the rationcle for the accounting treatment
and disclosures, and the pertinent assumptions and the
sensitivities of the estimates to changes in the assumptions.

PwC also delivered memoranda for the half-year and year-end,
stating their views on the treatment of significant issues. PwC
provided a summary for each issue, including its assessment

of the prudence of manogement's judgements or estimates.
The Cormmittee considered the overall level of prudence cpplied
this year, compared this with the prior year and concluded that it
rernained unchanged.

Significant Issues and Material Judgements

The Committee considerad the following significant issues in
the context of the 2017 financial staterments. It considered
these areas to be significant taking into account the tevel

of materiality and the degree of judgement exercised by
management. The Committee resolved that the judgernents
and estimates made on each of the significant issues detailed
below were appropriate and ccceptable.

Income Tax

Income tax remains a complex area where significant
judgements are required 1o estimate baoth uncertain tax
lichilities and the value of deferred tax assets.

The Committee challenged the assumptions used to arrive at
the £34 3rm (2016; 34.9m) provided for income tax payable
whichincludes £23.2m (2016: £24.5m) for uncertain tax
provisions as set outin Note 10.5. After discussions with internal
rax experts and considering the results of recent tax oudits and
the views of the external auditors, the Committee concurred
withmanagement's judgement.

At the end of 2017, the Group recognised a US deferred tox
asset of £32.6m (2016: £65.9m). The Group has significant
additional tax losses and other temporary differences in the

US and elsewhere which have not been recognised, which are
kept under review. The recognition of deferred tax assets for
tax losses and other temporary differencesis a highly technical
area and the Committee has drawn on infernal experts to
understand the treatment. The future prospects for US
profitability were carefully modelled by management and
challenged by the Committee, as was theimpact of the
significant tax reform announced in late December 2077 in the
US Tex Cuts and Jobs Act (TCJA). The Committee particularly
noted that this reform had @ maoterial impact onthe Group's
deferred tax position, and of itself caused a write-down in
Vesuvius' US deferred tax asset of £25 7m which, in addition to
other normal movements in the year and exchange revaluation,
resulted in the significant decrease inthe value of this asset in
20177. The Committee clso noted that, as there is uncertainty in
how some of the provisions of TCJA will operate, subsequent
guidance issued by US Treasury may impact Vesuvius' reported
tax position. The Committee reviewed the Group's projections
for trading inthe US which had improved in 2017, and
concurred with management that the US forecast profits are
considered sufficient 1o sustain the deferred tax asset in the

US atthe end of 2017.

Other Provisions

The Committee has been made aware of a number of potential
exposures and claims arising from ongoing litigation, product
qualityissues, employee disputes, restructuring, environmental
matters, onerous leases, indirect fax disputes and indemnities
or warranties outstanding for disposed businesses. Dueto

the leng gestation period before settlement can be reached,
provisioning for these items requires careful judgement in

arder to establish a reasonable estimate of future licbilities.
The Committee alse assessed the strength of any insurance
coverage for certain of these liabilities and challenged the
accounting trearment for any amounts deemed fo be
recoverable from insurers. Subsequent to this challenge, certain
insured liabilities have been represented inthe balance sheet
on a gross basis. After due consideration and challenge, with
expert advice sought in certain areas, the Committee is satisfied
that there are appropriate levels of provisions set aside to settle
third-party claims and disputes (Note 32) and that adequate
disclosure has been made under International Accounting
Standards (|AS) 1 {paragraph 129) inrespect of estimation
uncertainties that might impact the accounts in the following
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financial year, Where the outcome of an existing issue is
uncertain, or where no reliable estimate of the potentiat liability
can be made, no provision has been made ond appropriate
disclosure is included under contingent liabilities (Note 34).

Restructuring Charges

The Group restructuring programme continued in 2077 in
response to the structural changes in the end-markets that we
serve. The Committee critically reviewed the treatment of the
restructuring costs disclosed as separately reporteditems in
2017 and concluded that these have been treated consistently
with the accounting policy. This ensures that anly significant
restructuring programmes that have a defined scope and are
material in nature are reported separately, which enables the
reader more clearly to understand the underlying results of
the Group.

Impairment of Intangible Assets

The year-end carrying value of goodwill of £643.2mwas tested
against the current and planned performance of the Steel
and Foundry cash-generating units (CGUs). The Committee
challenged both the determination of the relevant CGUs, the
planned and terminal growth assumptions as well as the
discount rates used in the assessments and the relevant
sensitivities that were evaluated, The detailed assumptions,
provided in Note 17, reflact both o reduction in global risk-free
rates offset by the impact of the increasing contribution from
the Group's operations in emerging markets.

The Committee considered the Board-approved medium-term
business plans, the range of industry longer-term projections
and expert views on discount rates. Given that the models
indicated that there remains significant headroom between the
value in use and the carrying value, the Committee concurred
that no goodwillimpairment charges were required.

Working Capital Provisions

The Committee challenged the level of provisions held against
both receivables and inventories (Notes 18 and 19) and,

after reviewing ageing analyses, regional analyses and
specific customer accounts, concluded that the provisions
held were appropriate.

Pensions

Determining the current value of the Group's future pension
obligations requires a number of assumptions. The
oppropriateness of assumptions used (described in Note 28)
was questioned by the Committee, as small changesin the
assumptions could have material effects and bond yields in
particular have been volatile. The assumptions made by
managerent for each of the major schemes were compared
by PwC with other similor schemes. The Committee agreed
the reasonableness of the assumptions.

Fair, Balanced and Understandable Reporting

The Committee considered all the information available to

itin reviewing the overall content of the Annual Report and
Accounts and the process by which it was compiled and
reviewed, to enable it to provide advice to the Board that the
Annual Report is fair, balanced and understandakble. In doing
so, the Committee ensured that time was again dedicated to
the drafting and review process so that internal linkages were
identified and consistency was tested. The Committee
welcomed the ottention that had been paid in the 2017 Annual
Report to explain further the strategy, markets, execution
pricrities and business model of the Group. Drafts of the Annual
Report and Accounts were also reviewed by a senior executive
not directly involved inthe year-end process who reported to the
Committee on his impressions of clarity, comprehensiveness,
balance and disclosure inthe document. On completion of the
process, the Committee was satisfied that it could recommend
tothe Board that the Annual Report and Accounts is fair,
balanced and understandable.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

As highlighted in the reviews of strategy and principal risks in the
Strategic Report, risk managerment is inherent in management’s
thinking and is embedded in the business planning processes of
the Group. The Board has overall responsibility for establishing
and maintaining a system of risk management and internal
control, and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Audit
Committee assists the Board in reviewing the effectiveness of
the Group's systerm of internal control, including financial,
operational and compliance controls, and risk management
systems. This framework is consistent with the Code.

As part of its review of the Group's principal risks and
uncertainties, the Committee supported the Board inits review
of risks in 2017. As in previous years, a bottom-up mapping of
the risks was constructed and reviewed in each major business
unit, delivering a risk register that was then reviewed by the
Head of Internal Audit, fo deliver a coardinated picture of the
key operational risks identified by the business. In conjunction
with this, all the members of the Committee and the Board
contributed their individual views of top-down strategic risks
facing the Group into this process — drawing on the broad
commercial and financiol experience gained bath inside and
outside the Group. Thisinformation was collated by the Head
of Internai Audif into a paper for discussion in the context of
the Group'sidentified principat risks. This was reviewed and
discussed at the Board, and, taking note of the Board's
comments, subsequently by the Group Executive Committee.
In monitoring the overall process, Committee members also
fully participated in the Board review of existing risks and
engoing mitigating actions. The Committee determined that
this approach once again enhanced the Group's process for
identifying and understanding the Group's principal risks

and uncertainties, which are set out on pages 24 and 25.

The Cormmittee continues to consider that this process is robust
and appropriate.



The Committee considered the Company's going concern
statement and challenged the nature, quantum and
combination of the unlikely but significant risks to the business
madel, future performance, solvency and liquidity of the Group
that were modelled as part of the scenarios and stress testing
undertaken to support the Viability Statement. As part of this
review, the Committee considered the Group's forecast funding
position over the next three years and analysed the impact of
various scenarios based upon pertinent key risks faced by the
Group and with reference to the Group's debt covenants.

The scenarios considered the impact of multiple risks occurring
simultaneously and additional mitigating actions that the
Group could take. The Committee noted that the Group's debt
profile had improved interms of maturity with the completion of
anew placement of €100m USPP Notes, and thot the resultant
debt headroom was sufficient to accommodate the modelled
stress scenarios. As aresylt of their review, the Committee was
satisfied that the going concern and Viability Statements had
been prepared on an appropriate basis. The 2017 going
concern statement is contained inthe Directors' Report on
page 117 and the 2017 Viability Statement is contained within
the Strategic Report and can be found on page 23.

The Committee also maintains a programme of in-depth
reviews into specific financial, operational and regulatory areas
for the business. These reviews allow the Committea to meet
with the business colleagues responsible for these areas and
gain greater in-depth understanding about key areas for the
Group. In 2077, the Commirtee undertook 'deep dive' reviews

of pensions and cybersecurity. The former provided the
Comrmittee with a detailed overview of the Group's principal
liabilities under defined benefit schemes and the steps that were
being taken to manage these, noting that de-risking roadmaps
are in place for each of the funds. The cyber review covered the
assessment of the Group's cyber security risks, the operation of
the Group's Cyber Security Steering Committee and the actions
that were being taken throughout the organisation to improve
cyber security. it was noted thatimprovements had beenseen
inoverall cyber awareness following two successful training
campaigns and that plans were in place to allocate additional
resources to cyber security during 2018.

In addition, the Committee reviewed the draft UK Tax Strategy
disclosure, neting that this had been prepared for publication
onthe Group's website in line with statutory requirements,

and recommended that it be approved by the Board.

The key features of the Group's internal control system,

which provides assurance on the accuracy and reliability of

the Group's financial reporting are detalled in the Governance
Report on page 83. During 2017, the Commitiee considered
the process by which manogement evaluates internal controls
across the Group. The Head of Internal Audit provided the
Committee with a surmnmary overview of the assurance provided
by the Group's control framewark and the testing of these
controls. PwC alsc reviewed controls in the businesses within the
scope of its audit. Thisreview indicated an appropriate contro!
environment, with identified improvement actions under careful
management by the Group.
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The Group is made up of several large operating units, but
also many small units in geographically diverse locations.
Consequently, segregation of duties, overlapping access
controls on systems and remote managernent oversight can
give rise to control vulnerabilities and fraud opportunities.
The Group has not adepted a common Enterprise Resource
Planning system as o Group-wide standard. Over fime,
management intends fo move to more sharing of services,
enabled by process and systems standardisation between
businesses. Thisis likely to improve the overallinternal controls
in the smalier operating units.

The Group undertakes a range of activities to mitigate the risk
of fraud. This framework is regularly reviewed to determine
areas for improvement. In assessing the effectiveness of the
Group'sinternal controls, the Committee considered the following
initiatives which had beenimplemented over the past two years:

> The publication of a revised Group authority matrix to
emphasise a clear assignment of responsibilities
and authorities

> A continued focus by regional finance directors and the
centralfinance team on balance sheet recanciliations;

> The ongoing review by Internal Audit of the separation of
duties and access rights ot operating entities, to ensure that no
one person is in sole control of all aspects of any transaction,
to mitigate the risk of fraud

> An updoted employee vetting process for prospective senior
employees in higher-risk countries

> Ongoing internal communications on the heightened risk
of sacial-engineering fraud, coupled with increased cyber
security fraining fo raise awareness of the use of malware

> The formation of o cyber security working group, to focus
onenhancing the Group's resilience to cyber risks

Eliminating the risk of fraud remains one of the key agreas of
focus for Internat Audit, forming a fundamental part of 'full
scope’ and financial audits. These assess the quality of the
balance sheet reconciliation, review key judgement matters,
consider ERP access rights, review tenders and gquetatians,
review the entity’s controls over master data changes, and
controls over payments and associated applications.

During 2017 the Group continued its review of third-party
representatives and intermediaries. This included detailed due
diligence for active sales agents and, where required, updates
o the contractual basis on which these agents are engaged.
The review will be extended to other third-party representatives
and intermediaries during 2018. The Committee continued its
assessment of the Graup's patential exposure to bribery and
corruption risks, noting the ongoing work conducted by the
Groupinthis context, such as face-to-face visits fo operations,
providing focused, country-specific training and reviewing
financial records, sometimes with the assistance of external
advisers. The outpur of these processes and previous risk
assessments continue to be used to develop Group policies and
procedures far the management of anti-bribery and corruption
risk, reflecting an appropriate level of control for the business.
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Audit Committee continued

The Committee continues to monitor and oversee procedures
regarding allegations of improper behaviour and employee
complaints. Further details of the operation of the Group's
Speak-Up policy and helpline can be found in the ‘Our
Principles’ section. Throughout the year the Audit Committee
received updates onthe volume of reports, key themes emerging
from these reports and the results of invastigations undertaken.

Each year the senior financial, operational and functional
management of the businesses self-certify compliance with
Group policies and procedures for the areas of the business
under their respensibility and confirm the existence of odequate
internal control systems throughout the year. The Cormmittee
reviews any excepfions noted in this bottom-up exercise.

After considering these various inputs, the Committee was
able to provide assurance to the Board onthe effectiveness
of internal financicl control within the Group, and on the
adeguacy of the Group's broader internal control systems.

Internal Audit

The Group's Internal Audit function operates on o global basis
through professionally qualified and experienced individual
mermbers located around the world, including an auditor with
specialist IT knowledge. They report to the Head of Internal
Audit, based in London, who inturn reports directly to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee.

During the year the approach ta internal audit was updated,
with audit activities subdivided into two different categories:
Compliance & Control (C&C"), and Effectiveness & Efficiency
{E&E). C&C audit activities facus entirely en internal financial
control and key Board compliance issues, whereas the E&E
audit activities examine a broader constituency of business
performance issues. Characterising the audit process in this way
enablesthe Audit Committea to concentrate more specifically
on key controlissues for resolution, with reporting focused on
C&C oudit activity, and more general commentary provided
onthe outcome of E&E audit activities. The detailed cutcomes
of E&E audits are then used to engage management onthe
broader performance issues identified by the Infernal Audit
team. During the year, the frequency of meetings between the
Head of Internal Audit and the Business Unit Presidents was
also increased, to ensure that engogement on the resolution
of issues s clearly understood at all levels of the business and
responsibility for remediation taken accordingly.

The Committee received, considered and approved the 2017
Internal Audit plan which was constructed using a risk-based
approach to cover the Group's contral environment. The plan
was bosed on the premise that all operating units are internally
audited at least once in everythree-year period, whilst
maintaining a focus on smaller operating units. Athird of
operating units are now subject to internal audit twice in every
three-year period, and Internal Audit annually cudits each

of the large operating entities located in Germany, the US,
Ching, Mexico and Brazil. During the year the Committee also

considered and approved changes to the Internal Audit plan as
required. These changes meant that the Internal Audif coverage
was greater than in previcus years and audits were carried out
with more in-depth analysis across legal entities and operating
units. In addition, in 2017 many project-based reviews were

also undertaken.

in 2017, @ total of 56 cudit assignmenis, including three
unplanned audits, were undertaken by Internal Audir, covering
65% of the Group's revenue and 60% of the Group's profit
before tox. The Committee received o 'dashboard’ from the
Head of Internal Audit at each of its meetings, detailing
progress against the agreed plan and identifying key trends
and findings from Internal Audit reports, along with progress on
the resolution of actions agreed. Common thernes emerging
from Internal Audit reports were discussed and these
discussions have informed the compilation of the 2018 Internal
Audit plon. When necessary Internal Audit uses external
outsourced auditors to supplement Internal Audit on an ad-hoc
basis. The cutsourcing process provides valuable learning
opportunities and we expect to continue 1o use outsourcing

in specialist areas and geographies in the future. Where control
issues or other problems are flagged by the fieldwork, they are
recorded in a live web-based database into which management
and operational entities are required to report progress
against audit exceptions. In this way, Internal Audit menitors
the progress and adequacy of the remediotion steps taken.
Additionally, regular meetings are held with each business unit
President to discuss the progress against high-priority issues.
Consequently, the Cammittee has oversight of appropriate and
fimely actions taken by the responsible management. The Audit
Committee also involved senior management as necessary te
provide an update against high-priority actions and Internal
Audit provided follow-up reviews as required, to ensure that
there was clarity on the responsibility for delivery of salutions 1o
the audit findings. In situations where audit findings required
longer-term solutions, the Committee eversawthe process for
ensuring thot adequate mitigation actions were taken while
permanent solutions are pursued.

During the year, a review wos undertaken of the effectiveness
of the Internal Audit function. The review, which canvassed the
views of Non-executive Directors and senior management,
confirmed that the Internal Audit function continued to operate
to a high standard, with a good understanding of the business
and an appropriate scope. Respondents noted the high degree
of energy, professionalism and independence exhibited by the
function, ond welcomed the steps that had been taken o
irprove the interface with the management of each of the
business units.

Having considered the work of the Internal Audit function
during 2017, including progress against the 2017 Internal
Audit plan, the quality of reports provided to the Committee,
and the results of the review of the function's effectiveness,
the Cormmittee concluded that the Internal Audit function
operated effectively during 2017.



External Audit

Auditor Appointment

In 2016, the Committee undertook atender procass to

appoint o new statutory ouditor for the financial year ending

31 December 2017. The tender culminated in the appointment
of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (‘PwC") os external auditor
and the appointment of Mazars LLP to audit the non-material
entities within the Group. As a result, KPMG concluded its tenure
as the Group's external auditor during the year and, further to
the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the 2077 AGM,
PwC was appointed as the Group's external auditor for the year
ending 31 December 2017, PwC nominated Julian Jenkins as
the audit partner responsible for the Group audit. In line with the
regulations on auditor rotation, the external audit contract will
be put out to tender atleast every ten years. in addition, PwC
will be required to rotate the audit partner every five years.

Auditor Transition and 2017 Audit Plan

Pw('s transition plan focused on exiting the nan-audit services
that PwC provided to the Group, ond working with pecple from
across the business to build cn their understanding of the Group
and refine the planned approach o the audir, Key eferments of
the transition plan included: meeting with senior management,
local management, key functional heads and wider business
stakeholders to gain insight into the business; meeting with
KPMG and performing a detailed review of their working papers;
attending Committee meetings prior to the formal appeintment;
underraking a risk ossessment ta identify significant ond
elevated audit risks; and formulating and communicating @
detailed audit plan. During the year PwC provided regular
updates to the Committee on the status and progress of the
auditor transition plan, and valuable insights into the Group's
audit environment fram the results of their review.

In February 2018, the Audit Committee held a preliminary
meeting on year-end issues in advance of the finalisation of

the financial statements in early March. During the year, private
sessions were held with PwC without management being
present, covering reporting and controt issues in the context of
the resourcing of the Group Finance team. The Chairman of the
Audit Committee met on a number of occasions with PwC to
monitor the progress of the audit and discuss questions as they
arose. The strength of the finance teams across the Group was
also considered. In these sessions PwC contirmed that its work
had not been constrained in any way and that it was able to
exercise appropriate professional scepticism and challenge
throughout the audit process.

The Independent Auditors' Report provided by PwC on poges
124 tc 129 includes PwC’s assessment of the risks of material
misstatement in the occounts. These risk areas are discussed
inthe significant issues and material judgements comments
above. The report also summarises the scope, coverage and
materiality levels applied by PwC inits oudit. As part of the audit
planning process and based on a detailed risk assessment, the
Committee agreed a materiality figure of £7.6m for Group
financial reporting purposes which is higher than last year
(£4.0m) and, in line with similar groups, is set at 5% of headline

profit before tax of £152.9m. tmpaertantly, much lower levels of
materiality are used in the audit fieldwork on the individual
businesses across the Group and these lower figures drive the
scope and depth of audit work. Any misstatement at or above
£0.4m wos reported tothe Commiittee.

There were no significant changes this year fo the coverage of
the audit which stood at 68% of the Group's ravenue and 76% of
headline profitbefare tax. This coverage was considered to be
sufficient by the Committee. The oudit coverage is reflective

of the long tail of smaller businesses within the Group thar
individually are not 'material’ to the Group result.

The PwC audit fee approved by the Audit Committee was
£1.3m. This waos constructed bottom-up on a local currency
basis and was assessed in light of the audit work required by the
agreed materiality level and scope. It was agreed as part of the
avdittender process and updated for changesin scope that
were required during the year. The fee approved by Mazars for
the audit of the non-material entities was £0.4m, resulting ina
combined fee with PwC of £1.7m, comparedto £2.0m paid to
KPMG LLPin 2016. The reduction in fee follows from the tender
and the utilisation of two oudit firms. The Committee noted the
ruling by the Securities Exchange Board of India regarding the
prohibition placed on PwC network companies performing
audits of listed entities for two years from 1 January 2018. The
Committee is watching developrnents on this matter carefully in
the context of the Group's two listed Indian subsidiaries Fosece
India Limited and Vesuvius India Limited.

Independence and Objectivity

The Committee is responsible for safeguarding the
independence and objectivity of the external auditors in
order to ensure the integrity of the external audit process. In
discharging this responsibility during 2017, the Committee:

> Sought regular confirmaticn from the incumbent external
auditor that it considerad itself to be independent of the
Company in its own professional judgement, and within
the context of applicable professional standards

v

Evaluated allthe relationships between the external auditor
and the Group, including compliance with the Group's policy
on the employment of former employees of the external
auditor, o determine whether these impaired, or appear to
impair, the auditor's independence

> Reviewed compliance against the pelicy on the provision of
non-cudit services by the external auditor

v

Reviewed details of the non-audit services provided by the
external auditor and associated fees

The Committee noted that, in Sweden, o non-permitted service
had been performed by PwC during the transition process,
being supporting compliance in respect of payroll taxes. Given
the de minimis nature of the fee incurred and balances invalved,
the Committee concluded that the conduct of this work had not
affected Pw('s independence.

As aresult of its review the Committee concluded that PwC
rermained appropriately independent.
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Audit Committee continued

Non-audit Services

Vesuvius operates a pelicy for the approval of non-audit
services. This was revised in 20716, with the new policy applying
to the audit of the financial year ended 31 Decermber 2017 and
for financial years thereafter. A copy is available to view on the
'Investors/Corporate Governance’ section of the Company's
website, www.vesuvivs.com. Graup companies are not
permitted to use the external auditor for any "prohibited
non-audit services” as specified by the UK Financial Reporting
Council's (FRC's) Revised Ethical Standard 2016, unless subject
to a permitted derogation. The restrictions broadly prohibit
external auditors’involvement in tax services, any services
thatinvelve playing o portin management decision-making,
preparing accounting recerds, designing orimplementing
internal control/risk management services or financial systems,
certain HR services and other legal, investment and share-
dealing services. The external auditor can be invited tc provide
non-audit services which, in its position as external auditor, it
must or is best placed to undertake and which do notimpact
auditor objectivity or independence. All audit-related and
permissible non-audit services proposed to be carried out for
any Greup company worldwide by the external auditor must be
pre-gpproved by the Chief Financial Gfficer, who thereafter
will refer matters to be further approved by the Chairman of
the Audit Committee or the full Audit Committee before an
engagerment is agreed. Any assignment proposed o be carried
out by the external auditor must also have cleared the external
auditor's own internal pre-approval process to confirm the
firm's ethical ability to do the work.

In practice, the Group did not seek ta engage PwC for non-audit
services during 2017 unless thera were compelling advantages
to doing so. In 2017, the fees for non-audit services payable to
Pw{ amounted ta £0.1m, similar+ta the non-audit fees of £0.1m
payableto KPMG LLP last year. The 2017 fees represent payment
for assurance services related to the review of the Company's
half-year financial statements and quarterly reviews and fax
accounts in India (required by regulation). Tax compliance and
ofher non-audit services were forthe previously mentioned
Swedish service, and the transition of expatriate tax services to
the new outsourced provider.

Effectiveness and Reappointment of PwC for 2018

The Committee and the Board are committed to maintaining
the high quality of the external audit process. Throughout the
year the Committee assessed the performance of the external
auditor, taking into consideration;

> The quality of reports provided to the Committee, and the
quality of issues and challenges raised with the Committee
and with management across the Group

v

The level of insight exhibited in the feedback they provided
as port of the transition process

> Management's assessment of the transition process

v

Their definition and completion of the 2017 qudit plan

v

Their performance during their review of the 2017 half
yearresults

> The effectiveness of their relationship with the Committee,
with management and with Internal Audit

> Feedback fromthe Chief Financial Officer and Group
Financial Controller on the quality of local audit teams

The Committee also considered the FRC's Audit Quality
Inspection of Pw{C published in June 2017.

A process to formally assess PwC's performance in respect
of the 2017 financial year will be completed following the
completion of their year-end work, toking account of the
guidance for audit committees prepared by the FRC. As part
of this review, PwC will be asked to identify any issues they
consider could pose a risk to audit quality.

In an initial assessment of Pw('s performance during their first
vear of audit, the Committee concluded that PwC had provided
an effective audit for 2017. They had exhibited a good
understanding of the Group's businesses and internal controt
erwironment (based on ¢ significant process of engagement
with the business as part of audit transition) and had provided
sound feedback to the Committee onthe product of their
fransition work. They had established effective working
relationships with the Committee and with management, and
had exhibited cn appropriate level of professional scepticism
and robust challenge of management’s judgements as
appropriate. The Committee has therefere recommended to
the Board that PwC be reappointed for 2018. It confirms thot its
recommendation is free from the influence of any third party
and that there are no contractual restrictions on the choice of
auditor. Aresolution proposing the reappointment of PwC is
included inthe notice of AGM for 2078.

Audit Committee Evaluation

The Audit Committee’s performance was evaluated as part
ofthe overall externally facilitated Boord and Committee
performance evaluation, which is described in depth on page
82. The performance of the Committee was rated highly, with
its oversight seen to be of a very high standard. A number of
areas of focus had been identified by the 2016 evaluation and it
was felt that these had all been managed effectively in 2017,
The transition of the external auditor had progressed smoothly
and the institution by the Audit Committee Chairman of more
regular meetings with management outside formal Committes
meetings had enhanced the flow of information with the
Committee, The ‘deep dive’ initiative had once again proved
useful in providing the Committee with detailed information

on key topics and would be continued in 2018, and the
implementation of an additional Audit Committee meeting
early in the year end cycle had been positively received, and
would be continued.

On behalf of the Audit Committee
Decuglas Hurt Chairman, Audit Committee
28 February 2018



Nomination Committee

Dearshareholder,

On behalf of the Nomination Committee, | am pleased to
present the Nomination Committee Report for 2017

The primary responsibility of the Nomination Committee is to
focus on Beard succession planning fo ensure that the Board is
made up of individuals with the appropriate drive, abilities and
experience talead the Company in the delivery of its strategy.
In 2017 the Committee presided over the appointment of a new
Chief Executive as part of a planned succession process for
Frangois Wanecq, who retired from hisrole as Chief Executive at
the end of August 2017. We alsc appoainted a new independent
Non-executive Director, Holly Koeppel, in April 2017, who
strengthens the Board in terms of its knowledge, skills and
experience, replacing Nelda Conners who stepped down
fromthe Boardin late 2016.

The Committee reviews the current and future needs of the
Board and its Committees on an ongoing basis. In line with this,
during 2017, the Committee reviewed the tenure of all of the
Directors and discussed future Board rotation.

In additon, as part of the annual corporate governance

review conducted each year, the Committee examines the
independence of the Board and the balance of skills, and
development needs, of Board members. The output from this
process was used to define the recruitment requirements for the
new Directors, with each then having ajob specification drawn
uptotargetthe attributes required.

The Committee's succession planning activities do not
exclusively relate to the Board, but alse encompass the

senior management levels immediately below the Board.

The Committee is working to support and encourage the
growth of a consistent pool of talent able to step up to the top
roles in future years. The oversight of senior management
succession planning and talent development willbe a key area
for emphasis in 2018.

During 2017 the Board formalised its approach to diversity,

and approved a Board Diversity Policy. In line with this, the
Comemiftee continues 1o consider the mix of skills, experience
and knowledge required on the Board, and to promorte diversity
not only on the Board but alse throughout the wider business.

Yours sincerely

John McDconough CBE Chairman
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Committee Members

John McDonough CBE (Committee Chairman)
Christer Gardel!

Hock Goh

Jane Hinklay

Douglas Hurt

Holly Koeppel (appointed 3 April 2017)

The Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is made up of myself as Chairman
of the Company and any three of the Non-executive Directors.
During the year | continued as Chairman of the Committee,
though | would not act as Chairman if the Committee was
considering the appointment of my successor. In that case, the
Chairman would be an appropriate Non-executive Director.
The Company Secretary is Secretary to the Committee.
Members' biographies are set cut on pages 5¢and 57.

Key Activities during the Year

> Completion of Chief Executive recruitment: The Committee
compieted the Chief Executive succession process which
culminated in the selection and recommended appointment
of Patrick André as Chief Executive, succeeding Frangois
Wanecq on his retirement from the Company

> Non-executive appointment: The Committee led the search
for a new Non-executive Director resulting in the selection
and recommended appointment of Holly Koeppel

> Board composition: The Committee reviewed the skills,
knowledge and experience required for the Board to
continue fo function effectively, and evaluated the current
Board compaosition against an assessment of these future
business needs

> Board succession: The Committee reviewed the ongoing
requirements for Board rotation to maintain the correct skills,
experience and diversity at Board level

W

Directors’ elections: The Committee considered the Directors’
annual re-election at the 2017 AGM

> Committea evaluation: The Committee reviewed its
performance and effectiveness during 2017

Role and Responsibilities

The Nomination Committee’s foremast priorities are to ensure
that the Company has the best possible leadership, maintains

a clear plan for orderly Executive and Non-exacutive Director
succession, and cultivates the appropriate skills, experience and
diversity in the Board's overall compaosition. Its primary focus is
therefore on the strength of the Board, for which appointments
are made on merit, against objective criterig, selecting the best
candidate for the post. The Nomination Committes advises the
Boord on appointments, retirements and resignations from the
Beoard and its Committees.
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Nomination Committee continued

The Committee operates under formal terms of reference
which were reviewad and contirmed during the year.

The terms of reference are available on the Group's website
WWW.vesuvius.com.

The Committee and its members are empowered to obtain
outside legal or other independent professional advice atthe
cost of the Company in relation to its deliberations. These rights
were not exercised during the year. The Committee may also
secure the attendance ot its meetings of any employee or other
parties it considers necessary.

Process for Board Appointments

The Committee follows formal, rigorous and transparent
procedures for the appaintment of new Directors. When
considering a Board appointment, the Nomination Committee
draws up a specification for the role, toking into consideration
the balance of skills, knowledge and experience of its existing
members, the diversity of the Board, the independence of
continuing Board members, and the ongoing requirements and
anticipated strategic developments of the Group. The search
processis then able to focus on appointing a candidate with
the necessary attributes to enhance the Board's performance.
The Committee uses the services of search firms to identify
appropriate candidates, ensuring that any selected firm is not
inany way conflictedin the delivery of its role. In addition, the
Committee will only use those firms that have adopted the
Voluntary Code of Conduct addressing gender diversity and
best practice in search assignments.

During 2017, the Cormmittee oversaw a selection process fo
identify a new Chief Executive to succeed Frangois Wanecq
on his retirement from the Company, and the ongoing secrch
for a new Non-executive Director, following Nelda Connors’
retirement from the Board in 2016, The Committee reviewed
the skills and attributes required for each role, and agreed
individua! job specifications. The Committee utilised the
services of specialist recruitment agencies to search for suitable
candidates - Korn Ferry to identify prospective candidates
for the Chief Executive role, and Spencer Stuart to search for
anew Non-executive Director. Both agencies have adopted
the Voluntary Code of Conduct, and neither have any

other connection with the Group other thanin respect of
management recruitment work undertaken during normal
trading activities. Each agency was selected for their
assignment following o review of potential agencies based
on their skills, expertise and price.

Chief Executive

As part of the Group's ongoing senior managernent succession
planning processes, a detailed independent review of internal
candidates was undertaken, to consider candidates for
succession to the role of Chief Executive, with those individuals
identified as potential candidates fully integrated by Karn Ferry
into the search process. The Nomination Committee also

engaged external assistance to benchmark the skills and
experience required for the Chief Executive role, defining the
issues fundamental to the Vesuvius role, given the Group's
business, scale, geographical diversity, performance and
the stage of its development. The search was conducted
globally and along-list of potential oppointees was produced,
including external, internal, international and female
candidates. The Committee reviewed the long-list and a
shortlist of candidotes for interview was drawn up for the
role, based upon the objective criteria identified at inception.
The Chairman, and the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee interviewed aninitial short-fist of candidates,
with o shorter list of candidates then interviewed by the
Senior Independent Director and again by the Chairman.
Thetwofinal preferred candidates then met with all the
other Board members. Finally, detailed external references
were taken up and following this the Committee made formal
recommendations to the Board for the appointment of
Patrick André as the new Chief Executive. Patrick André was
supported in undertaking due diligence on the Company

in areas not connected to his previous role as President

Flow Contrael.

Non-executive Director

The search was conducted globally and a long-list of potential
appointees was produced by Spencer Stuart. The Committee
reviewed the long-list and a short-list of candidates for interview
was drawn up, based upon the objective criteria identified at
inception. The Chairman ond the Chief Executive interviewed
the short listed candidates, and the preferred candidate then
met with all other Board members. Detailled external references
were taken up and, following this, the Committee made a
formal recommendation to the Board for the appointment of
Holly Koeppel as a new Non-executive Director. Holly Keeppel
was supported in undertoking her own due diligence onthe
Compeny and meeting with its advisers. She was also required
ro demonstrate that she had sufficient tirme available to devote
to the role and to identify any potential conflicts of interest. No
conflicts wereidentified.

Following their appointment, the Committee has continued to
monitor the development and integration onto the Board of the
rwo new Directors. Holly Koeppel and Patrick André both
undertook afullinduction programme and have continued to
gain insight into the business and meet executives throughout
the organisation.

Board Composition

On an ongoing basis, the Committee reviews the current and
future needs of the Beard and its Committees —reflecting on
the balance of skills and experience of current Directors,

and comparing this against the Board's list of key skills.

The Committee also considers existing lengths of tenure and
the prospective rofation and retirement of Board rmembers, so
that it can plan accordingly. As part of the annual corporate



governance review conducted during the year, the Committee
examined the independence of the Board and the balance of
skills, and development needs of Board members. Based on
this analysis in 2014, the Committee concluded that the Board
would benefit from the appointment of o new Non-executive
Director with expert knowledge of the industrial sector, together
with a high degree of commercial acumen and global markets
knowledge. The Non-executive Director search identified
above wos commenced on this basis. In additien, the
Nomination Committee considered the future needs of the
business, its corporate strategy, cutrure and directionin
assessing its requirements of a new Chief Executive and used
this analysis to inform the recruitment process. The Committee
recognised thar the business needed an individual who had

a proventrack record of enhanced strategic thinking and
managing complexity, who also excelled at menaging and
developing relationships with a cross-section of people.

Diversity

All Directors have served at a very senior level in global
organisations, have international experience across a variety of
industries, and most have spent a considerable amaount of time
resident outside the UK. The Nomination Committee believes
that diversity underpins the successful operation of the Board.

It recognises that this is a key ingredient in creating a balanced
culture for discussions ond minimising ‘group-think’, and
continues with its policy to review the requirements for different
skills, experience, background and gender in respect of the
Board's compesition. During the year, the Board formalised its
approach to diversity, and approved a Board Diversity Policy,
details of which are set out on page 80. The Committee will
contfinue to consider the mix of skills, experience and knowledge
required on the Board, and promote diversity not only onthe
Board but also throughout the wider business.

Senior Management Succession

During the year, the Committee’s succession planning activities
did not exclusively relate to the Board, but continued to
encompass the senior management levels immediately below
the Board, aiming fo support and encourage the growth of a
consistent pool of talent able fo step up to the top roles in future
years. Conseguently, the Committee continued to monitor the
execution of development plans for the Group Executive
Committee ong supported the Beard in understanding the
process for the development of high potentials throughout

the business. The Board met key executives throughout the
Group to gain a greater understanding of the breadth and
depthof management talent. This process included a series of
presentations o the Board by business unit, functional and
geographical heads providing the basis for a more informed
approach fo executive succession planning and talent
development across the Group. As identified by the Board
evaluation process, the aversight of senicr management
succession planning will be a key area foremphasis in 2018.
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Committee Evaluation

The Committee’s activities were part of the externally facilitated
evalugtion of Board effectiveness during the year. The Committes
was considered to have performed effectively over the past
year and the oversight of the Chief Executive succession process
was commented on favourably. Priorities for the Committea
going forward include Board rotation over the longer term,

as well as succession planning and talent development for
senior management.

On behalf of the Nomination Committee
John McDonough CBE Chairman, Nomination Committea

28 February 2018
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Remuneration Overview

Dear shareholder,

On behalf of the Remuneration Committee, | am pleased to
present the Directors’ Remuneration Report for 2017, which
sets out details of the pay received by Directorsin 2017 and how
we intend to apply cur Remuneration Policy in 2018, This report
will be subjectto an advisory shareholder vote at the 2018
AGM. In 2017, Sharehelders approved a new Remuneration
Palicy for the Group. If no changes are made prior 1o the 2020
AGM, then the Company will next need to formaily fable a
Remuneraticn Policy at that meeting. All payments received

by Directors in 2017 were in line with our Remuneration Policy.

| have set out details below of the key decisions made by the
Committee during 2017. More details about these are included
inthe Annual Repert on Directors’ Remuneration.

Performancein 2017

As described in the Strategic Report, 2017 was a year of

good progress for the Group with revenue growth of 20.2%
outperforming end markets and the global steel marker.
Cespite experiencing headwinds related fo rising raw material
prices and inter-company imports required by Flow Control in
Europe, the Group saw a 24.2% increase in reported trading
profit, with cash generation remaining strong. Throughout the
year, the Group remained focused on its strategic priorities
and made goed progress with the restructuring prograrmnme
delivering increased annualised savings, strong progress in
developing markets andfurther investment in R&D.

In 2077, Annual Incentive awards for the Executive Directors
were based 60% on Group headline earnings per share (EPS),
20% on the Group's cash conversion (defined as operating cash
flow divided by frading profit) and 20% on specified personal
objectives. In order to further align the interests of our Directors
with those of our shareholders, we introduced a requirement
inthe 2077 Remuneration Policy for deferral of a proportion
(normally 33%) of the Annuat Incentive into awards over shares
for three years. Given the appeiniment parf way through

the year of a new Chief Executive, both MrWanecg's and

Mr André's awards, as Chief Executives, were accordingly
pro-rated.

In 2017, our retranslated headline EPS of 39.1p was above the
maximum Annual Incentive target of 35.6p. The Group's 2017
cash conversion of 104% was between the threshold of 0% and
the target of 105%. This results in awards of 75% and 11.38% of
base salary respectively, being 86.38% intotal for the current
Executive Directors, Patrick André and Guy Young, and for
Francais Wanecq, in respect of the financial performance
metrics. in addition, we assessed each Executive Director's
completion of the personcl objectives they were set for 2017,
awarding Mr André and Mr Young 19.65% and 15.75%
respectively of their maximum entitlements of 25%, and

Mr Wanecq 15.00%. As aresult, the overall Annual Incentive
payable to Mr André for 2017 is 106.03% of base salary
(pro-rated in respect of his service as an Executive Director),
Mr Young 102.13% of base salary, and MrWanecq 101.38%
of base salary against maximum bonus eppertunities of 125%.
In addition, Mr André received an Annual Incentive payout

of 65.04% of his pro-rated base salary for 2017, out of @
maximum bonus epportunity of 80%, in respect of his tenure
as President, Flow Control priar to his appointment as Chief
Executive. Mr Wanecq received an Annuai Incentive payout

of 106.38% of his pro-rated base salary for the period of
service from 1 September 2017 10 31 December 2017, when

he had ceased 1o be a Director but remained as an employee
of the Group.

The performance period for the awards made under the
Vesuvius Share Plan in 2015 matured at the end of December
2017. Performance was measured equally by reference to Total
Shareholder Return (TSR) relative to the FTSE 250 (excluding
investment frusts} and headline EPS growth above compound
annual GDP growth cver the three-year period. Relative TSR
performance was between median and upper quintile; asa
result 27.1% of Performance Share awards will vest under the
TSR element {out of a maximum 50%). The annua! compound
headline EPS growth cbove GDP for the period was 4.3%.

As aresult, 16.6% of Performance Share awards will vest under
the EPS performance element {out of @ maximum of 50%).
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In confirming the vesting of the Performance Shares, the
Committee reviewed the underlying performance of the
Company to satisfyitself that the outcome was justified.
Awards will vestin April 2018,

Other Key Decisions made by the Committee
for 2017

Key decisions made by the Commirtee in 2017 included:

> Review, consideration and approval of an appropriate
remuneration package for Patrick André, our new Chief
Executive. The principal fectures of his remuneration
package were announced ot the time of his appointment
andthey areincluded inthe applicable sections of this year's
Remuneration Repart.

> In conjunction with the transition of Chief Executive, the
Committee also considered the retirerent arrangements for
Frangois Wanecq. A summary of these arrangements was
included in the Section 430(2B) statemant published on the
Company's website, and details are also included in this year's
Remuneration Report.

> The Remuneration Policy approved in 2017 states that, whilst
anindividual's performance is reviewed annually, chenges to
base salary are nermally appraised over atwo or three-year
period. Inline with this policy, the Committee reviewed Guy
Young'ssalary in 2017. It was agreed that his salary should be
increased by 7.7% to £350,000 with effect from 1 January
20718. Thisisthefirstincrease in Guy's salary since he joined
Vasuvius in 2015 and reflects the considerable diligence and
dedication he has brought to the role and his development in
it since the time of his appointment.

A

The Committee considered the structure of performance
measures forincentivesin 2018. Having reviewed the existing
arrangements, the Committee intends 1o use the same
framework for performance measures in 2018 that was used
in 2017 for Executive Directors’ incentive awards, updating
one of the metrics ta reflect more effectively the strategic
demands of the business. Thus, these measures reward:

- Growth: through the EPS measure used in the Annucl
Incentive and the Vesuvius Share Plan - as in 2017

— Effective working capital management: through an
updated target of working capital to sales ratio (based
on the 12-month moving average) to be used in the
Annual Incentive

- Delivery of shareholder value: through the TSR measure
used in the Vesuvius Share Plen—asin 20717

> |naddition, the Committee also took decisions about the
grant and vesting of Share Plan awardsin 2017 and the
Annual Incentive Plan payments made in 2017 in respect
of 2016.

Shareholders’ Views

The Committee encourages dialogue with its major
shareholders. Itis satisfied that the current Remuneration Pelicy
is designed to promote the long-term success of the Company,
and that the performance-related elements of remuneration,
which are kept under review, are transparent, stretching and
rigorously applied. The Committee was encouraged by the
significant support shown for the new Remuneration Policy
when it was tabled at the 2017 AGM (99% of votes in favour).

I remain keento hear shareholders’ views on remuneration
matters and lock forward to an ongoing dialogue with
shareholders and their continued support for our Directors’
Remuneration Report resolution at the AGM.

Yours sincerely
Jane Hinkley Chairman, Remuneration Committee

28 February 2018

97

9IUDUIZACL)



98

Vesuvius plc
Annual Report and Accounts 20017

Directors' Remuneration Report

Remuneration Policy

The Company's existing Remuneration Policy was opproved at the AGM held on 10 May 2017. The previous policy applied inits
entirety up until this date and after this date those elemeants of the previous policy that related to remuneration that remained
extant on this date (such as outstanding share awards) continued to apply until thase commitments cease.

The full policy report, as approved by shareholders, can be found in the 2016 Annual Report {a copy of whichis available under the
Reports tab in the ‘Investers' section of the Group website www.vesuvius.com). For the benefit of shareholders, we have reprinted
the Policy below. To ensure that the Policy is relevant to the 2018 financial year, we have made minor textual changes torefer ta the
applicable financial year in the following sections: lllustration of the Application of the Remuneration Policy for 2078 (which also
contains, as described, 2017 data); and Consideration of Shareholder Views. We have amended the ‘Service contracts’ section to
refer to the terms of the current Executive Directors and the ‘Terms of service’' section to refer to the dates of appointment of the
current non-executive directors.

The Remuneration Cormmittes reserves the right fo make any remuneration payments and payments for toss of office (including
exercising any discretions available toitin connection with such paymenits}, notwithstanding that they are notin line with the policy
set cut here, where the terms of the payment were agreed; (i) before the date the Company’s first Remuneration Policy approved
by sharehoiders in accordance with section 439A of the Companies Act came into effect; (i) befare the policy set out here came
into effect, provided that the terms of the payment were consistent with the shareholder-approved Remuneration Policy in force
at the time they were agreed; or (iii} ot a time when the relevant individual was net a Director of the Company and, in the opinion
of the Remuneration Committee, the payment was notin consideration for the individual becoming a Director of the Company.
For these purpeses, ‘payments’ includes the Remuneration Committee satisfying awards of varioble remuneration and, inrelation
to an award over shares, the terms of the payment are ‘agreed’ atthe time the award is granted.

Remuneration Policy Table for Executive Directors

Base salary

Opportunity
Salory increases will normally be inlinewith

Alignment/purpose

Helpsto recruit and retain key employees. Intine with thetwo ta three-year period for

Reflects theindividual's experience, role
and centribution within the Company

Operation

Theindividual's performance is reviewed
annualiy, with changesto base salary
normally approised over g two to three-
year peried.

Any change willnarmally be effective
from 1 January inthe year of theincrease.

Basesalaryis positioned to be market
competitive when considered against other
globalindustrial companies, and relevont
international and FTSE 250 companies
(excluding Investment Trusts).

Paid in cash, subject to local tox ond social
security regulations.

Other benefits

Alignment/purpose
Provides normal market practice benefits,

Operation

Arangeof standard benefits including,
but notlimited to: car allowance, privare
medical care {including spouse and

the average increase awarded to other

employeesin the Group over c similar period.

Inconsidering anyincreasein base salary,
the Committee will also consider:

(i} theroleandvalueof the individual;
(i) changes injobscope or responsibility;

(i} progressionintherole (e.g. for anew
appointes);

(iv) asignificantincrease inthe scale of role
and/orsize, volue or complexity of the
Group; and

{v) the need toc maintain market
competitiveness.

dependent children), lifeinsurance, disability

ondhealth insurance, together with

relocation allowance and expatriate benefits,

insome instances grossed up fortax, in
accordance with the Group's policies, and
participationin any employee share scheme
operafed by the Group.

bose salory appraisal, individualincreases
when paid are likely tobe inexcess of those
forthe wider population of employees for
thatyear.

Noobsolute maximum has been set for
Executive Director base salares. Current
Executive Directors’ salaries aresetoutinthe
Annual Report on Directors' Remuneration
section of this Remuneration Report.

Performance

Anyincrecse will take into account the
individual's performance, contribution
and increasing experience.

Opportunity

Thereis no farmal maximum as benefit costs
can fluctuate depending on changesin
provider, cost andindividual circumstances.

Performance
None



Pension

Alignment/purpose

Helps to recruit and retain key employees.
Ensuresincome inretirement.

Annual Incentive

Alignment/purpose

Incentivises Executive Directors to achieve
key short-term financial and strategic
rargets of the Group.

Additioncl clignment with shareholders'
interasts through the operation of
bonusdeferrall

Operation

Normally 33% of any Annual incentive
earned by Executive Directors will be
deferred into awards over shares under

the Vesuvius Deferred Share Bonus Plan
which normally vest after atlegst three
years, otherthanin specified ¢ircumstances
outlined elsewhere in this Policy, These may
be cash or share settled.

Vesuvius Share Plan

Alignment/purpose
Flexible ‘umbrella’ plan.

Aligns Executive Directors' interests with
those of shareholdersthrough the delivery
of shares. Rewards Executive Directors
for achievingthe strategic objectives of
growthinsharehclder value and earnings.

Assists retention of Executive Directors
aver athree-year performance period
Operation

Awards may be granted as:

> Performance share awards

> Deferred share bonus awards

> Restricted share awards

= Muarket-price options

These may be cash or share settled.

Individuals are entitled fo an aggregate
ennual maximum amount of awards.

If more than one type of award is granted,
theindividual Imitfor oll awards s reduced
to remain within the maximum

Operation

Anallowanceis given as a percentage of
base sclary. This may be used to participate
in Vesuvius' pension arrangements, invested
inown pensionarrongements ortckenasc
cash supplement (or any combinction of the
above options).

The Committee has the discretion to
determine that actualincentive payments
should be lower than levels calculated by
reference to achievement against targets
if it considers thisto be appropricte.

The Committee has the discretion to
award participants the equivalent value
of dividends accrued during the vesting
period on any shares that vest.

Subjectto malus and clawback.

Opportunity
Below threshold: 0%,

On-target: 62.5% of base salary.
Maximum: 125% of base salary.

Payments made between threshold
ond on-target and between on-target
and maximum are pro-rated.

Awards vest three years after their award
date, otherthanin specified circumstances
outlined elsewhereinthis palicy, subjectto
the achievement of specified conditions.

The Committee may decide that the sharesin
respect of which an award vests are delivered
to participants at that point or that awards
will then be subject to an additionclhelding
period before participants are entitled to
receive their shares.

The Committee has the discrefionto award
participants the equivalent value of dividends
gccrued during the vesting periodenany
sharesthat vest.

Subject to malus and clawback.

Opportunity

Executive Directors areeligible toreceive
an annual award with a foce value of up
t0 200% of base salary in Performance
share awards.

Vesting atthreshold performanceis 25%

rising 1o vesting of the full oward at maximum.

Opportunity
Maximum of 30% of base salary.

Performance
None

Performance

Annual Incentive is measured ontorgets set of
the beginning of eachyear. The Committee
establishes threshold and maximum
performance targets for each financial year.
The mojority of the Annual Incentive will be
determined by measure(s} of Group financial
performance. Theremainder of the Annual
Incentive will be based on financial, strategic
oroperational measures appropriate to the
individual Director. Perfarmanceis measured
aver aone-year period. Actual performance
targets will be disclosed afterthe
performance periad hasended. They are
notdisclosed in advance due to their
commercial sensitivity.

Performance

Vesting of Performance Share awards s
usually dependent on measures of Group
EPS and relative TSR with the precise
measures and weighting of the measures
determined by the Committee ahead ef each
award. These details are disclosedinthe
Annual Report on Directors' Remuneration
section of this Remuneration Report

The Company reserves theright only to
disclose EPS performance targets after the
performance period has ended, duato their
commercial sensitivity.

Prior to any vesting, the Remuneration
Committee alsc reviews the underlying
financigl performance of the Cornpany over
the performance period to ensure the vesting
is justified.
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Remuneration Policy continued

Malus/Clawback Arrangements

The Executive Directors' variable remuneration is subject to
malus and clawback provisions. These provide the Committee
with the flexibility, if required, to withhold or recover payments
made to Executive Directors under the Annual incentive Plan
(including deferred awards) and/or to withhold er recover share
awards granted to Executive Directors under the Vesuvius
Share Plan, including any dividends granted on such awards.
The circumstances in which the Committee could potentially
elect to apply malus and clawback provisions include: a
material misstatement in the Company's finoncial statements;
anerrorinthe calculotion of the extent of payment or vesting of
an incentive; gross misconduct by an individual; or significant
financial loss or serious reputational damage to Vesuvius ple
resulting from an individual’s conduct, a material failure of

risk management or a serious breach of health and safety.
These malus and clawback provisions apply for a period of

up to three years after the end of a performance period

{orend of the deferral period inrespect of deferred awards).

Performance Measures

Inselecting performance measures for the Annual Incentive,
the Committee secks toreflect key strategic aims and the
need for arigorous focus on financial performance. Each year
the Committee agrees challenging targets to ensure that
underperformanceis not rewarded. The Company will not be
disclosing the specific financial or personal objectives set until
after the relevant performance period has ended because of
commercial sensitivities. The personal objectives are all
non-financial orjob-specificin nature and track performance
against key strategic, organisational and operational goals.

Inselecting performance measures for the Vesuvius Share
Plan, the Committee seeks to focus Executive Directors on
the execution of long-term strategy and also align their
rewards with value created for shareholders. On this basis,
the performance conditions for the Vesuvius Performance
Share awards will usually be dependent on measures based
on TSR and EPS performance.

Within the policy periad, the Committee will continually review
the performance measures used, including TSR and the
applicable comparator group, and EPS and other financial
measures, o ensure that awards are made on the basis of
challenging targets that clearly support the achievement of
the Group's strategic gims.

The Committee may vary or waive any performance
condition(s} if circumstances occur which cause it to determine
that the original condition{s) hove ceased 1o be appropriate,
provided that any such variation or waiver is fair, reasonable
and not materially less difficult to satisfy than the eriginal
condition {inits opinion). In the event that the Committee were
to make an adjustment of this sort, a full explanation would be
provided in the next Remuneration Report.

The Committee may: (a) in the event of a variation of the
Company's share capital, demerger, special dividend or any
other corporate event which it reasonably determines justifies
such an adjustment, adjust; and (b) amend the terms of
awards granted under the share schemes referred to above
in accordance with the rules of the relevant plans.

Share awards may be settled by the issue of new shares or

by the transfer of existing shares, In line with prevailing best
practice atthe time this Policy Report was approved, any
issuance of new shares is limited to 5% of share capital over a
roliing ten-year period in relation 1o discretionary employee
share schemes and 10% of share capital over a rolling ten-year
period in relation to all employee share schemes.



Hustration of the Application of the Remuneration
Policy for 2018

The charts below show the total remuneration for Executive
Directors for 2018 for minimum, on-target and maximum
perfarmance. The fixed elements of remuneration comprise

base salary, pension and cther benefits, using 2018 salary data.

The assumptions on which they are calculared are as follows:
Minimum: Fixed remuneration only.

On-target: Fixed remuneration plus on-target Annual Incentive
(made at 62.5% of base salary for Patrick André and

Guy Young) and threshold vesting (i.e. median performance
for TSR and threshald for EPS) for Performance Share awards
{made at 200% of base salary for Patrick André and 150% of
base salary for Guy Young) under the Vesuvius Share Plan.

Maximum: Fixed remuneration plus maximum Annual Incentive
(being fuil achievernent of financial and personaltargets, made
at 125% of base salary for Patrick André end Guy Young) and
100% vesting for Performance Share awards (made ot 200%
of base salary for Patrick André and 150% of base salary for
Guy Young) under the Vesuvius Share Plan.

Note: |n additien the Commitiee retains the discretion to award dividends
{either shares or their cash equivalent] on any shares that vest

Service Contracts of Executive Directors

The Committee will pericdically review the contractual terms
for new Executive Directors to ensure these reflect best practice.
Service contracts currently operate on a rolling basis and are
fimited to a 12-month notice period.

Patrick André is employed as Chief Executive of Vesuvius plc
pursuant to the terms of o service agreement made with
Vesuvius plc dated 17 July 2017, Guy Young is employed as
Chief Financial Officer pursucnttothe terms of a service
agreement with Vesuvius plc dated 16 September 2015,

Each Executive Director's appointmerit is terminable by
Vesuvius on not less than 12 months’ written notice, and by each
Executive Director on not less than six menths’ written notice.

External Appointments of Executive Directors

The Executive Directors do not currently serve as Non-executive
Directors of any other quoted company. Subject always to
consent being granted by the Company for them to take up such
an appeintment, were they to so serve, the Company would
allow them to retain any fees they received forthe performance
of their duties.

101

2IUDUIRAOD I



102 Vesuvius ple
Annual Repert and Accounts 2017

Remuneration Policy continued

Remuneration Policy for Non-executive Directors

The Company seeks to appoint Non-executive Directors who have refevant professional knowledge, ond have gained experience
in arelevant industry and geographical sector, to support diversity of expertise at the Board and match the wide geographical
spread of the Company's activities.

Non-executive Directors attend Board, Committee and other meetings, held mainly in the UK, together with an annual strategy
review to debate the Company's strategic direction. All Non-executive Directors are expected to familiarise themselves with the
scate and scape of the Company's business and to maintain their specific technical skills and knowledge.

The Board sets the level of fees paid to the Non-executive Directors after considering the role and respensibilities of each Director
and the practice of other companies of asimilar size and international complexity. The Non-executive Directors do not participate
in Board discussions on their own remuneration. No variable remuneration is available to Non-executive Directors. Non-executive
Directors receive reimbursement of reasonable expensesincurred in attending the Board, Committee and other ad hoc meetings,
including gross up payments fo cover any personal fax owed on such expenses.

Fees
Alignment/purpose The Chairman is paid a single fee and Base fees paid to Non-executive
Tocttract and retain Non-executive Directors  receives administrative support from Directors willin aggregate remain within
ofthe necessary skill andexperience by the Company. 1he aggregaote hmit statedin our Articles,
offering market-competitive fees. currently being £500,000
Opportunity
Operation Non-executive Directars and the Chairman Performance
Feesare usually reviewed every other will be poid market-appropriate fees, with None
year by the Board. anyincrease reflecting changesinthe market
or adjustments to a specific Non-executive
Non-executive Directors are paid abase Director'srole.
feeforthe performance of theirrole,
payableincash, plus additional feasfor Naoeligibility for bonuses, refirement benefits
Committee chairmanship oracting as or fo participate in the Group’s employee
the Senior Independent Director. share plans.
Benefits and expenses
Alignment/purpose Qperation Opportunity
To facilitate execution of responsibilities Al Non-executive Directors are reimbursed Non-executive Directors’ expensesare
and dutiesrequiredby therole. for reasonable expensesincurred in carrying paid in accordonce with Vesuvius’
outtheir duties (including any persconal tax expense procedures,
owing on such expenses),
Performance
None

Terms of Service of the Chairman and other Non-executive Directors

The terms of service of the Chairman and the Non-executive Directors are contained in letters of appeintment. Each Non-executive
Director is appointed subject to their election at the Company’s first Annual General Meeting following their appointment and
re-election at subsaquent Annual General Meetings. During the first yaar of his/her appointment, the Chairman s entitled to

12 months' notice from the Company; thereafter, he/she is enfitled o six months' notice fromthe Company. None of the other
Non-exacutive Directors is entitled fo receive compensation for loss of of fice at any time. All Non-executive Directors are subject

to refirement, and election or re-election, in accordance with the Company’s Arficles of Association. The current policy is for
Non-executive Directors to serve on the Board for a maoximum of nine years, with review at the end of three and six years,

subject always to mutual agreement and annual performance evaluation. The Board retains discretion to extend the tenure of
Non-executive Directors beyond this time, subject to the requirements of Board balance and independence being satisfied.



The table below shows the date of appointment for each of the Non-executive Directors:

Non-Executive Director

Dateof Appointment
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John Mc Donough CBE 31 October 2012
Christer Gardell 31 Cctober 2012
Hock Goh 2 April 2015

Jdane Hinkley 3 December 2012
Douglas Hurt 2 April 2015

Holly Koeppel 3 April 2017

Recruitment Policy

On appointment or promotion of a new Executive Directar,
the Committee will typically use the Remuneration Policy in
force atthe time of the Committee’s decision to determine
ongoing remunergtion,

Base salary levels will generally be set in accordance with the
Remuneration Policy current at the time of the Committee’s
decision, taking into accountthe experience and calibre of the
appointee. i itis appropriate to appoint anindividual on a base
salary initially below what is adjudged to be market positioning,
contingent on individual perfermance, the Committee retains
the discretion te reclign base salary over the onetothree years
following appointment, which may result in a higher rate of
annualised increase than might otherwise be awarded under
the policy. i the Commirtee intends to rely on this discretion,

it will be noted inthe first Remuneration Report following
anindividual’s appointment. Other than in exceptional
circumstances, other elements of annual remuneration will,
typically, be setin line with the Remuneration Policy including a
limit an awards under the Annual Incentive and Vesuvius Share
Plan of 325% of salary in aggregate. The Committee retains
the discretion to make the following further exceptions:

> Inthe eventthat an internal oppointment is made, or where
a Director is appointed as a result of transfer into the Group
on an acquisition of another Company, the Committes
may continue with existing remuneration provisions for this
individual, including pension entitlements, where appropriate

v

If necessary and appropriate to secure the appointment
of a candidate who has to move locations as aresult of the
appointrment, whether internal or external, the Committee
may make additional payments linked 1o relocation,
above those outlinedin the policy table, and would
authorise the payment of a relocation allowance and
repatriation, as well as other associated international
mobility terms. Such benefits would be set at alevel which
the Commiftee considers appropricte for the role and the
individual's circumstances

> [f appropriate the Committee may apply different
performance measures and/or targets to o Director's
firstincentive awards in his/her year of appointment

Service contracts will be entered into on terms similar to those
for the existing Executive Directors, summarised inthe ‘Service
confracts of Executive Directors' section above.

In addition to the annual remuneration elements noted above,
the Committee may consider buying outterms, incentives and
any other compensation arrangements forfeited on leaving

a previous employer that anindividual forfeits in accepting

an appeintment with Vesuvius. The Committee will have the
authority to rely on Listing Rule 9.4 2R(2} or to apply the
existing limits within the Vesuvius Share Plan to make Restricted
Share awards on recruitment. |n making any such awards,

the Committee will review the terms of any forfeited awards,
including, but not limited to, vesting periods, the expected value
of such awards on vesting and the likelihood of the performance
rargets applicable to such awards being met, while retaining
the discretion to make any buy-out award the Committee
determines is necessary and appropriate. The Committee may
also require the appointee to purchase shares in Vesuviusto a
pre-ogreed level prior to vesting of any such awards. The value
of any buy-out oward will be capped, o ensure its maximum
valueis no higher than the value of the awards that the
individual forfeited on joining Vesuvius. Any such awards will

be subject to malus and clawback.

With respect to the appointment of a new Chairman or
Non-executive Director, appointment terms will be consistent
with those applicoble at the tfime the appointment is agreed.
Variable pay willnot be considered. Withrespectto
Non-executive Directors, fees will be consistent with the

policy at the time the appeintment is agreed. If, in exceptional
circumstances, a Non-executive Director was asked to assume
an interim executive role, the Company retains the discretion
to pay them appropriate executive compensation, inline

with the policy.

Exit Payment Policy

Vesuvius has the option to make a payment in liev of partor all
of the required notice pericd for Executive Directors. Any such
payment in lieu will consist of the base salary, pension contributions
and value of benefirs 1o which the Director would have been
entitled for the duration of the remaining notice period, net of
statutory deductions in each cose. Half of any payments inlieu
of notice would be madein alump sum, the remainder in equal
monthly instalments commencing in the manth in which the
midpoint of their foregone notice period falls (and are reduced
or extinguished by salary from any role undertaken by the
departing Executive in this time). Executive Directors are subject
1o certain non-compete covenants for a period of nine months,
and non-sclicitation covenants for a period of 12 months,
following the termination of their employment. Their service
agreements are governed by English law.
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Executive Directors’ contracts do not contain any change of
control provisians; they do contain a duty to mitigate should
the Director find an alternative paid occupation in any periad
during which the Company must otherwise pay compensation
on early termination.

The table below summarises how the awards under the
annual bonus and Vesuvius Share Pian are typically treated

Evenr Timing

in different leaver scenarios and on a change of control.
Whilst the Committee retains overall discretion on determining
‘good leaver status, it typically defines a goodfeover'in
circumstances such as refirement with agreement of the
Company, ill health, disability, death, redundancy, or part of
the business in which the individual is employed or engaged
ceasing to be part of the Group. Final freatment is subject fo
the Committee’s discretion.

Calculation of vesting/poyment

Annual Incentive Plan

Good leaver
employees.

Paid at the same time as to continuing

Annualbonusis paid anly to the extent

that any performance conditions have been
satisfied and is pro rated for the proportion
of the financial year worked before cessation
of employment.

Badleaver Not applicable.

individuals lose the right to their annual bonus.

Change of control
of control.

Paid onthe effective date of change

Annualbenusis paid only to the extent that
any performance conditions have been
satisfied and is pro rated for the proportion
of the financial yeor worked.

Vesuvius Share Plan

Good leaver

On normal vesting date (or earlier at
the Committee’s discretion).

Unvested awards vest to the extent that any
performance conditions have been satisfied
and a prorata reduction applies to the value
of the awards to take into account the
proportion of vesting period not served, unless
the Committee decides thatthe reductionin
the number of vested sharesis inappropriate.

Badleaver Unvested awardslapse.

Unvested awards lopse on cessation
of employment.

Change of control’ Cnthe dote of the event.

Unvested awards vest to the extent that any
performance conditions have been satisfied
and a pro ratareduction appliesfor the
proportion of the vesting period not served.

Note:

1. In certain circumstances, the Cammittee may determing that usvested awards under the Vesuvius Share Plan will not vest on a change of conirol tutwellinsteod be reploced
by an equivalent grant of a new award, as determined by the Committee, in the new company.

Inthe case of the Vesuvius Deferred Share Bonus Plan if the
individual leaves for any reason (other than dismissal for cause)
orinthe event of a change in control, the deferred award will
vestin full, unless the Committee determines otherwise.

Benefits normally cecse to be provided on the date employment
ends. However, the Committee has the discretion to allow some
minor benefits (such as health insurance, tax advice and
repatfriofion expenses) to continue to be provided for a period
following cessation where thisis considered fair and reasonable
or appropriate cnthe basis of local market practice. In addition,
the Committee retains discretion to fund other expenses for the
Executive Director, for example, payments to meet legal fees
incurred in connection with fermination of employment, or to
meet the costs of providing outplacement support, and de
minimis fermination costs up to £5,000 o cover transfer of
mobile phone or other administrative expenses.

The Committee reserves tha right te make any other

payments in connection with o Director's cessation of office or
employment where the payments are made in good faith in
discharge of an existing legal obligation (or by way of domages
for breach of such an obligation) or by way of acompromise or
settlement of any claim arising in connection with the cessation
of a Director's office or employment.

In certain circumstances, the Committee may approve new
confractual arrangements with departing Executive Directors
including {but not limited to) settlement, confidentiality,
restrictive covenants and/or consultancy arrangements.
These would be used only where the Committee believed it
was in the best interests of the Company to do so.



Comparison of Remuneration Policy for Executive
Directors with that for other Employees

The Remuneration Policy for Executive Directors is designed

in line with the remuneration phitosophy set aut in this report
—which also underpins remuneration for the wider Group.
Remuneration arrangements for Executive Directors draw on
the same elements as those for other employees—base salary,
fixed benefits and retirement benefits —with performonce-
related pay extending down into the management cadres and
beyond. However, given that remuneration structures for other
employees need to reflect both seniority and local market
practice, they differ from the policy for Executive Directors.

In particular, Executive Directors receive a higher proportion
of their remuneration in performance-related pay and
share~-based payments. Individual percentages of fixed

versus variable remuneration and participation in share-bosed
structures decline as senjority decreases.

The process for delivering salary increases on atwoto
three-year cycle for Executive Directorsis also applied to
other members of the Group Executive Committee and their
direct managerial reports. Whilst all employees receive an
annual performance appraisal, other employees continue to
receive salary reviews on an annual basis.

As with Executive Directors, middle and senior managers
participate in the Annual Incentive Plan. For members of the
Group Executive Committee and functional employees,

the award is predominantly based on Group performance,
with the remainder awarded against achievement of personal
obijectives. For operational employees, any potential award

is based upon achieving three measures relating to Group
performance, business unit performance, and individual
achievernent of personal objectives.

All members of the Group Executive Committee participate in
the Vesuvius Share Plan and receive awards of Performance
Shares, which vest in accordance with measures and targets set
against EPS and TSR. The level of awards granted to members
of the Group Executive Committes who don't serve onthe
Board are lower than those payable to the Executive Directors.

Far certain senior and middle managers, awards are made
under the Vesuvius Medium Term Plan (MTP'}. These managers
participate inthe MTP at varying percentage levels, and
awards are bosed on the same measures and targets as the
Annual Incentive Plan. Senior managers have their MTP awards
made over Vesuvius shares, whilst middle maonagers receive
their awards in cash. In each case, awards are granted following
the end of the relevant financial year. The MTP share awards
vest on the second anniversary of the date of grant, subject to
confinuing employment.

Consideration of Conditions elsewhere in the Group
in Developing Policy

The Company does not consult directly with employees on
Executive Directors remuneration arrangements. However,
the Remuneration Committee will take inte account the pay
and employment conditions of other Group employees when
determining Executive Directors’ remuneration, particularly
when determining base salary increases, when the Committee
will consider the salary increases for other Group employeesin
the same jurisdiction.

Consideration of Shareholder Views

Vesuvius is committed to open and transparent dialogue with

its shareholders on remuneration as well as other governance
matters. As Chairman of the Committee, Jane Hinkley
welcomes shareholder engugement and is available for any
discussions investors wish to have on remuneration matters.
During 2017, remuneration matters were discussed at a number
of meetings with investors. The feedback from such meetingsis
always shared with the Committee and taken inta consideration
when decisions are made about future remuneration strategy
and arrangements.

Shareholding Guidelines

The Remuneration Committee encourages Executive Directors
to build and hold a shareholding in the Company. The required
holding of the Chief Executive is to be equivalent invalue to at
least 2x salary and that required of other Executive Directors
isto be equivalent in value to at least Tx salary.

Compliance with the shareholding policy is tested at the end of
each year for applicationin the following year using the average
of the closing prices of a Vesuvius ordinary share for the trading
days in that December.

General

The Committee may make mincr amendments 1o the policy
set outin this Policy Report (for requlatory, exchange control,
tax or administrative purposes or to take account of a change
in legislation) without obtaining sharehclder approval for
that amendment.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Annual Report on Directors’ Remuneration

Remuneration Committee Structure

The current members of the Remuneration Committee are all
the independent Non-executive Directors of the Company.

The Committee Chairmanis Jane Hinkley. Jane Hinkley,

Hock Goh and Douglas Hurt have all served onthe Committee
throughout 2017. Holly Koeppel has served on the Committee
since her appointment to the Board on 3 April 2017. All continue
in office as at the date of this report. The Committee complies
withthe requirements of the UK Corporate Governance Code
for the composition of remuneration committees. Each of the
members brings a broad experience of international businesses
and an understanding of their challenges to the work of the
Committee. The Company Secretary is Secretary fo the
Committee. Members’' biographies are on pages 50 and 51.

Meetings

The Committee met five times during the year. The Group's
Chairman, Chief Executive and Chief Human Rescurces Officer
were invited to each meeting, fegether with Christer Gardell, our
non-independent Non-executive Director, though none of them
participated in discussions regarding their own remuneration.

In addition, a representative frorm Deloitte, the Remuneration
Committee adviser, attended the majority of meetings andthe
Chief Financial Officer attended where the agenda of the
meeting required it. The attendees supported the work of the
Committeg, giving critical insightinto the cperational demands
of the business and their application to the overall remuneration
strategy within the Group. Inreceiving views on remuneration
matters fromthe Executive Directors and senior management,
the Committee recognised the potential for confiicts of interest
to arise and considered the advice accordingly. The Chairman
of the Committee reported the outcomes of all meetings to

the Board.

The Committee operates under formal terms of reference
which were reviewed during the year. The terms of reference
are available onthe Group website www.vesuvius.com.,

The Committee members are permitted to obtain outside

legal advice ot the Company's expense in relation to their
deliberations. These powers were not exercised during the year.
The Committee may also secure the atrendance at its meetings
of any employee or other parties it considers necessary.

Role and Responsibilities
The Committee is responsible for:
> Determining the overall remuneration policy for the Executive

Directors including the terms of their service agreements,
pension rights and compensation payments

v

Setting the appropriate remuneration for the Chairman,
the Executive Directors and the Company Secretary

> Recommending and monitoring the level and structure of
remuneration for senior management, being the first layer
of management below Board level and their direct reports

> Overseeing the operation of the executive share incentive plans

Advice Provided to the Remuneration Committee

Deloitte is appointed directly by the Remuneration Committee
to provide advice on executive remuneration matters, including
remuneration structure and policy, updates on market practice
and trends, and guidance on the implementation and operation
of share incentive plans. The Committee appointed Deloitte,
asignatory fo the Remuneration Consultants Group Code of
Conduct in relation to Executive Remuneration Consulting in
the UK, following a formaltender process in 2074, Deloitte also
provides the Remuneration Committee with ongeing calculations
of total shareholder return (TSR) to enable the Committee to
monitor the performance of long-term share incentive plans.

In addition in 2017, within the wider Group, Deloitte was procured
in various jurisdictions to provide accounting and tax advisory
work. During 20717, Deloitte’s fees for advice to the Remuneration
Commirtee, charged on o time spent bosis, amounted to £77,975.
The Committee conducted areview of the performance of
Deloitte as remuneration adviser during the year and concluded
that Deloftte continued to provide effective, objective and
independent advice to the Committee. No conflict of interest arises
as aresult of other services provided by Deloitte to the Group.

Activities of the Remuneration Committee

The key matters the Remuneration Committee considered
during its five meetings in 2017 included:

> Considering, formulating and approving the remuneration
arrangements for the new Chief Executive

v

Agreeing the retirement arrangements for the cutgoing
Chief Executive

v

Considering and approving the 2018 salary review proposals
for the Chief Financial Officer and reviewing proposcals for
senior management, as appropriate

> Reviewing and approving achievement against performance
targets for the 20116 annual incentive arrongements

Setting performance targets and approving the structure of
the 2017 annual incentive arrangements

v

v

Reviewing and assessing the Company's attcinment of
performance conditions applicable to the Vesuvius
Performance Share awards made in 2014

v

Setting the performance measures and targets, and
authorising the grant of new awards in 2017 under the
Vesuvius Share Plan and Medium Term Incentive Plan

v

Considering the Company’s ongoing share sourcing
requirements to meet obligations under the Company's share
plans, and funding of the ESOP

> Inthe light of advice received from the external advisers and
frends in remuneration practice and governance, discussing
the Company's overall appreach to executive remuneration
and reviewing whether any changes should be made

> Reviewing the Remuneration Committee’s terms of reference

> Approving the 2016 Directors’ Remunerafion Report and
reviewing the 2017 Directors’ Remunerafion Report



Asin previous years, the Committee was the subject of an
externally moderated performance evaluation. The performance
of the Remuneration Committee was rated positively overall.
Several items had been identified in the 2016 evaluation, and it
was noted that these had been effectively managed in 2017,
with, in particular, the Cammittee gaining greater insight into
the remuneration arrangements for employees below the senior
management tier and global remuneration policies. Geing
forward, communication was identified as an area of focus,
with the Committee expressing the view that the appointment
of the new Chief Executive should be tcken as on opportunity to
review the level of dialogue between the Committee Chairman,
management ond the external advisers. In addition, as with the
Board in general, it was felt that the Remuneration Committee
would benefit from the mare concise presentation of datain
Committee papers.

Regulatory Compliance

The Remuneration Policy, which is sef out on poges 98 10 105
was prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006

and the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups
{Accounts and Reports) [Amendment) Regulaticns 2013,

It also meets the requirernents of the Financial Conduct
Authority’s Listing Rules and the Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rules. This Remuneration Report sets out how the
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code are applied
by the Company in relation te matters of remuneration. We
have complied for the year under review with these provisions.

Share Usage

Under the rules of the Vesuvius Share Plan, the Company has
the discretion to satisfy awards either by the transfer of Treasury
shares or other existing shares, or by the ailotment of newly

Directors’' Remuneration — Audited

issued shares. Awards made under the Deferred Share Bonus
Plan, to satisfy shares awarded to Directors under the Annucl
Incentive, and awards made o senior maonagers by the
Company over shares pursuant to the Medium Term Incentive
Plan, must be satisfied out of Vesuvius shares held for this
purpose by the Company's employee share ownership plan
trust (ESOP). The decision on how fo satisfy awards is taken by
the Remuneration Committee which considers the most prudent
and appropriate sourcing arrangement for the Company.

At 31 December 2017, the Company held 7,271,174 ordinary
shares in Treasury ond 877,744 ordinary shares inthe ESOP.
The ESOP can be gifted Treasury shares by the Campany, can
purchase shares in the open market or can subscribe for newly
issued shares, as required, to meet obligations to satisfy options
and awards that vest.

The Vesuvius Share Plan complies with the current Investment
Association guidelines on headroom which provide that overall
dilution under all plans over a rolling ten-year period should

not exceed 10% of the Company’s issued share capital, with
afurther limitation over arolling ten-year period of 5% for
discretionary share schemes. More than 9.9% of the 10% limit
and more than 4 9% of the 5% limitis available as headroom for
the issue of new shares or the transfer of Treasury shares for the
Company. No Treasury shares have been fransferred or newly
issued shares cllotted under the Vesuvius Share Plan during the
year under review,

Policy Implementation

The following section provides details of howthe Company's
Remuneration Policy was implemented douring the financial year
2017 and how it will be implemented in the financial year 2018.

The table below sets out the total remuneration recaived by Executive Directors in the financial year under review:
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Patrick André' Frangois Wanecq? Guy Young
2017 2016 2017 2016 207 2016
{£000) {£000) {£000) {£000) (£000) {£000)
Total salary? 175 - 393 590 325 325
Taxable benefits? 56 - 156 35 18 19
Pension® 44 - 118 177 81 g7
Total fixed pay® 275 — 667 802 424 425
Annual Incentive’ 186 - 399 371 332 166
Long-termincentives® ~ - 609 - - -
Total variable pay® 186 - 1,008 371 332 166
Total® 461 - 1,675 1,173 756 591
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Thetable below sets out the fees and taxable benefits received by Nen-executive Directors in the financial year under review and
the total remuneration received by both Executive and Non-executive Directors during the year under review:

2017 20156
Taxakble Taxobie

Total fees? benefitst Total Total fees? benefits? Totol

{£000} (£000) (£000) (£000) {£000) (£000)

John MeDonough CBE 185 21 206 185 21 206

Christer Gardell 45 7 52 45 14 5%

Hock Goh 45 8 53 45 2] 53

Jane Hinkley 60 3 63 60 4 64

Douglas Hurt 65 2 67 65 2 67

Holly Koeppel™ 34 7 41 - - -
Total 2017 Non-executive Director remuneration 482
Total 2017 Executive Director remuneration 2,892
Total 2017 Director remuneration 3,374

Nota:

1. Patrick André joined the Board on 1 September 2017. Figures in the takle relate to salary, berefits and Annual Incentive earned in respect of the per.od 1 Seotember

- 31 December 2017.

2. Frangois Wanecq stepped down from the Board on 31 August 2017, and retired from the Compary on 31 Decemrber 2017. Figures in the table relate ta salary,
benefits and Annual Incentive earned in respect of his employment as Chief Executive pro-rated for the period frem the beginning of the financial yeor to 31 August
2017. Also included in the table is the full value of h's Vasuvius Share Plan award due to vestin 2018 based on performance over the oerformance period 2015-2017

{see footnote 8 for more details),

3. Buose sclary {or fees, s appropriate) earned in relation to services as o Director during the finonaicl year

4. The UK regulotions require the inclusion of benefits for Directors where these would be toxable in the UK on the ossumption that the Director is tax resident in the
UK The figures in the table therefare include expense reimbursernent and assoeciated tax relating fo travel, accommodation and subsistence in cannection with
attendance ot Board meetings and other Boord business during the yaar, which are considered by HMRC to be taxable in the UK. Benefits for Executive Directors
include cor allowarce, private medicai care, relocation expenses, tax advice, commuting costs, school fees and de minimis amounts for D'rectors’ spouse’s travel and
administrative expenses, and benefits incurred in cannection with Frangois Wanecqg's retirement.

5. Patrick André and Guy Young receive o pension allowance of 25% of base salary. Frangois Wanecq received a pension allowance of 30% of base salary. The figures
in the toble represent the value of all cash allowances and contributions received in respect of pension benefits.

6. The sum of total sclary, taxable benefits and pension.

7. Thisfigure includes ony Annual Incentive payments made to the Executive Directors in relation to services os a Director in the year under review, See pages 109 to

111 for more details.

8. This represents the Performance Srare award granted to Frangois Wanecg in 2015 under the Vesuvius Share Plan, that is due to vest in 2018. See Note 6 of the
Vesuvius Performance Share Awards Allocations lable on page 113. At an average Vesuvius mid-market closing share price (from 1 Qctober 2017-31 December
2017) of 580 pence, the tatal value of the awards that are due to vest, along with the cash payment for the dividend that has accrued on these vested shares was

£60%,364.

3. The sum of the value of the Annual Incentive and the long-term incentives where the perfarmance period ended during the financial yeor.
10. The sum of bose salary, benefits, pension, Annual Incentive and long-term incenfives where the perfarmance period ended during the financial yeor.

11. Holly Koeppel joined the Board on 3 April 2017,

Additional note:

12. Total 2016 Director rernuneration for the Directors who served during 2076 was £2.255m, This included fees of £34k and taxable benefits of £8k paid to Nelda

Connorsin 2016, Nelda retired from tha Board on 30 September 2016

Remuneration for the Former Chief Executive—-
Audited

Frangois Wanecq stepped down as an Executive Director and
Chief Executive on 31 August 2017 and, to assist the transition of
office to the new Chief Executive, he continued In emplayment
receiving his salary, benefits and pension allowance, totalling
£471k, until he retired from the Company on 31 December 2017,

Frangois Wanecg remained entitled to be considered for an
Annual Incentive inrespect of services rendered in the calendar
year 2017, It was agreed that the amount payakle, if any,

would be calculated ond paid in 2018 at the same time as other
Executives, and at a maximum would equal 125% of his base
salary in 2017. Cofeulation and payment of the 2017 Annual
Incentive was subject to the Company's achievement of the
financial targets, and his achievement of his personal objectives
for this period (see Annual Incentive section below). The Annual
Incentive earned in relation tothe period 1 September —

31 December 2017 totalled £209k, being 106% of his base
salary for this period.

In addition, the Remuneration Commiftee exercised its
discretion to treat Frangois Wanecg as a good leaver for the
purposes of the Vesuvius Share Plan, retaining his right rothe
awards granted in 2015 in full (as he was employed by Vesuvius
for the full performance period) and those grantedin 2076 and
2017 ona pro-rated basis. The vesting of allthese awards is
subjectto the achievement of the applicakle performance
criteria over the full performance period, the rules of the
Vesuvius Share Plan, and the approval of the Remuneration
Committee. The extent of vesting of the 2016 and 2017 awards
will be determined by the Remuneration Committee in 2019
and 2020. Details of the vesting of Fran¢eois Wanecq's 2015
award, the extent of which has already been determined by
the Remuneration Committee, are included in the Directors’
Remuneration table and also detailed in the Longer-term Pay
section below.

Under the applicable company relocation policy, Frangois
Wanecq has received one month's salary as arelocation
allowance. In addition, the Company confirmed in the Sectian



430(B) Statement that it would pay his removal costs, the
reasonable costs of any infernational tax advice required in
connection with his retirement from employment and any tax
support to meet his ongoing obligations to correctly report
income received from the Company for a three-year period
following his retirement. In addition, the Statement confirmed
that the Company will alse pay de minimis adminisfrative
expenses and benefits incurred in connection with his
retirement.

No further termination payment will be made to Mr Wanecq.

There were no paymenis made ta any Director for loss of office
during the year ended 31 December 2017, and no payments
were made to any other past Directors of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2017.

Base Salary and Fees

Inthe year under review, the Chief Financial Officer received
abase salary of £325,000 per annum. Frangois Wanecg
received o base salary of £590,000 per annum, and foliowing
his promotion to Chief Executive, Patrick André received a base
salary of £525,000 per annum. The Non-executive Directors’
feeswere set af £45,000 per annum. Supplementary fees of
£15,000 per annum were paid to the Chairmen of the Audit
and Remuneration Committees. A supplementary annual fee
of £5,000 was also paid to the Senior Independent Director.
The Chairmanwas paid an annual fee of £185,000. Neither the
Chairman nor the other Non-executive Directors are members
of the Group's pension plans, nor do they participate inthe
Group's incentive schemes.

In line with the Group's longer-term approach of reviewing the
salaries of Execytive Directors and senior Executives every
two to three years, Guy Young's base salary was reviewed for
application in 2018. This was the first time his base salary
had been reviewed since he joined the Company in 2015 and,
following this review, it was resolved that his salary should be
increased by 7.7%, with effect from 1 January 2018, up to
£350,000 per annum, in recognition of his leadership of the
Group's Finance function over the past three years and his
development inthe role. In considering this increase, the
Committee also noted that over the previous two years the
average salary increase for UK salaried employees had been
3 326%. Following his recent promotion, thereis no change to
Patrick André's salary in 2018, but, as announced at the time
of his appointment, the Remuneration Committee has
committed to review his salary annually for the first three
years of his appointment (January 2019, 2020 and 2021},

Pension Arrangements — Audited

In accordance with their service agreements, Patrick André
and Guy Young are entitled to pension allowances of 25%
of base salary. (Frongois Wanecq was entitled to a pension
allowance of 30% of base salary up until the date of his
retirement.) This allowance can be used to participate in
Vesuvius pension arrangements, be invested in their own
pension arrangements or be taken as a cash supplement
{or any combination of these clternatives).

Annual Incentive

The Executive Directors are eligible to receive an Annual
Incentive calculated as a percentage of base salary, bused

on achievement against specified financial targets and
personal objectives. Each year the Remuneration Committee
establishes the performance criteria for the forthcoming year.
The financial targets are set by reference 1o the Company's
financial budget. The target range is set to ensure that Annual
Incentives are only paid cut at maximum for significantly
exceeding performance expectations. The Remuneration
Committee considers that the setting and attainment of
these targets is important in the context of achieverment of
the Company’s longer-term strategic goals.

The Annualincentive has a threshold level of performance
below which no award is paid, a target level and a maximum
performance level at which a maximum award is earned.

2017 Annual Incentive

For 2017 the maximum Annual Incentive potential for the
Executive Directors was 125% of base salary and their target
Annual Incentive potential was 62.5% of base salary. Following
his appointment as Chief Executive on 1 September 2017, it
was agreed that Patrick André would participate inthe Annual
Incentive at these incentive levels with effect from that date.
With respect to his service with the Group prior to that date

he remained entitled to receive any payouts due under the
Flow Control business unit Annual Incentive Plan.

Following his retirement as a Director, Frangois Wanecg
remained entitled to be considered for an Annual Incentive in
respect of services rendered in the calendar year 2017, Itwas
agreed that the amount payable, if any, would be calculated
ond paid in 2018 at the same time as other Executives.

For the financial year 2017 the Executiva Directors’ Annual
Incentives were based 60% on Group headline earnings
per share, 20% on the Group's cash conversion (defined as
operating cash flow divided by trading profit) and 20% on
specified personal objectives.

Financial Targets

The 2017 Vesuvius Group headline earnings per share
performance targets set out below were set at the December
2016 full-year average foreign exchange rates, being the rates
used for the 2017 budget process:
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Threshold:
30.4pence

Maximum:
35.6 pence

On-target:
33.0pence

The 2017 Group's cash conversion targets were set as follows:

Threshold: On-target: Maximum:

0% 105% 120%

In assessing the Group's performance against these targets, the
Committee uses o constant currency appraach. Thus, the 2017
full-year EPS performance was retranslated at December
2016 full-year average foreign exchange rates to establish
performance. This is consistent with practice in previous years.
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In 2017, Vesuvius' retranslated EPS performance was 39.1 pence,
and cash conversion was 104%. Conseguently EPS performance
was above maximum and the cash conversion performance was
betweenthreshold andtarget. Payments of 75% and 11.38% of
base salary respectively, 86.38% in total were therefore due to
the Executive Directors and Frangois Wanecg under the Annual

Personal Objectives

In 2017, a proportion (20%) of the Annual Incentive for
Executive Directors (representing 25% of the maximum 125%
bonus entitlement) was based on the achievement of personal
objectives. A summary of the objectives sef and performance
achieved is set out below.

Incentive in respect of the financial performance metrics.

Patrick André

Summaryof cbjective

Summaryoutcome

Drive Group performance

> Launched new incremental restructuring programme with different scope
> Introduced and drove upgraded budget process for 2018

Transition to Chief Executive
and engage the senior
management team

> Completedtailored induction and handever of key contacts

> Developed relationship with investor community

> Developed relationships with senior teams inthe Foundry, Advanced Refractories and
Digital Services business units

Manage the successionin Flow
Controlbusiness unitleadership

> Selected successor, and continued to manage the Flow Control business unit until
handover
> Assisted in induction of new Flow Control President

Review Group organisation and
implement changes identified

> Reviewed and confirmed business unitleadership and updared erganisationat
responsibility of business units
> Redefined corporate functional roles, organisation and leadership with dlear communication

In summary, after considering performance as outlined above, the Committee approved an Annual incentive payout of 19.65% of
base salary, cut of the 25%, in respect of the personal objectives of Patrick André for the period of his tenure as Chief Executive,
For the period of his tenure as President Flow Control, Mr André was awarded 9.76% of base salary, our of 16%, in respect of his

personc| objectives.

Guy Young

Summary of objective

Summary outcome

Develop people and team

> Developed updated functional strategy and plans, including full team evaluation
> Developed updated succession plans for key finance functions
> Drove performance across the team

Improve working capital
management process

> Implemented new supplier finance scheme
> Introduced clearer working capital management and reporting processes, with
demonstrable impact on working capital performance

Manage the Implementation of
Shared Service Strategy

> Delivered strategy. Oversaw launch of project and commenced transition with
appropriate performance metrics put in place

Develop Group IR strategy

> Implemented updated strategy and broker performance reviews
> Managed clear investor engagernent and enhanced share register

Enhance processes for monitering
corporate activity

> Increased robustness of internal processes
> Enhanced the capabilities for assessment of financial performance for corporate activity

In summary, after considering performance as outlined abaove, the Committee approved an Annual Incentive payout of 15.75% of
base salary out of the 25%, in respect of the personal objectives of Guy Young.

Frangois Wanecq

Summary of objective

Summary outcome

Drive Group performance for 2017

> Maintained clear contrel of capital expenditure
> Reduced working copital parcentage, improvernentin cash conversion

Supportthe process for CEQ
succession

> Strong support of succession process with appropriote assistance provided
> Effective transfer of key relationships both within and outside the Group

Complete implementation of agreed
restructuring plan

> Delivered expected savings from existing plan
> Existing plan perimeter extended to increase savings and return

Implerment the Board approved
strategy

> Increased performance focus on key growing markets of China and India
> Continued the development of the Technical Service offering

Target corporate activity
and business growth

> Continued focus on oppertunities for corporate development
> Supported incremental growth in key areas of strategic focus




In summary, after considering performance as outlined above,
the Committee approved an Annual Incentive payoutof 15% of
pro-rated base salary, out of the 25%, in respect of the personal
objectives of Franceis Wanecq for the period of his tenure as
Chief Executive during the year.

The total Annual Incentive awards payable to Patrick André and
Guy Young in respect of their services as a Director during 2017
are therefore 106% of pro-rated salary and 102% of salary
respectively. The total Annual Incentive award payable to
Frangois Wanecq inrespect of 2017 is 101% of salary. Frangois
Wanecq will receive his Annual Incentive paymentin cashin

line with the Remuneration Policy. 33% of Patrick André and
Guy Young's Annual Incentive payments will be deferred into
awards over shares, to be held for a period of three years.

2018 Annual Incentive

The Rermuneration Cammittes has determined that for 2018
the structure of the Annual Incentive will remain broadiy the
same as for 2017: 60% of the Executive Directors' Annual
Incentives will therefore be based on Group headline earnings
per share, 20% on working capital using an updated objective
of the Group's working copital to sales ratio (based on the
12-month moving avercge) and 20% on the achievement of
personal objectives. The Company will not be disclosing the
targets set until after the relevent performance period has
ended because of commercial sensitivities. The personal
obiectives for 2018 are allnon-financial or job-specific in nature
and track performance against key strategic, organisational
and aperational goals. The maximum Annual Incentive
potential for 2018 will be 125% of base salary. 33% of any
Annual Incentive earned will be deferred into awards over
shares, to be held for a pericd of three years.

Mualus/Clawback Arrangementsin 2018

Vesuvius has malus and clawback arrongementsin respect of
Executive Directors'variable remuneration. The structure of
those arrangements is cutlined in our Remuneration Policy.

Longer-term Pay (“LTIPs"}— Audited

Performance Share awards are allocated to the Executive
Directors under the Vesuvius Share Plan (VSP). In accordance
with the Remuneration Policy and the rules of the V5P, they are
eligible to receive, on an annual basis, a Performance Share
award with o face volue of up to 200% of salary. Vesting of 50%
of shares owarded is based upon the Company's three-year
TSR performance relative ta that of the constituent companies
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of the FTSE 250 (excluding investment trusts), and 50% on
headline EPS growth. The level of compound headline EPS
growth specified in the targets is set by the Remuneration
Committee each year, taking into account the Group's
prospectsand the broader global economic environment.

The schedule of EPS targets is designed at the maximum level to
be highly challenging, whilst remaining an effective incentive for
the management team. The EPS and TSR measures operate
independently. The use of these performance measuresis
intended to align executive remuneration with shareholders’
interests. UK Executives receive awards in the form of nil-cost
options with a flexible exercise dote and non-UK Executives
receive awards which are exercised on the date of vesting.

On 16 March 2017, Frangois Wanecq and Guy Young received
allocations of Performance Shares worth 200% and 150% of
their base salaries, respectively. Following his appointment

as Chief Executive on 1 September 2017, it was agreed that
Patrick André would receive a pro-rated ‘top up' of his 2017
Performance Share award. As a result on 1 September 2017,
he was granted an additional Performance Share award of
42,257 shares. This award, in addition to the Performance
Share award of 60,413 shares awarded to him on 16 March
2017, brought his total award of Performance Sharesin 2017 1o
200% of his salary on a pro-rated basis. It reflected the increase
in his Performance Share percentfage enfitiement and the
increase in his salary for the final four months of the year.

The Remuneration Committee has determined that Patrick
Andréwill receive a Performance Share award in 2078
equivalent in value to 200% of his base salary and Guy Young
an award equivalent in value to 150% of his base salary.

The performance period applicable to the awards made in
2015 ended on 31 December 2017. The TSR performance
during this three-year performance period was assessed
against the comparator group and it was determined that the
Company's performance was between medicn and upper
quintile. As aresult, 27.1% of Performance Share awards

will vest under the TSR performance element. The Committee
reviewed stotistics from various sources which gave alarge
range of outcomes of global GDP growth. The Committee
concluded that 2V4% p.o. was a reasonable base against which
to measure the Company’s EPS growth of 4.8% p.a. for the
2015-2017 performance period. As aresultthe Group's annual
compound headline EPS growth above this GDP mecsure

for the period was 4.3%. Therefore, 16.6% of Performance
Share awards will vest under the EPS performance element.
These awards willvestin April 20718,

Target for the 2015 Performance Share Awards — Audited

TSRrankingrelativeto FTSE250

excludinginvestment frusts Vesting parcentage

Annual compound headtine

EPS growthabove global GDP Vesting percentage

Below median 0% Below 3% 0%

Median 12.50% 3% 12 50%

Between medianand Prorata between 12.50% Between 3% and 15% Proraotabetween 12.50%
upper guintile and 50% and 50%

Upper quintile 50% Ator above 15% 50%
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Targets for the 2016, 2017 and 2018 Performance Share Awards - Audited

TSRrankingrelativeto FTSE250
excludinginvestmenttrusts

Vesting percentage

Annual compoundheadline
EPS growth

Vesting percentage

Below median 0% Below 3% 0%
Median 12.50% 3% 12.50% }
Between medianand upper Proratabetween 12.50% and  Between 3% and 6% Proratabetween 12.50% and
quintile 50% 25%
Upper guintile 50% 6% 25%
Between 6% and 15% Prorata between 25% and 50%
Arabove 15% 50%

Vesuvius Performance Share Award Allocations - Audited

The following table sets out those Performance Share awards that were allocated in 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017 under the Vesuvius

Share Plan:
Total share Additional Totalshare Market priceof
allocations shares Allacations allocations theshareson
asat allocated lapsed Shares vested asat  thedaybefore Performance Earliest

Grantandrype of award 31 Dec20t6  dunngtneyear  duringtheyear  duringtheyear 31 Dec 217 award (@) period vestingdate
Patrick André
8April 2016 1 Janl6-

31 Dec 18
Performance Shares 92,746 - - - 92,746 291.7 8 Apr2019
16 March 201723 1Jan17 -

31 Dec19
Perfarmance Shares ~ 60,413 — — 60,413 5245 16 Mar 2020
1September 2017+ 1Jan17-

31 Dec19
Performance Shares - 42,257 — - 42,257 578 1Sep 2020
Total 92,746 102,670 - - 195,416
Frangois Wanecq
17 March 2014 1 Jan14-

31 Dec16
Performance Shares 253,748 - 253,748 - - 4293 -
1 April 2015¢ 1TJan 15~

31 Dec17
Parfarmance Shares 221,533 - - - 221,533 4911 1Apr2018
8 April 2016 1 Jan16-

31 Dec18
Performance Shares 373938 - 158,113 - 215,825 291.7 8 Apr2019
16 March 20172 1 Jan17 -

31 Dec19
Performance Shares - 225987 166,177 - 59,790 524.5 16 Mar 2020
Total 849219 225967 578,038 - 497148
Guy Young
8April2016 1Jan16-

31 Bec18
Performance Shares 128,739 - - - 128,739 2917 8 Apr2019
16 March 20172 1Jen17~

31 Dec19
Performance Shares - §3,355 - - 93,355 524.5 16 Mar 2020
Total 128,739 93,355 - - 222,094
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Note:

1. In 2016, Frangois Wanecq and Guy Young rece ved allocations of Performance Shares worth 200% ard 125% of their base salares, being 373,938 shares and
128,739 shares respectively. In addition, prior to his apportment as Chief Execut've, Patrick André receved an award of 92,746 shares ‘n respect of his role as
President, Flow Cantrol, On the date of s retirement from t=e Company on 31 December 2017, Frongois Wanecg's entitlement to the shares ne was granted in 2016
was redyced pro-rata to reflect his departure port wey through the vesting period. As a result, 158,113 shores lapsed on this date,

. On 16 March 2017, Frange's Wanecg and Guy Young received ollocations of Performance Shares worth 200% and 150% of the + base salaries, being 225,967 shares
ond 93,355 shares respechively. Inaddition, prior to his appointmert as Ch'ef Executive, Patrick André received an award of 60,413 shares in respect of his role os
President, Flow Contrel. These allocations were calculoted based upon the average closing mid-market price of Vesuvius' shares on the five dealing days before the
award was made, being £5.222 The ratal value of these awards bosed on this share price on the date of gront was £1,180,000, £487,500 ard £315,477 respectively.
On the dote of his retirement from the Company on 31 December 2017, Frangois Wanecqs ent'tlement to the shares e was granted in 2017 was reduced pro-rata to
reflect his departure part way through the vesting period. As a result, 166,177 shares lopsed on this dote.

. Patrick André's March 2017 Performance Share award is subject to Flow Control performance conditiors, Under these, 7,552 of the 60,413 shares awarded are
deemed 1o have met the performance condition applicable in the first year. The achievernent of the perfarmance condtian will be reassessed at the end of 2018,
and 2019.

4. Following his promotion to Chief Executive on 1 September 2017, Patrick André rece’ved an additional award of 42,257 Performance Shares in the form of a
conditional award. This award brought his total award of Performance Shores in 2017 to 200% of his salary on a pro-rated basis, whicn 's the maximum annual
award for the Chief Executive as determined by the Vesuwius Remureration Policy. The aliocation was colculated based upon the average closing mid-market price
of Vesuvius shares on the five dealing days befare the awerd was made, being £5.794 per share The total value of the award based on this share price on the dare
of grantwas £244,837.

5. The Performance Shares thet were ollocated in 2074 had performance conditions to be tested over the financial years 2014, 2015 and 2016, As tne requisite
performance was not ochieved, Frangois Wanecq's award -apsed on the third anniversary of grantin March 2017,

6. The Performance Shares that were allocated in 20715 had performance canditions to be tested over the financiol years 2015,2016 and 2017, The performance
periad for the LTIP. In accordance with the Company's achievement of the specified performonce conditions, 43 7% of Frangois Wanecq's Performance
Shares, 96,809 shares, are due to vest on 1 Aprit 2018. In oddition the Remuneration Committee has deterrmined that Mr Wanecq will receive a cash payment of
£47,872 which 15 equivalent to the value of the dividends that would hove been paid on the number of shares that are due to vest in respect of dividend record dates
occurning during rhe period between the oward daote and the date of vesting.

b

o~

Additional notes:

7. All of Frangois Wanecq and Guy Young's awards have been made in tre form of nil cost options with no exercise price Patrick André's award were made ntee form of
cond t'onal owards.

8 Ifthe performance conditions for these awards are not met then these awards will lapse. If the threshold level of either of the two performance conditions apolicable
to these awards i1s met, then 12.50% of the award will vest.

9. The Rerruneration Committee alse has the discretion ta award cash or shares equivalent in value to the dvidend that would have accroed during the vesting perind
on the number of shares that vest.

10 The mid-market closing price of Vesuvius' shares during 2017 ranged between 400 pence and 606 pence per share and on 29 December 2017, the last dealing day
of the year, was 584 pence per share.

Restricted Share Award

On Guy Young's appointment as Chief Financial Officer in 2015, the Committee resolved that it would partially compensarte him for
long-term incentives that he forfeited as a result of joining Vesuvius by granting a one-off Restricted Share award over 17,115 shares
under the Vesuvius Share Plan. The value of this award was included in the Directors’ Remuneration table in the 2015 Remuneration

Report.
Half of this award vested in 2016, and the remainder vested on 1 November 2017, the second anniversary of the date of his
commencement of employment. Detalls of the portion of the Restricted Share award that vested during 2017 are giveninthe
table below:
Qutstanding Ourstanding

share allocotian Sharesvested share allocation
Date of award 1Jan 2017 duringthayear® 31 Dec 2017
13 May 2016 8,557 8,557 -

Nota:

1 8,557 shares vested to Guy Yourg on 1 Novermber 2017 The rid-market closing price of tne Company's shares on the date of vasting was £5.885 ver share The total
value of shares thot he received on the dote of vesting was therefore £50,358. In addition, Guy Young received a cash payment of £2,838.78 to reflect the dividends
that would have accrued on the shares between n's date of jpining ard the vesting date

asubUIBADD I
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Statement of Directors’ Shareholding — Audited

Theinterests of Directors and their closely associated personsin erdinary shares as at 31 December 2017, including any interestsin
share opticns and shares provisionally awarded under the Vesuvius Share Plan are setout below:
Qutstanding

Beneficial incentive
holding awards!

Executive Directors
Patrick André - 195,416
Frangois Wanecg 1,363,930 497148
Guy Young 14,551 222,094
Non-executive Directors
John Me Donough CBE (Chairman) 100,000 -
Christer Gardell? - -
Hock Goh 5,000 -
Jane Hinkley 12,000 -
Douglas Hurt 18,000 -
Holly Koeppel 7,500 —
Note:

1. Patrick André holds conditional awards of 195,476 shares, and Frangois Wanecq and Guy Young hold 497,148 and 222,094 ril cost options respectively, granted as
Performance Shares under the Vesuvius Share Plan. These are ail subject to performance conditions.

2 Christer Gardell is Managing Partner of, and has o financial imerest in, Cevian Capital which held 21.71% of Vesuvius' issued share capital as at 31 December 2017
ard at the date of this report

Additional notes:

3. None of the ather Directars, nor their spouses, nor their sninor children, held non-beneficial interests in the ordinary shares of the Company during the year.

4 There were ro chargesin the interests of the Directors in the ordinary shares of the Company in the period from 1 January 2018 1o the date of this Report,

5. Al awards under the Vesuvius Share Plan are subiect to performonce conditions and continued empiayment unnil the relevant vesting date as set out on cages 112
ard 113,

&, Full deta''s of Directors' shareholdings ond incentive awards are giver in the Company's Register of Directors’ Interests, whichis oper toinspection at the Company's
registered office during normal business hours.

Shareholding Guidelines

The Remuneration Committee encourages Executive Directors to build and hold @ shareholding in the Company. The required
heolding of the Chief Executive is to be equivalent in value to ot least 2x salary and that required of other Executive Directorsis to

be equivalent in value to ot least 1x salary. To this end, Executive Directors are required to refain at least 50% (measured as the
value after tax) of any shares received through the cperation of share schemes; in addition, permission to sell shares held - whether
acquired through the operation of share schemes or otherwise - will not be given, ather thanin exceptional circumstances, if,
following the disposal, the shareholding requirements have not been achieved.

Compliance with the shareholding policy is tested at the end of each year for application in the following year using the average
of the clesing prices of a Vesuvius ordinary share for the trading days in that Decembaer.

Executive Directors' Shareholdings — Audited

Asat 31 December 2017, the Executive Directors' shareholdings against the current shareholding guidelines (using the Company's
share price averaged over thetrading days of the period 1 December to 31 Decernber 2017, of 565.97 pence per share) were

as follows:

Actual share ownership

as apercentage of salary Policy share ownership
Directar at31 Dec 2017 asapercentage of salary Policy met?
Patrick André 0% 200% Inthe build-up pericd

Guy Young 25% 100% Inthe build-up pericd




Annual Changes in Chief Executive Pay vs Employee Pay

The table below shows the percentage change in the remuneration of the Chief Executive —comprising salary, taxable benefits
and Annugl Incentive —and comparable data for UK salaried employees. The UK sclaried employee workforce was chosen as
afair representation of a suitable comparator group as both the former Chief Executive Frangois Wanecq and the incumbent
Chief Executive Patrick André are based in the UK (albelt with a global role and responsibilities) and levels of pay vary widely
across the Group depending on geography and local market conditions.

UK salared
employee
workfarce

(average
ChiefExecutive percapita)

207 2016
(£000) 1£G00) % chonge % change
Salary 568 590 (3.73) 1.01
Jaxable benefits? 212 35 505 0.89
Annual bonus 585 377 57.68 55.30

Note:
1. Salary, taxable benefits and Annual Incentive amounts in respect of the Chief Executive for 2017 reflect the sum of amounts payable to Frangois Wanecq in respect
of service from 1 January 2017 t0 31 August 2017, ond amounts payable to Patrick André in respect of service from 1 September 2017 to 31 December 2017,

2. The increase in benefits principally results from the change in Chief Executive during the year Further information on the benefits paid to Patrick André and Frangeis
Wanecq during 2017 can be found in Note 4 16 the Directors' Remuneration table on page 108

Annual Spend on Employee Pay vs Shareholders’ Distributions

The charts below show the annual spend on allemployees (including Executive Directors) compared with distributions made and
praposed to be made ta shareholders for 2016 and 2017:

(Em) {£m)
2017 2016 Change
Group remuneration of continuing operations (see Note 8) 441.5 3848 14.73%

Dividends (based on final proposed dividend) 48.6 44.7 8.72%
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TSR Performance and Chief Executive Pay

The TSR performance graph compares Vesuvius TSR performance with that of the same investment inthe FTSE 250 Index
{excluding investment trusts). This index hos been chosen as the comparator index to reflect the size, international scope and
diversity of the Campany. TSR is the measure of the returns that a company has provided for its shareholders, reflecting share
price movements and assuming reinvestment of dividends. A spot rate has been used for this graph. The demerger of Vesuvius plc
was effective on 19 December 2012 and therefore the groph shows the period from 19 December 2012 to 31 December 2017.

Vesuvius' total shareheolder return

compared against total shareholder - #--Vesuvius plc ~e= FT5E 250 Index (excluding Investment Trusts)
return of the FTSE 250 index
{excluding investment trusts) 250

since demerger

200
150
100
19/12/12

50
: Frangois r'v’anecq‘ i atrick André?
Chief Executive pay —financial year ending 31/12/12 1 31/12/13 31/12/141 3112715 1 31/12/6 31/12/1 31/12/17
Total remuneration {single figure (E000}} £1,227 ¢ £2,447 £1,519: £752 - £1,17% : 1,67 461
Annual variable pay (% of maximum) 0% | 100% : 64% ! 0% 63% : 101% : 106%
Long-term variable pay (% of maximuem) 67% ; 28% : 27%: 0% 0% : 43.7% - n/a

Note:
1. Amounts shown in respect of Frangois Wanecq for 2017 reflect payments in respect of his service as Chief Executiva from 1 January 2017 to 31 Augusr 2017 and the

full value of his Vesuvius Share Plan award in relation to the performance period 2015-2017.
2. Amounts shown in respect of Patrick André for 2017 reflect payments in respect of his service as Chief Executive from 1 Septernber 2017 ta 31 December 2017,

Statement on Shareholder Voting

At the last AGM (which was held on 10 May 2017} the resolution concerning the advisory vote on the Remuneration Report
for 2017 recelved 235,094,321 votes (38.99%) in fovour and 2,434,570 votes against {1.01%); 1,432,104 votes were withheld.
The Remuneration Policy received 238,743,173 (98.86%) in favour and 2,762,888 votes (1.14%) against; 1,454,874 votes were
withheld. At the AGM to be held on 10 May 2078, shareholders will again be invited to participate in an advisory vote onthe
Remuneration Report.

The Directors' Remuneration Report has been approved by the Board and is signed onits behalf by
Jane Hinkley Chairman, Remuneration Committee

28 February 2018



Directors’ Report

Directors’ Report

The Directors submit their Annual Report together with the
audited accounts of the Group and of the Company, Vesuvius
ple, registered in England and Wales No. 8217766, for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

The Companies Act 2006 requires the Company fo provide

a Directors’ Report for Vesuvius ple for the year ended

31 December 2017. The information that fulfils this requirement
and which is incorporated by reference into, and forms part

of, this reportis included in the following sections of the

Annual Report:

> The Our Responsibility section
> The Governance section

> Financial Instruments: the information onfinancial risk
management cbjectives and policies contained in Notes
20and 27 to the Group Financial Statements

This Directors’' Report and the Strategic Report containedin
pages 110 73 together represent the management report for
the purpose of complicnce with DTR 4.1.8R of the UK Listing
Authority’s Disclosure and Transparency Rules. The Company
does not have any overseas branches within the mecning of the
Companies Act 2006,

Going Concern

Information onthe business environment inwhich the Group
operates, including the factors that arelikely to impact the
future prospects of the Group, isincluded in the Strategic
Report. The principal risks and uncertainties that the Group
faces throughout its global operations are shown on pages

24 and 25. The financial positian of the Group, its cash flows,
liquidity position and debt facilities are alsc described in the
Strategic Report. In addition, the Group's Viability Statement
is set cut within the Strategic Report on page 23. Notes 20 and
27 tothe Group Financial Statements set out the Group's
objectives, policies and processes for managingits capital;
financial risks; financial instruments and hedging activities; and
its exposures to credit, market (both currency and interest rate
related) and liquidity risk. Further details of the Group's cash
balances and borrowings are included in Notes 13, 14 and 27
to the Group Financial Statements.

The Directors have prepared cash flow forecasts for the Group
for a pericdin excess of 12 months from the date of approval
ofthe 2017 financial statements. These forecasts reflact an
assessment of current and future end-market conditions and
their impact on the Group's future trading performance.

The forecasts show that the Group will be able to operate within
the current committed debt facilities and show continued
compliance with the Company's financiol covenants. On the
basis of the exercise described above and the Group's available
committed debt faeilities, the Directors consider that the

Group and Company have adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for a period of atleast 12 months from
the date of signing of these accounts. Accordingly, they continue
to adopt a going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements of the Group and the Company.

Research and Development

The Group's investment in research and development

(R&D) during the year under review amounted fo £33.2m
(representing approximately 2.0% of Group revenue

(2016: 2.0%). Further details of the Group's R&D activities can
be found in the Innovation section of the Strategic Report.

Dividends

Aninterim dividend of 5.50 pence {20716: 5.15 pence) per
Vesuvius ordinary share was paid on 22 September 2017 1o
Vesuvius shareholders. The Board is recommending ¢ final
dividend inrespect of 2017 of 12.50 pence (2016: 11.40 pence)
per ordinary share which, if approved, will be paid on 25 May
201810 shareholders onthe register ot 13 April 2018.

Accountability and Audit

A responsibility staternent of the Directors and a statement by
the auditor about its reporting responsibilities can be found on
pages 121 and 12410 129 respectively. The Directors fulfil the
respansibilities set out in their statement within the context of an
overall controlenvironment of central strategic direction and
delegared operating responsibility. As af the date of this report,
so far as each Director of the Company is aware, thereis no
relevant audit information of which the Company's auditor is
unaware and each Director hereby confirms that they have
taken afl the steps that they ought to have taken as a Director

in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company’s auditor is
aware of thatinformation.

Auditor Appeintments

A competitive tender process for the appointment ofa
statutory cuditor wos conducted during 2016. Following

the completion of this the Company recommended that
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP {PwC) be appointed as external
auditor for Vesuvius plc for the year ended 37 December 20717,
replacing KPMG LLP. Sharehalder approval to confirm the
appointment of PwC was given at the 2017 AGM. PwC has
expressed its willingness to continue in office as cuditor of the
Company, and consequently, resolutions for the reappeintment
of PwC as auditor of the Company and to authorise the
Directors to determine its remuneration are to be proposed
atthe AGM.

Directors

The Directors of the Company ore Patrick André, Christer
Gardell, Hock Goh, Jane Hinkley, Douglas Hurt, Holly Koeppel,
John McDonough CBE and Guy Young. Patrick André joined
the Board as Chief Executive on 1 September 2017, replacing
Francois Wanecg who retired from the Board on 37 August
2017. Holly Koeppel joined the Board as an additional
independent Non-executive Director on 3 Aprit 2017, Alithe
Directors will retire at the AGM and offer themselves for
election or re-election atthe AGM. Biographical information
for the current Directors is given on pages 50 and 51, Further
information on the remuneration of, and contractual
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arrangements for, the current Executive and Non-executive
Directorsis given on pages 96 to 116 in the Directors'
Remuneration Report. The Non-executive Directors do not
have service agreements,

Directors' Indemnities

The Directors have been granted qualifying third party
indemnity provisions by the Company and the Directors of the
Group's UK Pension Plan Trustee Board (none of whom isa
Directer of Vesuvius plc) have been granted qualifying pension
scheme indemnity provisions by Vesuvius Pension Plans Trustees
Ltd. The indemnities for Directors of Vesuvius plc have beenin
forcesince the date of their appointment. The Pension Trustee
indemnities were in force througheut the last financial year and
rematin in force.

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at
The Lincoln Centre, 18 Lincoln's Inn Fields, London WC2A 3ED
on Thursday 10 May 2018 at 11.00 am.

Amendments of Articles of Association

The Company may make amendments to the Articles by way
of special resclution in accordance with the Companies Act.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Information on our reporting of greenhouse gas emissions, and
the methodology used to record these, is set out on page 65 of
the Strategic Report.

Donations

In accordance with Company policy, no political donations
were made in 2017 (2016: nih.

Change of Control Provisions

The terms of the Group's committed bank facility and US
Private Placement Loan Notes contain provisions entitling the
counterparties to exercise termination or other rights in the
event of a change of control on rakeaover of the Company.

A number of the arrangements to which the Company and its
subsidiaries are party, such as other debt arrangements and
share incentive plans, may also alter or ferminate on a change
of controlinthe avent of a takeover. In the context of the Group
as awhole, these other arrangements are not considered to

be significant.

Share Capital

As ot the date of this report, the Company had anissued share
capital of 278,485,071 ordinary shares of 10 pence each;
7,271,174 of these ordinary shares are held in Treasury.
Therefore, the total number of Vesuvius plc shares with vating
rightsis 271,213,897,

Further infarmation relating to the Company’sissued share
capital can be found in Note 8 to the Company Financial
Statements.

The Company's Articles specify that, subjectto the cutherisation
of an appropriate resolution passed at a General Meeting of
the Company, Directors can aliot relevant securities under
Section 557 of the Companies Act up to the aggregate nominal
amount specified by the relevant resclution. In addition,

the Articles state that the Directors can seek the cuthority of
shareholders in a General Meeting 1o cllot equity securities for
cash, without first being required to of fer such shares to existing
ordinary shareholders in proportion to their existing holdings
under Section 561 of the Companies Act, in connection witha
rights issue and in other circumstances up to the aggregate
nominal amount specified by the relevant resolution.

Atthe Annual General Meeting on 10 May 2017, the Directors
were authorised to issue relevant securities up to an aggregate
nominal amount of £9,040,463, ond, in connection with arights
issue, toissue relevant securities up to a further nominal value
of £5,040,463. In addition, the Directors were empowered to
allot equity securities, or sell Treasury Shares, forcash ona
non pre-emptive basis up to an aggregate nominal amount of
£1,356,069, and for the purpases of financing {(or refinancing,
if the authority is to be used within sixmonths after the eriginal
transaction) a transaction which the Boord of the Company
determines to be an acquisition or ather capital investment,

o allot equity securities, or sell Treasury Shares, for cashona
non pre-empftive basis up to an additional nominal amount of
£1,256,069. Each of the authorities given in these resclutions
expires at the earlier of the date of the 2018 Annual General
Meeting or 30 June 2018, The resolutions were all tabled in
accordance with the terms of the Pre-Emption Group's
Statement of Principles. The Directors propose to renaw these
authorities af the 2018 Annual General Meeting for a further
year. Inthe year ahead, other than in respect of Vesuvius'
ability to satisfy rights granted to employees under its various
share-based incentive arrangements, the Directors have no
present intention of issuing any share capital of Vesuvius plc

Authority for Purchase of Own Shares

Subject ta the provisions of company law and any other
applicable regulations, the Company may purchase its own
shares. Arthe Annual General Meeting of the Company held
on 10 May 2017, Vesuvius shareholders gave authority to the
Company to make market purchoses of upto 27,121,389
Vesuvius ordinary shares, representing 10% of the Company's
issued crdinary share capital as at the latest practicable day
prior to the publication of the Notice of AGM. This authority
expireson 30 June 2018 or the date of the AGM to be heldin
2018, whichever is the earlier. The Directors will seek renewal
of this authority at the forthcoming AGM.

In 2013 the Company acquired 7,271,174 ordinary shares,
representing a nominalvalue of £727,117 and 2.6% of the entire
called-up share capital of the Company prior to the purchase.



These shares were purchased pursuantto the Board's
commitment to return the majority of the net proceeds of

the disposal of the Frecious Metals Processing division to
shareholders. These shares are currently held as Treasury
shares. The Company has not subsequently dispesed of any of
the repurchased shares. During the vear, the Company did not
make any further acquisitions of shares, any acquisitions by
nominee, nor did it dispose of any shares previcusly acquired.
The Company does not have a lien over any of its shares.

Share Plans

Vesuvius operates a number of share-based incentive plans.
Under these plans the Group can satisfy entitlements by the
acquisition of existing shares, the transfer of Treasury shares
or by the issue of new shares. Existing shares are held in an
employee share ownership plan trust (ESOP). The Trustee of
the ESOP purchases shares in the open market as required fo
enable the Group to meet liahilities for the issue of sharesto
satisfy awards that vest. The Trustee does not register votes
inrespect of these shares and has waived the right to receive
any dividends.

Restrictions on Transfer of Shares and Voting

The Company's Articles of Association ('Articles) do not

contain any specific restrictions on the size of a hoelding or on

the transfer of shares. The Directors are not aware of any
agreements between holders of the Company's shares that may
result in restrictions on the transfer of securities or voting rights.

No person has any special rights with regard to the control of
the Company’s share capital and all issued shares are fully
paid. Thisis a summary only and the relevant provisions of the
Articles should be consulted i further information is required.

Interestsin the Company’s Shares

The Company has been notified in accordance with DTR 5 of
the Disclosure and Transporency Rules of the following interests
of 3%, or more, of itsissued ordinary shares:

Asat Asat

31Dec2017  28Feb 2018

Cevian Capital 2107 PARN
Standard Life Aberdeen 592 5.92
Artisan Partners 4.97 497
Aberforth Partners 493 493
Pelham Capital Management CFD 4.58 4.58
Phoenix Asset Management 310 310

The interests of Directors and their connected persons in the
erdinary shares of the Company as disclosed in accordance
with the Listing Rules of the Financiol Conduct Authority are as
sef out on pages 113 and 114 of the Directors' Remuneration
Report and details of the Diractors' long-term incentive awards
are set out on page 114.

Equal Opportunities Employment

Vesuvius plcis an equal opportunities employer, and decisions
on recruitmen, development, training and premotion, and
other employment-related issues are made sclely on the
grounds of individual ability, achievement, expertise and
conduct. These principles are operated on a non-discriminatory
basis, without regardtorace, colour, nationality, culture,

ethnic origin, religion, belief, gender, sexual orientation, age,
disability or any other reason not related to job performance

or prohibited by applicable law. In cases where employees are
injured or disabled during employment with the Group, support,
including appropriate fraining, is provided to those employees
andworkplace adjustments are made as appropriate in respect
of their duties and working environment, supporting recovery
and continued employment.

Employee Communications

Vesuvius adopts an open and honest approach to employee
communications, supported by regular updates from senior
management across all businesses and operations within the
Group. Regular communications include direct email updates
on the financial performance of the Company, the industry
environment in which Vesuvius operates, and other significant
operational developments. The Company operates an
employee intranet which distributes Company news and events,
as well as local initiatives for employee engogementon a
site-by-site basis. The HR department is the primary point

of contact for employees on employrment and workplace
matters, operating with an open-door policy and advising
employees of any local legal, tax, pension or other employment
changes. There are numerous employee-sponscred and

led representative bodies within Vesuvius which differ with
respectto jurisdiction and geography. Senicr management,
supported and facilitated by the HR department, encouroges
open diglogue and seeks apportunities to consult with these
employee representative bodies as appropriate.

Pensions

Ineach country in which the Group operates, the pension
arrangements in place are considered to be consistent with
good employment practice inthat particular area. independent
advisers are used to ensure that the plans are operatedin
accordance with local legislation and the rules of each plan.
Group policy prohibits direct investment of pension fund assets
inthe Company’s shares. Outside the UK, the US, Germany and
Belgium, the majority of pensicn plansin the Group are ofa
defined contribution nature.

In 2016 the main German defined benefit plan was closed for
new enfrants and existing members were offered a buy-out of
their benefits under this plan. Thase who accepted this buy-out
then joined the new defined contribution plan,

The Group's UK defined benefits plan (the UK Plan’) and the
main US defined benefits plans are closed to new entrants and
have ceased providing future benefits accrual, with all eligibsle
employees instead being provided with benefits through
defined contribution arrangemenits.

119

IDUDLIIAGE) I



120

Vesuviusplc
Annual Reportand Accounts 2017

Directors’ Report continued

For the Group's closed UK Plan, a Trustee Board exists
comprising employees, former employees and on independent
trustee. The Board currently comprises six trustee Directors,

of whom two are member-nominated. The administration

of the UK Planis outsourced. The Company is mindful of its
obligations underthe Pensions Act 2004 and of the need to
comply with the guidance issued by the Pensions Regulator.
Regular dialogue is maintained between the Company and the
Trustee Board of the UK Plan 1o ensure that both the Company
and Trustee Board are apprised of the same financial and other
information about the Group and the UK Plan. Thisis pertinent
o each being able to contribute to the effective functioning of
the UK Plan.

Vesuvius continues to seek ways to de-risk its existing pension
plans through a combination of asset marching, buy-in
opportunities and, where prudent, valuntary cash contributions.

The Group's worldwide net pension deficit at 31 December
2017 was £16.5m (31 December 2016: £29.4m). The principal
reasons for the £12 9m reduction were increases of £1.8m to
the deficit arising out of changes to actuarial assumptions
(attributable to increasing discount rates; updated mortality
assumptions and pension membership data) and additional
accrual and administrative expenditure paid for the year
{f6.8m); offest by reductions to the deficit of £10.2m from
asset returns and cash contributions of £11.6m.

The following disclosures are made in compliance with the Financial Conduct Autharity’s Listing Rule 9.8.4CR:

Disclosurerequirementunder LR 9.8.6R

Reference/location

(1) Interest capitalised by the Group during the year

See Note 9.1 on page 143

(2) Publication of unaudited financial information

Not applicable

(3) the appropriateness of adopting the going concern basis of Page 117
accounting and the Directors assessment of the prospects of the

Company

{4) Details of any long-term incentive schemes Pages 99 and 100

(5) Diractor waiver of emoluments

Not applicable

(6) Director waiver of future emcluments

Not applicable

(7) Allotment for cash of equity securities made during the year

Not applicable

(8) Allotment for cash of equity securities made by a major
unlisted subsidiary during the year

Not applicable

(9} Details of participation of parent undertaking in any placing
made during the year

Not applicable

{10) Details of relevant contracts in which a Director or
controlling shareholder was interested during the vear

Not applicable

{11) Contracts for the provision of services by a controlling
shareholder during the year

Notapplicable

{12) Details of any arrangement under which ¢ shareholder
has waived or agreed to waive any dividends

Vesuvius ple holds 7,271,174 of its £0.10 ordinary shares as
Treasury shares. No dividends are payable onthese shares.
Cookson Investments (Jersey) Limited, the Trustee of the
Company’s ESOP, has agreed to waive, on an engoing basis,
any dividends payable onshares it holds on trust for use under
the Company's Employee Share Plans, details of which can be
found cn pages 107, 118 and 119

(13) Details of where a shareholder has agreed to waive
future dividends

See gbove

(14) Statements relating to controlling shareholders and
ensuringcompany independence

Not applicable

The Directors’ Report has been approved by the Board and is signed on its behalf by

Henry Knowles Company Secretary
28 February 2018



Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of the
Annual Report and Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report
andthe financial statements in accordance with applicable low
and regulation.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year. Under that law the Directors
have prepared the Group financial statementsin accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union and Company financial
statementsin accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, comprising FRS 107 "Reduced Disclosure
Framework”, and applicable law). Under company law the
Directors must not approve the financial statements unless
they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group and Company and of the profit of the
Group forthat period. In preparing the financial statements,
the Directors are required to:

> selectsuitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently,

v

state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the Eurepean
Union have been fallowed for the Group financial statements
and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising

FRS 101, have been followed for the Company financial
statements, subject to any material departures disclosed

and explained in the financicl statements;

v

make judgements and accounting estimatesthat are
reasonable and prudent; and

v

prepare the financial statements on the gaing concern basis
unless itis inappropriate to presume that the Group and
Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group and
Company'stransactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy
of any time the financial position of the Group and Company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements and the
Directars' Remuneration Report comply with the Companies
Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial staterments,
Article 4 of the IAS Regulation,

The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Group and Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
ond other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and infegrity
of the Company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

The Directors consider that the Annual Report and Accounts,
taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for sharehaolders to assess
the Group and Company's perfermance, business model

and strategy.

Responsibilities Statement of the Directorsin
respect of the Annual Financial Report

Each of the Directors confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge:

> the Company financial statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, comprising FRS 107 "Reduced Disclosure
Framework”, and applicable low), give atrue and fair
view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and loss
of the Company;

> the Group financial statements, which have been preparedin
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the Eurapean Union,
give a frue and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial
position and profit of the Group; and

> the Directors’ Reportincludes o fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the
position of the Group and Company, together with a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties that
it faces.

The names and functions of the Directors of Vesuvius plc are
as follows:

John McDonough CBE Chairman

Patrick André Chief Executive

Guy Young Chief Financial Officer
Christer Gardel| Nen-executive Director
Hock Goh Non-executive Director
Jane Hinkley Non-executive Director

and Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee
Non-executive Directar, Senior
Independent Director and
Chairman of the Audit Committee
Non-executive Director

Douglas Hurt

Holly Koeppel

On behalf of the Board
Guy Young Chief Financial Officer
28 February 2018
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‘I relocated to the UAE

to help set up our Ras
Al Khaimah facility”

Adam Liszka, Operations Director

Advanced Refractories, NAFTA

My careerwith Vesuvius began in
Poland in 2001, when | joined the
Skawina Brick Plant as Production
Coordinator. After a series of
promotions, | becarme Praoduction
Manager for the whele Skawina
Brick Plant in 2009.

Iwas later given the exciting
opportunity to work overseas,
relocating firstto the LUAE in 2012
tohelp start operations at qur
brand-new manufacturing facility
in Ras Al Khaimah, and later
moved to the United States as
Operations Manager ot our plant
in Chicago Heights, lllinois. Whilst
there, | worked with our Chicago

Heightsteamtoset the foundations

for the Yellowstone project,

targeting increased manufacturing

efficiency at our site.

Foliewing this project, | took on my
next challenge, by becoming the
Operations Director for Advanced
Refractories NAFTA, responsible
forthe manufacturing operations
of sites acrossthe US, Canodao and
Mexico. My career at Vesuvius
has brought me professional
advancement, the opportunity
towork across cultures and to
become areclcitizen of the world.

@ See more about Vesuvius careers People and Community on p67-73
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of Vesuvius plc

Report on the audit of the
financial statements

Opinion
Inour opinion:

> Vesuvius plc's Group financial staterments and Company
financdiol statements {the ‘financial statements’) give a true
and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Company’s
offairs as at 31 December 2017 and of the Group's profitand
cash flows for the year then ended

v

The Group financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union

> The Company financial stotements have been properly
prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Stendards, comprising FRS 101 'Reduced Disclosure
Framework', and applicable law)

v

The tinancial stotements have been prepared in accardance
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as
regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the

IAS Regulation

We have audited the financial statements, included within
the Annual Repert and Accounts (the ‘Annual Report’),
which comprise: the Group and Company Balance Sheets
as at 31 December 2017; the Group Income Statement ond
Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Group Statement
of Cash Flows, and the Group and Company Statements of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended; and the notesto
the financial statements, which include a description of the
significant accounting policies.

Cur opinion is consistent with our reporting tc the
Audit Committee.

Basis for Opinion

We canducted our quditin accardance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK) (15As (UK)') and applicable law.
Qurresponsibilities under 1ISAs (UK are further described in the
auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Group in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our cudit of the
financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical
Standard, as applicableto listed public interest entities, and we
have fulfilled our cther ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements.

During the period, we identified thot we hod provided a
prohibited tax compliance service in respect of payroll raxes
to the Group in breach of parograph 5.167R(e)i) of the FRC's
Ethical Standard. Total fees billed in the period in respect of
the service omounted 1o £1,800. Upon identifying the breach,
we immaediately ceased providing this prohibited service,

The prohibited service was provided to a component that did
not form part of our audit evidence inrespect of the audit of
the Group. We confirm that, based on our assessment of this
breach, and the subsequent actions taken, we have not, in our
view, compromised our independence.

Other than the matterreferred to above, and to the best of our
knowledge ond belief, we declare that no non-audit services
prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were provided o the
Group orthe Company.

Other than those disclosed in the Audit Committee's Report,
we have pravided no other non-audit services ta the Group
arthe Company inthe period from 1 January 201710

31 December 2017.

Our Audit Approach - Qverview

Materiality

> Overall Group materiality:
£7.6m, based on 5% of profit
before tax and separately
reported items (Headline
profit before tax’)

¥

Overall Company materiality:
£7.6m, bosed on 1% of total
assets, capped o the level of
Group materiality

Audit scope Key audit matters

> Qur auditincluded full-scope > Provisionsfor exposures
audits of 20 components
and specified procedures
on certainbalances and
transactions for nine >

acdditional components

> Provisions for income rax
uncertainties

Recognition of deferred tax
assets for taxlosses

> Tokentogether, the
components atwhich either
full scope auditwork or
specified audit procedures
were performed enabled us
to get coverage on 68% af
revenye and 76% of Headline
profit before tax



The Scope of our Audit

As part of designing our cudit, we determined materiality ond
assessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial
statements. In particular, we looked atwhere the Directors
made subjective judgements, for example inrespect of
significant accounting estimates that involved making
assumptions and considering future eventsthat are

inherently uncertain,

We gained an understanding of the legal and regulatory
framework applicable to the Group and the industry in which it
operates, and considered the risk of acts by the Group which
were contrary to applicable lows and regulations, including
fraud. We designed cudit procedures at the Group and
significant component level to respond to the risk, recognising
thatthe risk of not detecting a material misstotement due to
fraudis higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from
error, as froud may involve deliberate concealment by, for
example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or threugh
collusion. We focused on laws and regulations that could give
rise to a material misstaterment in the Group and Company
financiol statements, including, but not limited to, the UK
Companies Act 2006, the Listing Rules, and global tax
compliance matters. Qurtestsincluded, but were not limited
to, review of the financial statement disclasures to underlying
supporting documentation, review of correspondence with
legal advisers, enquiries of management, review of significant
compaonent auditors' work and review of Internal Audit reports
inso far as they related o the financial statements.

Key audit matter
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There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described
above and the further removed non-compliance with laws

and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected
inthe financial statements, the less likely we would become
aware of i1,

We did notidentify any key cudit matters relating to
irregularities, including fraud. Asin ail of our audits we also
addressed the risk of management override of internal
conirols, including testing journals and evaluating whether
there was evidence of bias by the directors that reprasented
arisk of material misstatement due to fraud.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’
professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit
of the financial statements of the current period and include
the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement
{whether or not dua ta fraud) identified by the auditors,
tncluding those which had the greatest effect on: the overall
audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and
directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters,
and any comments we make on the results of our procedures
thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. This is not a complete list of all risks identified by

our audit.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Provisions for exposures

The Group helds o number of provisions
for exposures including those resulting
from indirect tax, requlkatory, legal

and environmental matters as well

as restructuring commitments.

Refer to Restructuring Charges (Note 7),
Provisions {Note 32), Accounting Policies
and Critical Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Note 3) and Significant Issues
and Material Judgements in the Audit
Committee Report (page 87).

Determining the quantum of provisions
requires the Directors to use judgement
and estimation, and for certain provisions,

We obtained an understanding for the hasis of each significant estimate and the key
assumpticns used for provisions and, in certain cases, the related insurance assets.

Restructuring costs related fo the Group's ratianalisation of its opercticnal and
support functions. The costs predominantly included redundancies and severance
payments, prefessional adviser fees and other impairment charges for obsolete
inventories and property, plant and equipment,

> We have tested a sample of restructuring coststo determine that these are
directly attributable to the Group's restructuring activities

> For costs which are provided for atthe year-end, we have verified for a sample
of transactions that a legal or constructive obligation exists

> From our procedures we concluded that restructuring costs were appropriately
recognised and classified within the finoncial statements

For provisions for disposal and closure costs, including litigation matters:

obtoin specialist knowledge. > We obtained supporting computations for the estimated costs and tested the

We focused on this area due to the

mathematical accuracy of these

judgement and estimates invalved. > We discussed obligations arising with in-house and external legal counset and
inspected supporting evidence of the history of claims arising where these were
used asinputsintoclient models used to estimate the provisions

> We glsc inspected evidence of available insurance cover and that this was
appropriately presented gross of the associated provisions {within'Other
receivables’) and considered the financial condition of insurence providers

= We found no exceptians in respect of this work
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of Vesuvius plc continued

Keyauditmatter

How curauditaddressed the key audit matter

For all provisions we considered whether there is a range of possible outcomesin
respect of each estimate. Where appropriate, we verified that disclosure is included
within the Annual Report of this.

We also considered the impact of the provisions for exposures on the reporting and
disclosure of separately reported items and Alternate Performance Measuresinthe
financial statements and verified that appropricte disclosures are made in the
Annual Report.

Provisions forincome tax uncertainties
The Group holds @ number of provisions
for income tax exposures arising from tax
structuring, transfer pricing and local
authority reviews.

Refer to Income Tax (Note 10), Accounting
Policies and Critical Accounting
Judgements and Estimates {Note 3) and

Significant Issues and Material Judgements

in the Audit Committee Report (page 87).

Betermining the quantum of these
provisions requires the Directorsto
make judgements and estimates, and
for certain provisions, obtain specialist
knowledge.

We utilised our tax specialists to provide a view of material judgements made. Qur
audit precedures included:

> Obtaining relevant computations and correspondence in respect of each material
elerment of the provision for income tax uncertainty

v

Understanding the key assumptions made by management in recognising the
provision and forming anindependent view on the reasonableness of the
assumptions

> Assessingthe consistency of approach used to determine provisions compared
with prior periods, and considering whether such consistency remains appropriate

v

Considering the range of possible outcomes in respect of the estimates and that
the Annual Report discloses the nature of the estimation uncertainty

From our procedures we concluded that the estimates are reasonable and that
appropriate disclosures have been included within the Annual Report.

Recognition of deferred tax assers for tax
losses

In certainterritories such as the US, the
Group has a material quantum of
historical tax losses.

The determination of whether these will
be utilised inthe future is judgemental,
particularly as to how much of these could
be reasonably expected to be utilised.

In addition, the impact of US tax changes
enacted in December 2017 requires
reassessment of the calculation of rotal
tax losses and the lives attached to these.
There is a risk of error and judgement
given these changes are complex and
subjectto interpretation.

Refer to Income Tax (Note 10}, Accounting
Policies and Critical Accounting
Judgements and Estimates (Note 3) and

Significant Issues and Material Judgements

in the Audit Committee Report (page 87).

We utilised our tax specialists to support with the audit resting of the quantum of
tax losses in the US and that this is accurately determined, takinginto account the
vear-end US tax reforms. We concluded the tax losses ore accurately determined.

In addition fo testing the quantum of taxlosses:

> We tested management's forecasts supporting the amounts recognised os o
deferred tax asset, and considered the likelihood of forecasts being achieved

v

We also considered a range of possible outcomes in the forecast and that an
appropriate midpoint was taken in selecting the amount to recognise

v

We considered alternative views and whether a full versus partial recognition
approach was appropriate. We concluded that the current opproach, which
recognises taxlosses as deferred tax assets to the extent there is profit forecast
againstthem which will be utilised, remains the most appropriate. We verified
that appropriate disclosure of the amount of deferred tox asset not recognised
is included within the financial statements

From our procedures we concluded that the estimate is reasonable and that
appropriate disclosures have been included within the Annual Report.

We determined that there were no key audit matters applicable to the Company to communicate in our report.



How We Tailored the Audit Scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed
enough work to be able to give an opinion an the financial
statements as awhole, taking into account the structure of

the Group and the Company, the accounting processes and
controls, ond the industry in which they operate.

Yesuvius has operationsin 37 countries and has 66 production
sites. The Group consclidates financial information through
reporting from its components which include divisions and
functions at these sites.

Our audit scope was determined by considering the
signiticance of the entity’s contribution to revenue and
contribution to individual financial statement line items,
with specific consideration to obtaining sufficient coverage
over areas of high risk and locations and entities where we
identified significant or inherent risks.

We identified one significant component being the Groug's
German operations which comprise 14% of the Group's revenue.
Asthe Group's remaining revenue is spread across 74 financial
reporting compaonents there were no other individually
financially significant components. The audit scope, including
Germany, comprised 20 components far which we determined
that full-scope audits would need to be performed and nine
components for which specific audit procedures on certain
balances and transactions were perfarmed. This collectively
gave us coverage of 8% of the Group's revenue and 76% of
the Group's Headline profit before tax. This, together with the

Graupfinancial statements
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additional procedures performed at the Group level, including
testing the consolidation process, gave us the evidence we
needed for our opinion on the financial statements as a whole.

In establishing the overall approach to the Group audit, we
determined the type of work that needed 1o be performed

at the entities by us, as the Group engagement team, or by
component auditors of other Pw( network firms. Where the
work was performed by component cuditors, we determined
the level of invelvement and oversight we needed to have in

the cudit work at those reporting unitsto be oble to conclude
whether sufficient appropriate audit evidence had been
obtained as a basis for cur opinion on the financial statements
as awhole. This was achieved through regular update meetings
with the component auditors and visits to 17 of the 20 full-scope
components by senior members of the Group ouditteam.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application

of matericlity. We set certain quantitative thresholds for
materiality. These, together with qualitative considerations,
helped usto determine the scope of our audit and the nature,
timing and extent of cur audit procedures on the individual
financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating
the effect of misstatements, both individually and in aggregare
onthe financial statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined
materiality for the financial statements as o whole as follows:

Companyfinancial statements

Overalf materiality £7.6 million

£7. 6 million

How we determinedit

5% of profit before tax and separately
reported items ('Headline profit before tax’)

1% of total assets, capped to the level of Group
overall matericality

Rationale for benchmark
applied

We believe that profit before tax and

separately reported items (‘Headline profit before
tax’) provides us with an appropriate basis for
determining our overall Group materiality given
itis a key measure used by users of the financial
statements, Headline profit before taxis an
Alternative Performance Measure presented

We believe that total assets is an appropriate
basis for determining materiality for the Parent
Company, given this entity is an investment
holding campany and thisis an accepted auditing
benchmark. The materiality was capped to the
level of Group overcll materiality. The Company is
not anin-scope component in our Group audit.

and defined in the Annual Report and Accounts.

For each component in the scope of cur Group audit, we
allocated a materiality that is less than our overall Group
materiality. The range of materiality allocated across
components was between £0.7 million and £7.3 million.

Certain components were audited to a local statutory audit
materiality that was also less than our overall Group materiality.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we waould report

to them misstatements identified during our audit above

£0.4 million (Group and Company audit) cs well as
misstaterments befow thase amaunts that, in our view,
warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of Vesuvius plc continued

Going concern
In accordance with [SAs {UK) we report as follows:

Reporting obligation

Cutcome

We are required to report if we have anything material to add or draw attention
o in respect of the Directors’ Statement in the financial statemenis about
whether the Directors considered it appropriate to adept the going concern
basis of accountingin preparing the financial statements and the Directors’
identification of any material uncertainties to the Group's and the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern over a period of atleast 12 months

fromtha date of approval of the financial statements.

We have nothing material to add orto draw
attention to. However, because not ail future
events or conditions can be predicted, this
staterment is not o guarantee asto the
Group's and Company's ability to continue
as agoing concern,

We arerequired to report if the Directors’ statement relating to going concern

We have nothing toreport.

in accordance with Listing Rule 9.6 .6R(3} is materially inconsistent with our

knowledge obtained in the audit.

Reporting on Other Information

The other infermation comprises all of the information inthe
Annual Report other than the financial statements and our
Auditors' Report thereon, The Directors are responsible for the
other information. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do
not express an audit opinion or, exceptto the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connecticn with our audit of the financial statements, cur
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears ta be materially misstated.

If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstaternent, we are required ta perform procedures to
conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the
financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
information. If, based en the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is o material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report, we
also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have beenincluded.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work
undertaken in the caurse of the audit, the Companies Act 2006,
({CAD8), ISAs (UK) and the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct
Authority (FCA) require us also to report certain opinions and
matters as described below (required by ISAs (UK) unless
otherwise stated).

Strategic Report and Directors' Report

In cur opinion, based on the work undertaken inthe course of
the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and
Directors' Report forthe year ended 31 December 2017 1s
consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared
in accordance with applicable legal requirements (CADé).

Inlight of the knowledge and understanding of the Group ond
Company andtheir environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we did not identify any material misstatements inthe
Strategic Report and Directors' Report (CAQE).

The Directors' assessment of the prospects of the Group and of
the principal risks that would threaten the solvency or liquidity of
the Group

We have nothing material to add or draw attention to
regarding:

> The Directors’ confirmation on page 23 of the Annual Report
that they have carried out arobust assessment of the
principal risks facing the Group, including those that would
threaten its business model, future performance, solvancy
or liquidity

> The disclosures inthe Annucl Report that describe those risks
and explain how they are being managed ar mitigated

> The Directors’ explanation on page 23 of the Annual Report
as to how they have assessed the prospects of the Group,
over what period they have done so and why they consider
that period to be appropriate, and their statement as to
whether they have a reasonable expectation that the Group
will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as
they fall due over the period of their assessment, including
any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary
qualifications or assumptions

We have nothing to report having performed a review of the
Directors' Statement thot they have carried out a robust
assessment of the principal risks facing the Group and
statement in relation to the longer-term viability of the Group.
Our review was substantially lessin scope than an audit and
only consisted of making enquiries and considering the
Directars’ process supporting their statements; checking that
the statements are in alignment with the relevant provisions
of the UK Corporate Governance Code (the ‘Code”); and
considering whether the statements are consistent with the
knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company
and their environment obtained in the course of the audit
{Listing Rules).



Other Code Provisions
We have nothing to report in respect of our responsibility to
report when:

> The statement given by the Directors, on page 121, that
they consider the Annual Report taken as a whole to be fair,
balanced and understandable, and provides the infermation
necessary for the Members o assess the Group's and
Company's position and performance, business model and
strategy is matericlly inconsistent with our knowledge of the
Group and Company obtained in the course of perfarming
our audit

v

The section of the Annual Report on pages 85 to 92
describing the work of the Audit Committee does not
appropriately address matters communicated by us to
the Audit Committee

> The Directors' statement relating to the Company's
compliance with the Code does not properly disclose a
departure from a relevant provision of the Code specified,
under the Listing Rules, for review by the auditors

Directors’ Remuneration

In our opinion, the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to
be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006 (CAQS).

Responsibilities for the Financial Statements
and the Audit

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

As explained more fullyin the Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities in respect of the Annual Report and Financial
Statements set out on page 127, the Directors are responsible
far the preparation of the financial statements in accordancea
with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they
give atrue and fair view. The Directors are also responsible for
such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's and the Company's
ability to confinue as a gaing concern, disclosing as
opplicable, matters related to going concern ond using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease
operations, or have norealistic alternative butto do so.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Financial Statements

Our cbjectives are to obtain recsonable assurance abour
whether the financial statements as @ whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditar's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, butis not a guorantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will
always detect amaterial misstatement when it exists.
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Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually orin the aggregaote, they couid reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our Auditers' Report.

Use of this Report

Thisreport, including the opiniens, has been prepared for and
anly for the Company’s Members as o body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no
other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other
personto whom this reportis shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent
inwrifing.

Other Required Reporting
Companies Act 2006 Exception Reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to
you if, in our opinion:

> We have not received all the information and explanations
we require for our audit

> Adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us

> Certain disclosures of Directors' remuneration specified by
law are not made

> The Company financial statements and the part of the
Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited are notin
agreement with the cccounting records and returns

We have no exceptions fo report arising from this responsibility.

Appointment

Following the recommendation of the Audit Committee, we
were appointed by the Members on 10 May 2017 to audit the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 and
subsequent financial periods. This is therefore our first year of
uninterrupted engagement.

Julian Jenkins (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCocpers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

28 February 2018
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Group Income Statement

For the yecr ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
MSeparately WSeparately
Headline reported “Headline reported
performance items Total  perforrance ‘tems Total
Notes £m £m €m £m £m £m
Continving operations
Revenue 4.5 1,683.9 — 1,683.9 1,401.4 — 1,407.4
Manufacturing costs (1,215.8) —  (1,219.8) {1,018.6) —  (1,018.6)
Administration, selling and distribution costs (298.6) — (298.6) (249.5) — (249.5)
Trading profit 5 165.5 — 165.5 133.3 — 133.3
Amortisation of acquired intangible assefs 16 — (19.5) (19.5) — 17.1) (17.1)
Restructuring charges 7 — (26.3) (36.3) — (28.5) (28.5)
Gain on employee benefit plan 28 — — — — 5.2 5.2
Operating profit/{loss) 165.5 (55.8) 109.7 1333 (40.4) 929
Finance expense (17.5) — {(17.5) (17.4) — (17.4)
Financeincome 36 — 3.6 29 — 29
Net finance costs 9 (13.9) — (13.9) (14.5} — (14.5)
Share of post-tax profit of joint ventures 35 1.3 — 1.3 1.0 — 1.0
Profit/{loss) beforetax 152.9 {55.8) 971 119.8 (40.4) 79.4
Income tax (charge)/credits 10 (36.4) (18.0) (54.4) (31.4) 5.0 (26.4)
Profit/{loss) from:
Continuing operations 116.5 (73.8) 42.7 88.4 (35.4) 53.0
Discontinued operations 22 — 1.7 1.7 — 10.2 10.2
Profit/{loss) 116.5 (72.1) 44.4 88.4 (25.2) 63.2
Profit/{loss) attributable to:
Owners of the parent 1101 {(72.1) 38.0 821 {25.2) 569
Non-controlling interests 6.4 — 6.4 6.3 — 6.3
Profit/{loss) 116.5 {72.1) 44.4 88.4 (25.2) 63.2
Earningspershare —pence 11
Conftinuing operations  — basic 13.4 17.3
—diluted 13.4 173
Total operations —basic 14.1 2711
—diluted 14.0 21.0

U Heodline perfarmance is defined in Note 4.1 ond separately reported tems are defined in Note 2.5



Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2077

2017 2016

Notes £m £m
Profit 44.4 63.2
Items that will not subsequently be reclassified teincome statement
Remeasurement of defined benefit liabilities fassets 28.6 8.4 95
Income tax relating toitems not reclassified 10.4 (2.4) (0.7)
ltems that may subsequently be reclassified toincome statement
Exchange differences on franslation of the net assets of foreign operations (38.3) 207.7
Exchange differences on franslation of netinvestment hedges 25 9.8 (41.6)
Income tax relating te items that may be reclossified 0.7 —
Other comprehensive (loss) / income, net of income tax (23.2) 174.9
Total comprehensive income 21.2 2381
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the parent 15.3 226.2
Naon-controlling interests 5.9 11.9
Total comprehensiveincome 21.2 2381
Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the parent arises from:
Centfinuing operations 13.6 216.0
Discontinued operations 1.7 10.2
Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the parent 15.3 226.2
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Group Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
Notes £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated frem operations 12 175.8 130.2
Interest paid (15.6) {14.5)
Interest received 3.5 2.4
Net interest paid (12.1) (12.1)
Income taxes paid (38.2}) (34.2)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 125.5 839
Cash flows frominvesting activities
Capitalexpenditure (3%.0) {31.3)
Proceeds fromthe sale of property, plant and equipment 1.8 1.6
Acquisition of subsidiaries and joint ventures, net of cash acquired 21 — 7.7
Dividends received from jointventures 1.7 2.0
Net cash outflow from investing activities (35.5) (35.4)
Net cash inflow before financing activities 90.0 48.5
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 14 103.5 263
Repayment of borrowings 14 (92.2) (25.5)
Borrowing facility arrangement costs 14 1.0 —
Settlement of forward foreign exchange contracts (10.4) 20.6
Dividends paidto equity shareholders 26 (45.6) (43.9)
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders {2.5) (2.5)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (48.2) (25.0)
Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents 14 411.8 235
Cash and cash equivalentsat1 January 101.0 67.0
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents 14 (2.8) 10.5
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 13 140.0 101.0
Alrernative performance measure (non-statutory):
Continuing Discontinued 2017 Continuing  Discontinued 2016
operctions  operations total opergtions operations total
£m £m £m im frn £m
Free cash flow (Note 4.10)
Net cash inflow/{outtlow) from operating activities 126.3 0.8) 125.5 839 — 839
Net retirement benefit obligations 4.8 — 4.8 7.7 — 7.7
Capital expenditure (35.0) — (39.0) (31.3) — {21.3)
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment 1.8 — 1.8 1.6 — 1.6
Dividends received from joint ventures 1.7 — 1.7 2.0 — 2.0
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders (2.5) — (2.5) (2.5) — (2.5)
Free cash flow {Note 4.10) 93.1 (0.8) 92.3 61.4 — &61.4




Group Balance Sheet

Asat 31 December 2017

2017 2076

Notes £m £m
Assets
Property, plant and equipment 15 311.3 323.6
Intangible assets 16 743.0 781.9
Employee benefits—netsurpluses 28 92.4 788
Interests in joint ventures and associates 35 17.5 18.0
Investments 14 2.6
Income tax recoverable 10 0.4 1.0
Deferred tax assets 10 61.0 g21
Otherreceivables 32 309 304
Derivative financial instruments 20 0.2 —
Total non-current assets 1,258.1 1,328.4
Cashand short-term deposits 13 161.9 144 4
Inventories 19 222.8 207.7
Trade and other receivables 18 422.2 3941
Income tax recoveragble 10 5.2 39
Derivative financial instruments 20 0.1 —
Total current assets 812.2 7507
Total assets 2,070.3 2,078.5
Equity
Issued share capital 23 278 27.8
Retained earnings 24 2,370.3 2,370.0
Otherreserves 25 (1,369.4) (1,341.4)
Equity attributable to the owners of the parent 1,028.7 1,056.4
Non-controllinginterests 45.4 427
Tatal equity 1,074.1 1,098.5
Liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings 27.2 410.5 33208
Employee benefits—net liabilities 28 108.9 108.2
Other payables 20 17.3 16.5
Provisions 32 34.4 399
Deferredtax liabilitias 10 42.7 48.6
Total non-current liabilities 613.8 5440
Interest-bearing borrowings 27.2 257 133.9
Trade and cther payables 30 292.6 2397
Income tax payable 10 34.3 349
Provisions 32 29.8 26.6
Derivative financial instruments 20 — 09
Total current liabilities 382.4 436.0
Iofc:ll fliabilities 996.2 980.0
Total equity and liabilities 2,070.3 2,078.5

* Restated ot 6 result of ¢ change in accoanting policy {Mete 10.1) and the recording of a prowvision for which a related asset exists (Note 32),

The financial statements were opproved ond authorised for issue by the Directors on 28 February 2018 and signed on their

behalf by:

Patrick André Guy Young
Chief Executive

Chief Financial Officer
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Group Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Non-

Issued share Other Retained Ownersof  controlling Total
capital reserves earnings the parent interests equity
£m £m £m £m £m m
Asat January 2016 27.8  (1,501.9) 23465 872.4 327 205.1
Profit — — 569 569 6.3 63.2
Remeasurement of defined benefitliobilities/assets — — 9.5 9.5 — 9.5
Income tax relating to items not reclassified — — (0.7} (0.7 — (0.7)
Exchange differences ontranslation of the net assets
of foreign operations — 2021 — 202 5.6 2077
Exchonge differences on translation of netinvestment hedges — {(41.6) — (41.6) -— (41.6)
Other comprehensive income, net ofincome tax o 160.5 88 169.3 5.6 1749
Total comprehensive income — 160.5 657 226.2 11.9 2387
Recognition of share-based payments — — 1.7 1.7 — 17
Dividends paid (Note 26) — — (43.9) (43.9) (2.5) (46.4)
Total transactions with owners — — (42.2) 42.2) (2.5) {447
Asat1January 2017 278 (1,341.4) 2,3700  1,056.4 421 1,098.5
Profit — — 38.0 38.0 6.4 44.4
Remeasurement of defined benefit liabilities/assets — — 8.4 8.4 — 8.4
Income tax relating to itemms not reclassified — — {2.4) (2.4) — (2.4)
Exchange differences on translation of the net assets
of foreign operations —_— (37.8) — (37.8) (0.5) (38.3)
Exchange differences ontranslation of netinvestment hedges — 9.8 — 9.8 — 9.8
Income tax relating ta items that may be reclassified — — 0.7} ©.7n — 0.7
Other comprehensive income / (loss) net ofincome tax — (28.9) 5.3 (22.7) (0.5) (23.2)
Total comprehensive income / (loss) — (28.0) 433 15.3 59 21.2
Recognition of share-based payments — — 2.6 2.6 — 2.6
Dividends paid {Note 26) — — (45.6) {45.6) 2.6 (48.2)
Total transactions with owners — — {43.0) {43.0) (2.6) (45.6)

Asat 31 December 2017 27.8  (1,369.4) 2,370.3 1,028.7 45.4 1,074.1




Notes to the Group Financial Statements

2.2

2.3
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2.5

General Information

Vesuvius ple (Vesuvius' or ‘the Company’}is a public company limited by shares. Itisincorporated and domiciled in England
and Wales and listed on the London Stock Exchange. The nature of the operations and principal activities of the Company
and its subsidiary and joint venture companies {‘the Group') is set out in the Strategic Report on pages 1to 73 and its registered
addressis shown on page 18%.

Basis of Preparation

Basis of accounting

The Group Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS)
as adopted by the European Union and with the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS. The
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, with the exception of defined benefit pension
plans, certain provisions, available-for-sale investments and derivative financial instruments.

Basis of conselidation

The Group Financial Statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its ‘subsidiaries’}. Control exists when the Company has the power to direct the relevant activities of an entity that
significantly affectthe entity’s return so as to have rights to the variable return from its activities. In assessing whether control
exists, potential voting rights that are currently exercisable are taken into account. The results of subsidiaries acguired or
disposed of during the year are included in the Group Income Statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the
effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

The principal accounting policies cpplied inthe preparation of these Group Financial Statments are set outin the Notes.
These policies have been consistently applied to all of the years presented, unless otherwise stated. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting palicies into line with those detailed
hereinto ensure that the Group financial statements are prepared on a consistent basis. All intra-Group transactions,
balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group's interest
therein. Non-controlling interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the ariginal business combination
together with the non-controlling interests' share of profit or loss, each component of other comprehensive income, and
dividends paoid since the date of the combination. Total comprehensive income is attributed to the non-cantrolling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Going concern

The Directors have prepared cash flow forecasts for the Group for a period in excess of 12 months from the date of approval
of the 2017 financial statements. Thase forecasts reflect an assessment of current and future end-market conditions and
their impact on the Group's future trading performance. The forecasts show that the Group will be able to operate within the
current committed debt facilities and show continued compliance with the Company’s financial covenants. Cn the basis of
the exercise described above and the Group's available committed debt facilities, the Directors consider that the Group and
Company have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for a period of at least 12 months from the date of
signing of thesa accounts. Accordingly, they continue to adopt @ going cancern basis in preparing the finoncial statements of
the Group and the Company.

Functional and presentation currency
The financicl statements are presented in millions of pound sterling, which is the functional currency of the Company,
and rounded to one decimal place. Foreign operations are included in accordance with the policies set outin Nate 271,

Disclosure of ‘separately reported itemns’

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements encourages the disclosure of additional line items and the reardering of items
presented on the face of the income statement when appropriate for o proper understanding of the entity’s financicl
performance The Campany has adopted a calumnar presentation for its Group Income Statement, to separately identify
headline performance results, as the Directors consider that this gives o better view of the underlying resulis of the ongoing
business. As part of this presentaticn format, the Company has adopted a policy of disclosing separately on the face of its
Group Income Statement, within the column entitled ‘Separately reported items’, the effect of any components of financial
performance for which the Direciors consider separate disclosure would assist both in a better understanding of the financial
performance achieved andin making projections of future results.

Both materiality and the nature and function of the components of income and expense are considered in deciding upon
such presentation. Such items may include, inter alig, the financial effect of exceptional iterns which occur infrequently, such
as major restructuring activity, initial recognition and subsequent increase, decrease, utilisation and impact of tax reform on
US deferred tax assets, together with items always reported separately, such as amertisation charges relating to acquired
intangible assets, profits or losses arising on the disposal of continuing or discontinued cperations and the taxation impact
of the aferementioned exceptional items and items reported separately.
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements continued

25

2.6

Basis of Preparation (continued)

Disclosure of 'separately reported items' {continued)

The amortisation charge inrespect of infangible assets recognised on business combniations is excluded from the trading results
of the Group since they are nan-cash charges and are not considered reflective of the core trading performance of the Group.
Restructuring charges are excluded fromthe troding results of the Graup due tothe material nature of these non-recurring
transformationalinitiatives. In its adoption of this palicy, the Company applies an even-handed approach te beth gains ond
losses and aims to be both consistent and clear inits accounting and disclosure of such items.

New and revised IFRS

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandartory for 31 December 2017
reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the Group. The Group's assessment of the impact of these new
standerds and interpretations is set out below. Other new or amended standards or interpretations are not expectedto
have a significantimpoct on the Group's financial statements.

IFRS @ Financial Instruments

IFRS § Financial Instruments {effective frem 1 January 2018, for the year ending 2018} addresses the classification,
measurement and derecognition of financial instruments, introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment
model for financial assets. It replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments guidance and comprehensive updates have been made
toIFRS 7 Financial Instrument: Disclosure and IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation. The Group will apply IFRS 9 and
the updated IFRS 7 disclosure requirements from their effective date.

Theimpact assessment performed by the Group included a review of the classification and measurement of financicl
instruments; the impairment of financial assets and the group hedging policy which resulted in the following conclusions:

> The group reviewed the classification and measurement of each of its financial instrumants. Although, the classification
of instruments is oltered under IFRS 9, this does not result in any changes to the measurement approach apart fromthe
impairment of trade receivables which is addressed below.

The new impairment model for financial assets requires the recagnition of impairment provisions based on expected

credit losses {"ECL") rather than only incurred credit losses as is the case under 1AS 39, The Group will apply the simplified
approach toits trade receivables as per the scope exception in IFRS 2in which all loss allowances for trade receivables will
be measured at initial recognition and throughout its life at an amount equal 1o lifetime ECL. This is consistent with the
nature of the group’s trade receivables as they do not include a significant financing component. Based onthe assessments
undertaken to date, the group does not expect @ material movement in the loss allowance for trade debtors,

W

The new hedge accounting rules will align the accounting for hedging instruments more closely with the Group's risk
management practices. The Group has confirmed that its current netinvestment hedge relationship will qualify as o
continuing hedge upon the adoption of IFRS 9.

v

Based cn our assessment of the adoption of IFRS 9, the Group does not believe there will be a material impact en its Group
Financial Statements. From 1 January 2018 onwards, the Group will amend its financial instruments and hedging accounting
policies to reflect IFRS 9 terminolagy and prepare the appropriate disclosures regarding the clossification and measurement
of financialinstruments; impairment of financial assets and hedging.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Controcts with Customers

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (effective after 1 January 2018, for the year ending 2018) establishes o
comprehensive framewark for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognised. It replaces existing revenue
recogniticn guidonce, including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Censtruction Contracts and IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes.
The Group willapply IFRS 15 from its effective date.

The impact assessment performed by the Group included a review of revenue streams and customer contracts to

identify distinct performance obligations and the appropriate method for allocating the fransaction price. Based onour
assessment of the cdoption of IFRS 15, the Group does not believe there will be a material impaoct onits Group Financial
Statements, During 2018, the Group will revise the revenue recognition policy ta reflect IFRS 15 rerminology, prepare the
additional disclosures for the Group Financial Statements and continue to review contracts across all Segments. The Group
will continue fo discggreqate revenue over Steel and Foundry in the Segmentel Analysis note.
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IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 Leases (effective after 1 January 2019, for the year ending 2019) replaces the existing guidance in IAS 17 Leases. IFRS
16 provides a single lesses accounting model, requiring lessees to recognise assets and ligbilities for all leases unless the lease
termis 12 manths or less or the underlying asset has a fow value. The present value of the Group's operating lease payments
as defined under the new standard will be shown as lease liabilities on the balance sheet and included in nef debt. There are

a number of differences between the twa definitions; for example, where there is an option to extend the lease, payments for
the extensicn peried will be included in the IFRS 16 liability if the Group is reasanably certain that it will exercise the option,

but are notincluded as commitments under IAS 17.

The Group is currently assessing the potential impact on its Group Financial Statements resulting from the application of IFRS 16.

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments {effective from 1 January 2019, for the year ending 2079, not yet endorsed)
clarifies how to recognise and measure deferred and current income tox assets and liabilities where there is uncertainty over
tax treatment under |AS 12. The Group is currently assessing the potenrial impact on its Group Finandial Statements resulting
from the application of IFRIC 23,

IFRIC Interpretation - Interest and Penalties on Tax
The impact of the interpretation regarding the accounting treatment of interest and penalties on tax is set outin Note 10.7.

Accounting Policies and Critical Accounting Judgements and Estimates

Determining the carrying amount of some assets and liabilities requires estimation of the effect of uncertain future events.
The major seurces of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of resulting in @ maoterial adjustment to the carrying
armounts of assets or liabilities are noted below. All other accounting policies are included within the respective Notes to the
financial statements.

Provisions

Vesuvius has extensive international operations and is subject fo various legal and requlatory regimes, including these
covering taxation and environmental matters, Several of the Group's subsidiaries ore parties to legal proceedings, certain of
which are insured claims arising in the ordinary course of the operations of the company invelved, and are aware of a number
of issues which are, or may be, the subject of dispute with tox outharities. Provisions are made for the expected amounts
payable in respect of known or probable costs resulting both from legal or other regulatory requirements, or from third-party
claims, as describedin Note 32. Asthe settlement of many of the obligations for which provision is made is subject to legal or
other requlatary process, the timing and amount of the associated outflows are subject to some uncertainty. The Directors
use their judgement and experience to make appropriate estimates of provisions in the financial statements for amounts
relating to such matters,

Taxation

(a) Currenttax

Tax benefits are not recognised unless it is probable that they will result in future econemic benefits to the Group. In assessing
the amount of the benefitto be recognised in the finoncial statements, the Directors exercise their judgement in cansidering
the effect of negetiations, lifigation and any other matters that they consider may impact upon the potential settlement.
The Group operates internationally and is subject to tax in many different jurisdictions, As a consequence, the Group is
routinely subject to tax audits and local enquiries which, by their very nature, cantake a considerable period of time to
conclude. Provisions are made for known issues based on all substantively enacted legislation, the Directors' interpretation
of country-specific tax law and their assessment of the likely outcome, taking into consideration the Group's experience in
agreeing tax liabilities with tax cuthorities and appropriate external advice. As indicated in Note 10.5, these provisions
amountto £23.2m (2016: £24.5m) at the end of 2017, Further discussion of these provisions is contained in that Note. All
income tax liabilities, provisions and assets are treated as income tax payable and recoverable in accordance with 1AS 12,

(b) Deferredtax

The Group has recognised deferred tax assets in respect of unutilised losses and other timing differences arising in a number
of the Group's businesses, further details of which are given in Note 10.4. Account has beentaken of future forecasts of tfaxable
profitin arriving ot the values at which these assets are recognised. If these forecast profits do not materialise ar change, or
there are changes in tax rates or to the period over which the losses or tirning differences might be recognised, then the value
of deferred tax assers will need to be revised in a future period.
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4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

Accounting Policies and Critical Accounting Judgements and Estimates {continved)

(b) Deferredtax (continued)

The Group also has losses and other timing differences, also analysed in Note 10.4, for which no deferred tax assets have
been recognised inthese financial statements, relating either to loss-making subsidiaries where the future econemic benefit of
the timing differenceis not probable or to where the timing difference is of such a nature that its value is dependent on certain
types of profit being earned, such as capital profits. If trading or other appropriate profits are earned inthe future in these
companies, these losses and other timing differences may yield benefit to the Group in the form of a reduced tax charge.

As explained in Note 10.2, the US Tox Cuts and Jobs Act { TCJA) enacted in late December 2017 had a materialimpact on
the Group's deferred tax pesition. TCJA was introduced very rapidly, and consequently there is much uncertainty about how
some of the provisions will operate. As explained in Note 10.6, Vesuvius currently understands that the Base Erosion and
Anti-Abuse Tax (BEAT ) willimpact its tax charge inthe US in 2018 and beyond, in relation to certain payments made to
non-US related parties. Further clarification is awaited from US Treasury so the precise impact of BEAT cannot be
determined with certainty at this point.

Other reasonable estimations have been made in determining how US tax reform willimpoct on Vesuvius' US 2017 deferred
tax position in particular in relation to earnings and profits of Vesuvius non-US investments to be included in the deemed
repatriation tolling charge calculations included inits 2017 taxable income.

As guidanceis given by the US Treasury Department on how these, and other provisions of TCJA, are to operate, Vesuvius' tax
position may be impacted.

Alternative Performance Measures

The Company uses a number of alternative performance measures (APMs) in addition to those reperted in accordance

with IFRS. The Directors believe that these APMs, listed below, are important when assessing the underlying financial and
operating performance of the Group and its divisions, providing management with key insights and metrics in support of the
ongoing management of the Group's performance and cash flow. A number of these align with KPI's and other key metrics
used inthe business and therefore are considered useful fo also disclose to the users of the financial statements. The following
APMs do not have standardised meaning prescribed by IFRS and therefore may not be directly comparable with similar
measures presented by other companies.

Headline
Headline performance, reported separately on the face of the Group Income Statement, is from continuing operations and
before iterns reported separately onthe face of the Group Income Statement.

Underlying revenue, underlying trading profit and underlying return on sales

Underlying revenue, underlying trading profit and underlying return on sales are the headline equivalents of these measures
after adjustments to exclude the effects of changesin exchange rates, business acquisitions and disposals. Reconciliations of
underlying revenue and underlying trading profir can be found in the Financiol Review. Underlying revenue growth is ane of
the Group's key performance indicators and provides animportant measure of organic growth of Group businesses between
reporting periods, by eliminating the impact of exchange rates, acquisitions, disposals and significant business clesures.

Return on sales (ROS)
ROS is calculated as trading profir divided by revenue. Itis one of the Group's key performance indicators and is used 1o assess
the trading performance of Group businesses. A reconciliation of ROS isincluded in Note 5.3,

Trading profit

Trading profit, reported separately on the face of the Group Inceme Statement, is defined as operating profit before
separately reported items. [tis one of the Group's key performance indicators and is used tc assess the trading performance
of Group businesses. Itis also used as one of the targets against which the annual bonuses of certain employees are measured.

Headiine profit before tax

Headline profit before tax, reported separately on the face of the Group Income Statement, is calculated as the net total of
trading profit, plus the Group's share of post-tax profit of joint ventures and total net finance costs associated with headfine
performance. It is one of the Group's key parformance indicators and is used to assess the financial performance of the Group
asawhole.

Effective tax rate (ETR)
The Group's ETR is calculated on the income tax costs associated with headline performance, divided by headline profit
before tax and befare the Group's share of post-tax profit of joint ventures.
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Headline earnings per share

Headline earnings per share is calculated by dividing headline profit before tax less assaciated income tax costs, attributable
1o owners of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares inissue during the year. It is one of the Group's key
performance indicators and is used To assess the underlying sarnings performance of the Group as awhole. Itis also used

as one of the targets against which the annual bonuses of certain employees are measured. Headline earnings per share is
disclosed in Note 17,

Operating cash flow

Operating cash flow is cash generated from continuing operations before restructuring and nef retirerment benefit
obligations but after deducting capitat expenditure net of asset disposals. It is used in calculoting the Group's cash conversion.
Areconciliation of cash generated from operations to operating cash flow can be found in the Financial Review.

Cash conversion

Cash conversion is colculated as operating cash flow fram confinuing operations divided by trading profit. It s useful for
measuring the rate at which cash is generated fram trading profit. it is also used as one of the targets against which the ennual
bonuses of certain employees are measured. The calculation of cash conversion is detailed in the Financial Review.

Free cash flow

Free cash flow is defined s net cash flow from aperating activities after net outlays for the purchose and sale of property,
plant and equipment, dividends from joint ventures and dividends paid fo non-controlling shareholders, but before additional
funding contributions fo Group pensicn plans. It is one of the Group's key performance indicators and is used 1o assess the
underlying cash generation of the Group and is one of the measures used in monitoring the Group's capital. A reconciliation
of free cash flowis included underneath the Group Statement of Cash Flows.

Average trade working capital to sales ratio

The average tfrade working capital to sales ratio is calculoted as the percentage of average trade working capital balances
to the total revenue for the year, at constant currency. Average trade working capital (camprising inventories, trade
receivables and trade poyables) is colculated as the average of the 12 previous month-end balances. It is one of the Group's
key performance indicators and is useful for measuring the level of working capital used in the business and is one of the
measures used in meonitoring the Group's capital.

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA)

EBITDA is calculated as the total of trading profit before depreciation and amartisation of non-acquired intangible assets,
Itis used in the calculation of the Group's interest cover and net debt to EBITDA ratios. A reconciliation of EBITDA s included
in Note 12.

Net interest
Net interest is calculated as interest payable on borrowings less interest receivable, excluding any item separately reported.
Itis used in the calculation of the Group's interest cover ratio.

Interest cover

Interest cover is the ratio of EBIT DA to netinterest. It is one of the Group's key performance indicators and is used 1o assess tha
financial position of the Group and its ability to fund future growth. This measure is also a component of the Group's covenant
calculations.

Net debt

Net debt comprises the net total of current and non-current interest-bearing borrowings and cash and short-term deposits
Net debt is a measure of the Group's net indebtedness to banks and other external financial insfitutions. A reconciliation of
the movement in net debtisincludedin Note 14 of the Group Financial Staternents.

Net debt to EBITDA

Net debtto EBITDA is the ratio of net debt at the year-end to EBITDA for that year. Itis one of the Group's key performance
indicatars and is used to assess the financial position of the Group and its ability to fund future growth andis ane of the
measures used in monitoring the Group's capital.

Return on net assets (RONA)

RONA is calculated as trading praofit plus share of post-tax profit of jeint ventures, divided by average net operating assets, at
constant currency (being the average over the previous 12 months of property, plant and equipment, trade werking capital and
other operating receivables and payables). 1tis one of the Group's key performance indicators and is used to assess the financial
performance and asset management of the Group and is one of the measures used in monitoring the Group's capital.

Constant currency
Figures presented ot constant currency represent 2016 amounts retranslated to average 2017 exchonge rates.
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5.1

5.2

5.3

Segment Information

The segment information contained in this Note makes reference to several alternative perfarmance measures, definitions
of which can be foundin Note 4.

Business segments

Operating segments for continuing operations

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Executive Directors of
the Board, who make the key operating decisions and are respensible for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments. Reflecting the Group's management and internal reporting structure, segmental information is
presented in respect of the two main business segments: Steel and Foundry. The Steel segment aggregates the Flow Contral,
Advanced Refractories and Digital Services divisions which are subject to a similar risk profile and return. The principal
activities of each of these segments are described in the Strategic Report on pages 32 10 49,

Segment revenue represents revenue from external customers (inter-segment revenue is not material). Trading profitincludes
items directly attributable to a segment as well as those items that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.

Revenve recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for goods supplied and services rendered to
customers after deducting rebates, discounts and value-added taxes, and after eliminating sales within the Group. Revenue
fromthe sale of goods is recognised when persuasive evidence exists that the significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been fransferred to the customer, recovery of the consideration is probable, there is no continuing management invelvement
with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. A provision for anticipated returnsis made based
primarily on historicol return rates. Where a confractual errangement consists of two or more separate elements that can

be provided to customers either on @ stand-clone basis or as an extra, such as the provision of supplementary materials with
equipment, revenue is recognised for each element as if it were an individual contractual arrangement.

Income statement
The aperating segment results from continuing operations for 2017 and 2016 are presented below.

2017

Continuing

Steel Foundry operations

£m £m £m

Segment revenuve 1,148.7 535.2 1,683.9
Segment EBITDA 128.9 80.3 209.2
Segment depreciation (28.5) {15.2) 43.7)
Segment trading profit 100.4 65.1 165.5
Returnon sales margin 8.7% 12.2% 2.8%
Amaortisation of acquired intangible assets (19.5)
Restructuring charges (36.3)
Qperating profit 109.7
Netfinance costs 12.9)
Share of post-tax profit of joint ventures 1.3

Profit before tax 97.1
Capital expenditure additions 34.0 10.3 443




5.4

2016
Continuing
Steet Fourdry  operations
£m £m £m
Segment revenue 942.0 459.4 1,401.4
Segment EBITDA 107.0 68.6 175.6
Segment depreciation (27.8) {(14.5} (42.3)
Segment trading profit 79.2 541 1333
Return on sales margin 8.4% 11.8% 9.5%
Amartisation of acquired intangible assets (7n
Restructuring charges (28.5)
Gainon employee benefit plan 52
Operating profit 92.9
Net finance costs (14.5)
Share of post-tax profit of jeint ventures 1.0
Profit before tax 794
Capital expenditure additions 23.7 11.5 35.2
Geographical analysis
External revenue MNon-current assets
2017 2016 207 2076
£m £m £m £m
Us 279.4 2409 288.2 318.5
Germany 2321 192.4 101.0 121.5
India 136.5 118.2 42.7 387
China 127.6 131 86.9 93.2
Brazil 90.5 70.7 65.1 69.2
UK 64.0 594 107.2 119.5
France 55.4 48.0 261 201
Spain 49.4 42.5 31.9 277
Rest of the world 649.0 515.2 355.6 3490
Continuing operations 1,683.9 1,401.4 1,104.7 1,158 4

* Restated asa result of the recording of @ provision for which a related osset exists (Note 32}

External revenue disclosed in the table above is based upon the gecgraphical location of the operation. Non-current assets
exclude employee benefits net surpluses and deferred tax assets. Information relating to the Group's products and services
is given in the Strategic Report on pages 36 to 49. The Group is not dependent upon any single customer for its revenue and
no single customer, far either of the years presented in the table above, accounts for more than 10% of the Group's total

external revenue.
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6. AmountsPayable to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and their Associates

2017 2016

£m fm
Fees payable to the Company's auditors and their associates for the audit of the parent Company
and Consolidated Financial Statements 0.4 0.4
Fees payable to the Company's auditors and their associates for other services:
Audit of the Company’s subsidiaries 0.8 1.5
Audit-related assurance services 01 0.1
Tax compliance and advisory — —
Total auditors' remuneration 1.3 2.0

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP was appointed as the Group's external auditor for the year ended 31 December 2017, replacing
KPMG LLP.

Total auditors' remunercation of £1.3min 2017 all related 1o continuing operations, of which £1.2m related to audit fees
and £0.1m of non-audit fees, in respect of the interim review fee (2016: £2.0m, including £1.9m of audir fees and £0.7m of
non-audit fees, the latter comprising £0.1m inrespect of the interim review fee and £nil for taxation advice).

Mazars LLP wos appeinted external auditor of the non-material entities within the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017. Tatal remuneration for the audit of the non-material entities was £0.4m in 2017. This amount is not included inthe
table above.

Itis the Group's policy not to use the Group's auditors for non-audit services other than in very limited circumstances and when
they are best placed to do so.

7. Restructuring Charges

The 2017 restructuring chargeswere £36.3m (2016: £28.5m). The Group-wide restructuring programme initicted in 2015
continued, resulting in charges of £36.3m (2016: £28.5m) reflecting redundancy costs of £22.8m {2016: £21.4m), plant closure
costs of £0.5m (2016: £4.2m), consultancy fees of £6.8m {2016: £2.0m), an inventory/asset write-off of £5.5m (2016: £0.9m)
and travel of £0.7m (2016: £nil). Further details of restructuring programmes are provided in the Financial Review.

The net tax credit attributable to the total restructuring charges was £4.3m (2016: £3.8m).
Cash costs of £27.3m (2016: £16.8m) (Note 12) were incurred in the yearin respect of the restructuring programme, leaving
provisions made but unspent of £22 9m (Note 32) asat 31 December 2017 (2016: £18.5m), of which £2.7m (2076: £2.7m)
relates to future costs in respect of leases expiring between one and six years.

8. Employees

8.1 Employee benefits expense

2017 2016

£m fm

Wages and salaries 3440 301.6
Social security costs 52.2 46.7
Redundancy costs 22.8 21.4
Other restructuring costs — 0.2
Share-based payments (Note 29) 2.6 1.7
Pension costs —defined contribution pension plans (Note 28) 12.5 10.7
— defined benefit pension plans (Note 28) 7.0 2.1

Other post-retirement benefits (Note 28) 0.4 0.4
Total employee benefits expense 441.5 384.8

Of the total employee benefits expense of £441.5m (2016: £384.8m), £418.1m (2016: £367.1m) was chargedin arriving
attrading profit, £nil (2016: £5.2m) was credited from settlement gains relating to employee benefit plans, £0.6m

(2016: £1.3m) was charged within ordinary net finance costs, and £22.8m (2014: £217.6m) was charged to restructuring costs.
Within redundancy costs reported in the table above are £nil (2016: £0.3m) of defined benefit pension plan costs and £0.1m
(20716: £0.1m) of defined contribution pension plan costs.

At constant rates, the total employee henefits expensa for 2016 was £409.6m.



8.2

8.3

9.2

Average number of employees

2017 2016

na. no.

Steel 7,868 7,725
Foundry 3,106 3,101
Continuing operations 10,974 10,826
Discontinued operations — —
Total average number of employees 10,974 10,826

Asat 31 December 2017, the Group had 11,010 employees (2016: 10,840).

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the Directors, who are the key management personnel of the Group, is set out below in aggregate for
each of the categories specified in |AS 24 Related Party Disclosures. Further information about the remuneration of individual
Directors is provided in the audited part of the Directors' Remuneration Report on pages 106 to 116.

2017 2016

£m £m

Short-term employee benefits 19 15
Post-employment benefits 0.2 03
Share-based payments 0.7 0.5
Total remuneration of key management personnel 2.8 2.3

Net Finance Costs

Accounting policy

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or preduction of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asser.
Capitalised borrowing costs for 2017 were £nil (2016: £nil). All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the
Group Income Statement using the effective interest rate method.

Totalnet finance costs

2017 2015
£m £m
Interest payable on borrowings
Loans, overdrafts and factoring arrangements 15.9 151
Obligations under finance leases 0.2 0.2
Amortisation of capitalised arrangement fees 0.6 0.5
Total interest payable onborrowings 16.7 15.8
Interest on net retirement benefit obligations 0.6 13
Adjustment to discounts on provisions and other liabilities 0.2 (0.2)
Adjustmentto discounts on receivables (0.1) 053
Finance income (3.5) 2.7)
Total net finance costs 13.9 14.5
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10.

Income Tax

10.1 Accounting policy

Taxexpense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit ar lass
exceptfo the extent that they relate to items charged or credited in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income or Group
Statement of Changesin Equity, in which case the associated tax is also recognised in those statements.

in arriving at its current tax charge, the Group alse makes careful assessment of the likely impact of tax law changes.
In particular, it has considered the impact of US tax reform enacted in December 2017 in the US Tax Cuts and Jobs Act
(TCIAYand ather recently announced tax reform, for example in Belgivm.

Current tax

Current tax is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the Group
Incorne Statement because it excludes items of incorne or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxakble or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates and laws
that have been enacted, or substantively enacted, by the balance sheet date.

A provision is recognised when the Group considers it has a present tax obligation as the result of a past event anditis
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions established for such uncertaintax positions are
made using a best estimate of the tax expected to be paid, based ¢on a qualitative and quantitative assessment of all relevant
information. Such a provision is typically required where the underlying tax issue is subject to interpretation and remains to be
agreed, and therefore is uncertain as to outceme. Principally the uncertain tax positions for which a pravision is made relate
tothe interpretation of tax legislation and guidance regarding transfer pricing arrangements that have been enteredintoin
the normat course of business. In accordance with 1AS 12, tax provisions are included as income tax payable on the face of
the Group Balance Sheet, and movements intax provisions are included within income tax charges or creditsin the Group
income Statement.

In assessing any appropriate provision requirements for uncertain tax items, the Group considers progress made in
discussions with the tax authorities, expert advice onthe likely cutcome and any recent developments in case law. Due to the
uncertainty associated with such tax items, it is possible that ar o future date, on conclusion of the open matters, the final
outcome may vary significantly. Any such variations will affect the financial results in the year in which such a determination
is made.

Deferred tax

Deferred taxis recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
andthe corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and is accounted for using the balance sheet
liakility method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temperary differences and deferred tax

assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabllities are not recognised if the temperary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination} of ather assets and liabilities ina
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. Deferred tax is caleulated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates and laws that have been
enacted, or substantively enacted, by the balonce sheet date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and interests

in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the tempaorary difference and itis probable that the
ternporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow allor part of the asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabifities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to seftle its current tax assefs and liabilities on a net basis.

Change in accounting policy

Previously, the common understanding and interpretation of IAS 12 allewed a company to include in its tax charges, liobilities
and provisions any associated delayed settlement interest and penalties. Viesuvius folfowed this approach. The recent
clorification by the IFRS Interpretations Committee {previously the Internatienal Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee, IFRIC), however, is that a company should include inits tax charges, liabilities and provisions only ifems meeting
the strict definition of taxes under IAS 12. It confirmed that items not meeting that definition should be reported in accordance
with |AS 37.



10.2

Vesuvius has accordingly changed its accounting policy to include inferest and penalties on taxin trade and other payablesin
accordance with [AS 37. This has resulted in a change to its Group Balance Sheer as ar 31 December 2016 to reclassify £7.0m
fromits liahilities and provisions previously reported as tax fo trade and other payables. The effect of this change on its 2016
performance statements isimmaterial ond no restatement is therefore required to be made.

Income tax charge

2017 2016
£m £rn
Currenttax
Overseastaxation 371 383
Adjustments inrespect of prior years (1.7) 2.9
Total current tax, continuing operations 35.4 254
Deferredtax
Origination ond reversal of remporary taxable differences 19.0 (9.0)
Adjustments inrespect of prior years — —
Total deferred tax, continuing operations 19.0 (9.0)
Totalincome tax charge 54.4 264
Totalincome tax charge attributable to:
Continuing operations —headline performance 36.4 314
—separately reported 18.0 (5.0)
Totalincome tax charge 54.4 26.4

Included in the Group's fota! income fax charge are charges and credits meeting the criteria set out in Note 2.5, to be treated
as separately reported items, as analysed in the following table:

2017 2016
Separately reparteditems £m £m
Impactof UStaxreform 24.5 —
Orther utilisation of previously recognised US deferred tax asset 4.2 6.2
Additional recognition of US deferred tax asset (0.4) 4.1)
Net movement in US deferred tax asset 28.3 2.1
Restructuring charges (4.3) (3.8)
Gainon employee benefit plan — 0.4
Amortisation and utilisation of acquired intangibles (6.0) (3.7)
Totaltax charge/(credit) separately reported 18.0 (5.0

The US Tax Cuts and Jabs Act { TCJA) enacted in the US in December 2017 has had a material impact on the value of the
deferred tax asset the Group recognises in the US. It has reduced the asset by $33.1m (£25.7m), of which $31.5m {£24.5m)

is charged to the Group Income Statement and $1.6m (£1.2m} is charged to the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income,
asit relates to the effect of the change in the US Federal rate of tax on the value of the defarred tax asset on pension deficits
recognised inthat statement.

The reduction was principally due to the change in Federal tax rate from 35% to 21%, the deemed repatriation tolling charge
and the impact of other changes when measuring the value of the asset which is recognised in the Group Balance Sheet.
Haowever, no current tax fiability has resulted from these provisions in 2017, due 1o the availability of tax losses and foreign tax
creditsto offset the resultant additional taxable income. The impact of US tax reform, together with normal changes to the
US deferred tax asset, resulted in the asset reducing from $81.3m {£65 9m) at the end of 2016 10 $44.0m (£32.6m) ot the end
of 2017,

In 2017, Belgium reduced its tax rate to 29% in 2018 and 25% in 2020. This has had the impact of reducing the deferred tax
assetin Belgium by £1.4min 2017 (2016: £nil). Thisimpact is included in the total deferred tax charge on continuing operations.
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Income Tax {continued)

10.2 Income tax charge {continued)
The nettax charge reflected in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Incomeinthe year amounted to £3.1m (2016: £0.7m),
£2.4m of which related to tax on net actuarial gains and losses on the employee benefits plan. In addition, £0.7m (2016 £nil)

related to UK taxin respect of fareign exchange differences arising on hedged positions.

103

10.4

The Group operotes in anumber of countries that have differing tax rates, laws and practices. Changes in any of these

araas could, adversely or positively, impact the Group's tax charge in the future. Continuing losses, or insufficiency of taxable
profit to absorb all expenses, in any subsidiary, could have the effect of increasing tax charges in the future as effective tox
relief may not be available for those losses or expenses. Other significant factors affecting the tax charge are described in

Notes 3.2,70.1 and 10.6.

In 2016, profit from discontinued operations (Note 22) included a tax credit of £9.0m relating to the release of a provision for
possible China taxes arising during the demerger of the Alent business in 2012, After further consultation with advisers, and in
light of the publication in 2015 by the Chinese tax authorities of additional guidance on the applicable taxes, it was decided
this provision was no longer required. Ne similar credit has arisen in 2017,

Reconciliation of income tax charge to profit before tax

2017 2016
fm £m
Profit before tax 97.1 794
Tax at the UK corperation tax rate of 19.25% (2016: 20%) 18.7 15.9
Impact of taxrate change on deferred tax asset 19.5 —
Overseastax rate differences 9.8 2.7
Withholding taxes 4.4 3.6
Amortisation of intangibles (0.2) {0.3)
Expenses not deductible for rax purposes 0.2 1.6
Incometaxed in advance 3.6 4.6
Non-taxable income — (1.2)
Deferred tax asset not previcusly recognised 1.4 (4.1}
Deferred tax assets not recognised 3.5 7.5
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses 2.0) (1.0}
Adjustrentsin respect of prior years .7 (2.9
Totalincome taxcharge 54.4 26.4
Deferred tax
Other Other
operating Pansion Intangible tempaorary
Interest losses costs assets  differances Total
fm £m £m fm £m £m
Asat1 January 2016 241 238 1.3 (30.4) 73 261
Exchange adjustments/other 4.5 25 19 4.2) 4.4 21
Charge to Group Statement of Comprehensive Income — — (0.7} —_ — (0.7)
Creditto Group Income Statement 0.2 3.8 — 5.3 1.8 14
Net {(chargel/creditto Group income Statement US 2.1 (0.2) — — 0.2 21
Asat1January 2017 26.7 299 2.5 (29.3) 13.7 435
Exchange adjustments/ather {1.8) (1.8) — 0.2 (0.4) (3.8)
Impact oftaxrate change:
—in Group Income Statement 6.8) (8.6) (0.8) — (3.3) {19.5)
—in Group Statement of Comprehensive Income — — 1.2) — — 1.2)
Other chargeto Group Statement of Comprehensive
Income — o 1.2) — — {1.2)
Other creditto Group Incone Statement — 0.6 0.1 6.2 3.8 10.7
Other net (charge)/credit to Graup Income Statement US (8.2) (3.0 0.6 (0.2} 0.6 (10.2)
Asat31 December 2017 9.9 171 — (23.1) 14.4 18.3
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2017 2016
£m fm
Recognised inthe Group Balance Sheet as:
Non-currentdeferred tax assets 61.0 921
Non-current deferred tax liabilities (42.7) {48.6)
Nettotal deferred tax assets 18.3 435

Included in these deferred tax assets and liabilities are amounts fo be expected to be utilised in 2018 as follows:

2017 2016

£m £m

Deferredtax assets 11.3 169
Deferred tax liabilities (7.6) 6.7)

As discussed in Note 10.2, US tax reform enacted in TCJA has hod a maojor impact on the Group's US deferred tax position.
Note 3.2 outlines the principal judgements and estimates taken in determining the impact of that referm on the velugtion of
this asser.

Included in non-current deferred tax assetsis £32.6m (2016: £65.9m) in respect of the partial recognition of temporary
differences arising in the US computed in accordance with the policy set outin Note 10.1 above. The Group remains confident
of the recovery of this asset. £69.2m {2016: £100.4m) remains unrecognised.

In view of its material size and nature, any tax credit reflected inthe Group Income Statement arising from the recognition of
this asset is presented separately from the tax charge on headiine performance, in accordance with the principles outiined in
Note 2.5. Subsequent increase, decrease and utilisotion of the resultant deferred tax asset would similarly be expected to be
presented in this manner, as the Directors consider that the separate identification of deferred tax for matericl temporary
differences would assist both in a better understanding of the financial performance achieved, and in making projecticns
of future results of the Group.

Tax loss carry-forwards and other temperary differences with o tax value of £1m (20146: £1.4m) were recognised by subsidiaries
reporting a loss. On the besis of approved business plans of these subsidiories, the Directors consider if probable that the tax
loss carry-farwards ond temporary differences can be offset against future taxable profits.

The total deferred tax assets not recagnised as at 31 December 2017 were £219.9m (2016: £263.1m), as analysed below.

In accordance with the accounting policy in Note 10.1, these iterns have not been recagnised as deferred tax assets on the
basis that their future economic benefit is not prabable. Intotal, there was a decrease of £43.2m (2016: £6.4m increase) in
net unrecognised deferred tax assets during the year, principally due to theimpact of the change inthe US Federal tax rate
fram 35% 1o 21%, enacted in TCJA.

2017 2016

£m £m

Operating losses (further described below) 102.3 118.6
Unrelieved US interest (may be carried forward indefinitely) 43.2 66.6
Capitaliosses available to offset future UK capital gains {(may be carried forward indefinitely) 281 28.0
UK ACT credits{may be corried forward indefinitely) 131 131
US tax credits 16.7 3.1
QOther temporary differences 16.5 277
Total deferred tax assets not recognised 219.9 2631

£5.5m relating to US tax credits has been reclassified from other temporary differences to US tax creditsin the 2016 comperative.

The Group has significant net operating losses with atax value of £119.4m (2016: £148.5m), only £17.1m (2016: £29.9m) of
which meet the criteria set outin Note 10.1 to be recognised on the Group Balance Sheet.
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10. Income Tax {continued)

10.4 Deferredtax {continued)

Operating  QOperating Operafing Ooerating

losses fosses not losses lgsses not
recognised  recognised Total recognised recognised Total
2017 2017 2017 2016 2016 2016
£m £m £m £m £m £rm
UK {may be carried forward indefinitely) — 73.5 73.5 — 78.6 78.6
USA (due to expire 2024 - 2031} 13.3 3.7 17.0 26.5 49 31.4
ROW {may be carried forward indefinitely) 3.5 21.5 25.0 3.4 23.0 26.4
ROW (due to expire within 5 years) 0.3 3.6 39 — 121 121
171 102.3 119.4 23.9 118.6 148.5

The £28.9m (2016: £38.5m) operating losses available to set against future income in the rest of the world arise in a number of
countries, reflecting the spread of the Group's operations.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had unrecognised US tax credits with a value of £16.7m (2016: £5.1m) as follows:

2017 206

£m £m

US research and experimentation credits (due tc expire 2018-2033) 12.8 49
S foreign tax credits ([due to expire 2022-2024) 3.9 4.2
US tax credits 16.7 9.1

There are no temporary differences associcted with investments in subsidiaries and interests in joint ventures for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised. The aggregate temporary differences where the exemption not to provide
for the deferred taxation liability has been raken is £197.1m (2016: £175.9m).

UK corporation tax rate reductions to 17% fram 1 April 2020 were enacted in 2016. Accordingly, the Group's closing UK
deferred tox liability has been provided using a tax rate of 17% except where the reverscls are expected fo arise prior to

1 April 2020.
10.5 Income tax payable and recoverable

2017 2016
£m fm
Liakilities for income tax payable 114 10.4
Provisions for uncertain tax provisions 23.2 24.5
34.3 34.9
Income tax recoverable within one year 5.2 39
Incometax recoverable affer more than one year 0.4 1.0
Totalincome tax recoverable 5.6 49
Net liahility 28.7 30.0

Provisions for uncertain tax provisions are calculated in accordance with the policy cutlined in Note 10.1, and are treated as
income tax payable ond recoverable in accordance with [AS 12.

These provisions cover litigated tax matters as well as provisions for other risks where the Group believesitis rmore likely than
not that there would be a successful challenge by a tax authority to positions it has taken in its tax filings. By its nature, litigation
canresultin shorp fluctuctions in cash flow, both in and cut, relating to taxes. Currently, management do not expect any
material adjustments to these provisions in 2018.
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10.6 Key factorsimpacting the sustainability of the effective tax rate are as follows:

Material changesin the geographic mix of profits

The Group's effective tax rate is sensitive to changes in the geographic mix of profits and level of profits, and reflects a
combination of higher rates in certain jurisdictions such os India, Mexice, Germany and Belgium, nil effective tax ratesin
the UK and the US due to the availability of unutilised tax losses, and rates that lie somewhere in between.

Changes in tax rates, tax reform and its interpretation

Changes intax rates and laws inthe jurisdictions in which the Group operates could have a material effect onthe Group's
effective tax rate. As stated in Note 101, the Group has taken into account the impact of US and other tax reform enacted
in2017.

One of the new taxes introduced by the US Tax Cuts and Jobs Act { TCJA) inthe US in Decermber 2017 is the Base Erosion and
Anti-Abuse Tax {BEAT" (see also Note 3.2(b)). Thisis intended to counter what US tax authorities regard as erosion of the US
tax base of a US company caused by payments, other than for cast of goods sold, to Itsto non-US affiliates. Inits broadest
sense, this would establish o base tax of 10% of a US company’s normal taxable income as grossed up by such payments.

The rate of tax applied is 5% in 2018, increasing to 10% from 2019. Whilst this does not impact Vesuvius in 2017, itis currently
estimated to resultin a US cash tax cost from 2018 cnwards and thus increase the Group's effective rate of tax on Headline
performance (befare its share of joint venture income) going forward by 0.7%in 2018, and 1.2%in 2079. The Group’s ef factive
tax rate for 2018 cnwards is expected to be between 27% and 28%, including the expected adverse impact of US tax reform,
reflecting the benefit of initiatives being taken.

TCJA s a major new piece of legislation, introduced very rapidly, consequently there is still much uncertainty cbout how some
of the key provisions will operate. The international provisions in particular are extremely complex and, with fittle issued
guidance from the US Treasury, are not yet fully understood by the business or adviser community. Vesuvius has taken advice
on how TC JAis likely o impact on its tax position, but it is to be expected that, as guidance and interpretation clarifies these
new laws, then further changes to its tax charges and balances may need to be made.

Availability of tax advantaged rates

Vesuvius in China guclifies for a tax advantaged rate of 15% (rather than the headline rate of 25%), on part of its profits due
o the high-technalogy nature of its business. Eligibility for this rate is reviewed on a regular baosis by the Chinese tax authority,
and was worth approximately £0.9min 2017 (2016: £1.0m). Without that benefit, the Group's effective tax rate on headline
performance would have been 0.6% higher in 2017 (20746: 0.8%,).

Resolution of tax judgements

At any one time, the Group can be subject to a number of challenges by tax authorities in the jurisdictions in which it operates.
The outcome of these challenges is inherently uncertain, potentially resulting in a different tax charge from the amounts
inftially provided.

Recognition of tax benefits arising from brought forward losses and other temporary differencesin the US

In accordance with the criteria set out in Note 10.1, movements in Vesuvius' US deferred tax asset are recognised as separately
reported items. Consequently, such mavements have no impact on the Group's effective tax rate on headline performance.
Should, however, the 2017 profits earned inthe LIS have been fully subject to US Federal and State taxes, thenthe Group's
effactive tax rate on headline performance {excluding the Group's share of post-tox profit of joint ventures) would have been
approximately 4.2% higher (2016: 3.4% higher).

Impact of Brexit on Vesuvius’ tax position

How Brexit impacts on Vesuvius will depend onthe terms of Brexit, which are as yet unclear and therefore it is not possible af
+his stage to provide precise guidance on how it willimpact on the Group. If the EU Parent Subsidiary and Interest and Royalty
directives were nc longer to apply to dividend, interest and other payments to Vesuvius in the UK, additional withhalding taxes
would become payable subject to reliefs available under applicable tax freaties.
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11. Earnings per Share (EPS)

11.1 Earnings for EPS
Basic and diluted EPS from continuing operations are based upon the profit attributable to owners of the parent, as reported
inthe Group Income Statement, of £36.3m (2016: £46.7m), being the profit for the year of £42.7m (2016: £53.0m) less
non-controlling interests of £6.4m (2014: £6.3m); basic and diluted EPS from total operations are based on the profit
attributable to owners of the parent of £38.0m (2016: £56.9m); headline and diluted headline EPS are based upon headline
profit from continuing operctions attributable fo owners of the parent of £110.1m (2016: £82.1m). The table below reconciles
these different profit measures.

Continuing Discontinued 2017 Continuing  Discontinued 2016
oparations operations total operations operations total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Profit attributable to owners of the parent 36.3 1.7 38.0 46.7 10.2 569
Adjustments for separately reported items:
Amortisation of cequired intangible assets 19.5 174
Restructuring charges 36.3 28.5
Gain on employee benefit plan — (5.2)
Income tax charge / (credit) 18.0 (5.0
Headline profit attributable to owners
ofthe parent 11821 82.1
11.2 Weighted average number of shares
2017 2016
millions millions
For calculating basic and headline EPS 270.3 2699
Adjustment for potentially dilutive ordinary shares 13 C.8
For caleulating diluted and diluted headline EPS 271.6 270.7

Far the purposes of calculating diluted and diluted headline EPS, the weighted average number of ordinary shares is adjusted
toinclude the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all potentially dilutive
ordinary shares expected to vest, relating to the Company's share-based payment plans. Potential ordinary shares are only
treated as dilutive when their conversion to ordinary shares would decrease EPS, ar increase loss per share.

11.3 Pershareamounts

Continuing Discontinued 2017 Continuing  Discontinued 2086

operations  operations total operations operations total

pence pence pence pence pence pence

Earningspershare  —basic 13.4 0.7 141 17.3 3.8 211
— headline 40.7 30.4

—diluted 13.4 0.6 14.0 17.3 37 21.0

—diluted headline 40.5 30.3
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Cash Generated from Operations

Continuing Discentinued 2017 Ceontinuing  Discontinued 2016

coperations  operations total operations operations total

£m £m £m £m fm £m
Operating profit 1097 1.7 111.4 329 1.2 941
Adjustments for:
Amortisation of acquired intongible assets (Note 16) 19.5 — 195 17 — 171
Restructuring charges 36.3 — 36.3 28.5 — 285
Gainsrelatingto employee benefit plans — — — (5.2) — (5.2)
Depreciation 43.7 — 43.7 42.3 — 423
EBITDA (Note 4.12) 209.2 1.7 2109 175.6 1.2 176.8
Net increase ininventories (19.4) — (19.4) B3 - (8.9)
Netincreaseintrade receivables (36.9) — (36.9) (18.6} — {18.6)
Netincreasein frade payables 44.1 — 441 14.5 — 14.5
Net decrease/(increase) in other warking capital 1.7 {2.5) 9.2 (7.9} (1.2) [CA)]
Outflowrelated torestructuring charges (27.3) — (27.3) {16.8) — (16.8)
Net retirement benefit obligations {4.8) — (4.8) (7.7) — (7.7}
Cash generated from operations 176.6 (0.8) 175.8 130.2 — 130.2
Cash and Cash Equivalents
2017 2016
£m £m

Cashatbank andinhand 161.9 1444
Cash and short-term deposits 1619 144.4
Bank overdrafts (21.9) (43.4)
Cash and cash equivalentsin the Group Statement of Cash Flows 140.0 101.0

Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form anintegral part of the Group's cash management areincluded as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the Group Statement of Cash Flows,

Reconciliation of Movement in Net Debt
Foreign Borrowing
Balanceasat exchange facility costs Non-cash Balance asat
1Jan2017  adjustments capitalised  movemenss Cashflow  31Dec2017
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents
Cashatbank andin hand 144.4 (4.5) — — 22.0 161.9
Bank overdrafts (43.4) 17 — — 19.8 219)
107.0 (2.8) — —_ 41.8 140.0
Borrowings, excluding bank overdrafts
Current (91.1) 4.1 —_ — 82.7 (4.3)
Non-current (331.9) 12.8 — — (93.0) {412.1)
{423.0) 16.9 — — {10.3) (416.4)
Capitalised arrangement fees 1.7 — 1.0 (0.6) — 2.1
Net debt (320.3) 14.1 1.0 (0.6) 31.5 (274.3)

Net debtis & measure of the Group's net indebtednass to banks and ather external financial institutions and comprises the
total of cash and short-term deposits and current and non-currentinterest-bearing borrowings.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Accounting policy

Freehold land and construction in progress are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Other items of property,
plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Costs are
capitalised only when it is probable that they wiil resultin future economic benefits flowing to the Group and when they can be
measured reliably. Costs are capitalised to construction in progress where an assef is being developed. This is then transferred
and depreciated when the asset is ready for use. All other repairs and maintenance expenditures are charged to the Group
Income Statement in the period in which they are incurred.

1571
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

151

15.2

Accounting policy {continued)

Freehold land is not depreciated, as it has an infinite life. Depreciation on other items of property, plant and equipment begins
when the asset is available for use and is charged to the Group Income Statement on a straight-line basis so as to write off the
cost less residual value of the asset over its estimated useful life as follows:

Asset category Estimated useful life
Freehold proparty betweentenand 50 yeors
Leasehold property theterm of the lease

Plant and equipment — meotor vehicles and information technology eguipment between one and five years

— other

between three and 15 years

The depreciation method used, residual values and estimated useful lives are reviewed annually and changed, if appropriate.
Asdescribedin Note 171, an asset’s carrying amount is immediately written down to its recoverable amounit if its carrying

amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Gains and lesses arising on disposais are determined by comparing
sales proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised in the Group Income Statement.

Movement in net book value

Freehold Leasehold Plantand Construction
property property egquipment inprogress Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Cost
Asat 1 January 2016 169.7 2.3 477.2 288 678.0
Exchange adjustrents 29.9 0.1 84.8 6.0 120.8
Capital expenditure additions 13 — 18.3 15.4 352
Acquisitions through business combinations — — 11 — 1.1
Disposals (1.6) — (41.9) (0.2) (43.7)
Reclassifications 4.0 — 10.5 {14.5) —
Asat1January 2017 203.3 2.4 550.0 35.7 791.4
Exchange adjustments (3.4) {0.1) (10.3) (2.1) (15.9)
Capital expenditure additions 1.4 — 19.4 23.5 443
Disposals {(5.1) - (13.5) — (18.6)
Reclassifications 5.5 — 9.8 {15.3) —
Asat31 December 2017 201.7 2.3 555.4 41.8 801.2
Accumulated depreciation andimpairment losses
Asat 1 January 2016 64.7 1.4 326.6 — 392.7
Exchange adjustments 11.9 — 53.5 — 71.4
Depreciation charge 59 0.2 36.2 — 423
Impairment charge 0.4 — — — 0.4
Disposals (1.2} — (37.8) — {39.0)
Reclassifications 1.2 — {1.2) — —
Asat1January 2017 829 1.6 383.3 — 467.8
Exchange adijustments (2.0 (0.7) 7.7 — (9.8)
Depreciation charge 6.1 0.3 37.3 - 43.7
Disposals (1.8) — (10.0) — (1.g)
Reclassifications 0.3 — (0.3} — —
Asat 31 December 2017 85.5 1.8 402.6 — 4899
Netbook value as at 31 December 2017 116.2 0.5 152.8 41.8 311.3
Net book value as at 37 December 2016 120.4 0.8 166.7 35.7 323.6
Net book value as at 1 January 2016 105.0 02 150.6 288 2853
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The net book value of the Group's preperty, plant and equipment assets held under finance lease contracts was £4.6m
(2016: £47m). Capital expenditure on customer-installation assets was £10.7m (2016: £6.5m).

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets comprise goodwill and other intangible assets that have been acquired through business combinations.

Accounting policy

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill arising in ¢ business combination is initially recognised as an asset ot cost, measured as the excess of the aggregate
ofthe acquisition-date fair value of the consideration transferred and the amount of any nen-controlling interest acquired
over the net of the acquisition-date fair value amaounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. When the
excess is negative, a borgain purchase gain is recognised immediately in profit or loss. Goodwillis subsequently measured ot
cost less accumulated impairment losses, with impairment testing carried out annually, or more frequently when there is an
indication that the cash-generating unit o which the goodwill has been allocated may be impaired. On disposal of a business,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the calculation of the profitor loss on dispasal.

{b) Otherintangible assets

Intangible assets other than gocdwill are recognised on business combinations if they are separable, or if they arise from
confractual or other legal rights, and their value can be measured reliably. They are initially measured af cost, which is equal to
the acquisition-date fair value, and subsequently measured at cost less cccumulated amertisation charges and accumulated
impairment losses. Other intangible assets are subject to impairment testing when there is an indication that an impairment
loss may have been incurred and are amortised over their esimated useful lives.

{c} Researchanddevelopmentcosts

The Group'sresearch activity involves lang-range, 'blue sky' investigation, the findings from which may be used in the future
to develop new or substantially improved products. Expenditure on research activities is recognised in the Group Income
Staternent as an expense inthe year in which it is incurred.

Development is the application of research findings for the production of new or substantially improved products, processes
and services before the start of commercial production. Development expenditure is capitalised only if the expenditure can
be measured relicbly, the preduct or process is rechnically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable
and the Group intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development and to use or sell the asset. Otherwise, it

is recognised in the Group Income Statement as an expense in the year in which itisincurred. Capitalised development
expenditure, where there is any, is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

In determining whether development expenditure is capitalised as an intangible asset, management considers whether the
sfrict intangible asset recognition criteria set autin IAS 38, Intangible Assets, have been met at the time the expenditure is
incurred. Inmaking this determination, management recognise that a significant amount of the development expenditure
undertaken by the Group is focused on dealing with local customer technical support issues and incremental developrments
to existing products as opposed to new or substantially improved products, and that at the time the feasibility of the project
is determined a significant proportion of the development expenditure for that project has already beenincurred. In 2017
no projects met the criteria for IAS 38 capitalisation.

Movement in net book value
Other Other
intangible 2017 intangible 2016
Goodwill assets total Goodwill assets total
£m £m £m £m £rr £m
Cost
Asat January 662.2 2719 234.1 5621 2507 812.8
Exchange adjustments (19.3) 0.7) (20.0) 97.0 17.4 114.4
Business combinations (Note 21) 0.3 — 0.3 31 3.8 6.9
Asat 31 December 643.2 271.2 914.4 662.2 2719 9341
Accumulated amortisation andimpairment losses
Asat1 January — 152.2 152.2 — 128.2 128.2
Exchange adjustments — (0.3) {0.3) — 69 69
Amortisation charge for the year — 19.5 19.5 - 171 17
Asat 31 December — 171.4 171.4 — 152.2 152.2

Net book value as at 31 December 643.2 99.8 743.0 662.2 119.7 7819
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Intangible Assets (continued)
Analysis of goodwill by cash-generating unit (CGU)
Goodwill ccquired in a business combination is allocated ta each of the Group's CGUs expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination. For the purposes of impairment testing, the Directors consider that the Group has two CGUs: the Steel
division and the Foundry division. These CGUs represent the lowest level within the Group at which goodwill is menitered.
2017 2016
£m £m
Steel 426.3 438.7
Foundry 2169 2235
Total goodwill 643.2 662.2
Analysis of other intangible assets
Other intangible assets are amortised on ¢ straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The assets acquired and their
remaining useful lives are shown below.
Netbaok
Remaining value asat
useful life 31 Dec201?
years £m
Foseco
—customer relationships (usefulfife: 20 years) 10.3 58.9
—rtrade name {useful life: 20 years) 10.3 371
—intellectual property rights {usefullife: ten years) 0.3 2.0
Mouid and tundish business of Carboox
—customer relationships (usefullife: 20 years} 8.9 17
—trade name (useful life: two years) 09 0.1
Total 99.8
Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets
Accounting policy

The Directors regularly review the performance of the business and the external business environment to determine whether
thereis any indication that the Group's tangible and intangible assets have suffered an impairmentloss. If such indication
exists, the higher of the value in use and the fair value less costs to sell of the asset is estimated and compared with the carrying
value in orderto determine the extent, if any, of the impairment loss. Where it is not feasible to estimate the recoverable
amount of anindividual asset, the Directors estimote the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs. in
addition, goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis. Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the Group's CGUs expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and the Directors carry out annual
impairmenttesting of the carrying value of each CGU, 1o assess the need for any impairment of the carrying value of the
associated goodwill and other intangible and tongible assefs.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount of an osset or CGU is the higher of (i} its fair value less costs
to sell and (i) its value in use. If the recoverable amount of a CGU is less than its carrying amount, the resulting impairment
loss is allocated firstto reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU and then ta the other assets of the
CGU pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the CGU. Animpairment loss recognised for goodwill is
notf reversed in @ subsequent period. Animpairment loss recognised in a prior year for an asset other than goodwill may

be reversed where thera has been a change in the estimates used to measure the asset’s recoverable amount since the
impairment loss was recognised.

Key assumptions

The key assumptions used in determining value in use are projected cash flows, growth rates and discount rates. Projected
cash flow assumptions are based on historicel financial information, adjusted to factor in the anticipated impact of
restructuring and rationgalisation plans already announced at the balance sheet date.
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The valuein use calculations of the Group’s CGUs are based on three-year business plans and a terminal growth rate of
2.5% (2016: 2.5%). The cash flows are discounted to their current value using pre-tax discount rates, which represent each
CGU's weighted average caost of capital (WACC). Growth rates are determined with reference to: current market conditions;
external forecasts and historical trends for the Group's key end-markers of Steel and Foundry; ond expected growthin
output within the industries in which each major Group business unit operates. A perpetuity growth rate of 2.5% (2016: 2.5%)
has been applied. The pre-tax discount rate is the WACC calculated for each CGU as at 31 December 2017 based an
industry-specific beto coefficients far the industries in which the CGUs operate, risk-free rates, ond equity risk premiums
related to the major countries in which the CGUs are located, selecting countries which contribute at least 80% of total

CGU revenue. The pre-tax discount rate used for the Steel CGU was 11.0% {2016: 10.9%) and for the Foundry CGU was
11.6% (2016: 13.2%). The decrease in Foundry's pre-tax discount rate is driven by improved global economic performance
which results in reduced market risk, and consequently, lower equity risk premiums; and the Foundry industry has performed
well with limited volatility resulting in a reduced beta. In the Steel CGU, the impact of this decrease in equity risk premivms
has been more than offset by increasing contributions from emerging markets, providing upward pressure on risk-free rates
and equity risk premiums.

A sensitivity analysis undertaken in respect of the 2017 impairment festing, assuming a 1.0% increase in each of the CGU
discount rates and a 1.0% perpetuity growth rate, still resulted in headroom remaining in which the recoverable amount of
each CGU exceeded its carrying value. A pre-tax discount rate of 16.0% would result in animpoirment of Steelintangible
assetsand 22.7% for Foundry.

Goodwillimpairment

The Directors use their judgement to determine the extent to which goodwill and other capitalised intangible assets have a
value that wilt benefit the performance of the Group over future periods. To assistin making this judgement, the Directors
undertake an assessment, at least annually, of the carrying value of the Group's capitalised goodwill and other intangible
assets. The projection period is, in the opinion of the Directors, an appropriate period over which to view the future results of
the Graup's businesses far this purpose. Changes to the assumpticns used in making these forecasts could significantly alter
the Directors' assessment of the carrying value of goodwill and other intangible assets.

In assessing goodwill for impairment, management performed its annual test at 31 October 2017 which is consistent with
the priar year. The Directors made use of detailed calcutations of the recoverable amount of the Group's CGUs as af

31 October 2017. Those caleulations resultad in recoverable amounts significantly higher than the carrying values of the
Group's CGUs and consequently no impairment charges were recegnised. A further assessment for triggers of goodwill
impaoirment was made at the year end and the calculations were also checked against the carrying values of the Group's
CGUs as at 31 December 2017, Noimpairment triggers were identified.

Trade and Other Receivables

Accounting policy
Trade and other receivables are inftially recognised ot fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method, less impairment losses.

Analysis of trade and other receivables

2017 2016+

Gross  Impairment Net Gross  Impairment Ner

£m £m £m fmn £m £fm

Tradereceivables ——current 269.0 {0.7} 268.3 236.7 (1.1) 235.6
— 110 30days pastdue 59.0 (0.8) 58.2 51.3 (©.5) 50.8

— 311060 days pastdue 18.4 (0.3) 18.1 19.3 ©.2) 191

— 611090 days past due 8.2 (0.5) 17 9.5 0.2 9.3

o —over 90days pastdue 43.2 (29.4) 13.8 52.8 (31.1) 217
Trade receivables 397.8 (31.7) 3661 2696 (33.1) 336.5
Other receivables 40.8 428
Prepoyments and accruedincome 15.3 14.8
Totaltrade and other receivables 422.2 3941

*Restated os a resulrof the recording of aprovision for which a relared asset exists (Note 32}
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18.
18.2

18.3

19.
191

19.2

Trade and Other Receivables {continued)

Analysis of trade and other receivables (continued)

Allthe Group's operating companies have policies and procedures in place to assess the creditworthiness of the custemers
with whom they do business. Where objective evidence exists that atrade receivable balance may be impaired, provision

is made for the difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated cash that will be recovered.
Evidence of impairment may include such factors as the customer being in breach of contract, or entering bankruptey or
financial reorganisation proceedings. Impairment provisions are assessed on an individual customer basis for all significant
outstanding balances and collectively for all remaining balonces, based upon historical loss experience. Historical experience
has shown that the Group's trade receivable provisions are maintained at levels that are sufficient to absorb actual bad debt
write-offs, without being excessive. The Group considers the credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor
impaired as good.

Movements on impairment provisions
2017 2016
£m £m
Asat 1 January 331 271
Charge for the year 3.7 6.6
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectable 4.8) (4.4)
Exchange adjustments (0.3} 3.8
Asat 31 December 31.7 331

The charge for the year shown in the table above is recorded within administration, selling and distribution costs in the Group
Income Statement.

Inventories

Accounting policy

lnventories are stated at the lower of cast {using the first in, first out method) and net realisable vaiue. Cost comprises
expenditure incurred in purchasing or manufacturing inventories fogether with all other costs directly incurred in bringing the
inventory to its present location and condition and, where appropriate, attributable production overheads based on normal
activity levels. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs fo
beincurred in marketing, selling and distribution. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net reclisable value is
recognised as an expense inthe yearin which the write-down occurs.

Analysis of inventories
2017 2016
£m £m
Raw materials 80.2 751
Work-in-progress 20.2 18.7
Finished goods 122.4 113.9
Totalinventories 222.8 207.7

The cost of inventeries recognised as an expense and included in manufacturing costs of continuing operations in the Group
Income Statement during the vear was £609.6m (2016: £499.3m),

The netinventories of £222.8m include a provision for obsolete stock of £13.9m (2016: £14.4m} and inventory write-downs
from cost to net realisable value of £7.7m (2016: £2.4m).



20.
201

20.2

157

Derivative Financial Instruments

Accounting policy

The Group uses derivative financial instruments ('derivatives’), in the form of forward foreign currency contracts and interest
rate swaps to manage the effects of its exposure to foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk. The way in which derivatives
are used to manage the Group's financial risk is detailed in Note 27.

Derivatives are measured ot fair value. The fair value of forward foreign currency contracts is calculated using market prices
atthe balance sheet date. The fair value of an interest rate swap is the estimated amount that the Group would receive or pay
taterminate the swap at the balance sheet date, taking infe account current interest rates and the creditworthiness of the
SWAP COUNtErparty.

The method of recognising the gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value depends upon whether the derivative is designated
as a hedging instrument for hedge accounting purposes and, if so, the nature of the item being hedged. Strict conditions have
to be satisfied in arder to qualify for hedge accounting, including a determination both ar inception of the hedge and on an
ongoing basis that the hedge is expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows
artributable to the hedged risk. The change in fair value of a derivative that is not designated as a hedging instrument for
hedge accounting purposes is recognised immediately in the Group Income Statement. No derivatives are held for speculative
purposes.

Net investment hedges

The effective part of any gain or loss on a derivative that is designated as @ hedge of a netinvestment in a foreign operationis
recognised in other comprehensive income and presented in the translation reserve in equity, and is subsequently recognised
in the Group Income Statement as part of the profit or loss on disposal of the net investment. The ineffective portion of the
gain or loss is recognised immediately within trading profit in the Group Income Statement,

Analysis of derivative financial instruments

2017 2016
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
£m £m £m fm
Derivatives not designated for hedge accounting purposes 0.3 — — (0.9}
Total derivative financial instruments 0.3 — — (0.9

All of the fair values shown in the table above are classified under IFRS 13 as Level 2 measurements which have been
calculated using quoted prices from active markets, where similar contracts are traded and the quetes reflect actual
fransactions in similar instruments. All of the derivative ossets and liabilities reported inthe table above will mature within
a year of the balance sheet date.
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21.

22,

221

222

23.
231

23.2

Acquisition of Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures, Net of Cash Acquired

The Group did not acquire any material interests in any companies during the year ended 31 December 2077,

Prior Year Acquisition

On 1 December 2016, the Group acquired a 100% ownership interest in Mastercodi Industrial Ltda, the mould and tundish
flux business of Carboox, for total consideration of £8.0m, of which £0.7m was deferred. The fair value of the net assets
acquired was £4.9m and included identified intangible assefs relating to customer reiationships and trade names of £3.8m.
Thetransaction resulted inthe recognition of £3.1m of goodwill attricutable to the synergies which are expected from
combining the business with the operations of the Group.

During 2017 the fair values of the acquired assets and liabilities were finalised and resulted in o £0.3m adjustment o trade
and other receivables. The final fair value of net assets acquired was £5.2m and the total goodwill recognised was £3.4m.

Discontinued Operations

Discontinued operations income during 2017 of £1.7m related to a release of provisions no longer required.

Discontinued operations income during 2016 of £10.2m cormprised a £9.0m tox credit relating to the release of a provision

for possible China taxes (Note 10.2} and a £1.2m release of provisions no longer required.

Results of discontinued operations

2017 2016
£m Em
Otherincome 17 10.2
Profit before tax— attributable fo owners of the parent 1.7 10.2
Earnings pershare —pence
Basic 0.7 38
Diluted 0.6 27
Cash flows from discentinued operations
2017 2016
£m £m
Net cash cutflow from:
— operating activities (0.7) —
Net cash outflow for the year {0.7) —

Issued Share Capital

Accounting policy
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded as the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Analysis of issued share capital

Theissued and fully paid ordinary share capitol of the Company as at 31 December 2017 was 278.5 million shares of 10 pence

each (2016: 278.5 million shares of 10 pence each). Further information relating to the Company’s share capitalis given in

Note 8 attached to the Company's financial statements.



24. Retained Earnings

25.

Reserve Share Other Total
farown option retained retained
shares reserve earnings earrnings
£m £m fm £rm
Asat1 January 2016 (38.0) 36 23809 23465
Profit for the year — — 569 569
Remeasurement of defined benefit liakilities/assets — - 9.5 3.5
Recogniticn of share-based payments —_ 1.7 — 1.7
Release of share option reserve on exercised and lapsed options 29 (2.4 (0.5} —
Income tax on items recognised in other comprehensive income — — (0.7) 0.7)
Dividends paid (Note 26) — — (432.9) (439)
Asat1 Januvary 2017 (35.1) 29 2,402.2 2,370.0
Profitforthe year — — 38.0 38.0
Remeasurement of defined benefit liabilities/assets — — 8.4 84
Recognition of share-based payments —_ 2.6 — 2.6
Release of share option reserve on exercised and lapsed options 09 (0.9) — —
Income tax on items recognised in other comprehensive income — — (3.1) (3.1)
Dividends pcid (Note 26) — — (45.6) (45.6)
Asat 31 December 2017 (34.2) 4.6 2,3999 2,370.3
Other Reserves
Other  Translation Total other
reserves reserve resarves
Em £m £m
Asat January 2016 {1,499.3) (2.6) (1,5019)
Exchange differences on translation of the net assets of foreign cperations — 2027 2027
Exchange translation differences arising on net investrent hedges — (41.6) (41.6)
Asat1January 2017 (1,499.3) 1579  (1,341.4)
Exchange differences ontranslation of the net assets of foreign operations — (37.8) (37.8)
Exchange franslation differences arising on net investment hedges — 9.8 9.8
Asat 31 December 2017 (1,499.3) 1299 (1,369.4)

Within other reserves as at 31 December 2017 is £1,495.0m {2016: £1,499.0m) arising from the demerger of Cookson Group
ple, being the excess of the Vesuvius plc share capital of £1,777.9m over the total share capital and share premium of Ceckson

Group plc as at 14 December 2012 of £278.9m.

The translation reserve inthe table above comprises all foreign exchange differences attributable to the owners of the parent.

These exchange differences arise from the translaticn of the financial statements of foreign operatiens and from the
translation of financial instruments that hedge the Group's net investment in foreign operations, In addition to foreign

exchange differences attributable to the owners of the parent, the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income includes

foreign exchange differences attributable to non-controlling interests.
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26.

27.
271

27.2

Dividends

Afinal dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 of £30.8m (2015: £30.0m), equivalent to 11,40 pence (2075: 11,125
pence) per ordinary share, was paid in May 2017 (May 2016) and an interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017
of £14.8m (2016: £13.9m), equivalent to 5.50 pence (2014: 5.15 pence) per erdinary share, was paid in September 2017
{September 207186).

A proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017 of £33.8m, equivalent to 12.5 pence per ordinary share,

is subject to approval by shareholders at the Company's Annual General Meeting and has not been included as aliability in
these financial statements. If approved by sharehelders, the dividend will be paid on 25 May 2018 to ordinary shareholders
ontheregister at 13 April 2018.

Financial Risk Management

Accounting policy
{a} Non-derivative financialinstruments

Loans and borrowings are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition
they are measured ot amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

{b) Foreigncurrencies

The individual financial statements of each Group entity are prepared in their functional currency, which is the currency of
the primary economic environment in which that entity operates. For the purpose of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
the results and financial position of ecch entity are translated into pound sterling, which is the presentational currency of
the Group.

Reporting foreign currency transactiens in functional currency
Tronsactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency {foreign currencies) are initially recerded at the rates of
exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each subsequent balance sheet date:

() Foreign currency monetary iterns are retranslated at the rates prevailing ot the balance sheet date. Exchange differences
arising onthe settlement or retranslation of monetary items are recognised in the Group Income Statement

(i) Non-monetary items measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated

Translation from functional currency to presentational currency
When the functionai currency of a Group entity is different from the Group's presentational currency (pound sterling), its results
andfinancial position are translated into the presentational currency as follows:

() Assetsandliabilities are translated using exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date

(i) Income and expense items are franstated at average exchange rates for the year, except where the use of such average
rates does not approximate the exchange rate at the date of a specific tfransaction, in which case the tfransaction rate
is used

(il All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and presented in the translation reserve
in equity ond are reclassified to profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of

Met investment in foreign operations

Exchange differences arising on a manetary item that forms part of a reporting entity’s net investment in o foreign operation
are initially recognised in other comprehensive income and presented in the franslation reserve in equity and reclassified 1o
profit or loss on disposal of the netinvestment.

Financial risk factors

The Group's Treasury department, acting in accordance with policies approved by the Board, is principally responsible for
managing the financial risks faced by the Group. The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, the most
significant of which are market risk and liguidity risk.

(@) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that either the fair values or the cash flows of the Group's financial instruments may fluctuate because
of changesin market prices. The Group is principally exposed to market risk through fluctuations in exchange rates (currency
risk’) and interest rates (interest rate risk ).



Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk on its borrowings and financial assets (being cash and short-term deposits) thot are
denominated in currencies other than pound sterling. The Group's general policy is proportionally to match the currency
profile ofits core borrowings with the currency profile of its earnings and net assets. Thisis achieved, where necassary, by the
use of farward foreign exchange contracts {FX swaps'). The currency profile of the Group's berrowings and financial ossets,
reflecting the effect of the FX swaps, is shown in the table below.,

2017 2016
Borrowings Borrowings Borrowings Barrowings

before FX after  Finoncial Net before FX after  Financial Net

FXswaps swaps FXswaops assets* debt FX swaps swaps FXswaps assets debt

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m fm fm £rn

Sterling 39.7 88.7 128.4 4.5 132.9 32.5 116.8 1493 8.2) 1401
United States dollar 1599 (88.7) 71.2 {(14.7) 56.5 301.6 (116.8) 184.8 (40.7) 144.2
Euro 235.6 — 235.6 (45.2) 190.4 1271 — 1271 (22.6) 1045
Chinese renminbi — — — (34.5) (34.5) — — — (22.1) (227)
Qther 31 —_ 31 (72.0) (68.9) 5.2 — 5.2 (49.9) (44.7)

Capitalised

arrangement feas (2.1) — 2.1) — 2.m 1.7 — (1.7) — .7
Asat31December 436.2 — 4362 (161.9) 2743 4647 — 4647  (144.4) 3203

* The averdrawn sterting balance of £4.5m above s included in the cash poacling arrangement s and offset by other currency batances inthe pool

Based upon the currency profile shown in the table above, while not impacting reported profit, the change in net debt arising
from a 10% strengthening of sterling would increase reported equity by £13.0m (2016: £16.5m) and a corresponding 10%
weakening of sterling would reduce equity by £15.9m (2016: £20.2m).

The tables below show the ner unhedged monetary assets and liabilities of Group compantes that are not denominatedin
their functional currency and which could give rise to exchange gains and losses inthe Group Income Staternent.

Net unhadged monetary assets/(liobilities)

Sterling USdollar Euro Renminbi Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Functional currency
Sterling — (2.5) 5.3 0.1 6.1 (1.6}
United States dollar — — 0.5 e (2.6) 2.1)
Eurc {0.5) 7.3 — — — 6.8
Chinese renminbi (0.7) 15.0 Q.4 — 0.1) 14.6
Other (0.7) 14.6 0.7) (0.2) 1.7 24.7
Asat31 December 2017 (1.9) 34.4 (5.1) (0.1) 15.1 42.4
Net unhedged monetary assets/{liabilities})
Sterling Usdallar Euro Renmink Other Total
m £m f£m £m £m £m
Functional currency
Sterling — {0.9) 1.0 0.1 1.0 1.2
United States dellar — — 13.5 — {3.6) 9G
Euro (0.2) {3.2) — — — (3.4)
Chinese renminhi 0.7) 5.4 0.5) — omn 41
Other (0.5) 134 2.2 13 18.0 34.4
Asat 31 December 2016 (1.4) 14.7 16.2 1.4 15.3 46.2
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27. Financial Risk Management (continued)

27.2 Financial risk factors (continued)

() Market risk {continuad)

Interest rate risk

The Groug's interest rate risk principally arises in relation to its borrowings. Where borrowings are held ot floating rates of
interest, fluctuations in interest rates expose the Group fo variability in the cash flows associated with its interest payments,
ond where borrowings are held of fixed rates of interest, fluctuarions in interest rates expase the Group to changesin the

fair value of its borrowings. The Group's policy is to maintain a mix of fixed and floating rate borrowings, within certain
parameters agreed from time to time by the Board, in order to optimise interest cost and reduce volatility in reported earnings.

Asat 31 December 2017, the Group had $200.0m and €130.0m (£261. 3min total) of US Private Placement Loan Notes
(USPP) outstanding, which carry a fixed rate of interest, representing two-thirds of the Group's total borrowings outstanding
at that date. The interest rate profile of the Group's borrowings and net debtis detailed in the tables below.

Financial liabilities
(gross borrowings)

Fixed Floating Financial Net

rate rate Total assets debt

£m £m £m £m £m

Sterling — 39.7 397 4.5 44.2
United States dollar 148.0 11.9 156.9 (14.7) 145.2
Euro 115.4 120.2 235.6 (45.2) 160.4
Chinese renminbi — — — (34.5) (34.5)
Other — 31 3.1 (72.0) {68.9)
Capitalised arrangement fees 2.1) — (2.1) — {2.1)
Asat31 December 2017 261.3 174.9 436.2 {161.9) 274.3

Financiatiiabilities
{gross borrowings)

Fixed Fleating Financial Net

rate rote Total assefs debt

£m £m £m £m £m

Sterling — 325 325 (9.2 234
United States dollar 251.3 50.3 301.6 (40.7) 26039
Eure 25.6 101.5 127 (22.6) 104.5
Chineserenminki — — — 221 (22.1)
Other — 5.2 52 (49.9) {447y
Capitalised arrangement fees 1.7) — (1.7) — an
Asat 31 December 2016 2752 189.5 464.7 (144 .4) 3203

The floating rate financial liabilities shown in the tables cbove bear interest at the inter-bank offered rate of the appropriate
currency, plus a margin. The fixed rate financial liabilities of £261.3m (2016: £275.2m) have a weighted average interest rate
of 3.8% (2016: 4.6%) and o weighted average period for which the rate is fixed of 6.9 years (2016: 4.2 years). The financial
assets aftract floating rate interest at the inter-bank offered rate of the appropricte currency, less o margin.

Based upon the inferest rate profile of the Group's financial assets and liabilities shown in the tables above, a 1% increasein
market inferest rates would increase both the net finance casts charged in the Group Income Statement and the netinterest
paid inthe Group Statement of Cash Flows by £0.1m (2016: £0.5m), and a 1% reduction in market interest rates would
decrease baoth the net finance costs charged in the Group Income Statement and the netinterest paid in the Group Statement
of Cash Flows by £0.1m (2016: £0.5m). Similarly, o 1% increase in market interest rates would result in o decrease of £15.9m
{2016: £10.7m) in the fair value of the Group's net debt and a 1% decrease in market interest rates would result in an increase
of £17.2m (2016: £11.4m) in the fair value of the Group's net debt.



(b) Liguidity risk

Ligquidity risk is the risk that the Group might have difficulties in meeting its financial obligations, The Group manages this risk
by ensuring that it maintains sufficient levels of committed borrowing facilities and cash ond cash equivalents to ensure that it
can meet its operational cash flow requirements and any maturing financial liabilities, whilst at all times operating within its
financial covenants. The level of operational headroom provided by the Group's committed borrowing facilities is reviewed at
least annually as part of the Group's three-year planning process. Where this process indicates a need for additional finance,
this is normally addressed 12 to 18 months in advance by means of either additional committed bank facilities arraising
financein the capital markets.

In December 2017 the US dellar portion of the US Private Placement {USPP*) debr of $110m matured. This debr was replaced
with a Euro-denominated USPP comprising two €50m tranches. These were issued with maturity dates of 2027 and 2029
respectively.

Asat 31 December 20717, the Group had committed borrowing facilities of £563.4m {2016: £576 9m), of which £153.7m
{2016: £158.3m) were undrawn. These undrawn fadilities are due to expirein June 2022. The Group's borrowing requirements
are met by LUSPP and a multi-currency committed syndicated bank facility of £300.0m {2016: £300.0m). The USPP facility
was fully drawn as at 31 Decermnber 2017 and amounted to £263.4m ($200.0m and €130.0m), of which $740.0misrepayable
in 2020, €15.0m in 2021, $30.0m in 2023, €15.0m in 2025, €50.0m in 2027, $30.0m in 2028 and €50.0m in 2029. During 2017,
an option weas exercised to extend the maturity date of £300m syndicated bank facility from June 202010 June 2022.

The maturity analysis of the Group's gross borrowings is shown inthe tables below.

Non-current Current Total
2017 206 2017 2016 2017 2016
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Loansand overdrafts 409.7 3294 24.6 132.7 434.3 4621
Cbligations under finance leases 2.4 2.6 1.6 17 4.0 4.3
Capitalised arrangement fees (1.6) (1.2) (0.5) (0.5} (2.1) {1.7)
Totalinterest-bearing borrowings 410.5 3308 25.7 1339 436.2 4647
2017 2016
£m fm
Interest-bearing borrowings repayable
Ondemand arwithin one year 22.4 134.4
Inthe second year 1.4 1.2
Inthe third year 252.8 0%
Inthefourthyear 13.4 255.7
Inthefifth year 1.8 12.8
After five years 146.5 61.4
Capitalised grrangement fees (2.1) .7
Totalinterest-bearing borrowings 436.2 464.7

Capitalised arrangement faes shown in the tables above, which have been recognised as areduction in barrowings in the
financial statements, amounted to £2.1m as ot 31 December 2017 (31 December 20716: £1.7m), of which £1.0m (2016: £0.7m)
relatedtothe USPP and £1.1m (2016 £1.0m) related to the syndicated bank facility.
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273

274

28.
28.1

Financial Risk Management (continued)

Capital management

The Cormpany considers its capital to be equalta the sum of its total equity and net debt. It maonitors its capital using a number
of KPls, including free cash flow, average working capital to sales ratios, net debt to EBITDA ratios and RONA (Note 4).

The Group's objectives when managing its capital are:

> Toensure thatthe Group and all of its businesses are able to operate as going concerns and ensure that the Group operates
within the financial covenants contained within its debt facilities

> Tohave availaoble the necessary financial resources to allow the Group to invest in areas that may deliver acceptable future
returnsto investors

> Ta maintain sufficient financial resources to mitigate against risks and unforeseen events

> To maximise shareholder value through maintaining an appropriate balance between the Group's equity and net debt
The Group operated within the requirements of its debt covenants throughout the year and has sufficient liquidity headrocom
within its committed debt focilities. Details of the Group's covenant compliance and committed debt facilities can be found

in the Strategic Report on page 25.

Cash pooling arrangements

The Group enters inte notional cash pooling arrangements as part of its ongoing Treasury management activities. Certain
cash poeling arrangements meet the criteria for offsetting as clarified in amendments to |AS 32 Financial Instruments, as
regards alegally enforceable right of ser-off both in the ordinary course of business and in the event of default. The following
tables set out the amounts of recognised financial assets and liabilities shown as cash and cash borrowings and those
amaounts which are subject to these agreements.

Grossamountsof Related amounts
recognised  Netamountsof of financial
financialassets/ financialassets/ assets/liabilities
Gross amounts of liabilities liabilities not offset
recognised offsetinthe  presentedinthe inthestatements
financial assets/ statement of statement of of financiol Net
liabilities financial pasition  financial position position ameunt
£m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets/liabilities
Cash deposits 1729 (11.0) 161.9 9.5) 152.4
Cashborrowings (32.9) 1.0 {(21.9) 9.5 (12.4)
Asat 31 December 2017 140.0 — 140.0 — 140.0
Financial assets/liabilities
Cash deposits 160.8 (16.4) 144.4 (30.9) 113.5
Cash borrowings (55.8) 16.4 (43.4) 309 (12.5)
Asat 37 December 2076 101.0 — 101.0 — 101.0

Employee Benefits

Accounting policy

The net surplus or net liability recognised in the Group Balance Sheet for the Group's defined benefit plans is the present
value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date, less the fair value of the plan assets. The defined benefit
cbligation is caleulated by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method and by discounting the estimated
future cash flows using interest rates on high-quality corporate bonds that have terms to maturity approximating the terms
of the related pension liability. Any asset recognised in respect of @ surplus arising from this calculation is limited to the asset
ceiling, where this is the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds or reductionsin future
contributions in respect of the plans.

The expense for the Group's defined benefit plans is recognised in the Group Income Statement as shown in Note 28,8,
Actuarial gains and losses arising an the assets and liabilities of the plans are reported within the Group Statement of
Comprehensive Income; and gains and fosses arising on settlements and curtailments are recognised in the Group Income
Statement in the same line as the item that gave rise to the settlement or curtailment or, if material, separately reported as
a component of aperating profit.



28.2 Group post-retirement plans

The Group operates & number of pensicn plans around the world, both of the defined benefit and defined contribution type,
and accounts for them inaccordance with IAS 19.

The Group's principal defined benefit pension plans are in the UK and the US, the benefits of which are based upon the final
pensionable salaries of plan members. The assets of these plans are held separately from the Group in frustee-administered
funds. Thetrustees are required fo act in the best interests of the plans' beneficiaries. The principal risks faced by these plans
comprise: (i} the risk that the value of the plan assers is not sufficient to meet all plan liakilities as they fall due; (i) the risk that
plan beneficiaries live longer than envisaged, causing liabilities to exceed the available plan assets; and (i) the risk that the
market-based factors used to value plan licbilities and assets change materially adversely to increase plan liabilities over the
vatue of available plar assets. The Group also has defined benefit pension plans in other territories but, with the exception of
those in Germany, these are not individually material in relation to the Group as a whole.

{a} Defined benefit pension plans-UK

The Group's main defined benefit pension plan in the UK {'the UK Plan') is closed to new members and to future benefit
accrual. The existing plan was established under atrust deed and is subject to the Pensions Act 2004 and guidance issued
by the UK Pensions Regulator.

A full actuarial valuation of the UK Plan is carried out every three years by anindependent actuary far the UK Plan Trustee in
line with the requirements of the Pensions Act 2004, and the last full valuation was carried out as ot 31 December 2015, At that
date, the market value of plan assets was £536.7m and this represented a funding level of 102% of the accrued plan benefits
atthe time of £526.4m, Calculated on a’buy-out basis (using an estimation of the cost of buying out the UK Plan benefits with
aninsurance company), the liabilities af that date were £687.5m, representing a funding fevel of 78%.

Thereis a “long-term scheme-specific funding stondard”in Part 3 of the Pensions Act 2004. In terms of Part 3, the UK plan is
subjectto @ requirement {"the statutory funding objective” that it must have sufficient and appropriate assets to cover ifs
technical provisicns. Such technicel provisions are determined as part of the triennial valuation. Under the rules of the UK
Plan, the Trustees, after consultation with the company, have the power to set the funding contributions taking into account
the results of the triennial vaiuation, and the Pension Act 2004 legislation. Notwithstanding the latest funding valuation
surplus, the Cornpany agreed to make voluntary contributions of £2.0m in 2077. Thereafter, the Company will fund the
administration cost relating to the management of the UK Plan.

The value of the UK Plan liabilities as at 31 December 2017 decreased 1o £490.8m {2016 £527.4m). The decrease inthe
liabilities was driven mainly by benefits paid from the scheme of £46.8m (2016 £28.1rm) in line with the trust deed and relevant
legislation requirements. Correspondingly, the UK Plan assets decreased to £580.3m (2016: £607.4m) as assets were
liquidated to fund the benefits paid resulting in decreases in the values of the annuity insurance confract of £13.5mand the
fixed income holdings of £33.7m.

Proposed amendments to [FRIC 14, The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their
interaction, address how the powers of other parties, such as the trustees of the plan, affect an entity’s right of refund of o
surplus from the plan. The Group has assessed the likely impact of the application of the interaction and concluded that it
would notimpact its ability to continue to recognise a pension surplus.

{b} Defined benefit pension plans-US

The Group has a number of defined benefit pensian plans in the US, providing retirement benefits based on final salary ora
fixed benefit. The Group's principal US defined benefit pension plans are closed to new members and also to future benefit
accrual for existing members. Actuarial valuations of the US defined benefit pension plans are carried cut every yearand
the last full valuation was carried aut as at 31 December 2016, At that date the market value of the plan assets was £49.2m,
representing a funding level of 66.0% of funded accrued plan benefits at that date {using the projected unit methad of
valuation) of £74.3m. Funding levels for the Group's US defined benefit pension plans are based upon annual valuations
carried out by independent qualified actuaries and are governed by US Government regulations. The value of US plan
liabilities decreased to £82.0m (2016: £86.8m) in 2017, which was mainly attributable to benefits paid of £4.0min line with
scheme rules and exchange gains of £7.6m due 1o US dollor weakness. This significant decrecse was partially offset by an
interest accrual of £3.1m and a loss of £3.8m due to the lower discount rate. The loss arising from changes in financicl
assumptions is solely attributable to the decrecse in the discount rates to 3.4% (2016: 3.8%).

The Group's US defined benefit pension plans are subject to the minimum contribution requirements of Internal Revenue
Code Sections 412 and 430. Contributions are determined by trustees, in consultation with the Company, bosed on the annual
valuations which are submitted to the Internal Revenue Service. For the plan year beginning 1 January 2017, the minimum
required confribution was £nil as significant company contributions of $6m were made in 2016 However, under these funding
laws and based on the plan deficit, minimum contributions in the period 2018-2020 are likely to be required and are expected
to be inthe $3mto $4m range. Voluntary contributions of $4m were made during 2017,
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28.
282

28.3

Employee Benefits (continued)

Group post-retirement plans (continued}

{c) Defined benefit pension plans-Germany

The Group has a number of defined benefit pension arrongements in Germany which are unfunded, as is commen practice
inthat country. The main plon was closed to new entrants on 31 December 2016 and replaced by a defined contribution plan
for new joiners. The net liability of the German plans at 31 December 2017 was £49.4m (2016: £45.3m). The increase was
driven by the decrease in discount rate which resulted in an increase in the liability of £1.6m (2016: £5.8m); increased current
service costs of £1.5m (2076: £1.2m); and exchange losses incurred of £1.9m (2014: £5.8m) due to the strengthening of the
eurc against the pound.

{d) Defined benefit pension plans—-ROW

The Group has a number of defined benefit pension arrangements across the rest of the world, the majority of which are
located in Belgium. The net liability of the ROW plans at 31 December 2017 was £17.9m (2016: £16.2m). The increase was
mainly attributable to exchange losses of £0.5m (2016: £2.1m) due 1o the weakening of the pound post-Brexit and significant
services costs of £2.0m (2016: £2.3m) recognised inrespect of the Belgian plans. These losses ore offset by the contribution of
£1.5m that was poid out during 2017, thereby decreasing the liability.

{e) Defined contribution pension plans
Thetotal expense for the Group's defined contribution plans in the Group Income Statement amounted to £12.6m (2016: £10.8m
continuing operations) and represents the contributions payable for the year by the Group to the plans.

(f} Multi-employer plans

Dueto collective agreements, Vesuvius in the US participotes together with other enterprises in union-run multi-employer
pension plans for temporary workers hired on sites. Some of these plans are underfunded and all participating employers are
ultimately lioble for any deficit. If a participating employer stops contributing to a plan, itis required to make a withdrawal
payment to the plan to cover its share of the total deficit in the plan. No reliable basis exists for allocation of the plans’
obligations and plan assets to individual employer perticipants. Deficits in the plans may necessitate increased contributions
in the future but the expectation is that this will remain relatively consistent based upon historicaltrends. These are currently
accounted for as defined contribution plans. In 2077 Vesuvius contributed £1.4m (2016: £1.2m) to these plans.

Post-retirement liability valvation

The main assumptions used in calculating the costs and obligations of the Group's defined benefit pension plans, as detailed
below, are set by the Directars after consuliation with independent professionally gualified actuaries and include those used
o determine regular service costs and the financing elements related to the plans' assets and liabilities. Itisthe Directors’
responsibility to set the assumptions used in determining the key elements of the costs of meeting such future obligations.
Whilst the Directors believe that the assumptions used are oppropriate, a change in the assumptions used could affect the
Group's profit and financial position.

(@) Mortality assumptions

The mortality assumptions used in the actuarial valuations of the Group's UK, US and German defined benefit pension
liabilities are summarised in the table below and have been selected to reflect the characteristics and experience of the
membership of those plans.

For the UK Plan, the assumptions used have been derived from the Self-Administered Pension Schemes (SAPS) All table,
with future longevity imprevements in line with the ‘core’ mortality improvement tables published in 2016 by the Continuous
Mortality Invastigation (CMI), with along-term rate of improvement of 1.25% per annum. For the Group's US plans, the
assumptions used have been based on the standard RP-2016 fully generational tables with projection scale BB, and the
MP-2017 mortality improvement scale. The Group's major plans in Germany have been valued using the modified Heubeck
Richttafeln 2005G mortality tables. Inrespect of the life expectancy tables below, current pensioners are assumed to be

65 vears old, while future pensioners are assumed to be 45 years old.

2017 2016
UK Us Germany UK UsS  Germany
Life expectancy of pension plan members years years years years years years
Age to which current pensioners are expectedto live —Men 86.3 85.7 843 865 85.8 841
-—-Women 88.9 87.7 88.3 89.2 87.8 88.2
Age towhich future pensioners are expectedtolive  —Men 877 873 86.9 878 874 86.8

—Women 90.4 89.2 90.8 30.7 89.4 90.7
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(b) Other main actuarial valuation assumptions

2017 2016
UK Us Germany UK Us  Germany
% p.a. % p.a. % p.a. % p.a. %p.o. Y%p.a.
Discount rate 2.50 3.40 1.60 270 3.80 1.75
Priceinflation — using RP!for UK 3.25 2.25 1.80 3.30 225 1.70
—using CPifor UK 215 nfa nfa 2.20 n/a n/c
Rate of increase in pensionable salaries n/a n/a 2,55 n/a n/a 2.45
Rate of increaseto pensions in payment 3.10 nfa 1.65 3.15 n/a 1.55

The discount rate used to determine the liobilities of the UK Plan for IAS 19 accounting purposes is required to be determined
by referance to market yields on high-guality corporate bonds. The UK discount rate in the above table is based on the Aon
Hewitt AA-rated corporate bond yield in conjunction with the most recent projected cash flow data relating to the UK Plan
lichilities; the US discount rate is based on the Citigroup pension discount curve; and the Germany discount rate is based on
the yield onthe iBoxx over ten-year euro corporates AA index.

The assumptions for UK price inflation are set by reference to the difference between yields on longer-term conventional
government bonds and index-linked bonds, except for CPI, for which ne appropriate bonds exist, which is assumed to be
1.1 points lower (2016: 1.1 points lower) than RPI-based inflation.

(c) Sensitivity analysis of the impact of changes in significant |AS 19 actuarial assumptions

The following table analyses, for the Group's main UK, US and Germany pension plans, the thearetical estimated impact
on plan liabilities and assets resulting from changes to the most significant actuarial assumptions used for [AS 19 valuation
purposes, whilst holding oll other assumptions constant,

Following the arrangement of buy-in agreements for the UK Plan pensioner liabilities in 2012,and the fact that US pensions
are notinflation linked, the rate of increase in pensionable salaries and of pensions in payment is not significant to
the valuation of the Group's overall pension liabilities.

As stated above, during 2012 the UK Plan entered into pension insurance buy-in agreements which eliminate the inflation,
interest rate, investment and longevity risk in respect of the pensicner liabilities covered by the agreements. The policy and

the associated valuation are updated annually. Please refer ta Nore 28.7 (o) for further detail. Inrespect of the liabilities so
covered, which currently represent same 56.5% of the total liabilities of the UK Plan, any changes in the valuation assumptions
which impact on the value of thoase liabilities, also impact on the associoted annuity assets in an equal and opposite way,
thereby fully mitigating the valuation risk. Thisis also reflected in the following table which includes the sensitivity of the group's
material definad benefit obligations and plan assets, where applicable, to changes in the weighted principal assumptions

as follows:

Assumption Charge in assumption UK us Germany
Discount Increase/decrease by 0.1%

rate —impacton planliabilities Decrease/increase by £8.2m Decrease/increase by £1.0m Decrease/increase by £1.0m
—impactonplanassets  Decrease/increase by £3.0mn/a n/a

Price Increase/decrease by 0.1%

inflation —impacton plan liabilities Increase/decrease by £5.6m n/a Increase/decrease by £0.3m
—impactonplanassets  Increase/decrease by £2.1m n/a n/c

Martality Increase by one year
—impacton planliabiiities Increaseby £21.4m Increase by £2.9m Increase by £1.8m
—impacton plan assets  Increase by £14.6m n/a n/a
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28.4 Defined benefir obligation

The average duration of the obligations to which the liabilities of the Group’s principal pension plans relate is 18 years for the
UK, 19 years for Germany and 11.6 years for the US.

Notes to the Group Financial Statements continued

Defined benefit pansionplans  Other post-
retirement
benefit
UK us Germaony ROW Total plans Total
£m £m £m £m £m £fm £m
Presentvalue asat 1 January 2017 527.4 86.8 45.3 41.0 700.5 6.9 7074
Exchange differences — (7.6) 1.9 1.3 4.4) 01 4.3}
Current service cost — 0.5 1.5 3.2 5.2 0.2 5.4
Past service cost — — — 0.1 0.1 — 0.1
Interest cost 14.0 31 0.8 0.7 18.6 0.2 18.8
Settlements — — — — — — —
Remeasurement of liakilities:
— demographic changes (5.4) (0.7) — [¢N] (6.0) — {6.0)
—financiol assumpticons 11.3 38 1.6 0.5 172.2 0.3 17.5
— experience losses/(gains) (9.7) 0.1 0.1) 0.1 (9.6) (0.1) o7
Benefits paid {46.8) (4.0) (1.6) 2.4) (54.8) 1.1 (55.9)
Presentvalue as at 31 December 2017 490.8 82.0 49.4 44.6 666.8 6.5 673.3
Defined benefit pension plans Other post-
" enett
UK us Germany ROW Total plans Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Presentvalue asat 1 January 2016 464.3 1121 363 36.1 £48.8 57 654.5
Exchange differences — 17.6 5.8 6.0 294 0.6 30.0
Current service cost — 0.5 1.2 31 4.8 0 49
Past service cost — — — 02 0.2 01 0.3
Interest cost 17.6 4.6 09 0.8 239 Q0.2 241
Settlements —_ (45.1) (3.5) {1.5) {50.1) — (50.1)
Remeasurement of liabilities:
—demographic changes (12.3) 1.2) — — {13.5) — (13.5)
—financial assumptions 76.2 4.4 58 0.6 870 0.4 874
—experience losses/{gains) 9.7 {0.4) 071 —_ 9.4 0.5 99
Benefits paid (28.71) (5.7) (1.3} 4.3) (39.4) {0.7) (401
Presentvalue asat 31 December 2016 5274 86.8 453 41.0 700.5 69 707.4




28.5 Fairvalue of plan assets

2017 2016

UK us ROW Total UK us ROW Total

£m £m £m £m £m fm £m £m
Asat1January 604.1 491 24.8 678.0 522.0 74.4 228 619.2
Exchange differences — (4.5) 0.5 4.0) — 10.8 4.0 14.8
Interestincome 16.1 1.7 0.4 18.2 193 31 0.4 228
Settlerments — — — — — (41.6) (1.0) (42.6)
Acquisitions — — —_ — — — — —
Remeasurement of assets 5.7 38 0.7 10.2 897 34 0.2 G3.3
Contributions from employer 20 31 23 7.4 20 4.4 24 8.8
Contributions frormn members — — — — — — — —
Administration expenses paid (0.8) (0.5) — (1.3) {0.9) {0.6) — {1.5)
Benefits paid (46.8) (2.9) (2.0) (51.7) (28.0) (4.8) (4.0 (36.8)
Asat 31 December 580.3 49.8 26.7 656.8 6041 491 24.8 678.0

The Group's pension plans in Germany are unfunded, as is common practice in that country, and accordingly there are no

assefs associated with these plans.

28.6 Remeasurement of defined benefit liabilities/assets

2017 2006
total total
£m £m

Remeasurement of liabilities:
—demogroph'\cchonges 6.0 13.5
—ﬂnDﬁCiCﬂGSSUmpﬂons (17.5) (87.4)
—experience {losses)/gains 9.7 (9.9
Remeasurement of assets 10.2 93.3
Total movement 8.4 9.5

The remaasurement of defined benefit liabilities and assets of £8.4m (2016: £9.5m) is recognised inthe Group Statement of

Comprehensive Income.

28.7 Balancesheet recognition

The amount recognised in the Group Balance Sheetin respect of the Group's defined benefit pension plans and other

post-retirement benefit plans is anclysed in the following tables, which all refate to continuing operations. All equity securities

and bonds have quated prices in active markets.

Defined benefit pension plans

O'rh.er post-
retirement
benefit 2017
UK us Germany ROW Total plans total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Equities 689 9.7 — 29 81.5 — 81.5
Bonds 191.8 38.5 — 20 232.3 — 2323
Annuity insurance contracts 2761 — — 17.8 293.9 — 2939
Other assets 435 1.6 — 4.0 491 — 49.1
Fairvalue of plan assets 580.3 45.8 — 26.7 656.8 — 656.8
Present value of funded obligations (488.9) (70.4) — {40.0) (599.3) —_ (599.3)
91.4 (20.6) — (13.3) 57.5 — 575
Present value of unfunded obligations (1.9) {11.6) (49.4) {4.6) (67.5) (6.5) (74.0)
Totalnet surplyses/(liabilities) 89.5 (32.2) (49.4) (17.9} {10.0) (6.5) (16.5)
Recognised inthe Group Balance Sheet as:
Net surpluses 91.4 — -— 1.0 2.4 m 92.4
Netligbilities (1.9 {32.2) (49.4) (18.9) (102.4) (6.5) (108.9)
Total net surplyses/{liabilities) 89.5 (32.2) (49.4) (17.9) (10.0} (6.5) (16.5)
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28. Employee Benefits {(continued)

28.7 Balance sheet recognition {continued)

Bosed on a detailed assessment performed, none of the IFRIC 14 restrictions are applicable and, therefore, the surplusis
recognised.

Defined benefitpensionplans  Otherpost-

ratirement

benefit 2016

UK us Germany ROW Total plons total

£m fm £m £m £rm £m frn

Equities 73.8 10.0 — 2.6 86.4 — 86.4

Bonds 216.3 359 — 20 254.2 — 2542

Annuity insurance contracts 289.6 — — 16.3 3059 3059

Other assets 24 4 32 — 39 31.5 215

Fairvalue of plan assets 6041 497 — 248 678.0 — &78.0

Present value of funded obligations (525.5) (74.3) — (37.3) {(657.7) — (6371)

78.6 (25.2) — (12.5) 409 — 409

Present value of unfunded obligations (1.9) (12.5) (45.3) (3.7) (63.4) (69) (70.3)

Total net surpluses/{liabilities) 767 (372.7) {45.3) {16.2) (22.5) {6.9) (29.4)
Recognised inthe Group Balance Sheetas:

Netsurpluses 78.6 — — 0.2 78.8 — 78.8

Netliabilities 1.9 (32.7) (45,3) (16.4) (101.3) (6.9) {108.2)

Total net surpluses/(liabilities) 76.7 (3727 (45.3) (16.2) (22.5) (69) (29.4)

(@) UK Plan asset allocation

Asat 31 December 2017, of the UK Plan's total assets, 47.6% were represented by the annuity insurance contfracts covering
the UK Plan's pensicn liabilities; 11.9% were allocated to equities; 33.0% to fixed income securities; 5.1% to cash; and 2.4% 1o
other assets. The fixed income asset class of the UK Plan includes a liability-driven investment portfolio of financial derivative
confracts which reduces she risk that the UK Plon's assets would fall materially, relative to the value of its economic liabilities.

The UK Plan Trustee has entered intc a pension insurance buy-in agreement with the Pension Insurance Corporatien (PIC),
whereby the UK Plan Trustee has paid insurance premiums to PIC to insure a significant portion of the UK Plan's liabilities.
Under this arrangement, the value of the PIC insurance contract matches the value of the liabilities because the inflation,
interest rate, investment and longevity risk for Vesuvius in respect of these liabilities are eliminated. As at 31 December 2017,
the IAS 19 valuation of the PIC insurance contract value associated with the bought-in liabilities was £276.1m (2076: £28%.6m).
The buy-in agreement ensures that the UK pension plan obligations in respect of all it retired members and their approved
dependants are insured. The palicy and the associated valuation are updated annually to reflect retirements and mortality.
In the current year, the agreement based on specific membership data covers 56.5% of UK pension plan obligations,
removing all financial risks associated with this franche of the liability.

{b) Defined benefit contributionsin 2018

In 2018, the Group is expected to make contributions into its defined benefir pension and other post-retirement benefits
plans of around £5.3m with specific contributions of appreximately £3.0m and £0.8m anticipated for the US Plan and
UK Plan respectively.



28.8 Income statement recognition
The expense recognised in the Group Income Statement in respect of the Group's defined benefit retirement plans and other

29,
291

29.2

post-retirerment benefit plans is shown below.
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2017 2016

Other Qther

Defined post- Defined past-

benefit retirement benefit retirement

pension benafit pension banefit
plans plans Total plans plans Tatal
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Current service cost 5.2 0.2 5.4 4.8 01 49
Past service cost 01 — 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.3
Settlemaents — — — (5.2) — (5.2)
Administration expensas 1.3 — 1.3 1.5 — 1.5
Netinterest cost 0.4 0.2 0.6 1.1 02 1.3
Totalnet charge 7.0 0.4 7.4 2.4 0.4 28

No settlement gain arose in 2017 in contrast to the £5.2m recognised in 2076 in relation ta the buy-out of members of the

US Plan and German members moving their existing plansinto a new dafined contribution plan. These settlements reduced
the Group's defined benefit obligations by £50.1m, effected by utilising £42.6m of pension assets and additionally, in respect

of the unfunded German plan, £2.3m of the Group's cash.

Thetotal net charge of £7.4m (2016: £2.8m) recognised in the Group Income Statement in respeact of the Group's defined

benefitr pension plans and other post-retirement benefits plans is recognised in the following table:

2017 2016

£m fm

Inarrivingattrading profit  —within other manufacturing costs 2.4 2.0
—within administration, selling and distribution costs 4.4 4.4

Inarriving at profit beforetax —within restructuring charges — 0.3
—gain an employee benefif plan — (5.2)

—within netfinance costs 0.6 1.3

Totalnetcharge 7.4 2.8

Share-based Payments

Accounting policy

The Group operates equity-settled share-based payment arrangement for its employees. Equity-setiled share-based
payments are measured at foir value at the date of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date takes account of the

effact of market-based conditions, such as total shareholder return target upon which vesting for some awards is conditional,
and is expensed on ¢ straight-line basis over the vesting period with a corresponding increase in equity. The cumulative expense
recognised is adjusted for the best estimate of the shares that will eventually vest and for the ef fect of other non-market-based

conditions, such as growth in headline earnings per share, which are net included in the fair value determined af the date of
grant. For grants with market-based conditions attached to them, fair value is measured using a form of stochastic aption

pricing model. For ¢l other grants, fair value is measured using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.

Income statement recognition
The total expense recagnised in the Group Income Statement is shown below,

2017 206

£fm fm

Long Term Incentive Plan 1.8 1.0
Other plans 0.8 0.7
Total expense 2.6 17

The Group operates a number of different share-based payment plans, the most significant of which isthe Long Term

Incentive Plan {LTIF), details of which can be found on pages 111 to 113 of the Directors' Remuneration Report. The Group's

other share-based payment plans are not considered significant in the context of the Group's results or financial pesition.
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29.
29.3

29.4

Share-based Payments (continued)

Details of outstanding options

Outstanding awards

Asat Forfeited/ Asat

1Jan 2017 Granted Exercised lapsed 31 Dec2017

no. no. ne. no. no.

LTIP 2,398,185 825,653 — (943,745) 2,280,093
Weighted average exarcise price nil nil nil nil nil
Other plans 219,479 118,722 (180,104}  (5,660) 152,437
Weighted average exercise price nil nil nil nil nit

For the options exercised during 2017, the share price at the dafe of exercise ranged from 402 pence to 592 pence.

Outstanding owards

Asat Forfeited/ Asat
1Jan 2076 Granted Exercised lapsed 31 Dec2016
ne no. no. neo, [al=}
LTIP 1,585,838 1,211,828 — {399,581} 2,398,185
Weighted average exercise price nil nil nil nil nil
Other plans 743 666 86,867 (607139 (3915) 215479
Weighted average exercise price nil nil nil nil nil
For the opticns exercised during 2016, the share price ot the date of exercise ranged from 287 pence to 347 pence.
Details of market perfarmance conditions are included in the Directors' Remuneration Report.
2017 2018
Weighted Weighted
Awards average Awards average
exercisoble outstanding Range of exercisable  outstanding Range of
asat contractual exercise asat  contractual exercise
31Dec2017 lifecfawards prices 31 Dec 2016 Ifeofowards prices
no. years pence no. years pence
LTIP —_ 48 — 52
Weighted average exercise price — nfa — n/a
Otherplans — 1.0 — 0.4
Weighted average exercise price — n/a — n/a
Options granted under the LTIP during the year
2017 (March Grant) 2017 {Sept Grant) 2016
EPS TSR EPS TSR EPS TSR
element element element element elarment element
Fairvalue of options granted (per share} 524.5p 4071.0p 578.0p 467.0p 292.0p 112.0p
Share price on date of grant {per shore) 524.5p  524.5p 578.0p 578.0p 292.0p 292.0p
Expectedvolatility n/a 30.9% nfa 33.00% n/a 26.0%
Risk-freeinterestrare n/a 017% nfa 0.16% n/a 0.4%
Exercise price {pershare) nil nil nil nil nil nil
Expectedterm (years) 3 3 3 3 4 4
Expected dividend yield nil nil nil nil nil nil

The fair value of share opticns with non-market performance conditions has been calculated using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model. The fair value of options with market-related performance conditions has been measured using the Monte
Carlo model. Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volotility of the Group's share price over the

2 8vyears{2016: 2.75 years) prior to the grant date. The risk-free rate of return was assumed o be the yield 1o maturity on a UK
fixed gifrwith the term to maturity equal to the expected life of the option. At the discretion of the Remuneration Committee,
award holders receive the value of dividends that would have been paid on their vested shares in the period between grant
and vesting. Accordingly, there is na discount to the valuation for dividends foregone during the vesting period.
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Trade and Other Payables

Accounting policy
Trade and other payables are initially recagnised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest methad.

Analysis of trode ond other poyables

2017 2016+
£m £m
Non-current
Accruals and other payables 14.4 12.6
Deferred purchase and contingent considerafion 29 3.9
Total non-current other payables 17.3 16.5
Current
Trade payables 185.9 1391
Other taxes and social security ) 326 32.3
Deferred purchase and cortingent consideration 0.8 0.8
Accryals and other payables 73.3 67.5
Total current trade and other payables 292.6 2397

* Restated os o result of o change in accounting policy (Note 10.1).

There is no significant difference between the foir value of the Group's trade and other payables balances and the amount at
which they are reported in the Group Balance Sheet.

Included within tfrade payables in the table above is £1.8m (2016: £nil) subject to a supplier financing agreement. Under the
terms of this agreement, which the Group entered into as one of a series of measures aimed at improving control over its
working capital, invoices received by the Group from approved suppliers are assigned to athird-party finance company,
which assumes legal responsibility for settling the amount owing directly with the supplier. The Group subsequently settles
the amount owing tothe finance company. There is no cost to the Group from this arrangement.

Leases

Accounting policy

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substanticlly ali the risks and rewards of
ownership fo the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Rentals payable under operating leases are
charged to the Group Income Statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Benefits received and receivable
as anincentive to enter into an operating lease are also spread on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Operating lease commitments
The future aggregare minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

2017 2018

£m £m

Notlater than one year 8.3 9.0
Later thar one year and notlater than five years 13.4 15.8
Later than five years 79 70
Total operating lease commitments 29.6 31.8

The Group's property, plant and equipment assets are either purchased outright or held under lease contracts. Where the
terms of the leose fransfer subsrantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset ta the Group, the asseris capitalised
inthe Group Balance Sheet and the corresponding liability to the lessor is recognised as a finance lease eobligation. Where all
the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Group, the lease is classified as an operating lease and neither
the asset nor the corresponding liability to the lessor is recognised in the Group Balance Sheet. The net baok value of the
Group's property, plant and equipment assets held under financa lease contracts ai 31 December 2077 was £4.6m

(2016: £4.7m).

The costincurred by the Group in the year in respect of assets held under operating leases, all of which was charged within
trading profit, emounted to £18.6m (2016: £17.3m).
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32.
321

32.2

Provisions

Accounting policy

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present cbligation as aresult of @ post event and itis probable that the Group
will be required to settle that cbligation. Provisions are measured at the Directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required

to seftle the obligation at the balance sheet date. Where the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects both the current market assessment of the time value of money and the
specific risks associated with the obligation. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognised as a finance cost.

Analysis of provisions

Disposaland  Restructuring

closuracosts charges Other Total

£m £m £m £m

Asat1 January 2017~ 41.1 18.5 6.9 66.5
Exchange adjustments (2.6) 0.3 0.4) 2.7
Charge to Group Income Statement — 36.3 1.7 48.0
Unused amounts released to Group Income Starement a7 — — a.7)
Adjustment fo discount 0.1 0.1 — 0.2
Cashspend (1.9} {27.3) (1.9} {41.1}
Transferred to other balance sheet accounts — (5.0) — (5.0)
Asat 31 December2017 35.0 22.9 6.3 64.2

*Restated to mare appropriately reflect o pravision for which an sssocicted insurance osset exists

Of the total provision balance as at 31 December 2017 of £64.2m (2016: £66.5m), £34.4m (2016: £39.9m) is recognised in the
Group Balance Sheet within non-current liabilities and £29.8m (2016: £26.6m) within current liabilities.

The provision for dispesal and ¢losure costs includes the Directors’ current best estimate of the costs to be incurred both in

the fulfilment of obligations incurred in connection with fermer Group businesses, resulting from either disposal or closure,
together with those related fo the demolition and clean-up of closed sites. The provision comprises amounts payable in
respect of known or probable costs resulting bath from legal or other regulatory requirements, ar from third-party claims,
including claims relating o product liability. As the seftlement of many of the obligations for which provision is madeis subject
1o legal or other regulatory process, the 1iming of the associated cash outflows is subject to some uncertainty, but the majority
of the amounts provided are expected to be utilised over the next ten years and the underlying estimates of costs are regularly
updated to reflect changed dircumstances with regard to individual matters. The opening balance has been restated by
£7.9m to present a provision for which an associated insurance asset exists. There was no material impact on the 2016
perfarmance statements and no restatement is required.

Where insurance cover exists for any of these known ar probable costs, a related asset is recognised in the Group Balance
Sheet only wher its value can be reliably measured by management. As at 31 December 2017, £21.6m (2016: £22 8m) was
recorded in receivables in respect of associated insurance reimbursements, of which £20.7m {(2016: £271.9m) is non-current.

In assessing the probable costs and realisation certainty of provisions, or related assets, reasonable assumptions are made.
Changes to the assumptions used could significantly alter the Director's assessment of the value, timing or certainty of the
costs or related omounts,

The provision for restructuring charges includes the costs of all of the Group’s recognised initiatives to rationalise its operating
activities. The balance of £22.9m as at 31 December 2017 comprises £2.7min relation to onerous lease provisions in respect
of leases terminating between one and six years, and £20.2m in relation to expenditure on restructuring initiatives that have
been announced which is expected o be poid out over the next year.

Other provisions comprise amaounts payable in respect of known or probable costs resulting both from legal or other
regulatory requirements, workers’ compensation and medical claims, and from third-party claims. Asthe seftlement of many
of the obligations far which provision is made is subject to reasonable assumptions, legal or other regulatory process, the
timing of the associcted outflows is subject to some uncertainty, but the majority of amounts provided are expectedto be
utilised over the next five years and the underlying estimates of costs are regularly updated to reflect changed circumstances
with regard to individual matters, During 2017 the Group recognised net charges of £11.7m (2016: £10.2m} in the Group
Income Statement to provide far various litigation settlerments and other claims.
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33. Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In compliance with current reporting requirements, certain arrangements entered into by the Group in its normal course of
business are not reported in the Group Batance Sheet. Of such arrangements, those considered material by the Directors are
future lease payments in relation to assets used by the Group under non-cancellable cperating leases (Note 31).

34. Contingent Liabilities

Guarantees given by the Group under property leases of operations disposed of amounted 1o £1.1m {2016: £1.6m). Details
of guarantees given by the Company, on behalf of the Group, are given in Note 10 1o the Company Financial Statements.

Vesuvius has extensive international operations and is subject fe various legal and regulatory regimes, including those
cavering taxation and environmental motters. Several of Vesuvius' subsidiaries are parties to legal proceedings, certain of
which are insured claims arising inthe ordinary course of the operations of the company involved, and the Directors are aware
of anumber ofissues which are, or may be, the subject of dispute with tax autharities. Provisions are made for the expected
amounts payable in respect of known or probable costs resulting both from legal or other regulatory requirements, and
fromthird-party claims,

Certain of Vesuvius subsidiaries are subject to lawsuits, predominaatly inthe US, relating to a small number of preducts
confaining asbestos manufactured prior to the acquisition of those subsidiaries by Vesuvius. These suits usually also name
many other product manufacturers. To date, Vesuvius is not aware of there being any liability verdicts against any of these
subsidiaries. A number of lawsuits have been withdrawn, dismissed or settled and the amount paid, including costs, in relation
to this litigation has not had a material adverse effect on Vesuvius' financial position or results of operations,

As the settlement of many of the cbligations for which reserve is made is subject to legal or other regulotory process, the
fiming and amount of the associated cutflows is subject o some uncertainty (see Note 32 for further information).

35. Investmentsin Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associotes

351 Investmentinsubsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has
rights fo, variable returns from its invalvement with the entity and can affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.

The subsidiaries,, joint ventures and associates of Vesuvius plc and the countries in which they are incorporated are set out
below. With the exception of Vesuvius Holdings Limited, whose ordinary share capital was directly held by Vesuvius plc, the
ordinary capital of the companies listed below was wholly awned by a Vesuvius plc subsidiary as ot 31 December 2017

Company Company
legalname Registered office oddress Jurisdiction legal name Registered office address Jurisdiction
Advent Pracess 333 Prince Charles Drive, Welland, Canada Flo-Con CT Corporation, 1209 Orange US (Deloware)
EngineeringInc. Ontario, L3B 5P4, Cancda (Onrario) Halding, Inc Street, The Corporation Trust
Avemnis SAS Saint Symphorien Sur Coise France Company, Wilmington, DE 19801,

169590) au 2, Hoteld'Entreprises, United States

ZIGrange Eglise, France Flo-Con CT Corporation, 208 SouthLaSalle US (Hlinois)
BM| Refractory 600N 2Znd Streert, Suite 401, us Systerns, LLC S‘tref_f‘r, Chicage, Coqk County,
Services Inc, Harrisburg, PA17101-1071, (Pennsylvania) Hinois, IL 60604, United States

United Stares Foseco (FS) 1 Midlond Way, Central Park, England
Brazil 1 Limited 165 Flaet Street, London, England Limited Barlboroeugh Links, Derbyshire,

ECAA 2AE, England S434XA, England
Cookson Km71/2, Autopista SanIsidro, Dominican F?Sa?-:co (GB) 165 Fleet Street, London, England
Dominicang, SRL - Edificia Modelo A, Zona Franca Republic Limited ECAA2AE, England

SanIsidro, Sonto Domingo Ceste, Foseco (Jersey) 44 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey

Domirican Republic Limited JE4 WG, Jersey
Cookson 13 Castle Street, St Heler, Jersey Foseco (MRL) 165 Fleet Street, London, England
Investmants JE45UT, Jersey Limited EC4A 2AE, England
{Jersey) Limited Foscco (RUL)Y 165 Fleet Street, London, England
Cookson tersey 13 Costle Street, StHelier, Jersey Limited EC4A 2AE, England
Lirnited JE45UT, Jersey . Foseco (UK) 165 Fleet Street, Landon, England
East Moon 36/F Tower Two Times Square, Hong Kong Limited EC4A2AE, England
Invesrmer-ﬁ 1 Matheson Street, FosecoCanada 181 Bay Street, Suite 1800, Toronto, Canada
(HK Helding) Causeway Say, Limited Chrorie, M512T3, Conade (Ontarie)

Companylimited  HongKong

Foseco 5, Barrio Elizalde, lzurza, Bizkcio,  Spain

Espanola SA 48213, 5pain

SUBWIABIS [OUBUL I
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35. Investmentsin Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates (continued)

Company Company
legalname Registered office address Jurisdiction legalname Registered office address Jurisdiction
FosecoFoundry Rocm 819, Shekou Zhooshang China Foseco Steel 165 Fleet Street, England
{Ching) Limited Building, Nanshan District, {Holdings)} London, EC4AZAE,
Shenzhen, China China Limited England
Foseco 5, Barrio Elizalde, 1zurza, Spain Foseco Steal 1 Midland Way, Cervtral Park, England
FundiciénHolding  Bizkain, 48313, Spain {UK) Limited Barlborough Links, Derbyshire,
{Espancla), 5.L. 543 4XA, England
FosecoHolding 165 Fleer Street, London, England Foseco Technology 165 Fleet Street, London, England
{Europe) Limited EC4A2AE England Limited EC4A 2AE, England
FosecoHolding 12, Bosworth Streat, South Africa Foseco 165 Fleet Street, England
(South Africa) Alrade, Aberton, 1449, Transnational London, ECAAZAE,
{Pty) Limited South Africn Limited England
Foseco 165 Fleet Street, London, Netherlands Foseco R 717.1, MeLinh Point Tower, Vietnam
Holding BV EC4A2AE, England Vietnormn Lirnited no 2 Ngo Duc Ke, Ben Nghe Word,
Foseco Holding 165 Fleet Street, England Disr 1, Ho ChiMinh, Vietnam
International London, EC4A 2AE, HGAC Street Duque de Coxias, Brazil
Limited Englond ParticipagBes 563 Room 2, Centra, Barueri,
Foseco Holding 165 Fleet Street, London, England Limitoda SP, 06401-010, Brazil
Lirnited EC4A 2AE, England 151D Lirmited BeaverHouse, 23-38 Hythe Bridge England
Fosecolndustrial ~ Km 15, Rodovia Raposo Tevares,  Brazil Street, Oxford, OX1 2EP, England
e Comercial Ltda ButontaCep, S&o Paulo, J H_France CT Corporation, 1209 Crange US (Delowara}
05577100, Brazil Refractaries Street, The Corporation Trust
Foseco International 170/69, 22nd Floor Ocean Tower 1, Thailand Company Compon)’tw‘!mmgfon;
Helding (Thailand)  Ratchadapisek Road, Klongtoey, DE 19801, United States
Limited Bangkak, 10110, Thalland John G Stein 1 Midlend Way, Central Park, England
Foseco 1 Midland Way, Central Park, England &'Ct‘ampony Barlborough Links, Derbyshire,
International Barlboraugh Links, Derbyshire, Limited 5434XA England
Limited 543 4XA, England Mainsail Insurance  Canon'sCourt, 22 Victorio Street,  Bermuda
FosecoJapanltd  9thFloor, Crix Kobe Sannomiya Japan CompanyLimited  Homilton, HM 12, Bermudo
Building, 6-1-10, Goke dori, Mascinco Avenida Brasil, 49550 - parte, Brazil
Chuo-ku, Kobe Hyogo, Erpreendimentos  Distrito Industrial de Palmares-
651-0087, Japan e Participogbes Campo, Grande-Cep: 23065-480,
FosecoKorea 74 leongju-ro, Wonmi-gu, South Korea Lida Rio de Janeire, RJ, Brezil
Limited Bucheon—si,Gyeongg\'-do, Mastercadi Avenida Giovanni Gronchi, 5174, Brazil
14523, South Korea Industrial Ltda sufte 11, Vila Andrade, 05724-002,
FosecoLimited 165 Fleet Street, London, Englond Sd&o Paulo, State of Sac Paulo, Brozil
EC4A 2AE, Englond Mercajoya, S.A. CapitanHaye, 56- 12H, Spain
Foseco CT Corporgtion, 120 Qrange US (Delaware) 28020 Madrid, Spain
MetallurgicalInc Street, The Corporation Trust Metal Way Estrada Santalsabel, 7655KM37,  Brozil
Company, W\'\mington, Equipamentos Bairro Do Una, taguaguecetuba,
DE 19801, United States MetalurgicosLtda  S&o Paulo-5SP, CEP: 08580000,
Foseco Binnenhavenstraat 20, Netherlands Brozil
Nederlond BV 7553 Gl Hengelo (OV), Micro Jewels 10 Frere Felix De Valois Streert, Mauritiysg
Netherlonds Limited Port Louis, Mauritius
Foseco Overseas 165 Fleet Street, London, Englond Minerals 165 Fleat Sireet, London, England
Limited EC4A 2ZAE, England Separation Limited EC4A 2AE, England
Foseco Pension 165 Fleet Street, London, Englond NewFoseco 1 Midlond Way, Central Park, England
Fund Trustee EC4A 2AE, Englond (UK) Limited Bariborough Links, Derbyshire,
Lirnited 5434XA, Englond
Foseco Unit 401, 4th Floor 8 Antonio Philippines Premier Refractories 17 Rue de Douvrain, Ghlin, Belgium
Philippines Inc Centre, Prime St Madrigal {Belgium)} S.A. 7011, Belgium
Busingss Parkiz, Ayglg Alabang Process Metrix, 6622 Owens Drive, Pleasanton, us
Muntinlupa Ciry, Philippines LLC CA 94588, United States {Californic)
Fosace Portugal Rua 25 de April, Lote 3, Portugal PT Foseco 2/5, JolanRawagelam, Indonesia
Produtos para Aye\edc—44857010VCD, Indenesia Kawasan Industry, 2/Ne.5
Fundigéolda Vilo do Conde, Portugal Pulagadung, Jakarta Timur,
Foseco Pty 7, Stuort Street, Padstow, Australia 13930, Indonesia
Limited NSW 2211, Australio PT Foseco 2/5, JalanRowagelam, Indonesio
Foseco SAS Le Newton C, 7 Mail Barthélémy  France Trading Indonesia  Kawasan Industry, 2/Ne.5

Thimannier, 77185 Lognes, France

Pulogadung, Jakarta Timur,
13930, indonesia
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Company Company
legclname Registered office address Jurisdiction legalname Registered office address Jurisdiction
Reglisations CT Corporation, 1209 Orange US (Delaware) Vesuvius China Office 813, 8/F, Poul Y centre, HongKong
789, L1LC Strees, The Carporotion Trust Holdings Co. 51 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong,
Company, Wilmington, DE 19801, Limited Kowloon, Hong Kong
. United States Vesuvius 165 Fleet Street, London, England
SGRBIlair & 1 Midland Way, Central Park, England China Limited EC4A 2AE, England
C_Grﬁpon\/ Barlborough Links, Derbyshire, Vesuvius Street 90, number 13 A - 37, Colombia
Limited 543 4XA, England Colombia SAS floor 6, Bogata, Colombia
SERT-Metal SAS 3 Ave.nued-el'Eur-ope, Parc, France Vesuviug Salita delle Ginestre 10, Lugano Switzerland
L;SSP(')V‘EHQS- Decines-Charpieu Corporation S AL Cassarate, CH 6200, Switzerland
_ 6 . france Vesuvive Crucible  CT Corporation, 1209 Orange US (Deloware}
SIBERMES Inc. 175, Calixa-Lavallée Verchéres, Canada Company Street, The Corporation Trust
o Québec JOL2RO, Canada Company, Wilmington, DE 19801,
SIDERMES Zonalndustrial, San Vicente Av., Venezuela United Stotes
Latinoamericana  Anton Phillips Grupa Industrial, Vesuvius i Pradnicka, nr 4, Krakow, 30-002, Poland
CA San Vicente Local 4, Maracay, CsDSpzoo. Paland
1
— Vene‘zuec - ‘ - Vesuvius Warehouse No: 1J-09/3, POBox  United Argb
SIDERMES Urquiza 916 Pwsq.2 Resarie Argenting Emirates FZE 49261, Hamiriyah Free Zone, Emirates
S.A. Santa Fe, Argentina, CP 2000 Sharjah, United Arob Emirates
SIDERMES Via MG”TOVO‘!O- Italy VesuviusFinancial 165 Fleet Street, London, England
S.p.A, 20835 Muggid (MB), lraly 1 Limited ECA4A 2AE, England
SIDERMES Es‘frnchunicEpulPDDGﬁ, 5/N.  Brazl Vesuvius Pajaméentie 10,00360 Helsinki,  Finland
SENSORES Prédio'C', Bairro da Boo Viste, Finland OY Finland
TE icipi p
BPRAP\SII\_CL?—S[&O Efgijépdlz ggofjslieérozi\ Vesuvius Foundry 12 Wei Wen Raad, China-Singapore China
— . Products (Suzhou)  Suzhou Ind Park, Suzhou, Jiangsu
SIR Siegerer Strasse 152, Germany Co, Lid. Province, 215122, China
(f;er:gr:‘esfproduk‘re é;erxrﬁ;?j;fD-SUZS, Vesuvius Foundry 2 Changehun Road, Econgrmie China
— Technologies Development Area, Changshu,
SQOLEDSAS Parc d'Activités, Belle Fontaine, France {Jiangsu) Co. Lid Jiangsu, China
—_ 57780 Rosselange, France Vesuvius France Rue Paul Deudon 68, Boite Postale  France
Tamworth 165 Fleet Street, London, England S.A. 19, Feignies 59750, France
UK Limi A [ - -
LK Limited ECA4A ZAE, England Vesuvius GmbH Gelsenkirchener Strasse 10, Germany
Thomas Marshall Beaver House, 23-38 Hythe Bridge  England Borken, D-46325, Germany
{Loxley) Limired Street, Oxford, OX1 2P, England Vesuvius Group 165 Fleat Street, London Engiand
Unicorn 165Fleet Street, London, England Lirnited EC4A 2AF, Eng{cnd ’
Industrigs Limired  EC4A ZAF, England Vesuvius Group S.A. 17 Rue de Douvrain, Ghlin, Belgium
Veservice Ltda Av Brasil, 49550, Distrito Industrial  Brazil 7017, Belgium
gfopdoe‘rj:r:;s;ocg?oicgglrggdlB‘e;oz}\ Vesuvius Holding Gelsenkirchener Strasse 10, Germgny
V_ - 170/69, 22nd F‘I 5 T T Tholond Deutschland GmbH Borken, D-46325, Germany
esuviLs , 22nd Fleor Ocean Tower 1, ailan -
(Thailend) Co., Ltd  Ratchadapisek Road, Klongtoey, ;’esuwué iosldmg 'f;SAR:leePz;;Iggu;ion, BP9, France
. Bangkok, 10110, Thailand once s> Ao Zgmes Tronce :
Vesuvius Street Urquiza, 919, Floor 2, Rosario, Argentina I\:’els.g\i‘ u;ol:i::g;‘g 2:?02 Eil?rlgo Fila 40, fraly
{(VE.AR)S.A. Provincio de Santa Fé, Argentina R:slponsubih'h‘: - Taly
VesuviusAdvanced 2271 Xing Ming Street, Ching- China Limitata
Ceromics (China)  Singapore Suzhou Ind Pork, Suzhou, .
Co, Lid Jiangsy Province, 215021, Chino e Limited LCARIAE Eoonden: England
Vesuvius 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington,  US (Delaware) - T . - "
Armerica, Inc. DE 19801, United States ;:?:‘:C‘:;'ii";i gggz‘g’&gs:’ig* 220::H Spain
Ver - - - X
Hesux.nusAmericos CorporcT\onTrustCenfrer,r US (Delaware) Vesuvive CT Corporation, 1205 Orange LS {Delawere)
oldings, Inc 1209 Grange Street, Wilmingtan, ool < 7 ;
New Castle County, DE 15801 [nternationa treet, The Corporation Trust
Uni ’ ' Corporation Company, Wilmington, DE 19801,
— nited States United Srates
- - N -
(ljsuv.]usAusrruhu 40-46 Gloucester Boulevarde, Australia Vervioe 165 Floar Srees, London, England
olding} Pty Port Kemblo, NSW, 2505,
e . Investments ECA4A 2AE, England
Limited Australia Limited
Vasuvius 40-46 Gloucester Boulevarde, Australia -
AustraliaPtyLtd  Port Kembla, NSW, 2505, Austrelic Vesuvuslstanbul - Gebze OS82 Mh. 1700, Turkey
Sanayive Ticaret Sok Ne:1704/1, Cayirova,
Vesuvius Zandvoordestraat 366, Costende, Belgium AS Kocaeli, 41420, Turkey
Belgiura N B-8400, Belg]
Eelgium NV, 6490, Belgium Vesuviusltalia SPA Piazza Borgo Pila 40, Genoa, taly  Italy
Vasuvius 181 Bay Street, Suite 1800, Canada v - Doim-Noruse Akihabora Bid ]
Canadalnc Toronto, Dntarie, M5J 2T9, Canada ESUVILS oruse Akihacara Bidg. apan
— Japan Inc 2F, 2710, 1-cheme, Toito,
Veasuvius 165 Fleet Street, London, Englond Taito-ku, Tokya, 110-0016, Jopan

Ceromics Limited

ECAA 2AE, England
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35. Investmentsin Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates (continued)

35.1 Investmentin subsidiaries (continved)

35.2

Company Company
legalnome Registered office address Jurisdiction legalnome Registered office address Jurisdiction
Vesuvius 1 Midland Way, Centrol Park, England Vesuvius Calati, Marea Unire avenue 107, Romania
K.S.R. Limited Barlberough Links, Derbyshire Refractories Sor.l. Galaticounty, Romania
S434XA, United Kingdom Vasuvius AvBrasil, 45550, Distrito Industrial  Brazil
VesuviusLife Plan 165 Fleet Street, London, England RefrotariosLtda de Palmares, Compe Grande,
Trustee Limitad ECAAJAE, England Riode Janeiro, 23065-480, Brazil
Vesuvius LLC 10Ul Kooperativnayo, Russia Vesuvius Refractory RoomMNo. 9, 3rdFloor, 7 Ganesh India
Zhukovsky, Moscow, 140180, India Private Chondra Avenue, Kolkata,
Russian Federation Limited WB 700013, [ndia
Vesuvius Levet 18, The Gardens North Malaysia Vesuvius 4, Forradsgatan, Amal, Sweden
Malaysia Sdn Tower, Mid Valley City, Lingkaran Scandinavia AB S-662 34, Sweden
Bhd Syed Putra, Kualatumpur, Vasuvius Solar 58, KuaChun Road, China
59200, Malaysia Crucible(Suzhou)  Kua Tang, China-Singapore
Vesuvius 165 Fleet Street, Londan, England Co., Lid. SuzouInd Park, Suzhou,
Management EC4A 2AE, England Jiangsu Province,
Limited 215122, China
Vesuvius Mexico Av Ruiz Cortinez, Num. 140, Mexico Vesuvius Pebble Lane, Private Bag X2, South Africa
S.A deCNV. Colonia Jardines de San Rafoel, South Africa Olifantsfontein, Gauteng Province,
Guadolupe, Nuevo Ledn, CP 67119, (Pty) Limited 1665, South Africa
Mexico Vesuvius 55C 5p ulPradnicka, nr 4, Krakaw, 30-002,
Vesuvius 56,rd 15, Apt 103, Maadi, Egypt 2.0.0. Poland
Mid-EastLimited  Cairo, Egypt Vesuvius UK 1 Midland Woy, Central Park, England
Vesuvius 165 Fleet Street, London, England Limited Barlborough Links, Derbyshire,
Minerals Limited ECaA 2AE,England 543 4XA, United Kingdom
Viesuvius Moravia,  Konskac.p. 740, Trinec, 73967, Crech Vesuvius Ukraine 27, Udarnykiv Streat, City of Ukrgine
sl CzechRepublic Republic LLC Dripropetrovsk, Ukraine
Vesuvius New 18 Cryers Road, East Tamaki, New Zecland Vesuvius USA CT Corporation, 208 SouthLaSalle US (Illinois)
Zealand Limited Auckland, New Zealand Corporation Street, Chicago, Cook County,
Vesuvius Afanasyeveky, Pereulok 41 A, Russia IL 60604, United States
Q00 Maoscow, Russia, 119018, Vesuvius VA Limited 165 Fleet Street, London, England
Russian Federation EC4A 2AE, England
Vesuvius Overseas 165 Fleet Street, London, England Vesuvius Zyalons Brown Street, Newmilns, Scotland
Investments Limited EC4A 2AF, England Holdings Limited Ayrshire, KA16 9AG, Scotland
Vesuvius 165 Fleet Street, London, England Vesuvius Zyarock 58, KuaChun Road, Kua Tang, China
Overseasblimited  EC4A 2AE, England Ceramics China-Singapore Suzou Ind Pork,
Vasuvius Pension 165 Fleet Street, London, England (Suzhou) Co., Ltd Suzhou, J'\u‘ngsu Province,
Plons Trustees EC4A 2AE, England 215122, China
Limited Vesuvius-Premier 1 Midland Way, Central Park, England
Wesuvius Pigments 165 Fleet Street, London, England RefrclcTor'\esA ] Barlbarough Links, Derbyshire,
{Holdings) Limited  EC4A 2AE, England (Hoidings)Limited 543 4XA, England
Vesuvius Poland Ul Tyniecka 12, Skawina, Poland VSV Advanced Xiaotaizi Vilage, Ningyuan Town,  China
Spélkaz.o.0 32.050 Poland Ceremics (Anshan)  Qignshan District, Anshan,
5 L Liaoning Provi hi
Vesuvius Street No. F14, RAK Investment United Arcb CC? ,Lrd taoning Province, China
Ras Al Khaimah Authority Free Zone, Al Harmse, Ernirates WMTES—LUCOS 165 Fleet Street, London, England
FZLLC Ras AlKhaimah, PO Box 86408, Limited EC4A ZAE, England
United Arab Emirates Yingkou Bayuquan  Qing Long Shan Street, Bayuquan  China
Vesuvius Street San Martin 870 Chile Refractories Co., Ltd District, Liaoning Province, YingKou
Refractarios Room 308, Tower B, Concepcion,
deChile SA Chie
Vesuvius 56, 13th Avenue, TEDA, Tianjin, Ching

Refractories
{Tianjin) Co., Ltd

300457, China

Investment in joint ventures and associates
Ajoint venture is atype of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint confrol of the arrangement have rights to the
net assets of the joint venture. Joint controlis the contractually agreed shering of control of the arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. An associcte is an entity
over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of an entity, butis not control or joint control aver those policies.



The Groug's investments in its associates and joint verttures are accounted for using the equity method fromthe date
significant influence/joint controlis deemed to arise until the date on which significant influence/joint control ceases to exist or
when the interest bacomes classified as an asset held for sale. The Consolidcted Income Statement reflects the Group's share
of profit after tax of the related associates and jeint ventures. Investments in associates and joint ventures are carried in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet at cost adjusted in respect of post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of net assets, less any

impairment invalue.

2017 2016
Em £m

At January 18.0 16.1
Additions 0.4 —
Share of post-tax profit of joint ventures 1.3 10
Dividends received from joint ventures an (1.0)
Foreign exchange (0.5} 1.9
At31 December 17.5 18.0
Jointventures
Set out below is the summarised financial information in respect of joint ventures. Amounts relate to the Group's share.

2017 2016

£m £m

Revenue 539 446
Troding proﬂt 21 1.6
Net finance costs 01 0.1
Profit before tax 2.2 1.6
Income tax expense (0.9) (0.6)
Profit aftertax 1.3 1.0
Non-current assets 5.9 76
Current assets 41.7 42.0
Nen-current liabilities - -
Current liabilities (30.8) (32.0)
Netassets 16.8 17.6

The purpose of the Chinese joint venture companies is to research, develop, manufacture and sell refractory products.
The role of Vesuvius is to provide technical personnel, training and accessto the Group'sinternational sales network.

179

Name of entity Registered address Jurisdiction % ownership

Angang Vesuvius Refractory Company Ltd Taxi District, Anshan City, Liaoning Province, China China 50

Wuhan Wugang-Vesuvius Advanced CCRCo.,  Gongnong Village Qingshan District, Wuhan, China 50

Ltd Hukei Province, 430082, China

Wuhon Wugang-Vesuvius Advanced Ceramics  Gongnong Villuge Qingshan District, Wuhan, China 50

Co, Ltd Hubei Province, 430082, China

Beauvac Participagdes 5/4 Street Libero Badaro, 293, ¢j, 20D, Sdo Paulo, Brazil 50
Centro, 371009-000, Brazil

INTAHSASA Street Dugue de Caxias 563, house 04, Room 01, Brazil 25
Barueri, Séo Paulo, Centro, 06401-010, Brazil

Newshelf 480 (Proprietary) Limited 44 Main Street, Johannesburg, 2007, South 45
South Africa Africa

SJUBLUBJDIS [O1auD U4 I
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35.3

36.

36.1

36.2

36.3

Investments in Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates {continued)
Investment in joint ventures and associates (continued)

Associates
During 2017, the Group cequired a 14.9% interestin Sapotech Oy, a Finnish technology company, for total censideration
of £G.4m.

Nameof entity Registered address Jurisdiction % ownership

Sapotech Oy Poave Havaksentie 5 D, 90570 Quly, Finland Finland 14.90

Non-controlling interest

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of the equity of a subsidiary not attributable either directly orindirectly to the
parent company and are presented separately in the Consclidated Income Statement and within equity inthe Consolidated
Balance Sheet, distinguished from parent company shareholders’ equity.

Thetotal nan-controlling interest ot 31 December 2017 is £6.4m (2016: £6.3m) of which £4.6m relates to Vesuvius India Ltd
{2016: £4.3m). The non-controlling interests in respect of the Group's other subsidiaries are not considered to e material.

Nameof entity Registered address Jurisdiction  %ownership

Vesuvius India Limited P-104 Taratala Road, Kolkata, 700088, India India 55.57

Foseco India Limited 922/923, Gat, Sanaswadi, Taluka, Shirur, Pune, India 7498
412208, india

Foseco Golden Gate Company Limited 6 Kung Yeh 2nd Road, Ping Tung Dist, Ping Tung, Taiwan 57
90049, Taiwan

Foseco (Thailand} Limited 170/69, 22nd Floor Ocean Tower 1, Thailand 74

Ratchadapisek Road, Klongtoey, Bangkok,
10110, Thailand

VESUVIUS CESKAREPUBLIKA, as. Prumyslové 726, Konskd, Trinec, 735 67, Czech 60
Czech Republic Republic

Details of subsidiaries exempt from audit of their individual financial statements by virtue of Section 479A of the Companies
Act 2006 are disclosed in Note 6 to the Company Financial Statements.

As with Vesuvius ple, all of the above companies have a 31 December year-end.

Related Parties
Alltransactions with related parties are conducted en an arm’s-length basis and in accordance with nermal business terms.
Transactions between related parties that are Group subsidiaries are eliminated on consolidaticn.

The related parties identified by the Directors include joint ventures, associates, and key management personnel. To enable
users of our financial statements to form a view onthe effects of related party relationships on the Group, we disclose the
related party relationship when control exists, irrespective of whether there have been transactions between the related
parties.

Transactions with joint ventures and associates
Alltransactions with joint ventures and associates are in the normal course of business. Further details of joint ventures and
associates areincluded in Note 35.

Transactions with key management personnel
There have been no transactions with key management personnel of the Group other than the Directors’ remuneration.

Directors remuneration is disclosed in Note 8 of the Group Financial Statements ond in the Directors’ Rermuneration Report.

Transactions with other related parties
There are no controlling shareholders of the Group as defined by IFRS. There have been no material transactions with the
shareholders of the Group.

Pension contributions to Group schemes are disclosed in Note 28 of the Group Financial Statemen